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Corporate Portfolio

NEIL

CORPORATE PORTFOLIO

HC International, Inc. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred as the “Group”) is one of the leading domestic B2B e-commerce
operators in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC” or “China”). With
its professional information services and advanced internet technologies, it
has established a reliable demand and supply platform for small to medium
enterprises (“SMEs"), and has been providing them with complete business
solutions. Through dedicated efforts and developments over the past 24
years, the Group has expanded its business scope to cover more than 100
cities nationwide, with branches in 9 cities and a service team of about 2,964
individuals as at 31 December 2016.

With its professional experience and skills acquired from various industries
over the past 24 years, the Group provides SMEs with B2B1.0 marketing
solutions of Mai-Mai-Tong, an internet information based product, and
keyword search, and also offers customers with effective B2B2.0 service
experience through professional matching team, the entrusted operation
team, Xunpanbao products, Super Trade Catalogues and Liuliangbao under
the core principle of facilitating transaction conclusion by providing effective
buyer information to achieve buyer-seller interaction. In addition, the Group
successfully hosted Feasts for Industry Brands for about 50 industry sectors
through the Group’s strong media recourses and customer base, which help
SMEs to build up their brand names and promote their business transactions.
The Group also offers customers with internet financing products through the
joint venture established with Digital China Holdings Limited (“Digital China”)
(the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”) (Stock code: 861)); the landing
project of online-to-offline business model of the Group — Shunde 020
business exhibition centre completed on schedule and put into operation.
Such a complementary and multi-dimensional structure allows the Group
to create a unique development path amid the rapid expansion of the B2B
industry in China.

Through the determined implementation of the professional and focused
strategy, the Group has been offering professional and all dimensional
marketing solutions to customers in those traditional industrial sectors
during the past several years. At the same time, the Group has been actively
expanding into the market segment of fast-moving consumer goods in the
field of high added-value service. Based upon the different natures in our
targeted markets, the Group has developed two unique business models for
relationship-based customers and transaction-based customers, separately.
Along with our direct sales, agency sales and telemarketing sales teams, the
Group provides the relationship-based customers with one-to-one, indepth
and professional solutions, and transaction-based customers with efficient,
user-friendly and standardised solutions and business platforms. Through
these services, the Group satisfies its different customers’ needs. The Group is
committed in providing professional and innovative services and products to
meet market and users’ needs, and facilitating the conclusion of transactions.
Customer experience and service quality are our constant focus. Within the
last several years, the Group’s businesses became more focused, product
portfolio became more precise, and business model and market demands
became more in line.
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Financial Highlights
BEmE

2016 2015 2014 2013
—E-RE “T—hHF —T—ME =&

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMTR  ARETRL  ARMTT  ARNTE  ARETR

Revenue HEMA 1,958,283 916,138 966,637 837,721 548,568
Gross profit Esy 1,252,019 820,625 894,204 769,518 479,884
EBITDA EBITDA 555,096 121,215 277,584 216,414 97,111
Profit attributable to equity KRAEEREA

holders of the Company FEAEEF) 181,784 52,552 187,633 153,326 66,724
Earnings per share (RMB) BRENAREL)
- Basic —HK 0.1882 0.0696 0.2833 0.2634 0.1204
- Diluted —EBE 0.1852 0.0679 0.2729 0.2489 0.1133
Financial position BRI
Net current assets REEEFE 41,313 141,176 936,319 585,484 171,338
Total assets HWEE 6,252,419 5,687,042 3,250,155 1,956,782 855,199
Total liabilities BRE 2,984,276 3,088,096 1,934,988 946,308 412,507
Total equity B 3,268,143 2,598,946 1,315,167 1,010,474 442,692
REVENUE GROSS PROFIT EBITDA
HEWA EX RMB’000
RMB’000 RMB’000 ARET
ARETFT ARMTFIT

1,958,283
555,096
1,252,019
894, 204 820625
- 966,637 816138 769,518 277,584
21
479,884 216414
548,568
l 97111 121,215

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
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Financial Highlights
ITEmE

REVENUE ANALYSIS $45& U A D47

Trade

catalogues Anti- 020

and Seminars counterfeiting business

Online  yellow page and other products Financing exhibition
services directories services  and services services centre Total

TH%E & g5k B 020
BB AR5 REEA& H AR EmRRS SRRE EERERL et
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARBTR AR¥TR ARBTR ARET T ARETR ARETR AR¥TT

949,303 842,081 1,958,283
2015 —Z-TF 733,309 18,251 109,364 55,168 46 - 916,138
2014 —T-mF 812,935 35,630 101,879 16,193 - - 966,637
2013 —E-=f 693,903 42,924 100,894 - - - 837,721
2012 —E-C-F 411,462 54,866 82,240 - - - 548,568

2012 2014
548,568,000 966,637,000

2016
1,958,283,000

2013 2015
837,721,000 916,138,000

@ Trade catalogues and yellow page directories Anti-counterfeiting products and services @ Financing services
ITH¥aHhEEEK By 125 2 o S AR 75 © A AR

@ On-line services Seminars and other services @ 020 business exhibition centre
B8RS BiE M E AR 0207 ¢ EEH 1
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Management’s Statement
BEIEERE

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the Group generated a total
revenue of approximately RMB1,958,283,000 (2015: RMB916,138,000). This
represented an increase of approximately 113.8% in revenue as compared to
that in 2015.

For the Group’s financial performance in different segments, a total revenue
of approximately RMB949,303,000 was achieved from the online services
segment in 2016, and represented an increase of approximately 29.5%
from approximately RMB733,309,000 in 2015. Revenue from the Group's
trade catalogues and yellow page directories segment decreased from
approximately RMB18,251,000 in 2015 to approximately RMB11,268,000 in
2016 which represented a decrease of approximately 38.3%. Revenue derived
from seminars and other services segment was approximately RMB81,911,000
in 2016, which represented a decrease of approximately 25.1% from
approximately RMB109,364,000 in 2015. Revenue from anti-counterfeiting
products and services segment increased from approximately RMB55,168,000
in 2015 to approximately RMB66,137,000 in 2016 which represented an
increase of approximately 19.9%. Revenue from financing services segment
was approximately RMB7,583,000. Revenue from 020 business exhibition
centre was approximately RMB842,081,000.

The gross profit margin of the Group decreased by 25.7 percentage points to
approximately 63.9% in 2016 (2015: 89.6%). It was mainly due to the lower
gross profit margin of the income from 020.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the Group increased
its operating expenses from approximately RMB797,100,000 in 2015 to
approximately RMB969,257,000 which was mainly due to the increase of
staff salaries and marketing expenses.

The Group achieved a profit for the year of approximately RMB300,676,000
in 2016 (2015: RMB23,058,000).

During the year of 2016, cash generated from operating activities was
approximately RMB211,888,000, while cash generated from operating
activities was approximately RMB209,130,000 in 2015.

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company
recommend the payment of final dividend of HK$0.05 per share of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

B 75 21
HE-ZT—AF+_A=1+—ALIBEE  ££H
BRSMEHE IR A N AREE,958,283,000L( = —F
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55,168,000 03 hnE =2 — X F 4 AR ¥66,137,000
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A AR842,081,0007T °
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Manement’s Statement
EIRERE

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2016, the Group continued its reforms of B2B business. According to the
"active transaction”, the Group has deeply mined the trading information
of vertical industries by internally relying on more than 10 platforms like
household appliances, machinery, hardware tools, chemicals and textile, and
it has assisted the customers to complete their transaction, payment, storage
and transportation. Throughout the year 2016, the Group has assisted SMEs
to complete Gross Merchandise Volume (“GMV") amount of approximately
RMB41.6 billion while throughout the year 2015, the Group had completed
GMV amount of approximately RMB5.62 billion, representing an increase of
approximately 640%.

In 2016, the Group had gone through a series of reformation in the internet
technology service, including continuously enhancing the Xunpanbao product,
using artificial intelligence to match the needs of buyers and sellers, enabling
the sellers to manage needs of matched buyer via back-office system,
establishing and matching customized team, establishing entrusted operation
team that could assist clients to operate the online shops, promoting result-
driven products like Liuliangbao for which customers could flexibly select
product according to their demand, and adjust marketing strategies at any
time. In 2016, the contribution of B2B1.0 (including online services, trade
catalogues and yellow page, seminars and anti-counterfeiting products) to the
Group's revenue grew by approximately 21.1% year on year.

As for finance cluster, the Group provided micro-loan products through its
joint ventures, and provided finance lease services through its wholly-owned
subsidiaries. As the “lubricant” for transactions, micro-loan products and
finance leases have become the growth engine of profits while strengthened
the financial capacity of seller’s supply chain. In addition, through the
internal industry platforms and the B2B trading platforms of some joint-stock
enterprises, SMEs’ customers are able to flexibly use the online payment tool
“HuiFuBao"” to enjoy online payment without an upper limit and to safeguard
fund security, thereby facilitating the completion of transaction.

HC International, Inc Annual Report 2016
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Manement’s Statement
EIRERE

The business exhibition center of the Group related to small household
electrical appliances was officially completed and commenced operation on
18 March 2016. More than 700 enterprises of small household electrical
appliances made use of the Group’s business exhibition center to trade with
the large distributors as well as small to medium online and offline distributors
of small household electrical appliances local and abroad by leveraging on
the natural advantages of “store in the front, factory at the back” in Shunde.
Except the mall used for sales and exhibition, surrounding buildings were built
for developing office space. The business exhibition center has become the
first domestic 020 mall of B2B nature thanks to the unremitting efforts of the
Group and its business partners. Such project contributed significantly to the
profit while promoted the B2B trade of small household electrical appliances
in its completion year when certain revenue was recognised at the end of
2016.

In addition, development of applications of mobile terminals in B2B
e-commerce transactions, B2B warehousing and logistics services provided
by third parties through strategic cooperation, technical support of anti-
counterfeiting and anti-channel conflict etc. provided by holding company
are all significant components of the B2B ecosystem. Apart from product
information in relation to B2B e-commerce value, the value of new generation
of B2B2.0 business has been widely recognized by more customers in 2016.

The Group encountered a tough transformation from offline to online under
the internet boom, successfully spanning into the ninth year of operations
under the internet environment indicating a new milestone for us. Now,
we are facing another wave of B2B e-Commerce reform. We need to take
the initiative to undergo changes while upgrading our B2B1.0 into a more
vertically in-depth and transaction oriented platform. We are also strategically
planning for B2B2.0 which is a transaction based strategy, under which
other B2B related services, along with finance cluster will be implemented to
upgrade products and create innovation, and at the same time, to enhance
the quality of services so that we will eventually have a charging system
based on performance results. To ensure a sound balance of the ecosystem
of the B2B platform, we have been adhering to the motto of “servicing the
buyers” since 2013 and providing high quality procurement service for buyers
to maintain the balance between demand and supply and thus facilitate
completion of deals.

REZZ—XFZA+N\B AEEREHBEZERE
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Manement’s Statement
EIRERE

We assisted the niche marketing and result-oriented payment between buyers
and sellers through online Biao-Wang Search, Mai-Mai-Tong, Cai-Gou-
Tong and value-added services such as Liu-Liang-Bao, (which are developed
on the basis of Mai-Mai-Tong,) and assisted completion of deals through
system matched Xunpanbao and artificial professional matching team. As the
“lubricant” for transaction, Internet financial products have assisted sellers to
strengthen the financial capacity of short-term supply chain, and HuiFuBao
serves as an online transaction payment tool to ensure buyers’ fund security.
At the same time, we also promoted the communication and activities within
the community of industry via various offline forums, trade fairs, expositions,
Feasts for Industry Brands, enhancing the complementary effect of online and
offline marketing in such a way that the marketing efforts of e-commerce will
be maximised, so as to increase the successful rate of transactions.

In 2016, approximately 48.5% of the revenue of the Group was generated
from internet services, approximately 43.0% of the revenue was from 020
business exhibition center, approximately 4.7% was from paper media,
seminars and other activities, approximately 0.4% was from finance cluster
and approximately 3.4% was from anti-counterfeiting products and services.

(1) Products
Online Products
The Group provides its internet services mainly through the platform of
“www.hc360.com” and its mobile end application, on which business
information is collected and disseminated with an aim to facilitate the
location and matching of buyers and sellers.

The online platform is further divided by industries (such as household
appliances, electronics and chemical painting, etc.) to assist users by
providing information and updates of the relevant industries. The Group
currently derives revenues from its internet services mainly through Mai-
Mai-Tong, Biao-Wang Member, entrusted operation and Xunpanbao
performance-based services.

HC International, Inc Annual Report 2016
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Manement’s Statement
EIRERE

Mai-Mai-Tong

Mai-Mai-Tong is one of the principal B2B product of the Group.
Currently, Mai-Mai-Tong offers free subscription membership and
fee-paying membership (with subscription fee varying based on the
packaged services attached). After registering for Mai-Mai-Tong,
users may establish their online store on the Group’s online platform,
on which they may disseminate and promote products and services
information subject to vetting of the Group. Users may join industry
portals on the platform, and may view messages disseminated by
competitors on the platform. Supplementary services provided to Mai-
Mai-Tong users include precise search, Cai-Gou-Tong, user quick
match, Hui-Fu-Bao, visitor analysis, Wechat customer service and other
integrated e-commerce services (such as industry news access, online
consulting, smart shop back-office, credit certification, independent
website).

The Group also engages third party institutions to provide identity
certification to fee-paying enterprises members of Mai-Mai-Tong.
Services of Mai-Mai-Tong may be offered to users alone or together
with other value-added services (for example, Biao-Wang search) as a
package. In 2015 and 2016, we carried out a series of reforms based on
Mai-Mai-Tong and added value-added services:

(@) Mobile End Services
We introduced the mobile version of Mai-Mai-Tong services and
provided online-shops on Wechat platform for customers which
have served over 100,000 customers in aggregate.

At the end of 2016, the Group began to develop the “Super Trade
Catalogues”, the mobile end application products to gradually
replace the printed magazines "HC Trade Catalogues” and “HC
Yellow Page Directory”. The Group together with Huijia Yuantian
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, have developed
mobile end APPs for different industries with social media as
carrier, and utilised the industry information and big data analysis
to carry out the vertical niche industry marketing with specific
targets. At the end of 2016, the Super Trade Catalogues of
household appliance industry and the hospitality industry has been
online. In February 2017, the Super Trade Catalogue of machinery
industry was brought online and was named “Zhaojihui”.
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HC International, Inc

Transaction Matching Services

In July 2015, the Group established transaction matching teams to
provide trade-matching services for various B2B industries buyers
and sellers based on Mai-Mai-Tong. The average number of daily
service is over 10,000.

Currently, over 1,000 effective purchasing contracts are bridged
daily by the transaction matching team, of which some fund
transactions are completed via Huifubao online payment system.
The matched transactions are mainly relevant to industries of
engineering machinery, chemical engineering, textile, tool and
household appliance etc.

Xun-Pan-Bao Services

Xun-Pan-Bao aims at searching products with high cost-
effectiveness and sellers for buyers, which is part of the value-
added services of Mai-Mai-Tong currently. The Group plans to
charge sellers based on effective number of buyers via progressively
increasing grades in the future.

Entrusted Operation Services

The Group launched entrusted operation services at the end
of 2015. With a view to assisting small enterprises for starting
their e-commerce operation business, the services provided for
customers include website decoration, products releasing, buyer
reception and real time maintenance. The entrusted operation
services have been recognised by customers. Currently, more than
2,000 customers subscribe such services monthly.

Liu-Liang-Bao

The Group launched Liu-Liang-Bao product at the end of 2016,
which is a marketing model with precise promotion and flexible
operation, and its advertising service fees are charged on the basis
of promotion results which will save cost for enterprises. It provides
not only internal advertising spots of multiple sub-division on the
website, but also huge external network directional linkages and
niche marketing, which enable the promotional products to obtain
free mass exposure, and charges on the basis of per click. It is a
new generation of value-added performance-based service that the
Group introduced to the Mai-Mai-Tong members.
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Search Products

Search products, operated under the brand “Biao-Wang”, are one of the
services provided to fee-paying Mai-Mai-Tong users. It provides keyword
search result services through improving and prioritizing users’ page
links/products’ ranking and providing scrolling display on the Group'’s
platform upon searching specific keywords. The Group currently derives
revenue from its search products by charging service fees annually per
keyword. Such fixed fees are determined based on the ranking and
display position on the Group’s platform, and are being charged on a
pre-paid basis upon entering into service contracts with users, without
regard to number of clicks.

Online Transaction Service

“Hui-Fu-Bao” is a payment tool developed by the Group to facilitate
online transactions. In light of the increasing demand of SMEs for
transaction safety, speed and convenience, online transaction has
become the future development of the B2B market. Based on its own
strategies and business characteristics, and at the aim of fully satisfying
customers’ requests, the Group has developed online transaction
service tailored to the B2B market, which facilitates high value payment
and addresses customers’ concern about the transaction safety. Hui-
Fu-Bao is a product provided to Mai-Mai-Tong users with an aim to
assisting transactions between buyers and sellers of the online platform.
HuiFuBao operates through the operation and cooperation pursuant
to a payment services agreement (Z{JAR#1#%) and a transaction
funding escrow services cooperation agreement (X & & EERKEAE
YE#3:%). For the principal terms of such agreements, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 25 September 2014. Currently,
the Group does not derive any revenue from or charge buyers or sellers
for the use of Hui-Fu-Bao service. Focusing on the B2B transactions,
the Group has continued to extend its online transaction services and
develop respective transaction modules based on the needs of different
industries so as to continue with the transactions of each sector. In order
to build a B2B transaction platform, the Group will continue to explore
various approaches to enhance the stability of the B2B close-loop
operations, and to include various elements (such as 020 and Internet
finance) in order to further smoothen the operation.
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Online Advertising

Online advertising services are also provided by the Group on the
online platform and subdivided industry webpages. The Group derives
advertisement income, which are determined based on, among others,
display position and size, frequency of display, without regard to number
of clicks.

Financial Service Products

Mai Mai Loan, a finance product developed by our joint venture
company, Digital China HC Micro-Credit Co., Ltd (/)i S5 21858
BRAR AT, is a service which can promote the development of
B2B transaction platform. In addition, we also cooperate with financial
institutions to provide microfinance products to SMEs. Today, SMEs are
facing difficulties in securing bank loans with stringent requirements of
loan approval resulted from the tighter monetary policies in China. Mai
Mai Loan and microfinance products offer our customers opportunities
to apply for microloan from our joint ventures and financial institutions
which cooperate with us. Internet financial products can to certain
extent help SMEs improve their cash flows.

Offline Products

As for trade catalogues, “HC Trade Catalogues”, is an authoritative
industry purchasing guide in China. It covers a myriad of corporate
information and price dynamics with extensive coverage and strong
industrial influence established over the years. It is one of the leading
catalogues in B2B industry. As for yellow page directories, as a business
yearbook for specific industries, the “Yellow Page Directories” feature
a systematic compilation of industry information, product technology
and industry yellow page information. This product acts as an important
reference that bridges manufacturers, suppliers, administrative
organisations and users within an industry. Nevertheless, with the
emerging of internet technologies and products, more and more users
have migrated to our new online substitutes.

As a result, the Group would transit the specially customized
information and advertisement of paper media to developed new
product of broadcasting mobile-end content via multiple media carriers
(representative new product is “Super Trade Catalogues”). Customer
interested in the paper media product would also be covered by new
products eventually.

Annual Report 2016

B

AREFRERT & RAH(TRBE HRHE

GEEERG - AREMRES KA - TR

(R @) BRI ERAN  BRASEE
PR -

SRR E D
BEEE(HREMzEERRMMEIE R EE
PARBARFEZ CRMER) RET —IBA(TE
B2BR % F A #EREZIRTS - btoh - HFITRES
BMEEBAE mP/ P EERE N RERER -
ARIBEE T R B EEHR - SR EEE
B POEHEUBSETER - EEER
J\ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁuuﬁ%ﬁkﬁ%@ CAHEMZAEE
RERERMEE M B RERBUREERE
E - EMECRERERE -TRE BT
NEEREEEST ©

BRTER
THXESZREEES | ETFEMABITER
ﬁ%%ﬁ' Ei%igiiiﬁw,\éuu{ﬂ%@b

BOBTHEEZ  RTEURTEFES

R OEBBEFEZHH— - EEHH fifﬂ%a
BAZ BBHITERESE  ERENRTEER
ERETTHEMES  ZFELMEBERKITEER
FE - RERNEER  HER  EEBERA
FERREEZESE - REWN - EEEHH
RTRERMER  BREZAFEERER
BFIFOERERS -

ﬁﬂ

Hit  AEBBERERERSEEMLES
¥ HBREREARZEBARAEELHN
%“ETZ%EEI%(%ﬁ%%ﬁi’%ﬁ(ﬂf&ﬁﬁj) 1
IR E M B P IMEE M E MBE -




Management's Statement

BEEWRE

Feasts for Industry Brands

The Group launched promotion campaigns for various industry brands
in 2008, which aims at rewarding people and enterprises which made
significant contribution to the industrial development, reform and
transformation, building up brand influence for leading enterprises in
the industry and thereby promoting industrial progress. In 2016, the
Group once again successfully organised feasts for industry brands, and
drove industry development with the theme of “influence changes the
future of the industry”.

Anti-counterfeiting Products and Services

This segment provides digital identity management services and unique
identification labels and tools (such as anti-counterfeiting tags) to
customers that require source-tracing, logistics-tracking and consumer
brand building for “Original Brand”. The services and their database are
rendered via both PC and mobile apps. Such business is operated by our
acquired subsidiary, Beijing Panpass Information Technology Company
Limited.

B2B2C Products and Services

Since the acquisition of Orange Triangle Inc. (ZoL.com.cn, AR
#2), the service scope of IT consumer products such as mobile and
accessories, wearable devices, computer, camera, computer hardware
and software has been expanded to large-scale customers leveraging on
the more than 70% coverage of tech-sensitive user in China, and also
opened up the information and advertising channels for IT consumer
product producer, capillary retailers and end-consumers.

Since the acquisition of ZhongFu Holdings Limited (efu.com.cn, #/L
AR), the serving scope of consumer product of clothing industry (fashion
brand, clothing, colth etc.) has been expanded to distribution of product
and brand advertisements for large-scale distributer, capillary retailers
shops and end-customers, and also opened up B2B2C channel via online
& offline promotion activities.
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HC International, Inc

Marketing Channels

Through three sales teams, namely the Industry Direct Sales, the Agency
Sales and the Telemarketing Sales teams, hc360.com provides online
and offline products and services of the Company to customers in
segmented professional marketplaces. Established since 2006, such
sales model helps enterprises to realise steady revenue growth with
mature and active attitude to respond to changes in marketing. As one
of the major sales forces of the Group, the Direct Sales Team focuses
on selling high-end online and offline products, targeting at value-
based and relationship-based customers. It also provides vertical and
professional products and services to customers of various industries
so as to achieve value enhancement. The Telemarketing Sales Team
was formed in August 2006 to meet the needs of high value-added
services and consumer product markets. The growth in its performance
has been derived from the strengthening of its managing system,
resulting in improvement in its working efficiency and market promotion
ability. Today, the Telemarketing Sales Team has become a critical sales
channel of the internet products of the Group. The Agency Sales team
has been extending the regional market reach for the Group to the
maximum degree and promoting brands. It has become an important
supplementary sales force of the Group.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The Group's customers consist of a vast amount of SMEs in the PRC.
Most of the Group’s revenue is derived from online products and since
the relevant price of each online product is not significant and the online
products are sold to a large number of customers, each customer’s
contribution towards the Group'’s revenue is relatively small. Therefore,
the Company's reliance on any individual customer is low. In respect of
Mai-Mai-Tong, Biao-Wang products and services, sales agreements are
entered into between the Group and its customers. The terms of the sale
agreements are divided into one year, and/or two year depending on
different products. Upon the expiry of the sales agreements, customers
have an option to renew the sales agreements.

The Company’s major suppliers are as follows: (i) the verification supplier
provides verification services for Mai-Mai-Tong members. Our verification
supplier is an independent third-party company with the relevant
verification qualifications, and is paid on a monthly basis according to
the number of verifications carried out in that particular month. We have
cooperated with this verification supplier for several years and our supply
contract with the current verification supplier is renewed yearly; (i) the
search product suppliers provide search engine and promotion services
for Biao Wang products, allowing our paid members to have a higher
exposure of their products by getting more search engine hits and
promoting their products and achieving transactions. We currently have
6 search product suppliers which are leading search engine providers like
Baidu and 360 Search and the respective service contracts with them are
renewed on a yearly basis.
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(4) Customer Service

With its business covering around 50 sectors, the Group has dedicated
service team serving both purchasers and clients. It facilitates transactions
by way of supply and demand matching, online negotiations, offline
trade meetings and group purchasing. The Group provides “Report
on Purchasers Practice Analysis” and “Report on Big Data Analysis”, in
order to thoroughly study the industry characteristics, member types
and their spreads, process of making buying decision, buying practice,
buying cycle and change of concerns, and also made predictions and
justifications on buying trend to assist purchasers to complete their
transactions in a more effective way.

Member Care

The Group sets up and improves customer service ratings system on
the basis of the integration of various resources under hc360.com. To
meet the changing requirements of the customers, the Group aims
at investing more resources in research and development for online
products and the operation of online projects to introduce product and
service systems more tailored to the market needs. The Group launched
customised services in accordance with the status of the members in
order to improve the experience and degree of satisfaction of users as
well as building up a closely bound internet community.

PROSPECTS

Since being listed on the GEM in 2003 and the transfer of listing to the
Main Board in 2014, the Company has transformed from a traditional
media company to a B2B online company and explored its most appropriate
development path through transitions. A vertical in-depth services model is
clearly formed. We again increased the trading properties of the platform,
achieved by developing a series of services in trade-matching and pay-for-
performance products in 2015 and 2016. We will continue to increase the
frequency and self-motivated driven B2B trade in 2017.

In 2017, we will continue to provide services for the SMEs of B2B domestic
trading and explore effective purchaser information in segmented industry
by using the cloud computing to provide appropriate management tool to
sellers. At the same time, we will enhance the transaction matching function
of hc360.com as an integrated transaction platform, the function of online
transaction payment, finance cluster, third-party logistics, anti-counterfeiting
and anti-channel conflict services, in order to increase the transaction
interaction between the upstream sellers and downstream buyers; of which
the promotion of performance based products, the development of niche
marketing mobile applications, the rendering of added-value service for active
transactions, is one of the major task for this year.

(4) EFRH

REBEZRBFNKS0ETE  REZXEZE
KMEPRBEE - RHERTER - £40a#
g BRTIHBELEE  ERSIAGHEEER
BR5 - ARBEREPRHEEFRZCKERRE
TIRAMBE)RTERBBEANEWSE) - AR
ARRITERE  BERGERBREST - K
BRFRE - RBED  RERBKEIEE
b WRLERBBEMETAH - KTMEAR
HWEBEFRERRS

ESHE

FERBBEABRBET 2EBERER ¥
KA ZET —ETPREHMERS - REST
MEEPZBCHEFR - AEEIKMAERE
mZHBENE  BINERRB ZEERA T
EEEMERBRZERLRBER - BB
Ba BRERHMHE RS SENEERE
BRIOWEE  TEAMKIEZBEREE -

Al
BE-ZT=FHEAZERLT R T -MFEIRE
WA - RORRERER R REL SB2BE BN
A EBELRIRESE S RREN  TXE
BEHURERBEMBER - HMEBN T —RAF R
T RNERE RN SEBERB LIRMRN ERE
o BREMFENRSEIE - R-T—+F - &M
T ALABIE I B 3 1EB2BE 5 2 JAK o

R F  BABERERBBBAE 2RI EE
WHMBEFE  READTEZBRERER @ 24
ERAREER 2 TH AR I58hc360.comiEREFE
RHTENBER SN RERHINIEE - &/
R B=770R - KRR SRS - 8 EFER
HETBEEFNXHEE - ERERERURNEEE
o ENEMSLHERRER  RERIZRE
HEERBESF2EREH 22—

SHREFRAA

20164 £ 3 17



ey

Manement’s Statement
EIRERE

In 2017, we will continue to integrate internal resources and develop
professional B2B platform in segmented areas. Meanwhile, we will enhance
strategic cooperation with B2B portals of the Group (participated or
controlled), expecting to enhance the trading properties of the platform.
Meanwhile, in the light of a deep understanding of upstream and downstream
value chain, we will initiate and further expand consignment sales.

Since the Group and Digital China Holdings Limited jointly established
Chongging Digital China Huicong Micro-Credit Co., Ltd.* (&5 &/ &35
ZI/ B E AT ("Micro-Credit Company”) in September 2014, the
Group sensibly utilised resources to assist customers in completing single
or a combination of finance solutions such as trade loans, credit loans and
guaranteed loan.

In November 2016, the Group further subscribed to approximately 9.72%
shareholding in Inner Mongolia Hohhot Jingu Rural Commercial Bank Limited
Company (“Jingu Bank”). The Group will explore the potential business
opportunities of Jingu Bank in this regard, and continue to provide micro-
loan and finance lease services to SME customers through the Micro-Credit
Company and Huicong Finance Leasing Company Limited (Z# & HESR
NS

In 2017, under the strategy of trade and finance, the Group’s financial
products are expected to act as “lubricant” so as to help customers complete
B2B transactions while bring better prospect in future profits for the Group.

The Group collaborated with its business partners to acquire lands with
areas of 43,965 sq.m. and 48,103 sq.m. in Shunde District, Guangdong
Province and Yuyao City, Zhejiang Province in February 2013 and December
2014, respectively. Among others, Huicong Shunde Household Electrical
Appliances Center (“Shunde Household Electrical Appliances Center”) located
in Guangdong Province has completed construction by the end of 2015, and
an opening ceremony was held in 18 March 2016. Huicong Yuyao Household
Electrical Appliances Center (ZF25 1k E ) (apart from household electrical
appliance end-products, which are planned to trade plastic and plastic
moulds manufactured for household electrical appliances) has commenced
construction in March 2015 with construction term for approximately 3 years.

Under the strategy of 020 business exhibition center, in 2017, the Group
expects that Shunde Household Electrical Appliances Center will continue to
increase the trading properties of the Group, make outstanding contribution
to the construction of B2B ecosystem and collaborate with finance cluster and
the traditional business of B2B1.0 to create enormous synergy.

HC International, Inc

Annual Report 2016
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In February 2017, the Group successfully completed 100% acquisition of
Huijia Yuantian Limited, a company with mobile terminals as its carrier,
developing digital interactive media marketing tools and driving marketing
through technology to help customers build a cross-media integrated
marketing platform. With the Group's extensive industry information, in 2017,
the Group is expected to develop a technology system for SMEs in different
industries through an open mobile platform to achieve the commercial value
of niche marketing, e-commerce and distribution as well as interactive media.

Professionalism and dedication are always the core DNA of hc360.com. These
characteristics determine our focus on vertical integration and horizontal
alignments strategies. With our distinguished way of doing business, along
with our leading partners, we are able to provide one-stop solution for SMEs
via our platform, helping them to build a long standing business with track
records and heritage.

The Group is 25 years old now. During the 25 years, the Company and SMEs
across the country grew up together in the face of hardship. In the future, we
will continue to make our best efforts to build a B2B e-commerce platform for
China’s domestic trading. This will be a challenge with a bright future and a
heavy task but full of glory.

At last, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to thank the
management and every member of the Group for their on-going dedication and
hard work in the past year.

Guo Jiang
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Beijing, PRC
28 March 2017
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Biographic Details of Directors and Senior Management

EZNSREEABBN

DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2016, the Board comprised the following members:

Executive Directors

GUO Fansheng

Aged 61, is an executive Director and the chairman of the Board (the
“Chairman”). He is also the chairman of the nomination committee of the
Company (the “Nomination Committee”). Mr. Guo was appointed as an
executive Director on 21 March 2000.

Mr. Guo found the Group in October 1992 and is responsible for the overall
strategic development and policy of the Group. From 1990 to 1992, Mr.
Guo worked as a manager in a State-owned business information company
in Beijing, the PRC. From 1987 to 1990, Mr. Guo served as a director of the
Liaison Office and General Office of the Economic System Reform Institute
under the State Commission for Economic Restructuring, and as the deputy
director of the Western China Development Research Centre. Prior to working
at the State Commission for Economic Restructuring, Mr. Guo served from
1982 to 1987 as a senior official in the government of the Inner Mongolia
Autonomous Region. Mr. Guo obtained a bachelor degree in industrial
economics from Renmin University of China, the PRC in 1982.

Mr. Guo is the uncle of Mr. Guo Jiang, an executive Director and the chief
executive officer of the Company.

GUO Jiang

Aged 43, is an executive Director and the chief executive officer of the
Company. Mr. Guo is also a member of the remuneration committee of the
Company (the “Remuneration Commitee”). Mr. Guo was appointed as an
executive Director with effect from 1 August 2006.

Mr. Guo joined the Group in 1996 as a sale manager and became the chief
executive officer of the Group in 2008. He is responsible for overseeing
the operations of the Group. Prior to that, Mr. Guo spent two years at the
Broadcasting Science Institute of the State Administration of Radio, Film
and Television as an assistant to director. Mr. Guo graduated from the
Harbin University of Commerce, the PRC, in 1994 with a bachelor degree in
computer science. He also attended the Business Administration Course for
Senior Management of Modern Enterprises conducted by Guanghua Business
School of Peking University, the PRC, in 2002.

Mr. Guo is an non-executive director of Cogobuy Group (stock code: 00400)
a company, a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr. Guo is also a director of &
MEBIFEBRR (D BIR AR (stock code: 000034), a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Mr. Guo is the nephew of Mr. Guo Fansheng, an executive Director and the
Chairman and the spouse of Ms. Geng Yi, a vice-president of the Group.
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LEE Wee Ong

Also known as Alex Lee, aged 47, is an executive Director and the chief
financial officer of the Company. Mr. Lee was first appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 9 September 2011 and was re-
designated as an executive Director on 1 July 2012.

Mr. Lee graduated from the Northern University of Malaysia with a bachelor
degree in accounting in 1993. Mr. Lee spent 6 years with Colonial First State
Investments Group and Hambros Australia as a fund manager and was
seconded to CMG CH China Funds Management. Mr. Lee had been the chief
financial officer of the Company, and subsequently the chief strategy officer
of the Company from 2000 to 2006. Mr. Lee is the founder of AlexCybot
(Beijing) Technology Company Limited (35 1 &18 (At 5R) B AR A 7)), while
holding directorship in MultiVision (Beijing) Technology Company Limited
(IPZ= 438 (b R) BHXAR A F)) and Beijing WaterCompass Digital GIS
Technology Company Limited (At /KB & i I2 (= BRI AR A ).

Liu Jun
Aged 38, is an executive Director of the Company. Mr. Liu was appointed as
an executive Director with effect from 12 September 2016.

Mr. Liu has also been the senior vice president of the Group since July 2016.
From 2004 to 2011, Mr. Liu was the chief executive officer of B S £ B AR
28] (Yigao Group Company Limited*) leading the company to enter into the
information technology businesses. Mr. Liu has also been a director of several
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Liu has obtained the Master’s degree in
Chemical Engineering from Zhejiang University in March 2004 and Bachelor’s
degree in Chemical Engineering, Bio-engineering and Chemical Processing
from Zhejiang University as well in June 2000.

LEE Wee Ong
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Non-Executive Directors

LI Jianguang

Aged 51, is a non-executive Director and a member of the audit committee
of the Company (the “Audit Committee”). Mr. Li was appointed as a non-
executive Director with effect from 1 August 2006.

Mr. Li is a senior partner of IDG Capital Partners. Mr. Li is also a member
of IDG Technology Venture Investments, LLC, which is the general partner
of IDG Technology Venture Investments, LP. Mr. Li is responsible for the
investment management of IDG’s China-related early funds and IDG — Accel
China Growth Fund. Prior to that, Mr. Li worked in Crosby Asset Management
Limited as an investment manager. Mr. Li graduated from Peking University
in 1987 with a bachelor degree in economics and attained a master degree
from Guelph University in Canada in 1994. Mr. Li is also a director of Tarena
International, Inc., a company listed on NASDAQ since April 2014.

Wong Chi Keung

Aged 50, is a non-executive Director and a member of the Remuneration
Committee. Mr. Wong was appointed as a non-executive Director with effect
from 12 September 2016.

Mr. Wong is currently the company secretary of Digital China Holdings Limited
(the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 00861)).
Mr. Wong is mainly responsible for the financial reporting and listing issues
of Digital China Group. Previously, Mr. Wong worked for Ernst & Young, an
international accounting firm, for 6 years. Mr. Wong graduated from The
University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s Degree in Social Sciences and is
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Wong has over 27 years of experience in financial management and corporate
administration.

HC International, Inc Annual Report 2016
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

ZHANG Ke

Aged 63, is an independent non-executive Director. He is the chairman of
the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee, respectively, and
a member of the Nomination Committee. Mr. Zhang was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 28 March 2003.

Mr. Zhang is a certified public accountant in the PRC and is currently the
chairman and chief partner of Shinewing Certified Public Accountants. He
graduated from Renmin University of China in 1982 with a bachelor degree in
economics majoring in industry economics. He has many years of experience
in the fields of economics, accounting and finance. Mr. Zhang is currently
a vice-president of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a
member of Internal Control Standard Committee of the Ministry of Finance
and the Chief Supervisor of Beijing Association of Forensic Science.

Mr. Zhang is also an independent director of E-Commerce China Dangdang
Inc., a company listed on the New York Stock Exchange, an independent
director of Guiyang Long master Information & Technology Co., Ltd (&%
BAIE (S B R ATA% (7 B R A &) (stock code: 300288), a company listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and an independent non-executive director
of China Coal Energy Company Limited (B FIEEERIZDBR A F), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1898)
and The Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 601898).

ZHANG Tim Tianwei

Aged 53, is an independent non-executive Director. He is also a member
of each of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee.
Mr. Zhang was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 1
November 2011.

Mr. Zhang graduated from Tsinghua University (5% A 22) at the Faculty of
Precision Instruments & Mechanology in July 1986. He obtained a Master
of Economics from the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences (Bt &Fl &
Bt) and a Master of Business Administration (MBA) from The University of
Chicago. Mr. Zhang has over 20 years of experience in financial and business
management. He was the founder and managing director of Taconic Capital
Ltd. from September 2003 to September 2005. He acted as the vice-chairman
and general manager of Unicredit China Capital Limited from September
2005 to June 2007. He served as the managing director of J.P. Morgan
Securities (Asia Pacific) from July 2007 to October 2011 and acted as the
chairman of J.P. Morgan (China) Venture Capital Investment Co. Ltd. since its
foundation in 2010 to October 2011. He served as the managing director of
Taconic Capital Group from November 2011 to March 2012, and as the chief
operating officer of China Merchants Capital Management Limited from April
2012 to December 2014. He is the managing director of Mount Flag Capital
Ltd. since January 2015 and is also the chief executive officer of Mount Flag
LLC since August 2015. Mr. Zhang has been a non-executive director to China
ITS (Holdings) Co., Ltd (stock code: 1900) since May 2014, whose shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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TANG Jie

Aged 42, is an independent non-executive Director and a member of Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee, respectively. Mr. Tang was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director with effect from 12
September 2016.

Mr. Tang is currently the general vice-president of X EZ% (Jiawo
Agriculture*) and president of LEHE ST EB AR AR (Fenglian Wine
Holding Group Company Limited*) of B#483%f% (Legend Holdings*). He

joined Legend Holdings in 2000 as the general manager and the vice-

president in the Greater China region responsible for the management of its
business platform, channel business and consumption business. Mr. Tang has
obtained the Master’s degree in Business Administration from China Europe
International Business School in October 2011 and Master’s degree in Science
from Zhejiang University in March 2003.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

As at 31 December 2016, the senior management of the Company comprised
the following members:

GENG Yi

Aged 43, is a senior vice-president of the Group, Ms. Geng joined the
Group in August 1995 as an editor and was appointed as the sales director
of the Group in January 2006. Ms. Geng graduated from the University of
International Business and Economics and gained an MBA degree. Ms. Geng
Yi is the spouse of Mr. Guo Jiang, an executive Director.

LIU Xiaodong

Aged 44, is a chief executive officer of zol.com.cn, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group. He is responsible for the operational management of the zol.
com.cn segment. In July 2015, the Group has completed the full acquisition
of zol.com.cn. Mr. Liu joined zol.com.cn in 2000 and served as a general
manager of zol.com.cn in 2004. Mr. Liu also served as the vice president
of CNET (China) in 2008. He served as a vice president of CBSI (China) , a
general manager of technology cluster and the consumer cluster of CBSI
(China) from 2008 to 2014. Since 2015, he served as a chief executive officer
of zol.com.cn. Mr. Liu has over 18 years of experience in media operation and
management in the TMT field. Mr. Liu graduated and obtained a bachelor
degree from International Modern Design Art College Of Inner Mongolia
Normal University in July 1997, and obtained a master degree of business
administration from China Europe International Business School in 2011.

HC International, Inc Annual Report 2016
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LU Qingguo

Aged 43, is the Board secretary of the Company and the general counsel
of the Group. Mr. Lu joined the Group in May 1998 and has served as the
Company lawyer, the head of legal department and chief legal officer, and
was appointed as the Board secretary of the Company in 2011. Mr. Lu is
mainly responsible for the legal affairs and listing affairs of the Group. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Lu has taught in Guizhou Minzu University for two
years. Mr. Lu graduated from Southwest University of Political Science & Law
and obtained a bachelor degree of Laws, LL.B. Mr. Lu also passed the national
lawyer qualification examination and obtained the certificate of lawyer
qualification in 1997. Mr. Lu has over 18 years of experience in corporate
legal affairs.

LI Tao

Aged 38, is a vice-president of the Group and a general manager of a
subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Li joined the Group in October 1998 and has
assumed various positions including IT operation director and information
director, responsible for the Informatization of hc360.com, building of call
center platform, network operation and optimization of basic information
system. He was appointed as the chief marketing officer of the Group
in December 2012. Accumulated over 10 years of experience in Internet
technology and operation, he is also the committee member of iTech Club,
a renowned club for Internet technology elites. Mr. Li graduated from the
Renmin University of China with a bachelor degree in management. On
19 November 2015, Mr. Li was awarded the degree of Master of Business
Administration upon completion of a programme in Executive Master of
Business Administration (Chinese) at the Chinese University of Hong Kong.

GUO Gang

Aged 37, is a vice-president of the Group and a general manager of a
subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Guo joined the Group in December 2004
and has assumed various positions including manager of Mai-Mai-Tong
development department, research and development director of Mai-Mai-
Tong development department and research and development director of
core product research and development center. Mr. Guo has accumulated
over 11 years of experience in respect of software research and development
and team management in the areas of B2B and telecommunication. Before
joining the Group, he worked for “Jt R KIRBEFRHZBR AT and “dbR=
BRI A EHE BR A R]", responsible for software research and development
and team management. Mr. Guo graduated from the Inner Mongolia
University in 2002, and obtained master degree in engineering from the
Beijing University of Posts and Telecommunications in 2011. On 18 January
2017, he was awarded Postgraduate diploma in Information Strategy and
Business Transformation with Distinction by The University of Hong Kong.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s cash and bank balances increased by
approximately RMB172,822,000 from approximately RMB790,701,000 as at
31 December 2015 to approximately RMB963,523,000.

The Group had total borrowings (including issued convertible bonds) and
finance lease obligation amounted to approximately RMB1,538,383,000
as at 31 December 2016 (2015: RMB1,128,517,000). As at 31 December
2016 the gearing ratio of the Group was 15% (2015: 12%), whereas the
Group’s gearing ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. The
capital and reserves attributable to the Company’s equity holders increased by
approximately RMB521,856,000 as compared to last year.

The Group's net current assets amounted to approximately RMB41,313,000
as at 31 December 2016 (2015: RMB141,176,000). Its current ratio, which is
calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities, was approximately
1.02 times as at 31 December 2016 as compared to approximately 1.07
times as at 31 December 2015. The Group’s trade receivables turnover has
decreased from approximately 28.58 days in 2015 to approximately 24.52
days in 2016.

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

A Business Review and a Financial Review of the Group are set out on page 7
to 19 of this report.

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS

The Regulations on the Administration of Foreign-Invested
Telecommunications Enterprises (9 R A BECEEIERE) ("FITE
Regulations”) currently stipulates that foreign investors are not allowed to
hold more than 50% of the equity interests of a company providing value-
added telecommunications services, such as internet content provider
services. As the Company is a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands,
all members of the Group controlled by the Company through majority
shareholdings or equity interests are regarded as such foreign invested
enterprise.

In light of such relevant PRC laws and regulations restricting the participation
and operation of internet content services by foreign investors, the Group has
entered into contract-based arrangements or structures to indirectly own and
control part of its businesses (“Arrangements”).

During and at the end of the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has
made use of 3 sets of Arrangements. Save as the following Arrangements,
there are no other Arrangements (whether by way of an acquisition or a
greenfield project) subsisting during or at the end of the year ended 31
December 2016.
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Contractual Arrangement Involving HC Construction

In light of the relevant PRC laws and regulations restricting the participation
and operation of internet content services by foreign investors, the Group has
engaged Beijing Huicong Construction Information Consulting Co., Ltd. (3t =
BHAEREBFAAR A ) ("HC Construction” or “Huicong Construction”)
to operate its online platform, and publish its business information on the
internet pursuant to certain contractual arrangements (the “HC Contractual
Arrangements”). The Group relies on the HC Contractual Arrangements in
respect of its online services.

Please also refer to the prospectus of the Company dated 8 December 2003,
the announcement of the Company dated 25 September 2014 in relation to
the transfer of listing from GEM to the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(the “Transfer of Listing Announcement”), and the 2014 annual report of the
Company and the 2015 annual report of the Company for further details of
the HC Contractual Arrangements.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, save as disclosed in this report, there
was no material change in the HC Contractual Arrangements and/or the
circumstances under which they were adopted.

For the reporting period, none of the structured contracts under the HC
Contractual Arrangements had been unwound as none of the restrictions that
led to the adoption of the said structured contracts had been removed.

To further strengthen the Group’s protection under the HC Contractual
Arrangements and its management and control over Huicong Construction,
the Group amended certain terms of the then existing agreements and
entered into new exclusive option agreement, equity pledge agreement
and powers of attorney with Huicong Construction and/or its registered
shareholders (namely, Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Guo Jiang) on 15
September 2014. As a result of the HC Contractual Arrangements, Huicong
Construction is considered to be a subsidiary of the Group and financial
statements of Huicong Construction are included in the Group’ consolidated
financial statements from 15 September 2014.
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BRI AN

As at the date of this report, agreements underlying the HC Contractual
Arrangements include (i) the domain names and trademarks licence
agreement, (i) the technology services agreement, (iii) the online information
distribution agreement, (iv) the online advertisement publication agreement, (v)
the exclusive option agreement, (vi) the equity pledge agreement and (vii) the
powers of attorney.

The Group depends on the HC Contractual Arrangements with Huicong
Construction (who holds, among other things, the Telecommunications
and Information Services Business Operation Licence (FEi(z B AR
TEER 4 FF A1 £5) (“ICP Licence”), bearing a term through 9 March 2022) in
respect of its online services. For the year ended 31 December 2016, revenue
generated from related online services of the Group is RMB594,079,000 (2015:
543,251,000) represents approximately 30% (2015: approximately 59%) of
the total revenue of the Group.

Information of Huicong Construction

Huicong Construction is a limited liability company established in the PRC.
As at the date of this report, the registered capital of Huicong Construction
is owned as to 50% by Mr. Guo Fansheng (the chairman of the Board and
an executive Director) and 50% by Mr. Guo Jiang (the chief executive officer
of the Company and an executive Director). Mr. Guo Jiang currently is the
sole director and the legal representative of Huicong Construction, and he
is responsible for making financial and management decisions of Huicong
Construction, and overseeing their implementation, so as to ensure that
Huicong Construction operates in accordance with the terms of the HC
Contractual Arrangements. As each of Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Guo
Jiang holds 50% equity interests of Huicong Construction and they are
the controllers of Huicong Construction, Huicong Construction is thus a
connected person of the Company.

Set out below is the key financial information of Huicong Construction during
the year ended 31 December 2016:
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To the best knowledge, information and belief of the Company and as
confirmed by Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Guo Jiang, save for the operation
and provision of services for the Group as contemplated under the HC
Contractual Arrangements, Huicong Construction has no other material
business operation during the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the
date of this report.

Views of the Independent Non-Executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the HC Contractual
Arrangements, and confirmed that for the financial year ended 31 December
2016, (1) the transactions carried out during the year have been entered
into in accordance with the relevant provisions of the HC Contractual
Arrangements, and (2) no dividends or other distributions have been made
by Huicong Construction which are not otherwise subsequently assigned or
transferred to the Group.

Major terms of the agreements underlying the HC
Contractual Arrangements

Technology Services Agreement

Beijing Huicong International Information Co., Ltd. (“Beijing HC International”)
first entered into a technology services agreement (the “Technology Services
Agreement”) with Huicong Construction on 2 January 2002 for a term of
three years (and subsequently extended). The existing term of the Technology
Services Agreement (as supplemented by a supplemental agreement dated
15 September 2014) is three years commencing from 15 September 2014 to
14 September 2017, and may be renewed for additional term of three years
at the sole discretion of Beijing HC International (and such renewal shall be
subject to the Company having obtained all necessary approval and consents
in accordance with applicable laws, rules and regulations (including applicable
rules governing listing of shares on the Stock Exchange)).
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Pursuant to the Technology Services Agreement, Beijing HC International is
appointed by Huicong Construction as its exclusive agent to provide Huicong
Construction with technology support and services related to internet content
provider business of Huicong Construction, which includes:

(i)  server maintenance services;

(i)  the development, renewal and upgrading of server application software
and its application in the internet content provider business;

(i) the development, renewal and upgrading of application software for
internet user;

(iv) the technology service of e-commerce;
(v)  the training of technical personnel; and

(vi) other reasonable requests from Huicong Construction for technical
services.

Under the Technology Services Agreement, Huicong Construction shall pay
Beijing HC International a fee at the rate of RMB20 per hour for the provision
of the aforesaid services. Beijing HC International shall assign five persons to
provide the aforesaid services and the annual fee shall be RMB211,200. The
annual fee thereafter may be adjusted, but it shall not exceed 10% of the
amount charged in the previous year.

Domain Names and Trademarks Licence Agreement

Beijing HC International first entered into a domain names and trademarks
licence agreement (the “Domain Names and Trademarks Licence Agreement”)
with Huicong Construction on 2 January 2002 for a term of three years
(and subsequently extended). The existing term of the Domain Names
and Trademarks Licence Agreement (as supplemented by a supplemental
agreement dated 15 September 2014) is three years commencing from 15
September 2014 to 14 September 2017 and may be renewed for additional
term of three years at the sole discretion of Beijing HC International (and
such renewal shall be subject to the Company having obtained all necessary
approval and consents in accordance with applicable laws, rules and
regulations (including applicable rules governing listing of Shares on the Stock
Exchange)).

HC International, Inc
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Pursuant to the Domain Names and Trademarks Licence Agreement, Beijing
HC International licences Huicong Construction to use certain domain names
and trademarks (including domain names and trademarks owned by Beijing
HC International and to be obtained by it from time to time) for the sole
purpose of operating the website and dissemination of information for the
benefit of Beijing HC International in the PRC. Any intellectual properties
developed by Huicong Construction during the term (including any renewed
term) of the Domain Names and Trademarks Licence Agreement would
belong to Beijing HC International. Parties further agreed that where any
intellectual properties are required by law to be registered in the name of
Huicong Construction, Huicong Construction shall, where permitted by
applicable laws and regulations, upon request of Beijing HC International
assign such intellectual property rights to Beijing HC International or a party
as designated by Beijing HC International, and shall return any consideration
received for such transfer. Huicong Construction has undertaken that they
shall warrant and guarantee that such intellectual properties are flawless and
it shall bear all damages and losses caused to Beijing HC International by any
flaw of such intellectual properties. Beijing HC International has the right to
recover all of its losses from Huicong Construction for liabilities to any third

party.

Under the Domain Names and Trademarks Licence Agreement, Huicong
Construction shall pay an annual fee of RMB240,000. The annual fee
thereafter may be adjusted, but the adjustment shall not exceed 10% of the
amount charged in the previous year.

Online Information Distribution Agreement

Beijing HC International first entered into an online information distribution
agreement (the “Online Information Distribution Agreement”) with Huicong
Construction on 2 January 2002 for a term of three years (and subsequently
extended). The existing term of the Online Information Distribution Agreement
(as supplemented by a supplemental agreement dated 15 September 2014)
is three years commencing from 15 September 2014 to 14 September 2017,
and may be renewed for additional term of three years at the sole discretion
of Beijing HC International (and such renewal shall be subject to the Company
having obtained all necessary approval and consents in accordance with
applicable laws, rules and regulations (including applicable rules governing
listing of Shares on the Stock Exchange)).

Pursuant to the Online Information Distribution Agreement, Beijing HC
International appoints Huicong Construction to exclusively publish the
information collected, edited or produced by Beijing HC International on the
website operated by Huicong Construction.

Under the Online Information Distribution Agreement, Beijing HC International
shall pay an annual fee of RMB240,000. The annual fee thereafter may be
adjusted, but the adjustment shall not exceed 20% of the amount charged in
the previous year.
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Online Advertisement Publication Agreement

HC Advertising first entered into an online advertisement publication
agreement (the “Online Advertisement Publication Agreement”) with
Huicong Construction on 2 January 2002 for a term of three years (and
subsequently extended). The existing term of the Online Advertisement
Publication Agreement (as supplemented by a supplemental agreement dated
15 September 2014) is three years commencing from 15 September 2014 to
14 September 2017, and may be renewed for additional term of three years
at the sole discretion of HC Advertising (and such renewal shall be subject
to the Company having obtained all necessary approval and consents in
accordance with applicable laws, rules and regulations (including applicable
rules governing listing of Shares on the Stock Exchange)).

Pursuant to the Online Advertisement Publication Agreement, HC Advertising
appoints Huicong Construction to publish exclusively advertisement designed,
produced by or entrusted to HC Advertising on the website operated by
Huicong Construction.

Under the Online Advertisement Publication Agreement, HC Advertising
shall pay an annual fee of RMB100,000. The annual fee thereafter may be
adjusted, but the adjustment shall not exceed 20% of the amount charged in
the previous year.

Exclusive Option Agreement

Beijing HC International entered into the exclusive option agreement (the
"Exclusive Option Agreement”) with Huicong Construction, Mr. Guo
Fansheng and Mr. Guo Jiang on 15 September 2014, pursuant to which Mr.
Guo Fansheng and Mr. Guo Jiang jointly and severally granted to Beijing HC
International (and Huicong Construction having consented to such grant) an
irrevocable exclusive option for Beijing HC International (or such third party
as it may designate) to purchase, to the extent permitted by PRC laws, all or
part of their equity interests in Huicong Construction, at the consideration of
RMB1,400,000 or a minimum purchase price permitted under PRC laws and
regulations at the time of exercise of such option. Such exclusive option is for
an indefinite term commencing on 15 September 2014 until (i) it is terminated
by Beijing HC International in writing, or (ii) upon transfer of the entire
equity interests held by Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Guo Jiang in Huicong
Construction. Such exclusive option may not be revoked or varied during the
term of the Exclusive Option Agreement.

Pursuant to the Exclusive Option Agreement, each of Mr. Guo Fansheng
and Mr. Guo Jiang has undertaken to Beijing HC International, among other
things, that (i) they shall not create any pledge, indebtedness or third party
encumbrances, and shall not transfer, give by way of gift, pledge or otherwise
dispose of its equity in Huicong Construction to any party other than Beijing
HC International (or such third party as it may designated by it). Further,
Huicong Construction has undertaken to Beijing HC International, among
other things, that:

(i) it will operate its business in accordance with laws, regulations,

requirements and other management requirements or directions by
relevant governmental department;

HC International, Inc
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(i) it shall ensure the continual existence of Huicong Construction in
accordance with good financial and business standards and practices,
and shall prudently and effectively operate its business and transactions,
and shall use its best endeavours to ensure Huicong Construction
obtaining all licences, permits and approval requires for its operation,
and to ensure that they shall not be cancelled, revoked or declared
invalid;

(i) Huicong Construction shall provide all its information in respect of its
operation and finance at Beijing HC International’s request;

(iv) Huicong Construction shall not conduct any of the following matters
unless with prior written approval from Beijing HC International: (a) sell,
transfer, pledge or otherwise dispose of any assets, business, or income,
or allow encumbrance be created thereon (save as in its ordinary course
of business or with prior written approval from Beijing HC International);
(b) enter into any transactions which will materially and adversely
affect its assets, obligations, operation, equity interest and other legal
rights (save as in its ordinary course of business or with prior written
approval from Beijing HC International); (c) declare dividend, bonus to
its shareholders; (d) incur, take up, guarantee or allow any indebtedness
other than those in the ordinary course of business and with the prior
written consent of Beijing HC International;

(v) resolve any shareholders’ resolution on increasing or decreasing its
registered capital, or alerting its registered capital structure;

(vi) alter its articles of association, or change its scope of business; and
(vii) change or remove any of its director or senior management.

Each of Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Guo Jiang, as registered shareholders
of Huicong Construction, has executed a blank equity transfer agreement
with respect of his equity interests in Huicong Construction to the custody of
Beijing HC International, which may be effected by Beijing HC International
(or such third party as it may designate) in the event he fails to discharge his
obligations.

Huicong Construction, Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Guo Jiang further executed
an undertaking dated 15 September 2014 (the “Undertaking”), pursuant to
which, among other things, they undertake to unconditionally return to the
Group any consideration they receive in the event Beijing HC International
acquires the equity interests in Huicong Construction, and to unconditionally
transfer the domain name “hc360.com” and related registered trademark(s)
to Beijing HC International (or such third party as it may designated by it) in
the event that the agreements underlying the HC Contractual Arrangements
lapse, expire or be terminated.

(i) ESHREEERBETE TEaREMBR
EIFER LB - TR EEE R RO E X
k25 XWEIBEMLHERSEERRIGES
BEME R FFAERIE - ERRA
BAREAR - BRI MHLE NS IREG - MEREMR
A

(i) BBRREELRSBER SRR RS
BRABEE T FEEH

(iv) FRIFFERF/IALRBRERZEBRE T8
BRERNSETATERNTSY : QHE 8
& EWSUEMT AL EEMNEE - EB=X
WA AFREMEE - EHRBMAREERE
BREME-—REBBETHERANEILRE
BEEEERES ZERTASERR) ¢ (b)aT
TERRZUBREEE  BIE - 28 BEX
HiEERNEX BRI MZE (RE—RER
BEPREEARGILREREREERS 2
BERTRISERR) ¢ (ORMERREIREERIE
AL (dEESREEAEL - SHEREBIED
PEREA FHEAER (R A —REB BT I
EEBGIEREREREERZ ZIBEA TS
1ERIE®)

v)  BAERBRZMKERELEMERN R EEE
MEARGERE 2 RERRER LR

(vi) (EERE/ABERAMAE T EEGEHE &
(viiy BEMBEEENESARRERASR -

RS RIS (BRI EMBRR) &
BEREHIA 2 BRRR RS (R E 2 R
WG PRaTBREREE - TaLRER
B (IR 2 =) MR S B TR B
o

ZIER - NELERB T REE— SR ASA
ZE-MEAATREBAZEBRS([EE]) - Bt -
(H B S AN I R IR R s Z IR et ik
TEBS B R M AN SE EER B R S AT IR 2 (R (B -
WHREBIEE N BRI RN - BIH SR IR &
BRI REBEER (S R E=H ) EEEE
['hc360.com | R ARRE IR -

20164 F 3}

SHREFRAA




vy

Management'’s Discussion and Analysis
BRI AR AT

Power of Attorney

On 15 September 2014, each of Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Guo Jiang has
executed a power of attorney (the “Power of Attorney”). Pursuant to each
of the Powers of Attorney, each of Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Guo Jiang
unconditionally and irrevocably authorises any individual designated by Beijing
HC International (which shall be a director of the Company (other than
Mr. Guo Fansheng, Mr. Guo Jiang or their close associates), and shall be a
resident of PRC) to represent him in exercising all his rights as shareholders of
Huicong Construction under applicable PRC laws, including without limitation,
to transfer all his equity interests, to determine the consideration for such
transfer, to complete all relevant procedures regarding such transfer, to attend
general meetings and exercise voting rights, to execute all such relevant
documents, agreements and resolutions, etc.. Such Powers of Attorney
shall remain in full force and effect from 15 September 2014 until Mr. Guo
Fansheng or Mr. Guo Jiang (as the case may be) ceases to be a shareholder of
Huicong Construction.

Equity Pledge Agreement

Beijing HC International, Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Guo Jiang entered
into the equity pledge agreement (the “Equity Pledge Agreement”) on 15
September 2014, pursuant to which each of Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Guo
Jiang pledged all their respective equity interests in Huicong Construction
to Beijing HC International to secure performance of all their obligations
and the obligations of Huicong Construction under the Domain Names
and Trademarks Licence Agreement, the Technology Services Agreement,
the Online Information Distribution Agreement, the Online Advertisement
Publication Agreement, the Exclusive Option Agreement and the Powers of
Attorney.

Beijing HC International will be entitled to exercise the rights of pledge in the
event Huicong Construction fails to pay the service fee under the Technology
Services Agreement and the Domain Names and Trademarks Licence
Agreement or fail to perform any other term of the above agreements, the
Online Information Distribution Agreement and the Online Advertisement
Agreement, or any of Huicong Construction, Mr. Guo Fansheng or Mr.
Guo Jiang fails to perform any term of the Exclusive Option Agreement and
the Powers of Attorney (as the case may be), upon reasonable notice. If
Huicong Construction declares any dividend, bonus or adopt any proposal for
distribution of profits during the term of the Equity Pledge Agreement, such
dividends, bonus or economic benefits of all such proposal for distribution
shall be delivered to Beijing HC International.

The Equity Pledge Agreement is for an indefinite term commencing from
15 September 2014 until (i) all the agreements (other than the Equity
Pledge Agreement) underlying the HC Contractual Arrangements have been
terminated by Beijing HC International and/or HC Advertising (as the case may
be) or (ii) all the obligations under the Equity Pledge Agreement have been
fulfilled. The Equity Pledge Agreement has been filed at relevant Industry and
Commerce Bureau on 16 September 2014.
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Risks associated with the HC Contractual Arrangements

The government may determine that the agreements underlying the HC
Contractual Arrangements do not comply with applicable requlations, or these
regulations or their interpretation may change in the future

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands and members of the
Group established in the PRC are considered as foreign-invested enterprise.
Currently, laws and regulations of the PRC restrict participation and operation
of internet content services by foreign investors. The Group depends on the
HC Contractual Arrangements with Huicong Construction in respect of its
online services. Upon interview conducted by the PRC legal advisers with
relevant responsible officer of the Telecommunication Department of Beijing
Communications Administration Jt RiREEEREEEIELE), the PRC
legal advisers were informed that currently, there is no prohibition of adoption
of contractual arrangements or variable interest entity in the business
of services, and there has been no law, rules, regulations or normative
documents in the PRC which stipulates that such arrangements constitute
"concealing illegal intentions with a lawful form” under PRC laws.

Save for matters as further discussed in the paragraph headed “Certain terms
of the HC Contractual Arrangements may not be enforceable under PRC
laws" below, our PRC legal advisers are of the opinion that the agreements
underlying the HC Contractual Arrangements are, collectively and individually,
legal and valid and do not violate PRC laws, rule and regulations. Although
the Group has not received any interference regarding the legality of the
Contractual Arrangements, there is no assurance that the PRC government
or judicial authorities would agree that the HC Contractual Arrangements
comply with PRC licensing, registration, other regulatory requirements or
policies that may be adopted in the future. If the PRC government or judicial
authorities determines that the Group or the HC Contractual Arrangements
do not comply with applicable PRC laws and regulations, it could have
discretion in dealing with such incompliance, including:

(i) discontinuing or placing restriction on the business operation of Beijing
HC International, HC Advertising and/or Huicong Construction in the
PRC;

(i) requiring reorganisation or restructuring of ownership or business of
Beijing HC International and/or HC Advertising;

(i) levying fines and/or confiscating the proceeds generated from the
operations under the HC Contractual Arrangements;

(iv) taking other regulatory or enforcement actions that could have a
material adverse effect over the Group’s financial condition or business.
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BRI AR AT

The imposition of any of the above mentioned consequences could result
in a material and adverse effect on the Group’s ability to conduct its online
business. In particular, in the event the imposition of any of these consequence
prevent Huicong Construction from providing internet content provider
services to the Group and the Group is unable to locate any substitute timely,
the operation of the Group’s platform could be severely disrupted and the
Group may breach its existing contracts for online businesses (including
among others, subscription for Mai-Mai-Tong and Biao-Wang search). Where
the Group loses the right to direct the activities of Huicong Construction as
a result of these consequences, the Group would also be no longer able to
consolidate the financial results of Huicong Construction.

The HC Contractual Arrangements may not provide control as effective as
direct ownership

The Group depends on the HC Contractual Arrangements with Huicong
Construction, who hold key licences required, in respect of its online services.
Huicong Construction is owned as to 50% by Mr. Guo Fansheng and as to
50% by Mr. Guo Jiang. The Company and its subsidiaries do not own or hold
any equity interests in Huicong Construction.

The HC Contractual Arrangements may not be as effective in providing control
over website operations in PRC as direct ownership in these businesses. For
example, Huicong Construction and its shareholders could breach or fail to
perform their obligations under the HC Contractual Arrangements. If Huicong
Construction fails to perform its obligations under the HC Contractual
Arrangements, the Group will have to resort to legal remedies under the PRC
law, which could result in substantial litigation costs and diverse the Group’s
management’s time and efforts away from their running the regular business
of the Group. There is uncertainty as to the outcome and duration of legal
proceedings and its enforceable. In addition, the Group cannot be sure that
contractual remedies would be effective or sufficient to enforce its interests.
In the event Huicong Construction refuses or fails to provide the internet
content services to the Group and the Group is unable to locate any substitute
timely, the operation of the Group'’s platform could be severely disrupted and
the Group may breach its existing contracts for online businesses.

HC International, Inc Annual Report 2016
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The Group currently operates its online platform principally through the
website of “hc360.com”. Currently, Huicong Construction is the registrant
of the domain name “hc360.com” in light of relevant requirements in the
PRC on internet content provider business. Huicong Construction, Mr. Guo
Fansheng and Mr. Guo Jiang have undertaken pursuant to the agreements
underlying the HC Contractual Arrangements and the Undertaking that
Huicong Construction will, so far as it is permitted under the PRC laws,
transfer the domain name and trademark(s) to the Group (or the Group's
nominee) in the event the HC Contractual Arrangements lapse, expire or be
terminated. If the Group is unable to acquire the domain name from Huicong
Construction, or if Huicong Construction declares bankruptcy or if the domain
name, as part of Huicong Construction’s assets, become subject to liens or
rights of third party, the Group may be unable to continue its existing business
using “hc360.com” and may be required to establish a new domain name,
and to establish new trademark, which may disrupt the Group'’s operation,
confuse users and damage the Group’s reputation, and may materially and
adversely affect the Group’s results of operation.

The registered shareholders of Huicong Construction may have potential
conflicts of interest with the Group

As at the date of this report, equity interests of Huicong Construction is
owned as to 50% by Mr. Guo Fansheng and 50% by Mr. Guo Jiang. Mr.
Guo Fansheng is the sole director and the legal representative of Huicong
Construction. The Directors are of the view that Mr. Guo Fansheng and
Mr. Guo Jiang are controllers of Huicong Construction. Each of Mr. Guo
Fansheng and Mr. Guo Jiang has undertaken to the Company that each of
them will procure Huicong Construction in fulfilling its obligations under the
agreements underlying the HC Contractual Arrangements. Each of Mr. Guo
Fansheng and Mr. Guo Jiang, as a Director, also owes fiduciary duties to the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole pursuant to relevant law of the
Cayman Islands.

There is no assurance that when conflicts of interests arise, shareholders of
Huicong Construction will act in the best interests of the Group, or that any
conflicts of interests will be resolved in favour of the Group.
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To further strengthen the protections to the Group over potential conflicts of
interest between the registered shareholders of Huicong Construction, and
the Group, on 15 September 2014, Beijing HC International entered into,
among others, the Exclusive Option Agreement, the Equity Pledge Agreement
and the Powers of Attorney with Huicong Construction. Pursuant to the
Exclusive Option Agreement, Beijing HC International was granted the option
to purchase from the registered shareholders their equity interest in Huicong
Construction when and to the extent permitted by law. Pursuant to the Equity
Pledge Agreement, Beijing HC International is entitled to dispose of the equity
interests of Huicong Construction pledged, in the event of stipulated events
regarding failure of performance by, among others, registered shareholders
of Huicong Construction. Further, each of the Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr.
Guo Jiang has executed the Power of Attorney which authorises individual
designated by Beijing HC International to exercise all of their rights and
powers as shareholders of Huicong Construction.

Since the entering into of the agreements underlying the HC Contractual
Arrangements and up to the date of this report, neither Huicong Construction
nor its registered shareholders commits any breach of the agreements
underlying the HC Contractual Arrangements or undertakings. However, if
shareholder(s) of Huicong Construction cause Huicong Construction to breach
the HC Contractual Arrangements, or in the event Mr. Guo Fansheng and/
or Mr. Guo lJiang breach the aforesaid undertakings, the Group will have to
resort to legal remedies under the PRC law, which could result in substantial
litigation costs and diverse the Group’s management’s time and efforts away
from their running the regular business of the Group. There is uncertainty as
to the outcome and duration of legal proceedings and its enforceability, and
the Group cannot be sure that contractual remedies would be effective or
sufficient to enforce its interests. Acquisition by the Group (or by designees of
the Group) of equity interests under the Exclusive Option Agreement and/or
the Equity Pledge Agreement may further be subject to substantial transaction
costs) and taxation. In the event that the HC Contractual Arrangements
are breached and the Group is unable to locate any substitute to provide
internet content services timely, the operation of the Group’s platform
could be severely disrupted and the Group may breach its existing contracts
for online businesses, and the Group’s operation, result of operations and
financial conditions may be materially and adversely affected. Also, if the
Group is unable to acquire the domain name in such events, or if Huicong
Construction declares bankruptcy or if the domain name, as part of Huicong
Construction’s assets, become subject to liens or rights of third party, the
Group may be unable to continue its existing business using the domain name
of “hc360.com” and may be required to establish a new domain name, which
may disrupt the Group’s operation, confuse users and damage the Group's
reputation, and may materially and adversely affect the Group’s results of
operation.
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The HC Contractual Arrangements may subject the Group to increased
taxation due to different income tax rates applicable to Beijing HC
International and Huicong Construction

Pursuant to the Online Information Distribution Agreement, Huicong Construction
provides internet content provider services for an annual fee of RMB240,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2016, Beijing HC International
is subject to a preferential tax rate of 15%, and Huicong Construction is subject
to a tax rate of 25%.

In light of the different income tax rates applicable, the determination of such
annual fee and other payment by the Group to Huicong Construction may
be challenged by relevant PRC tax authorities as unfair, and may adjust the
taxable income or tax amount payable by the Group, requesting outstanding
tax amount be paid or imposing administrative penalty, thereby having
adverse tax consequence and affect the Group's business, financial conditions
and results of operations of the Group materially and adversely.

Since the entering into of the HC Contractual Arrangements and up to the
date of this report, the Group has not received any interference from relevant
PRC tax authorities as to the different income tax rates applicable.

Huicong Construction may not provide internet content services to the
Group if the HC Contractual Arrangements are not renewed or extended on
equivalent or similar terms, or if Huicong Construction ceases its operation or
corporate entity in the event of dissolution or liquidation, etc.

The Group depends on the HC Contractual Arrangements with Huicong
Construction, which holds key licences required, to operate the Group’s
online platform. Certain of the agreements underlying the Contractual
Arrangements (other than the Exclusive Option Agreement, the Equity Pledge
Agreement and the Powers of Attorney, which have an indefinite terms
unless terminated) currently has a term of three years, and will expire by 14
September 2017, subject to renewal by Beijing HC International and/or HC
Advertising at its respective discretion in accordance with the respective terms
of the agreements. The Company expects that the Group will renew the
agreements on equivalent or similar terms prior to their expiries.

If the HC Contractual Arrangements are not renewed or extended on
equivalent or similar terms, or if Huicong Construction ceases its operation or
corporate entity in the event of dissolution or liquidation, the Group would
have to engage another PRC entity holding relevant licences required to
provide internet content services to the Group.
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To strengthen the Group's protection, Beijing HC International entered
into the Exclusive Option Agreement dated 15 September 2014, pursuant
to which Beijing HC International (or such third party as it may designated)
may purchase the equity interests of Mr. Guo Fansheng or Mr. Guo Jiang
in Huicong Construction, among others, in the event that HC Contractual
Arrangements are not renewed. The said option is for an indefinite period
unless terminated by Beijing HC International or upon Beijing HC International
acquiring all equity interests in Huicong Construction. Further, each of the
registered shareholders of Huicong Construction (namely, Mr. Guo Fansheng
and Mr. Guo Jiang) has executed the Power of Attorney which authorise
individual designated by Beijing HC International to exercise all of their rights
and powers as shareholders of Huicong Construction. In addition, as each
of Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Guo Jiang, being all registered shareholders
of Huicong Construction, is a Director, each of them further owes a duty of
care to the Company and the Shareholders as a whole under applicable laws.
The Directors are of the view that Huicong Construction and/or its registered
shareholders are not entitled to terminate the agreements underlying the HC
Contractual Arrangements save for material breach by Beijing HC International
and/or HC Advertising (as the case maybe). In such cases of termination,
that the Group will be entitled to exercise its rights under the Equity Pledge
Agreement to uphold its rights or have to resort to legal remedies under the
PRC law.

There is no assurance that the Group can identify new entity which provides
internet content services required for the Group’s operation timely, or on
equivalent or similar terms. In the event that existing PRC entity cannot be
located, the Group may be required to engage other parties to set up new
entity. Pursuant to the existing laws and regulations, approval procedures
for key licences to operate internet content services usually takes three to six
months, with such requirements including among others, the Qualification
Requirement (as further discussed below) and a minimum requirement of
registered capital of not less than RMB1,000,000, while there is no assurance
that such approval will be granted, or will be granted on a timely manner.

In the event that the HC Contractual Arrangements are discontinued and the
Group is unable to locate any substitute to provide internet content services
timely, the operation of the Group'’s platform could be severely disrupted and
the Group may breach its existing contracts for online businesses, which could
materially and adversely affect the Group’s business operation and financial
results.

Certain terms of the HC Contractual Arrangements may not be enforceable
under PRC laws

The HC Contractual Arrangements provide for dispute resolution by way of
arbitration in accordance with the arbitration rules of the Beijing Arbitration
Commission in the PRC. The HC Contractual Arrangements also contain
provisions to the effect that, the arbitral body may award remedies over
shares and/or assets of Huicong Construction, injunctive relief and/or winding
up of Huicong Construction, and that courts in Hong Kong and the Cayman
Islands are of competent jurisdiction with power to grant interim remedies in
support of arbitration pending formation of arbitral tribunal or in appropriate
cases.
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We have been advised by our PRC legal advisers that the above mentioned
provisions regarding injunctive relief or interim remedies contained in the
HC Contractual Arrangements may not be enforceable, and that under PRC
laws, arbitral body does not have the power to grant any injunctive relief or
liquidation order in case of dispute.

Accordingly, such remedies may not be available to us timely, or be available
to us at all notwithstanding the relevant contractual provisions contained in
the HC Contractual Arrangements.

Exercise of option to acquire the equity interests in Huicong Construction
may be subject to limitations and the ownership transfer may be subject to
substantial costs

Under the HC Contractual Arrangements, the Group has the option to
purchase equity interests in Huicong Construction. It is the intention of the
Group to unwind the HC Contractual Arrangements as soon as the law allows
the business to operate without such HC Contractual Arrangements.

The FITE Regulations currently stipulated that foreign investors are not allowed
to hold more than 50% of the equity interests of a company providing value-
added telecommunications services, including internet content provider
services. As the Company is a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands,
all members of the Group controlled by the Company through majority
shareholdings or equity interests are regarded as such foreign invested
enterprise, which restrict the exercise of option.

In addition, under the FITE Regulations, a foreign invested enterprise
wishing to acquire any equity interest in a value-added telecommunications
business in the PRC must demonstrate a good track record and experience in
providing value-added telecommunications services overseas (“Qualification
Requirement”). There is currently no clear guidance on the interpretation
of the Qualification Requirement under the existing applicable PRC laws,
regulations or rules, and the Company is therefore unable to ascertain the
Qualification Requirement. There is no assurance that the Group will be
able to sufficiently satisfy the Qualification Requirement, or there will not
be any subsequent change, interpretation or guidance on the Qualification
Requirement, or such other requirements concerning the operator of internet
content provider services. If the restrictions on the percentage of foreign
ownership in telecommunications services are removed, the Group may need
to unwind the HC Contractual Arrangements before the Group is in a position
to comply with the Qualification Requirement.
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The exercise of option to acquire equity ownership of Huicong Construction
may incur substantial costs on the part of the Group. Pursuant to the HC
Contractual Arrangements, the Group has an exclusive option to purchase,
to the extent permitted by PRC laws, equity interests in Huicong Construction
in all or part, at the consideration of RMB1,400,000 or a minimum purchase
price permitted under PRC laws and regulations at the time of exercise of
such option. Where the relevant PRC authorities determine that the purchase
price is below the market value, they may require Beijing HC International to
pay enterprise income tax for ownership transfer income with reference to the
market value. The amount of tax may be substantial, which could materially
and adversely affect the business, financial condition and results of operation
of the Group.

If Huicong Construction fails to obtain and maintain the requisite assets,
licences and approvals as required under the regulatory environment for
internet content provider business in the PRC, the business, financial condition
and results of operations may be materially and adversely affected

The telecommunications services industry in China is heavily regulated by
the PRC government and numerous regulatory authorities of the central
PRC government are empowered to issue and implement regulations
governing various aspects of the telecommunications services industry. These
telecommunications services-related laws and regulations are relatively new
and evolving, and there are a certain degree of uncertainty especially on
the interpretation and enforcement of these laws. As a result, in certain
circumstances it may be difficult to determine what actions or omissions may
be deemed to be in violations of applicable laws and regulations.

Huicong Construction is required to obtain and maintain certain assets
relevant to its business as well as applicable licenses or approvals from
the relevant regulatory authorities in order to provide its current services.
These assets and licenses are essential to the operation of internet content
provider business and are generally subject to annual review by the relevant
governmental authorities. Also, Huicong Construction may need to obtain
additional licenses. If Huicong Construction fails to obtain or maintain any of
the required assets, licenses or approvals, its continued business operations in
the telecommunications services industry may subject it to various penalties,
including but not limited to fines and the discontinuation or restriction of
its operations. Any such disruption in the business operations of Huicong
Construction will materially and adversely affect our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

HC International, Inc Annual Report 2016
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The Company may lose the ability to use and enjoy assets held by Huicong
Construction that are important to the Group'’s business if Huicong
Construction declares bankruptcy or becomes subject to a dissolution or
winding up proceeding

Huicong Construction holds certain assets that are important to the Group's
business operations, primarily the ICP Licence and the domain name of “hc360.
com”. The HC Contractual Arrangements with Huicong Construction and
its shareholders contain terms that specifically obligate Mr. Guo Fansheng
and Mr. Guo Jiang to ensure the valid existence of Huicong Construction.
However, in the event that Mr. Guo Fansheng or Mr. Guo Jiang breaches
this obligation and voluntarily wind up Huicong Construction, or Huicong
Construction declares bankruptcy or is otherwise dissolved, some or all of
the Group’s online business operations may have to be ceased, which could
materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results
of operations. If Huicong Construction undergoes a voluntary or involuntary
winding-up proceeding, Mr. Guo Fansheng or Mr. Guo Jiang or any other
third-party creditors may claim rights to some or all of these assets, resulting
in hindrance to the Group’s ability to operate the Group’s online business,
which could materially and adversely affect the Group’s business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Even the transfer of trademark of “hc360” has been completed, there may
still be potential penalties

We have been advised by our PRC legal advisers that holders of the ICP
License shall hold the domain name and the trademarks used for conducting
the internet content provider business pursuant to the MIIT Notice.

In order to comply with the notice requirement of the ICP, Beijing HC
International transferred the trademark “hc360” to Huicong Construction
through the HC Contractual Arrangements. The Trademark Office issued a
notice of acceptance of trademark transfer on 3 July 2014. On 25 January
2016, the trademark transfer was completed and Huicong Construction
obtained the trademark certificate for “hc360” on 13 March 2016. The
Company has been advised by the PRC Legal Advisers that, upon completion
of the Trademark Transfer, it is unlikely for Huicong Construction be penalized
in respect of failure to fulfill the trademark requirement under the MIIT Notice
regarding any period prior to the Trademark Transfer.
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Structured Contracts involving Beijing Zhixing Ruijing

On 3 July 2015, the Group completed the acquisition of 100% of share
capital of Orange Triangle Inc. (“Orange Triangle”). it &= AR ERA
7] (Beijing Orange Triangle Technology Co., Ltd.) (“Orange Beijing”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of Orange Triangle entered into certain structured contracts
(the "BZR Structured Contracts”) with Beijing Zhixing Ruijing Technology
Co., Ltd. GERATEE=RHE AR A F)) (“Beijing Zhixing Ruijing”) and/or its
shareholders on 3 July 2015.

Pursuant to the BZR Structured Contracts, Orange Beijing or Orange Triangle
will provide certain technical consultation and service, including but not
limited to technical services support, intellectual property licensing, and
business and management consultation, whereas Beijing Zhixing Ruijing will
pay (a) the annual service fees RMB5 million to Orange Beijing; (b) the annual
service fees which equal 12% of its annual revenue to Orange Triangle; and
(c) the service fee equivalent to its revenue deducted by its expenses, net
operation loss and reserve fund extracted to Orange Beijing. Orange Beijing
relies on the BZR Structured Contracts to control the finance and operation of
Beijing Zhixing Ruijing so as to obtain the economic benefits and the rights to
variable returns from Beijing Zhixing Ruijing.

Please also refer to the announcements of the Company dated 17 March
2015, 8 May 2015 and 3 July 2015, respectively, and the circular of the
Company dated 4 June 2015 for further details.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, save as disclosed in this report,
there was no material change in the BZR Structured Contracts and/or the
circumstances under which they were adopted.

For the reporting period, none of the structured contracts under the BZR
Structured Contracts had been unwound as none of the restrictions that led
to the adoption of the said structured contracts had been removed.

Further, the Group entered into the BZR Structured Contracts to conduct the
restricted business in the PRC in order to comply with the abovementioned
PRC laws and regulations and to assert management control over the
operations of, and enjoy all of economic benefits of, Beijing Zhixing Ruijing
on 3 July 2015, pursuant to which the Group has the right to enjoy all the
economic benefits of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, to exercise management control
over the operations of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, and to prevent any leakage of
the assets and values of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing to the registered shareholders
of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing. As a result of the BZR Structured Contracts, Beijing
Zhixing Ruijing is consolidated into the accounts of the Group in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policies from 3 July 2015.

As at the date of this report, the Structured Contracts involving Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing include (i) the exclusive technical services agreement, (i) the exclusive
licensing agreement on intellectual property, (iii) the exclusive right to share
purchase agreement, (iv) the voting rights proxy agreement, (v) the pledge
agreement and (vi) the business and management services agreement.
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The Group depends on the BZR Structured Contracts with Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing (who holds, among other things, the value-added telecommunications
business operating licence (A EZ 54 L FF A7) ("VAT Licence”), being
valid until 15 February 2020) in respect of its information service business
within the second type of value-added telecommunication services (the
"Value-added Telecommunications Businesses”). During the year ended
31 December 2016, revenue generated from Beijing Zhixing Ruijing is
RMB334,750,000 (2015: 190,058,000), representing approximately 17% of
the total revenue of the Group.

Information of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing

Beijing Zhixing Ruijing is a limited liability company established in the PRC on
11 September 2014 with registered capital of RMB10 million and paid up
capital of RMB10 million. As at the date of this report, the registered capital
of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing is owned as to 60% by Mr. Guo Jiang (the chief
executive officer of the Company and an executive Director) and 40% by
Mr. Liu Xiaodong (2/]N%), a shareholder of the Company and a director of
several subsidiaries of the Company.

Set out below is the key information of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing during the year
ended 31 December 2016:
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As at the date of this report, the business of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing mainly
involves the Value-added Telecommunications Businesses, excluding
technology development; economic and trade consultancy; organisation of
cultural and art exchange activities (not including commercial performances);
and exhibition and demonstration hosting activities (the “Excluded
Businesses”).

To the best knowledge, information and belief of the Company and as
confirmed by Mr. Guo Jiang and Mr. Liu Xiaodong, Beijing Zhixing Ruijing has
no plan or road map to develop and operate the Excluded Businesses as at the
date of this report.

Major terms of the agreements underlying the BZR
Structured Contracts

Exclusive Technical Services Agreement

Orange Beijing entered into an exclusive technical services agreement with
Beijing Zhixing Ruijing on 3 July 2015 (the “Exclusive Technical Services
Agreement”). The Exclusive Technical Services Agreement shall remain in
force during the existence of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing upon execution, unless it is
terminated in accordance with the clauses of the agreement.
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Pursuant to the Exclusive Technical Services Agreement, Orange Beijing
is appointed by Beijing Zhixing Ruijing as its exclusive services provider to
provide technical consulting service, other related technical services and
related services agreed by both parties from time to time during the term of
the Exclusive Technical Services Agreement in accordance with its terms and
conditions.

Under the Exclusive Technical Services Agreement, Beijing Zhixing Ruijing shall
pay Orange Beijing an annual services fee of RMB5 million.

Exclusive Licensing Agreement on Intellectual Property

Orange Triangle entered into an exclusive licensing agreement on intellectual
property with Beijing Zhixing Ruijing on 3 July 2015 (the “Exclusive Licensing
Agreement on Intellectual Property”). The Exclusive Licensing Agreement
on Intellectual Property shall remain in force during the existence of Beijing
Zhixing Ruijing upon execution, unless it is terminated in accordance with the
clauses of the agreement.

Pursuant to the Exclusive Licensing Agreement on Intellectual Property,
the right of use of Orange Triangle’s network domain names, registered
trademarks, databases, software systems and other intellectual properties is
granted to Beijing Zhixing Ruijing. Such rights cannot be transferred to any
other third party.

Under the Exclusive Licensing Agreement on Intellectual Property, Beijing
Zhixing Ruijing shall pay annual service fees equivalent to 12% of its total
annual revenue to Orange Triangle. Beijing Zhixing Ruijing had also procured
Mr. Guo Jiang and Mr. Liu Xiaodong to provide their holding shares of Beijing
Zhixing Ruijing as a pledge to guarantee the payment of the payable service
fee to Orange Triangle or its wholly owned subsidiaries.

Exclusive Right to Share Purchase Agreement

Orange Beijing, Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, Mr. Guo Jiang and Mr. Liu Xiaodong
entered into an exclusive right to share purchase agreement on 3 July 2015 (the
“Exclusive Right to Share Purchase Agreement”). The Exclusive Right to Share
Purchase Agreement shall remain in force during the existence of Beijing
Zhixing Ruijing upon execution, unless it is terminated in accordance with the
clauses of the agreement.

Pursuant to the Exclusive Right to Share Purchase Agreement, Mr. Guo Jiang
and Mr. Liu Xiaodong jointly and individually granted Orange Beijing the
exclusive right to purchase the shares of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the Exclusive Right to Share Purchase
Agreement, irrevocably and without any additional conditions. Orange Beijing
can, by its own will, decide the way to exercise the right and purchase all
or part of shares held by shareholders of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing and/or any
specified third party at the minimum price permitted by the relevant laws and
regulations of the PRC at any time, by one or more times.

HC International, Inc
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Under the Exclusive Right to Share Purchase Agreement, the share repurchase
price shall be the minimum price permitted by the relevant laws and regulations
of the PRC. The paid shareholder of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing will return the rest of
the transfer price after deducting the paid-up capital injected by them to Beijing
Zhixing Ruijing.

Voting Rights Proxy Agreement

Orange Beijing, Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, Mr. Guo Jiang and Mr. Liu Xiaodong
entered into a voting rights proxy agreement on 3 July 2015 (the “Voting
Rights Proxy Agreement”). The Voting Rights Proxy Agreement shall remain in
force during the existence of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing upon execution, unless it is
terminated in accordance with the clauses of the agreement.

Pursuant to the Voting Rights Proxy Agreement, Orange Beijing (or its
designated parties) was granted the power to, inter alia, exercise all the rights
of Mr. Guo Jiang and Mr. Liu Xiaodong as the shareholders of Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing, subject to applicable laws, regulations and Beijing Zhixing Ruijing’s
articles of association. No prior consent from Mr. Guo Jiang and Mr. Liu
Xiaodong is required before exercising such right. Mr. Guo Jiang and Mr. Liu
Xiaodong shall recognise Orange Beijing’s voting result.

Pledge Agreement

Orange Beijing (as the pledgee), Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, Mr. Guo Jiang and
Mr. Liu Xiaodong (as the pledgers) entered into a pledge agreement on 3 July
2015 (the “Pledge Agreement”), pursuant to which each of Mr. Guo Jiang
and Mr. Liu Xiaodong pledged their equity interests in Beijing Zhixing Ruijing
held by them as security for Orange Beijing’s rights and interests granted by
the Voting Proxy Rights Agreement and the Exclusive Licensing Agreement
on Intellectual Property (collectively, the “Master Agreements”). Orange
Beijing shall have the right to get compensation by converting the Equity
interests into money and seek preferential payments from the proceeds from
the auction or sales of the said equity interests concerned or other disposal
methods as agreed by each party in accordance with relevant laws and
regulations of the PRC.

Prior to the full discharge of the payments and obligations under the Master
Agreements, without written consent of the pledgee, Mr. Guo Jiang and
Mr. Liu Xiaodong shall not assign the said equity interests in Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing.

The Pledge Agreement has become effective upon the execution date. Unless
otherwise agreed by Orange Beijing in writing after the Pledge Agreement
comes into effect, upon the full and complete performance of the Company
and pledgors’ obligations under the Master Agreements as well as Orange
Beijing’s written confirmation, the pledge shall be terminated.
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Business and Management Services Agreement

Orange Beijing, Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, Mr. Guo Jiang and Mr. Liu Xiaodong
entered into a business and management services agreement on 3 July 2015
(the “Business and Management Services Agreement”), which shall remain in
force during the existence of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing upon execution, unless it is
terminated in accordance with clauses of the agreement.

Under the Business and Management Services Agreement, Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing will appoint Orange Beijing as its exclusive services provider to provide
complete management support, business support, technical support and
related consulting services during the term of the Business and Management
Services Agreement in accordance with its terms and conditions, which may
include all necessary services within the scope of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing’s
business, such as but not limited to business consultations, marketing
consultancy, technical services, intellectual properties licenses, product
research and development, system maintenance, as well as general corporate
management.

The service fee shall be payable to Orange Beijing by the Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing, where the Beijing Zhixing Ruijing shall pay to Orange Beijing such
fees equivalent to the amount of the Beijing Zhixing Ruijing’s revenue
deducted by Beijing Zhixing Ruijing’s (and its subsidiaries’) expenses (including
Beijing Zhixing Ruijing’s costs, depreciation, other expenses and payments,
and relevant tax payments incurred during the term of the Business and
Management Services Agreement), net operation loss made by Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing and the reserve fund extracted by Beijing Zhixing Ruijing. The service
fee shall be calculated within three (3) months since the end of each financial
year based on the audited report prepared in accordance with the Chinese
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises and paid within fifteen (15)
days of the issuance date of such audited report.

Risk associated with the BZR Structured Contracts
The PRC government may determine that BZR Structured Contracts are not in
compliance with any existing or future applicable PRC laws or regulations

If the PRC government finds that the BZR Structured Contracts (which
establish the structure for operating the Value-added Telecommunications
Businesses of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing in the PRC) do not comply with applicable
PRC laws and regulations, or if these regulations or their interpretations
change in the future, Beijing Zhixing Ruijing could be subject to severe
consequences, including the nullification of the BZR Structured Contracts and
the relinquishment of the interest of Orange Beijing in the BZR Structured
Contracts.

HC International, Inc
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According to the FITE Rules, foreign investors’ ultimate equity ownership in
an entity in the PRC which provides value-added telecommunications services
must not exceed 50% and a foreign investor who wishes to acquire any
equity interest in a value-added telecommunications business in the PRC must
demonstrate (i) a good track record and (ii) experience in providing value-
added telecommunications services (" Qualification Requirements”).

Beijing Zhixing Ruijing has been engaging in the development and operation
of the Value-added Telecommunication Businesses. Under the current PRC
regulatory circumstances, Orange Beijing as a wholly foreign owned enterprise
would not be able to obtain the VAT License and thus is unable to provide the
value-added telecommunications services in the PRC directly.

On 13 July 2006, the Ministry of Information Industry (f2& A R £ FNE{E &
EEZEEB), currently known as MIIT (the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology of the PRC (F1EE A & HFIE T 2 41(5 Bk 3)) issued the Circular
on Strengthening the Administration of Foreign Investment in Value-added
Telecommunications Business (B iN5&SMNE R B L S EBEEHEEHNB
Z0) (“MIIT Notice”), which reiterated restrictions on foreign investment in the
telecommunications businesses. Under the MIIT Notice, a domestic company
that holds a VAT License is prohibited from leasing, transferring or selling the
license to foreign investors in any form, and from providing any assistance,
including providing resources, sites or facilities, to foreign investors to provide
ICP services illegally in the PRC. Due to a lack of interpretative materials from
the authorities, it cannot be assured that the MIIT will not consider the BZR
Structured Contracts as a kind of foreign investment in telecommunication
services, in which case Beijing Zhixing Ruijing and Orange Beijing may be
found in violation of the MIIT Notice.

In addition, several recent articles published by some news agencies reported
discussions that a recent PRC Supreme Court decision and two VIE structure-
related arbitration decisions in Shanghai had cast doubt on the validity of
the VIE structure. According to these articles, the PRC Supreme Court ruled
in late 2012 that an entrustment agreement entered into by and between
a Hong Kong company and a PRC domestic entity, which was purported to
enable such Hong Kong company to make an equity investment in a PRC
bank through the proxy PRC domestic entity, was void on the grounds that
this agreement established an entrustment relationship meant to circumvent
the PRC laws and regulations that prohibit foreign investment in PRC financial
institutions and as such, constituted an act of concealing illegal intentions
with a legitimate form. These articles argued that a contractual arrangement
in a VIE structure and the entrustment agreement in the cited case, which
were similar to the BZR Structured Contracts, were also designed to “get
around” the regulatory restrictions on foreign investment in certain industries.
As such, the articles noted that this Supreme Court decision might increase
the uncertainties relating to the PRC government'’s view on the validity of the
VIE structure. These articles also reported, without providing sufficient details,
on two arbitration decisions by the then Shanghai CIETAC which invalidated
the contractual arrangement used in a VIE structure in 2010 and 2011.
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The PRC legal advisor is of the opinion that, based on their understanding
and the numerous precedents of PRC domestic internet content providers
controlled by overseas companies through contractual arrangements that
are similar to the BZR Structured Contracts, the BZR Structured Contracts do
not result in a violation of PRC laws, or would not be deemed as “concealing
illegal intentions with lawful forms” (as a matter concerning Article 52 of the
PRC Contract Law). The BZR Structured Contracts are enforceable, valid and
legally binding in accordance with their terms and provisions (except for part
of the arbitration clauses contained therein setting forth that the arbitration
tribunal may issue injunction or winding-up orders and the Courts of Hong
Kong and the Cayman Islands have the jurisdiction to grant interim remedies
in support of the arbitration pending formation of the arbitration tribunal).

However, according to the PRC legal advisor, it cannot be assured that the
PRC government or judicial authorities would agree that the BZR Structured
Contracts comply with current PRC laws or regulations, would not strictly
enforce current PRC laws regulating the provision of internet content, or
would not adopt new laws or policies in the future. If the PRC government or
judicial authorities determine that the BZR Structured Contracts do not comply
with applicable laws and regulations, such contracts would be deemed void
and the PRC government or judicial authorities could have broad discretion in
dealing with such incompliance, including:

(i) requiring the nullification of the BZR Structured Contracts;

(i) levying fines and/or confiscating the proceeds generated from the
operations under the BZR Structured Contracts;

(i) revoking of the business licenses or operating licenses of Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing;

(iv) discontinuing or placing restrictions or onerous conditions on the
business operations of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing; and

(v) taking other regulatory or enforcement actions that could be harmful to
or even shut down the business of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing and/or Orange
Beijing.

In addition, where the Group loses the right to direct the activities of Beijing
Zhixing Ruijing as a result of these consequences, the Group would no longer
be able to consolidate the financial results of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing.
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Orange Beijing relies on BZR Structured Contracts to control and obtain the
economic benefits from Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, which may not be as effective
in providing operational control as direct ownership.

Due to the PRC’s legal restrictions on foreign investment in the value-added
telecommunications services, Orange Beijing controls, through the BZR
Structured Contracts rather than equity ownership, Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, the
operating entity in the PRC and the holder-to-be of the key licenses required
to operate the value-added telecommunications services in the PRC. However,
the BZR Structured Contracts still may not be as effective as equity ownership
in exercising control over Beijing Zhixing Ruijing. For example, Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing and its shareholders could breach or fail to perform their obligations
under the BZR Structured Contracts. If Orange Beijing had direct ownership of
Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, Orange Beijing would be able to exercise its rights as
a shareholder to effect changes in its board of directors, which in turn could
effect changes, subject to any applicable fiduciary obligations, at management
and operational level. Under the BZR Structured Contracts, Orange Beijing
would need to rely on its rights under the BZR Structured Contracts to effect
such changes, or designate new shareholders for Beijing Zhixing Ruijing.

If Beijing Zhixing Ruijing or its shareholders breach their obligations under
the BZR Structured Contracts or if Orange Beijing loses the effective control
over Beijing Zhixing Ruijing for any reason, Orange Beijing would need to
bring a claim against them under the terms of the BZR Structured Contracts.
The BZR Structured Contracts are governed by PRC law and provide that any
dispute which arises will be submitted to the CIETAC, for arbitration, the
ruling of which will be final and binding. Furthermore, personal liabilities of
the shareholders of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing may also cause the equity interest
they hold in Beijing Zhixing Ruijing to be subject to court preservation actions
or enforcement. The legal framework and system in the PRC particularly
that relates to the arbitration proceedings is not as developed as in other
jurisdictions such as Hong Kong. As a result, significant uncertainties relating
to the enforcement of legal rights through arbitration, litigation and other
legal proceedings remain in the PRC, which could limit Orange Beijing’s ability
to enforce the BZR Structured Contracts and exert effective control over
Beijing Zhixing Ruijing. If Beijing Zhixing Ruijing or any of its shareholders fails
to perform its respective obligations under the BZR Structured Contracts, and
Orange Beijing is unable to enforce the BZR Structured Contracts, or suffers
significant delays or other obstacles in the process of enforcing the BZR
Structured Contracts, the business and operations of Orange Beijing could
be severely disrupted, which could materially and adversely affect operation
results. As a result, the Company’s investment in Orange Beijing could also be
materially and adversely affected.
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Remedies of BZR Structured Contracts may not be obtained effectively under
PRC laws.

The BZR Structured Contracts provide for dispute resolution by way of
arbitration in accordance with the arbitration rules of the CIETAC in the
PRC. The BZR Structured Contracts contain provisions to the effect that the
arbitration tribunal may award remedies when Beijing Zhixing Ruijing breaches
the BZR Structured Contracts. In addition, the BZR Structured Contracts
contain provisions to the effect that the courts in Hong Kong and the Cayman
Islands are empowered to grant interim remedies in support of the arbitration
pending the formation of an arbitral tribunal.

However, the abovementioned provisions contained in the BZR Structured
Contracts may not be enforced effectively. Under PRC laws, an arbitration
tribunal does not have the power to grant any injunctive relief or provisional
or final liquidation order to preserve the assets of or any equity interest in
Beijing Zhixing Ruijing in case of disputes, and the courts in Hong Kong and
the Cayman Islands may not be empowered to grant interim remedies in
support of the arbitration pending the formation of an arbitral tribunal under
PRC laws. As a result, the provisions may not effectively protect Orange
Beijing, notwithstanding the relevant contractual provisions contained in the
BZR Structured Contracts.

Therefore, in the event that Beijing Zhixing Ruijing breaches any of the BZR
Structured Contracts, Orange Beijing may not be able to obtain sufficient
remedies in a timely manner, and its ability to exert effective control over
Beijing Zhixing Ruijing and conduct its business could be materially and
adversely affected and the financial performance of Orange Beijing could be
materially and adversely affected. As a result, the Company’s investment in
Orange Beijing could also be materially and adversely affected.

The shareholders of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing may potentially have a conflict of
interests with the Group.

The Group's control over Beijing Zhixing Ruijing is based on the contractual
arrangement under the BZR Structured Contracts. Hence, conflict of interests
of the shareholders of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing will adversely affect the
interests of the Company. Pursuant to the Voting Rights Proxy Agreement,
the shareholders of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing have irrevocably authorised
Orange Beijing (or its designee) as their proxy to exercise all the rights of the
shareholders of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing and such authorisation shall not be
altered unless otherwise instructed by Beijing Zhixing Ruijing. Therefore, it is
unlikely that there will be potential conflict of interests between the Company
and the shareholders of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing. However, in the unlikely event
that conflict of interests arises and cannot be resolved, the Company will
consider removing and replacing the shareholders of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing.
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The contractual arrangements may be subject to scrutiny of the PRC tax
authorities and transfer pricing adjustments and additional tax may be
imposed.

The Group could face material adverse tax consequences if the PRC tax
authorities determine that the arrangements under the BZR Structured
Contracts was not entered into based on arm’s length negotiations. If the
PRC tax authorities determine that these agreements were not entered into
on an arm'’s length basis, they may adjust our income and expenses for PRC
tax purposes in the form of a transfer pricing adjustment. A transfer pricing
adjustment could adversely affect the Group’s financial position by increasing
the relevant tax liability without reducing the tax liabilities of Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing, and this could further result in late payment fees and other penalties
to Beijing Zhixing Ruijing for under-paid taxes. As a result, any transfer pricing
adjustment could have a material adverse effect on the Group’s financial
position and results of operations.

The Company does not have any insurance which covers the risks relating to
the BZR Structured Contracts and the transactions contemplated thereunder.

The insurance of the Group does not cover the risks relating to the BZR
Structured Contracts and the transactions contemplated thereunder and the
Company has no intention to purchase any new insurance in this regard. If
any risk arises from the BZR Structured Contracts in the future, such as those
affecting the enforceability of the BZR Structured Contracts and the relevant
agreements for the transactions contemplated thereunder and the operation
of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, the results of the Group may be adversely affected.
However, the Group has been monitoring the relevant legal and operational
environment from time to time to comply with the applicable laws and
regulations. In addition, the Group has been implementing relevant internal
control measures to reduce the operational risk.

Actions taken to mitigate the risks associated with the BZR
Structured Contracts

The BZR Structured Contracts contain certain provisions in order to exercise
effective control over and to safeguard the assets of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing,
including but not limited to that, without the prior written consent of Orange
Beijing, the shareholders of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing shall not at any time
dispose, transfer, pledge, sell or create any charges over the assets, business,
revenue or any beneficial interests of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing shall conduct its business in its ordinary and usual course to preserve
the asset value of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing and shall not engage in any act (or
lack thereof) which may have any adverse effect on the business, operations
and asset value of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, and etc.
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In addition to the abovementioned internal control measures as provided
in the BZR Structured Contracts, the Company has implemented, through
Orange Beijing, additional internal control measures against Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing as appropriate, having regard to the internal control measures adopted
by the Group from time to time, which may include (without limitation):

(i) Beijing Zhixing Ruijing to make available monthly management accounts
and submit key operating data after each month end and provide
explanations on any material fluctuations to Orange Beijing;

(i) Beijing Zhixing Ruijing to assist and facilitate Orange Beijing to conduct
quarterly on-site internal audit on Beijing Zhixing Ruijing; and

(iii) if required, legal advisers and, or other professionals will be retained to
deal with specific issues arising from the BZR Structured Contracts and
to ensure that the operation of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing will comply with
applicable laws and regulations.

Further information regarding risks associated with the Contractual
Arrangements and the BZR Structured Contracts are also set out in the
Transfer of Listing Announcement and the announcement of the Company
dated 8 May 2015 respectively.

Structured Contracts involving Hangzhou Saidian
Technology

On 18 December 2015, the Company entered into sale and purchase
agreement with Daxiong Holdings Limited (“Daxiong”), Hanson He Holdings
Limited (“Hanson"), Richard Chen Holdings Limited (“Richard Chen"”), Grand
Novel Developments Limited (&¥# & AR A7) (“Grand Novel”) and Mr
Moustache Holdings Limited (“Moustache”) (collectively, the “Sellers”), and
Mr. Cao Guoxiong (EEIEE) (“Mr. Cao”), Mr. He Shunsheng (fa]JlE4:), (“Mr.
He"”) Mr. Chen Xuejun (FRE2E) (“Mr. Chen”), Mr. Guan Jianzhong (&2 &)
("Mr. Guan”), and Mr. Liao Bin (B23#) (“Mr. Liao”) (collectively, the “Seller
Guarantors”), pursuant to which the Sellers has conditionally agreed to
sell, and the Company has conditionally agreed to acquire the entire issued
share capital of ZhongFu Holdings Limited, for an aggregate consideration of
approximately HK$170,807,500 (equivalent to RMB144,573,000).

Part of the consideration amounting approximately HK$70,095,000 (equivalent
to RMB59,329,000) was settled in cash and the remaining portion was
settled by issuance and allotment of convertible bonds which are subject to
downward adjustments stipulated in the sale and purchase agreement.
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On 5 January 2016, Hangzhou Saidian Information Technology Company
Limited™* #i/NEE(Z BRHL AR AT (“Hangzhou Saidian Information”)
("t EEL{Z B "), a wholly owned subsidiary of ZhongFu Holdings Limited,
entered into a series of structured contracts, including Exclusive Right to
Purchase Agreement; Authorisation Agreement; Management and Operations
Agreement and Pledge Agreement (as respectively defined below are
collectively called the ZhongFu Structured Contracts) with the shareholders
of Hangzhou Saidian Technology Company Limited i/ ZRERH B R A7)
("Hangzhou Saidian Technology”) (“#i/NZEERHL"), Mr. Guo Jiang (1),
Mr. Chen Xuejun (FREZEE) (together the “PRC Equity Owners”).

The shareholders of Hangzhou Saidian Technology unconditionally and
irrevocably authorise any individual designated by the Group to represent
them in exercising all their rights as shareholders of Hangzhou Saidian
Technology including without limitation, to transfer all their equity interests,
to determine the consideration for such transfer, to complete all relevant
procedures regarding such transfer, to attend general meetings and
exercise voting rights, to execute all such relevant documents, agreements
and resolutions. In addition, if Hangzhou Saidian Technology declares any
dividend, bonus or adopts any proposal for distribution of profits, such
dividends, bonus or economic benefits of all such proposal for distribution
shall be delivered to the Group.

In accordance with the ZhongFu Structured Contracts, the Group has acquired
the control over Hangzhou Saidian Technology as the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e. the
activities that significantly affect the Hangzhou Saidian Technology’s variable
returns. The Group is also entitled to substantially all of the operating profits
and residual interest generated by Hangzhou Saidian Technology. Hangzhou
Saidian Technology in turn held 80.38% of the equity interest of Zheliang
ZhongFu Internet Technology Company Limited 31/ iRAF45FHH A R A 7]
(“Zhejiang Zhongfu”) ("#T#AR"). On 8 January 2016, the Group fulfilled
all the conditions precedent set out in the sale and purchase agreement.
The acquisition of 100% of equity interest of ZhongFu Holdings Limited has
been completed accordingly. Consequently, Zhejiang Zhongfu has become a
subsidiary of the Group with effect from 8 January 2016.

The results and financial position of ZhongFu Holdings Limited have been
included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group from 8 January
2016.

The goodwill of approximately RMB38,426,000 arising from the acquisition
is attributable the synergies and technical talent and economies of scale
expected from combining the operations of the Group and Zhejiang Zhongfu.
None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for income tax
purpose.
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Information of ZhongFu Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries

ZhongFu Holdings Limited (the “Target Company”) is an investment holding
company incorporated in the BVI on 28 August 2015 with limited liability
and issued capital of US$50,000. The entire issued share capital of ZhongFu
Holdings Limited is legally and beneficially owned by the Sellers, i.e. Daxiong
as to 5.53%, Hanson as to 6.22%, Richard as to 63.55%, Grand Novel as to
19.35% and Moustache as to 5.35%. Each of Mr. Cao, Mr. He, Mr. Chen,
Mr. Guan and Mr. Liao was holding the entire issued share capital in Daxiong,
Hanson, Richard, Grand Novel and Moustache respectively. To the best of
the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief, having made all reasonable
enquiries, each of the Sellers and the Seller Guarantors is an independent
third party.

The Target Company held the entire issued share capital in SaiDian HK Limited
("SaiDian HK"), an investment holding company incorporated in Hong Kong
on 15 September 2015 with limited liability and issued capital of HK$10,000,
which in turn held the entire equity interest in Hangzhou Saidian Information,
a company incorporated under the laws of the PRC.

Hangzhou Saidian Technology is a limited company established in the PRC on
8 December 2009 with paid up capital of RMB5,250,000 and is an investment
holding company. It held 80.38% equity interest of Zhejiang Zhongfu which
is a limited company established in the PRC on 18 June 2001 with paid up
capital of RMB10,000,000. Zhejiang Zhongfu in turn wholly owned &I
ARSI B RIEUA IR A B Shenzhen Zhongfu Yinxian Internet Technology
Company Limited* (“Shenzhen Zhongfu”) and #TT#HEABEERAR A
Al Zhe Jiang Nuotian Internet Technology Company Limited*(“Zhejiang
Nuotian”). Shenzhen Zhongfu is a limited company established in the PRC
on 21 May 2003 with paid up capital of RMB1,000,000. Zhejiang Nuotian
is a limited company established in the PRC on 15 March 2007 with paid up
capital of RMB5,000,000.

Set out below is the key financial information of Hangzhou Saidian
Technology during the year ended 31 December 2016:
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Business overview and revenue model

Hangzhou Saidian Information, Zhejiang Zhongfu, Shenzhen Zhongfu and
Zhejiang Nuotian (collectively referred to as the “VIE Group”) is principally
engaged in the provision of vertical websites in the garment industry in the
PRC. It holds certain assets related to the operation of the websites under
the key domain names: www.efu.com.cn (|1 B ARZE48), www.yifu.net (ZAR),
www.51fashion.com.cn (B 5 #57), www.5143.cn (ARZE HNBE4R), www.nynet.
com.cn (FFERKAE) and www.kidsnet.cn (ZEEANBE4E), which are internet
portals mainly providing information on fashion brands, finished garment
products (such as men’s wear, women'’s wear, children’s wear, underwear,
shoes, leather goods, down jackets and others), fabrics, ancillary materials
(such as buttons, zippers), textile equipment (such as sewing machines,
cutting machines, stitching machines, printing machines, automated systems)
to business users (such as manufacturers, wholesalers, traders, department
stores, shopping malls) in the garment industry.

Revenue of Zhejiang Zhongfu was generated from advertising income,
marketing solution fees from domestic apparels, bags and accessories
manufacturers for the advertisement placed with Zhejiang Zhongfu on its
websites in relation to the products and/or brands. Revenue from one-stop
solution providers for online and offline promotion solutions have been
increasing their respective contribution. Revenue from provision of promotion
solutions would be in the form of a pre-determined service fee.

MAJOR TERMS OF THE ZHONGFU STRUCTURED
CONTRACTS

1. Exclusive Right to Purchase Agreement

Hangzhou Saidian Information, Hangzhou Saidian Technology and the
PRC Equity Owners enter into an exclusive right to purchase agreement
(the “Exclusive Right to Purchase Agreement”), under which the
PRC Equity Owners will irrevocably, and jointly and individually grant
Hangzhou Saidian Information the exclusive right to purchase the shares
of Hangzhou Saidian Technology at the minimum price permitted by
the relevant laws and regulations of PRC at any time, by one or more
times. The PRC Equity Owners may not transfer their shares in Hangzhou
Saidian Technology without written consent from Hangzhou Saidian
Information.
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The exclusive purchase right may be exercised by Hangzhou Saidian
Information by written notice to the PRC Equity Owners. Hangzhou
Saidian Technology and the PRC Equity Owners shall provide all
necessary information and documents for the share registration. In
the situation that more than one shareholder holding the shares, the
PRC Equity Owners and Hangzhou Saidian Technology shall procure
any remaining shareholders of Hangzhou Saidian Technology, if any
to agree to transfer the shares to Hangzhou Saidian Information and/
or its designated parties in written statement, indicating their waiver of
pre-emptive rights. In the event of transfer of shares, Hangzhou Saidian
Technology shall procure the shareholders to sign a share purchase
agreement with Hangzhou Saidian Information and/or designated
parties upon the receipt of exercise notice. To ensure the performance
of this agreement, a Pledge Agreement (as hereinafter defined) will be
signed.

The price would be the minimum price permitted by the relevant laws
and regulations of PRC. The paid shareholder will return the rest of the
transfer price after deducting the paid-up capital by them to Hangzhou
Saidian Technology. Any taxes, charges and fees shall be borne by the
parties pursuant to relevant laws and regulations of the PRC.

The Exclusive Right to Purchase Agreement shall be effective upon
execution and as long as Hangzhou Saidian Technology subsists. The
parties agree that the Exclusive Right to Purchase Agreement can be
terminated by Hangzhou Saidian Information by giving 30 days’ written
notice.

Authorisation Agreement

Hangzhou Saidian Information, Hangzhou Saidian Technology and
the PRC Equity Owners entered into an authorisation agreement
(" Authorisation Agreement”). Pursuant to the Authorisation Agreement,
Hangzhou Saidian Information (or its designated parties who must be
one of the Director and a PRC citizen, and must not be the PRC Equity
Owners or their connected person(s) (the “Designated Party(ies)”)) will
have the power to, inter alia, exercise all shareholder’s rights granted by
applicable laws, regulations and Hangzhou Saidian Technology’s articles
of association, including but not limited to convening shareholders
meeting, voting and signing resolutions at shareholders meeting,
filing documents to company registration authorities, designating and
appointing directors and supervisors, transferring or disposing off equity
of Hangzhou Saidian Technology, participating in Hangzhou Saidian
Technology’s major decisions, and choosing management for Hangzhou
Saidian Technology.

No prior consent from the PRC Equity Owners is required before
Hangzhou Saidian Information (or its Designated Parties) exercise its
voting rights. The PRC Equity Owners shall recognize Hangzhou Saidian
Information’s voting result.
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The Authorisation Agreement shall be effective upon execution and
as long as Hangzhou Saidian Technology's shareholders remain to be
Hangzhou Saidian Technology’s shareholders. The parties agree that
the Authorisation Agreement can be terminated by Hangzhou Saidian
Information each by giving 30 days’ written notice.

Management and Operations Agreement

Hangzhou Saidian Information, Hangzhou Saidian Technology and
the PRC Equity Owners entered into a management and operation
agreement (the “Management and Operation Agreement”).

Pursuant to the Management and Operations Agreement, Hangzhou
Saidian Technology will appoint Hangzhou Saidian Information as its
exclusive services provider of management and operations services. Such
services include all necessary services within the scope of Hangzhou
Saidian Technology’s business, such as but not limited to business
consultations, marketing consultancy, technical services, intellectual
properties licenses, product research and development, system
maintenance, as well as general corporate management.

The PRC Equity Owners and Hangzhou Saidian Technology shall
procure the resignation of directors and supervisors whose appointment
Hangzhou Saidian Information does not agree to. Those directors and
supervisors shall be replaced by personnel appointed by Hangzhou
Saidian Information.

Hangzhou Saidian Technology shall pay Hangzhou Saidian Information
such service fees equivalent to the amount of the Hangzhou Saidian
Technology's revenue deducted by Hangzhou Saidian Technology's (and
its subsidiaries’) expenses (including Hangzhou Saidian Technology’s
costs, depreciation, other expenses and payments, and relevant tax
payments incurred during the term of the Management and Operations
Agreement), loss covered by Hangzhou Saidian Technology and the
relevant reserve fund extracted by Hangzhou Saidian Technology. The
service fee shall be calculated within three months since the end of each
financial year based on the audited report prepared in accordance with
the PRC Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises and paid within
15 days of the issuance date of such audited report.

The Management and Operations Agreement shall be effective
upon execution for three years, and upon expiry Hangzhou Saidian
Information has a sole discretionary right to renew the Management and
Operations Agreement for another three years, subject to the applicable
law, regulations and rules at that time (including the Listing Rules). The
parties agree that the Management and Operations Agreement can be
terminated by Hangzhou Saidian Information by giving 30 days’ written
notice.
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Pledge Agreement

Hangzhou Saidian Information, Hangzhou Saidian Technology and
the PRC Equity Owners entered into a pledge agreement (the “Pledge
Agreement”).

According to the Pledge Agreement, the PRC Equity Owners will pledge
to Hangzhou Saidian Information their equity interests in Hangzhou
Saidian Technology (the “Pledged Interests”, being the entire equity
interests in Hangzhou Saidian Technology) as security for Hangzhou
Saidian Information’s rights and interests granted by the Exclusive
Right to Purchase Agreement, the Authorisation Agreement and the
Management and Operations Agreement (the “Master Agreements”)
(including any payment (including legal expense), expense, loss, interests,
liquidated damages, compensation, costs for realization of loans, costs
and losses for specific performance of Hangzhou Saidian Technology,
and the liabilities incurred as results of the termination, recession, whole
or partial invalidation of the Master Agreements). Hangzhou Saidian
Information shall have the right to compensation by converting the
Pledged Interests into money and seek preferential payments from the
proceeds from the auction or sales of the Pledged Interests concerned
or other disposal methods as agreed by each party in accordance with
relevant laws and regulations of the PRC.

The Pledge Agreement shall become effective upon the execution
date. The PRC Equity Owners shall cooperate with Hangzhou Saidian
Technology to register the pledge in shareholders’ register within five
business days following the execution of the Pledge Agreement and
register the pledge with the relevant authorities within 15 business days
following the execution of the Pledge Agreement.

Prior to the full discharge of the payments and obligations under the
Master Agreements, without written consent of the Hangzhou Saidian
Information, the PRC Equity Owners shall not assign any of the Pledged
Interests.

Unless otherwise agreed by Hangzhou Saidian Information in writing,
upon the full and complete performance of Hangzhou Saidian
Technology and the PRC Equity Owners under the Master Agreements as
well as Hangzhou Saidian Information’s written confirmation, the Pledge
Agreement shall be terminated. Costs reasonably incurred thereof shall
be borne by the PRC Equity Owners.

In the event where Hangzhou Saidian Technology or the PRC Equity
Owners failed to fully discharge their obligations under the Master
Agreements, Hangzhou Saidian Information shall continuously enjoy the
pledge until the above-mentioned obligations being fulfilled in a manner
to its satisfaction.
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The Company will unwind the ZhongFu Structured Contracts and
directly hold the equity interests of Hangzhou Saidian Technology when
the relevant restrictions no longer exist. The current legal or regulatory
restrictions in exercising the purchase right under the Exclusive Right
to Purchase Agreement is stipulated in Sh R E BE X EE R
F (2008 4F {& &]) (the Provisions on the Administration of Foreign-
funded Telecommunications Enterprises (2008 Amended)). Furthermore,
even if the foreign ownership restriction is relaxed, the transfer of the
equity interests in Hangzhou Saidian Technology from the shareholders
of Hangzhou Saidian Technology to the Group may still be subject to
substantial costs.

Reasons for and the benefits of the sale and purchase
agreement and the ZhongFu Structured Contracts
Currently, the Group has five business segments, namely:

(i) on-line services,

(i)  trade catalogues and yellow page directories,

(iii) seminars and other services,

(iv)  B2B household electrical appliances business exhibition centre, and
(v) anti-counterfeiting products and services.

The Group is one of the leading business-to-business (B2B) e-commerce oper
ators in the PRC according to a report from Enfodesk (5 ER% &). The Group
aims to provide business information to facilitate buyers and sellers in the
commercial world to disseminate and/or obtain such information to assist
them in locating and matching their counterparties and to make business
decisions. With its professional information services and advanced internet
technologies, it has established a reliable demand and supply platform for
SMEs, and has been providing them with complete business solutions. The
Group has been transforming and upgrading its B2B platform and business
model towards the online to offline (020) business model and establish a
more vertical in-depth platform.

Also, the Company is strategically planning for B2B2.0 which is transaction
based, along with internet finance and other B2B related services, to
implement product upgrades and innovations. In order to achieve a sound
balance of the ecosystem of the B2B platform, the Company has been
providing high quality procurement service for buyers to facilitate the strike
between demand and supply.
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Since the Company'’s listings on GEM in 2003, the Group has transformed
itself from a traditional business media firm to a B2B internet enterprise,
and has been actively exploring its most appropriate development path
through transitions. In 2014, approximately 84.1% of the revenue of the
Group is generated from online services, and of approximately 10.5% is
from seminars and other services, only approximately 3.7% is from the early
business of traditional printed media while approximately 1.7% is from the
newly acquired digital identity management anti-counterfeiting products and
services. The Group currently covers over 50 industries and aims to continue
increasing its industry coverage to further drive its subscriber base.

By leveraging on the combined customer base and business network of
the Group and the Target Group, it is envisaged that the Group will have a
wider and deeper access to different groups of customers who would require
the existing services provided by the Group and/or facilitate the matching
between the subscribers of the Group (being a customer or a supplier) with
the customers and business network of the Target Group. Besides, upon
completion of the Acquisition, the Group may widen its industry coverage
and geographical coverage. Moreover, the Group may integrate the resources
between the Group and the Target Group in various aspects (such as human
resources, sales and marketing, financing, back office support, technical
support and etc.) to achieve economy of scale, cost reduction and efficiency
improvement. The Directors (including the independent non-executive
Director) consider that (i) the Sale and Purchase Agreement, the ZhongFu
Structured Contracts and the transactions contemplated thereunder were
entered into on normal commercial terms in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Company after arm’s length negotiation, and that the terms
of the Sale and Purchase Agreement, the ZhongFu Structured Contracts and
the transactions contemplated thereunder are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole; and (ii) the
amount of the Annual Caps for the transactions contemplated under the
ZhongFu Structured Contracts are fair and reasonable.

For more details, please refer to the section headed "SEGMENT
INFORMATION" on page 180 of this report.
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Risks relating to the ZhongFu Structured Contracts

We refer to the above section titled “Risk associated with the ZhongFu
Structured Contracts involving Beijing Zhixing Ruijing”, similar risks identified
under the said section would be applicable to ZhongFu Structured Contracts
involving Hangzhou Saidian Technology as well, in particular the following
risks are present:

(1) The PRC government may determine that the ZhongFu Structured
Contracts do not comply with the applicable laws and regulations;

(2)  The ZhongFu Structured Contracts may not be as effective as direct
ownership in providing control over Hangzhou Saidian Technology;

(3) The PRC Equity Owners may potentially have a conflict of interests with
the Group;

(4) The contractual arrangements may be subject to scrutiny of the PRC tax
authorities and transfer pricing adjustments and additional tax may be
imposed;

(5) The Company does not have any insurance which covers the risks
relating to the ZhongFu Structured Contracts and the transactions
contemplated thereunder.

Impact of Foreign Investment Law of the PRC (Draft for Comment)
on the ZhongFu Structured Contracts and the Business of Hangzhou
Saidian Technology

On 19 January 2015, MOFCOM published the new draft of the Foreign
Investment Law (Draft for Comment) (1 % A R # 71 B 4p B 3% & )%
(EZ=#KE R f3)) (the "Draft for Comment”) for public comment. The
new Foreign Investment Law (the “New Foreign Investment Law”), if finally
adopted, may have significant impact on the foreign investment regime of the
PRC.

Under the Draft for Comment, a negative list (the “Negative List”) will be
formulated and promulgated by the State Council, which will classify the
foreign investment industries into the restricted list and prohibited list. For the
industries not listed in the Negative List, foreign investors are allowed to make
the investment without approval. For the industries listed in the restricted list
of the Negative List, foreign investors need to obtain access permission from
competent departments before it is allowed to make the investment. For the
industries listed in the prohibited list of the Negative List, foreign investors are
prohibited from making any investment.

BETREBEEN AR

iR £ X[ B RS R RATHE T REEEA L
2R )86 - i SRR 2 B RR IS E
WA RS RN BB RSB SN Z AR - 5
RIRATRAER :

(M) FEBFAESTREBIESHERTNAE
FRBREOER

2) TPERAEBMEESORREE TN BRI B 125
BAEARDINEEERE—HREN

3) ThEIRHEES ARAEE M FEEER

HER

@) AHNZHFARASZTENRBERAEERIER
EEFEE PR B A RE ik B SN IR -

(5) ARBIAARFHRBIARE S REH IS D
REBTHETRZEB AR

HENRRFENEARE L (ERHMRBEZRE) LR
BEMEEHRTMNER PR 25

REZ—RF—A+NA  BBBAM(hEARK
MESEREE( ERFERERR(EREBRER
DARFEKER - FOMNRREE([FINERE
R RN - R REH R B SNER B I E L
BEAFE -

BREERERERR - EBRAHERBEG—HEE
BE(EEBE])  WEEMINERETERERT
BRI - SRR BEEEZITEME » 4
BRE ERAEITIREMBATEL - SIIREEEE
ZERBIBE E2ITEME  INRREENER
ITRARMARSZERBIIEART - RIINEEE
BRI RBEEZTEME @ SNBEREEE ETE
RE -

SHREFRAA

20164 R 63



ey

Management'’s Discussion and Analysis
SRR

As the Draft for Comment is not formally promulgated and no Negative List
is formulated or promulgated by the State Council according to the Draft for
Comment, therefore, there is uncertainty as to whether the business of the VIE
Group (including the operation of the vertical website business) will fall into
the restricted list or prohibited list of the Negative List. According to current
contents of the Draft for Comment and the Notes, with respect to investment
arrangement through VIE structure before the New Foreign Investment Law
taking effect, if the relevant investment still falls within restricted or prohibited
industries for foreign investment, as mentioned above, it will be subject to (i)
reporting; (i) verification; or (iii) access permission requirement.

There is uncertainty as to which one of the three possible regimes will be
finally adopted in the New Foreign Investment Law. Based on the Draft for
Comment and the Notes, a VIE structure which is ultimately controlled by a
PRC investor may be permitted to continue following reporting to, verification
or access permission by MOFCOM, while a VIE structure which is ultimately
controlled by a foreign investor may be permitted to continue following
approval by MOFCOM after taking into account a number of consideration
including, without limitation, the identity (whether PRC investor or foreign
investor) of the Actual Controller.

Taking into account the facts that the consultation stage for public comment
of the Draft for Comment ended in February 2015 and a number of legislative
stages have to be undergone before the promulgation and implementation
of the New Foreign Investment Law, and the Directors consider that proper
arrangement has been made at this stage to mitigate against the risk to the
minimal extent that, following the closing of the Acquisition, the business
under the ZhongFu Structured Contracts may become non-compliant with the
Draft for Comment.

Three Options Proposed for the Treatment of the Existing VIE Structure
under the Notes

As mentioned above, with respect to investment arrangement through
VIE structure before the Draft for Comment taking effect, if the relevant
investment still falls within restricted or prohibited industries for foreign
investment as and when the Draft for Comment effect, it will be subject to
(i) reporting; (i) verification; or (iii) access permission requirement. Based on
the Draft for Comment and the Notes, a VIE structure which is ultimately
controlled by a PRC investor may be permitted to continue following reporting
to, verification or access permission by MOFCOM, while a VIE structure which
is ultimately controlled by a foreign investor may be permitted to continue
following approval by MOFCOM after taking into account a number of
consideration including, without limitation, the identity (whether PRC investor
or foreign investor) of the Actual Controller. The Company will comply with
the disclosure requirements under paragraph 20 of Guidance Letter 77-14
issued by the Stock Exchange to keep the Shareholders informed of the VIE
Group's business in the Company’s annual reports.
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Further details of the risks relating to ZhongFu Structured Contracts are also
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 18 December 2015.

INTERNAL CONTROL MEASURES TO BE
IMPLEMENTED BY THE GROUP

The ZhongFu Structured Contracts contained certain provisions in order
to exercise effective control over and to safeguard the assets of Hangzhou
Saidian Technology. In addition to the internal control measures as provided
in the ZhongFu Structured Contracts, it is the intention of the Company,
following completion of the Sale and Purchase Agreement, to implement,
through Hangzhou Saidian Information, additional internal control measures
against Hangzhou Saidian Technology as appropriate, having regard to the
internal control measures adopted by the Group from time to time, which
may include but not limited to:

Management controls

(i) The Group will appoint a board representative (the “Representative”)
to the board of Hangzhou Saidian Technology. The Representative
is required to conduct reviews on the operations of Hangzhou
Saidian Technology and shall submit the reviews to the Board. The
Representative is also required to check the authenticity of the monthly
management accounts of Hangzhou Saidian Technology;

(i) The Representative shall establish a team to be funded by the Group
who shall station at Hangzhou Saidian Technology and shall be actively
involved in various aspects of the daily managerial and operational
activities of Hangzhou Saidian Technology;

(i)  Upon receiving notification of any major events of Hangzhou Saidian
Technology by the Representative, the registered shareholders of
Hangzhou Saidian Technology must report to the company secretary of
the Company (the “Company Secretary”), who must in turn report to
the Board;

(iv)  The Company Secretary shall conduct regular site visits to Hangzhou
Saidian Technology and conduct personnel interviews quarterly and
submit reports to the Board; and

(v)  All seals, chops, incorporation documents and all other legal documents
of Hangzhou Saidian Technology must be kept at the office of
Hangzhou Saidian Information.
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Financial controls

(i

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

The financial controller of the Company (the “FC") shall collect monthly
management accounts, bank statements and cash balances and major
operational data of Hangzhou Saidian Technology for review. Upon
discovery of any suspicious matters, the FC must report to the Company
Secretary, who shall in turn report to the Board;

If the payment of the service fees from Hangzhou Saidian Technology
to Hangzhou Saidian Information is delayed, the FC must meet with
Hangzhou Saidian Technology’s Shareholders to investigate, and
should report any suspicious matters to the Board. In extreme cases,
the registered shareholder(s) of Hangzhou Saidian Technology will be
removed and replaced;

Hangzhou Saidian Technology must submit copies of latest bank
statements for every bank accounts of Hangzhou Saidian Technology
within 15 days after each month end; and

Hangzhou Saidian Technology must assist and facilitate the Company
to conduct quarterly on-site internal audit on Hangzhou Saidian
Technology.

Qualification Requirements

It is the Company’s intention to unwind the Arrangements as discussed above
and to hold all necessary and relevant licences for operation of its business
subject to such relevant laws and regulations as soon as the law allows the
business to operate without such Arrangements.

As a result of there being no applicable PRC laws, regulations or rules
which provides clear guidance on the interpretation of the Qualification
Requirements, the Company is currently unable to ascertain whether it is
capable for fulfilling all requirements of the necessary licence and approval
for online operations and conducting Value-added Telecommunications
Businesses when the laws allow the Group to directly operate the business.

HC International, Inc
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The Group has gradually commence and strengthen its overseas value-
added telecommunications services business operations with a view to
demonstrate a good track record for meeting the Qualification Requirements
in due course once the restrictions on the percentage of foreign ownership
in telecommunications services are removed in the PRC by then the Group
can unwind the Arrangements, and acquire the entire equity of Huicong
Construction, Beijing Zhixing Ruijing and Hangzhou Saidian Technology,
respectively.

In 2014, the Group has established a subsidiary in Hong Kong, namely, HC
Group (Hong Kong) Limited (“Hong Kong HC”). Hong Kong HC will be
principally engaged in the construction and operation of the Group’s new
overseas platform in Hong Kong, with an aim to making such platform
the overseas platform and provide an expanded and upgraded services for
the existing customers of the Group. Such additional platform will allow
the existing and future high-quality customers to display their products
and services online. Making use of the Group's strong customer base and
media resources, Hong Kong HC and its overseas platform will help Hong
Kong and overseas buyers to locate qualified PRC suppliers and facilitate
transactions between them. The Directors consider the Group possesses
the necessary technics and operating experiences as well as strong internal
resources to facilitate the operation of Hong Kong HC with its overseas
platform. Currently, Hong Kong HC is the registrant of the domain name
“hc360.com.hk” and the Group has launched the construction of the Group'’s
new overseas platform and expects to commit not less than HK$2 million to
the development and operation of the new overseas platform. Such financial
commitment shall include, but not limited to, the establishment of the server,
network services, staff costs and marketing costs. More financial resources
will be committed by the Group according to the business needs of the new
overseas platform.

As at the date of this report, the Group had completed the establishment of
overseas platform (www.hc360.com.hk). The platform had gone online and
entered into the trial operation stage. Hong Kong HC had formally operate
the overseas platform in 2016. The Group will continue to input relevant
resources to expand the overseas platform business.
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MAJOR TRANSACTION IN RELATION TO THE
ACQUISITION OF SHARES OF INNER MONGOLIA
HOHHOT JINGU RURAL COMMERCIAL BANK
LIMITED COMPANY

On 7 December 2015, Beijing HC Internet Information Technology Company
Limited (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, “HC Internet”)
entered into a subscription agreement with Jingu Bank, a commercial bank
based in Inner Mongolia), to subscribe for 108,661,533 shares (subject to
adjustment) in Jingu Bank at the price of RMB3 per share (RMB325,984,599
in aggregate) in cash, subject to adjustment of number of shares.

The subscription constituted a major transaction of the Company. On 12
September 2016, an ordinary resolution was duly passed by the shareholders
of the Company approving, confirming and ratifying the said subscription.
According to approval by FEISRITEEEERLZE@NEHEE R (China
Banking Regulatory Commission Inner Mongolia Supervisory Authority*) dated
13 September 2016, HC Internet was allowed to subscribe 105,000,000
shares of Jingu Bank, together with the 19,300,000 shares of Jingu Bank
acquired by HC Internet on 22 July 2015, resulting in HC Internet holding
approximately 9.72% of the issued share capital of Jingu Bank. As at 31
December 2016, HC Internet has paid the consideration in the amount of
RMB315,000,000 in full.

Further details are set out in the announcements of the Company dated 7
December 2015, 30 June 2016, 16 August 2016 and 12 September 2016 and
the circular of the Company dated 25 August 2016.

DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION IN RELATION TO
THE SUBSCRIPTION OF SHARES IN SHANGHAI
GANGYIN E-COMMERCE CO., LTD

On 15 January 2016, Beijing Huicong Zaichuang Technology Co., Ltd (an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), entered into a subscription
agreement with Shanghai Gangyin E-Commerce Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai
Gangyin”) for the subscription of 22,000,000 shares in Shanghai Gangyin at
the subscription price of RMB4.5 per share (RMB99,000,000 in aggregate)
in cash. The said subscription constituted a discloseable transaction of the
Company.

Further details are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 15
January 2016.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION IN RELATION TO
SUBSCRIPTION OF ZERO COUPON CONVERTIBLE
BONDS UNDER SPECIFIC MANDATE

On 9 December 2015, the Company entered into the subscription agreement
(the "Subscription Agreement”) with Mr. Guo Jiang (an executive Director
and the chief executive officer of the Company), Mr. Lee Wee Ong (an
executive Director and chief financial officer of the Company), Mr. Liu Jun
(an executive Director of the Company) and Mr. Liu Xiaodong (a shareholder
of the Company and a director of several subsidiaries of the Company)
(collectively, the “CB Subscribers”), pursuant to which the CB Subscribers
have conditionally agreed to subscribe for and the Company has conditionally
agreed to issue the convertible bonds (the “Convertible Bonds”) in an
aggregated principal amount of HK$500,000,000 to be issued by the
Company under the specific mandate of the Company. The transactions
contemplated under the Subscription Agreement constituted a connected
transaction of the Company and was approved by the shareholders of the
Company on 1 February 2016.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is an operator
of B2B e-commerce platform that involves: internet technologies, internet
finance, 020 business models, anti-counterfeit deployment and etc.
Currently, The Group's key strategies have been focusing around the internet
finance cluster, and merger and acquisition or investment of verticals for more
synergies, in order to boost the B2B transaction enablement.

The Directors are of the view that the said subscription will provide the
Company with a good opportunity to raise funds for satisfying near future
development needs, as well as further expand its capital base. The said
subscription also reflects the commitment of the senior management of the
Company to the Company.

The Directors consider that the terms of the Subscription Agreement, which
were arrived at after arm’s length negotiations between the Company and the
Subscribers, are fair and reasonable and are in the interests of the Company
and the Shareholders as a whole.

On 26 May 2016, all the conditions precedent as set out in the Subscription
Agreement had been fulfilled and the partial completion of the subscription of
the Convertible Bonds took. Place of the Convertible Bonds in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$380,000,000 were issued to Mr. Guo Jiang, Mr. Lee
Wee Ong and Mr. Liu Jun in accordance with the terms of the Subscription
Agreement.
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On 31 May 2016, the Company received conversion notices from Mr. Guo
Jiang, Mr. Lee Wee Ong and Mr. Liu Jun (as bondholders) in respect of the
exercise of the conversion rights attached to the Convertible Bonds in the
principal amount of HK$160,000,000, HK$60,000,000 and HK$160,000,000
(in aggregate of HK$380,000,000) respectively at the conversion price of
HK$4.00 per share (the “Conversion”). As a result of the Conversion, on
1 June 2016, the Company allotted and issued 40,000,000 new shares,
15,000,000 new shares and 40,000,000 new shares (in aggregate of
95,000,000 shares) (the “Conversion Shares”) to Mr. Guo Jiang, Mr. Lee Wee
Ong and Mr. Liu Jun respectively. The Conversion Shares rank pari passu with
all the existing shares of the Company at the date of allotment and among
themselves in all respects.

On 20 January 2017, the Company entered into a termination deed with Mr.
Liu Xiaodong (the “Termination Deed"”), pursuant to which, the Company and
Mr. Liu Xiaodong mutually agreed to terminate the Subscription Agreement
on the part of the Company and Mr. Liu Xiaodong only and in accordance
with relevant clauses in the Subscription Agreement.

With effect from the date of the Termination Deed, Mr. Liu Xiaodong
ceased to subscribe for the Convertible Bonds with a principal amount of
HK$120,000,000, and neither the Company nor Mr. Liu Xiaodong shall have
any claim or action against each other in connection with the Subscription
Agreement.

The Board considers that the Termination Deed has no material adverse
impact on the business operations and financial position of the Group.

Before the Termination, the Company planned to use the net proceeds from
the said subscription for the purposes as indicated in the Company's circular
dated 11 January 2016.

After the Termination, the maximum net proceeds from the said subscription is
reduced to approximately HK$378,850,000.

As at the end of the year ended 31 December 2016,

(i) approximately HK$184,000,000 had been used for the acquisition of the
entire issued share capital of Huijia Yuantian Limited (please refer to the
section headed “Disclosable Transaction in relation to the acquisition of
the entire issued share capital of Huijia Yuantian Limited involving issue
of convertible bonds” for details);

(i) approximately HK$130,000,000 had been used for financing services
relating to finance leasing business of the Group;
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(i) approximately HK$15,000,000 had been contributed to the investment
into Smart-Core Holdings Limited (please refer to the section headed
“Disclosable Transaction in relation to cornerstone investment in Smart-
Core Holdings Limited” for details); and

(iv) the remaining proceeds had been placed in bank deposits for funding
the Group's working capital, general corporate purposes, future
development of internet finance business/cluster in China and potential
mergers and acquisitions or investment into the B2B 2.0 business of the
Company.

For more details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
9 December 2015, 30 December 2015, 1 February 2016, 29 February 2016, 1
April 2016, 26 May 2016, 1 June 2016 and 20 January 2017 and the circular
of the Company dated 12 January 2016.

SHARE TRANSACTION IN RELATION TO THE
ACQUISITION OF THE ENTIRE ISSUED SHARE
CAPITAL OF ZHONGFU HOLDINGS LIMITED
INVOLVING ISSUE OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION IN
RELATION TO THE STRUCTURED CONTRACTS

On 18 December 2015, Daxiong Holdings Limited, Hanson He Holdings
Limited, Richard Chen Holdings Limited, Grand Novel Developments Limited
CE&EFTEERE AR A A]) and Mr Moustache Holdings Limited (collectively, the
“Sellers”), the Company, and Mr. Cao Guoxiong (B EJgE), Mr. He Shunsheng
(fallEA), Mr. Chen Xuejun (FREZE), Mr. Guan Jianzhong (B &) and Mr.
Liao Bin (BZ3®) (collectively, the “Seller Guarantors”) entered into a sale and
purchase agreement, pursuant to which the Sellers had conditionally agreed
to sell, and the Company had conditionally agreed to acquire the entire issued
share capital of ZhongFu Holdings Limited for an aggregate consideration
of HK$170,807,500 (subject to adjustments), to be settled by way of cash
and issuance and allotment of convertible bonds of the Company (subject
to adjustments). The said acquisition constituted a share transaction of the
Company. The entering into of a series of structured contracts between,
among others, the Group and Mr. Guo Jiang (an executive Director, chief
executive officer and a substantial shareholder of the Company) constituted
continuing connected transaction of the Company.
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Please refer to the section headed “Structured Contracts involving Hangzhou
Saidian Technology” in this report for details of terms of the said structured
contracts.

Hangzhou Saidian Information will enter into a series of the structured
contracts with Hangzhou Saidian Technology and the PRC Equity Owners
on or before the completion date. Pursuant to the said structured contracts,
Hangzhou Saidian Information will provide certain management and
operations services, including but not limited to business consultations,
marketing consultancy, technical services, intellectual-properties licenses,
product research and development system maintenance, as well as general
corporate management, whereas Hangzhou Saidian Technology will pay
the service fee equal to the net income as further elaborated in the section
headed “Structured Contracts involving Hangzhou Saidian Technology” in
this report.

As Hangzhou Saidian Technology will be owned as to 60% by Mr. Guo
Jiang who is an executive Director, chief executive officer and a substantial
shareholder of the Company, each of Mr. Guo Jiang and Hangzhou Saidian
Technology will be a connected person of the Company and the transactions
contemplated under the said structured contracts constitute continuing
connected transaction of the Company (the “Continuing Connected
Transaction”).

The completion of the transactions under the sale and purchase agreement
took place on 8 January 2016 in accordance with the terms of the sale and
purchase agreement.

HK$100,712,500 (equivalent to approximately RMB85,244,000) of the
Consideration (being the aggregate principal amount of the allotment and
issue of the said convertible bonds) is subject to downward adjustments on
the basis of a yearly target amount of RMB10,000,000, RMB13,000,000 and
RMB16,900,000 of the audited consolidated distributable profit (after-tax)
of Zhejiang Zhongfu for the year ended 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018
respectively.

According to the statutory combined audited financial statement of Zhejiang
Zhongfu for the year ended 31 December 2016 dated 28 March 2017, the
audited consolidated distributable profit (after-tax) of Zhejiang Zhongfu for
the year ended 31 December 2016 exceeds RMB10,000,000. Accordingly,
the relevant performance target for the year ended 31 December 2016 has
been met, and the Sellers are entitled to convert the said convertible bonds in
the principal amount of HK$40,427,500 into shares of the Company at the
conversion price of HK$10.00 per share. Accordingly, a total of 4,042,750
shares of the Company will be allotted and issued to the Sellers.

Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 3 July 2015, 18
December 2015, 8 January 2016 and 28 March 2017 for further details.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis
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Annual Caps

The Directors estimate that the respective annual caps for the Continuing
Connected Transaction for the three years ending 31 December 2016,
2017 and 2018 are RMB11,000,000, RMB14,000,000 and RMB18,000,000
respectively being the expected maximum sums received by the Company
under the Management and Operations Agreement (the “Annual Caps”).

The Annual Caps were determined with reference to (1) the latest unaudited
net asset value of Hangzhou Saidian Technology, (2) the operating
performance of Zhejiang Zhongfu including but not limited to the number of
registered users and the number of daily visitors of the websites operated by
Zhejiang Zhongfu and its leading position in the industry, and (3) the business
prospect of ZhongFu Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries.

Annual review by independent non-executive directors and auditors
The Company’s independent non-executive directors have reviewed the
Continuing Connected Transaction this year and confirm in this report that
the Continuing Connected Transaction has been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(2) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(3) according to the agreement governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s shareholders as a
whole.

Further, the Company has engaged PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PWC") as its
auditor to report on the Continuing Connected Transaction for year 2016.
PWC has provided a letter to the Board confirming that:

(@) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the
disclosed continuing connected transactions have not been approved by
the Board.

(b) for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the
Group, nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the transactions were not, in all material respects, in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Group.

(c)  nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the
transactions were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing such transactions.

(d) with respect to the aggregate amount of the Continuing Connected
Transaction, nothing has come to their attention that causes them
to believe that the disclosed Continuing Connected Transaction have
exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.
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TERMINATION OF FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT FOR
DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY - BEJING ZHIXING
RULING

On 26 April 2016, the Company and Beijing Huicong Construction
Information Consulting Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Huicong Construction”, a subsidiary
of the Company) (as vendor) entered into a framework agreement (as
supplemented by the supplemental agreement dated 30 May 2016, and the
second supplemental agreement dated 29 June 2016, collectively, “Framework
Agreement”) with Xizang Ruijing Huijie Entrepreneurship Investment
Partnership POl S ERAIZEIRE AN (“Xizang Ruijing”) (as vendor)
and Shanghai Ganglian E-Commerce Holdings Co., Ltd. &l EFE%4
fR7AA] (“Purchaser”, listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange) (as purchaser), for
the conditional disposal by Beijing Huicong Construction and Xizang Ruijing
of the entire equity interest in Beijing Zhixing Ruijing Technology Co., Ltd 4t 5
HITE SR AR AT (“Target Assets”), for a total consideration not more
than RMB2,080,000,000 and not less than RMB2,000,000,000.

The final amount of the total consideration shall be determined with reference
to, amongst others, the asset valuation report in relation of the Target Assets
and subject to further agreements to be entered into between the parties to
the Framework Agreement It will be satisfied partly by cash (as to 45% of the
consideration) and by consideration issue of new shares of the Purchaser (as
to 55%, and to be issued at the issue price currently fixed at RMB36.49 per
share). The consideration shall be split between Beijing Huicong Construction
and Xizang Ruijing in the proportion of 60% and 40% respectively.

In view of the intention of the Purchaser and the Group to involve the key
management of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing in the disposal and provide them with
incentives to manage and run Beijing Zhixing Ruijing after the disposal, the
Group will indirectly transfer up to 40% of the total consideration to Mr. Liu
Xiaodong, Ms. Wang Qian, Mr. Shi Shilin and Ms. Yang Ye (the “Zhixing Ex-
Shareholders”) pursuant to a reward mechanism (the “Reward Mechanism”)
upon meeting certain performance targets as set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 6 May 2016.

To facilitate the disposal and implementation of the above Reward
Mechanism, a reorganization is proposed to be carried out before the
completion of the disposal. Upon completion of the reorganization, Beijing
Zhixing Ruijing will be owned as to 60% by Beijing Huicong Construction and
as to 40% by Xizang Ruijing.
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To align the interest of the Zhixing Ex-Shareholders with the Group upon the
completion of the disposal, Beijing Huicong Construction has entered into a
supplemental partnership agreement with the Zhixing Ex-Shareholders on 26
April 2016 for the Reward Mechanism, i.e. if the certain performance target
of the three years ending 31 December 2018 can be met, Beijing Huicong
Construction will (i) transfer an agreed percentage of the partnership equity
and the corresponding percentage of the capital amounts contributed by
Beijing Huicong Construction in Xizang Ruijing to the Zhixing Ex-Shareholders
at a consideration in an amount equal to the relevant capital amounts
contributed by Beijing Huicong Construction in Xizang Ruijing, and (ii) procure
Xizang Ruijing to declare the cash consideration received by Xizang Ruijing as
dividend to the Zhixing Ex-Shareholders.

In view of the Reward Mechanism, on 26 April 2016, the Company entered
into the supplemental deed with NAVI-IT and the Zhixing Ex-Shareholders
pursuant to which the Company conditionally agreed to buy back
88,958,115 Shares at nil consideration subject to the terms and conditions
of the supplemental deed. The buy-backs are in effect for the purpose of
implementing the Reward Mechanism through which the Group will indirectly
transfer up to 40% of the total consideration to the Zhixing Ex-Shareholders
if certain performance targets have been met. As such, although the
consideration for the buy-backs set out in the supplemental deed is nil, the
actual maximum consideration for the buy-backs shall be the 40% of the total
consideration of approximately RMB832,000,000.

To facilitate the Disposal and implementation of the Reward Mechanism,
the Reorganization is proposed to be carried out before the completion of
the Disposal. For the purpose of the Reorganization, the Equity Transfer
Agreement, the Asset Transfer Agreement and the Termination Agreement
have also been entered into by the Group on 26 April 2016. Immediately
upon completion of the Reorganization, Beijing Zhixing Ruijing will be owned
as to 60% by Beijing Huicong Construction and as to 40% by Xizang Ruijing.
In light of the Reorganization, Beijing International Information has entered
into the Management and Operations Agreement with Beijing Huicong
Construction and the PRC Equity Owners on 26 April 2016. Pursuant to the
Management and Operations Agreement, Beijing International Information
will conditionally provide management and operation services, whereas
Beijing Huicong Construction will conditionally pay a service fee equal to the
net income.
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Description of the connected relationship

As Mr. Liu Xiaodong (2//\58), a director of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing (a subsidiary
of the Company) and thus a connected person of the Company, is a party to
the Supplemental Partnership Agreement and the Supplemental Deed, the
transactions contemplated thereunder constitute connected transactions of
the Company under the Listing Rules.

Mr. Guo Jiang (£F7I), an executive Director and chief executive officer of the
Company and thus a connected person of the Company, is involved in the
transactions contemplated under the Framework Agreement (being a party to
each of the Termination Agreement, the Equity Transfer Agreement and one
of the five proposed subscribers of the purchaser fund raising); and (iv) Mr.
Liu Xiaodong (2/]\5R), a director of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing (a subsidiary of the
Company) and thus a connected person of the Company, is involved in the
transactions contemplated under the Framework Agreement (being a party to
each of the Termination Agreement and the Equity Transfer Agreement).

Reason and benefit for entering into the Supplemental Deed

The Original Mechanism is not only a price adjustment mechanism of the Sale
and Purchase Agreement and was structured as an incentive for the Zhixing
Ex-Shareholders to achieve the performance targets as set out in the Sale and
Purchase Agreement (the “Old Performance Targets”). If the Old Performance
Targets have been met, the Company would be required to release an
aggregate of 155,684,485 Shares (including the Buy-Backs Shares) to the
Zhixing Ex-Shareholders under the Sale and Purchase Agreement.

If the New Performance Targets for each of the New Performance Undertaking
Years have been met, the Group will indirectly transfer up to 40% of the
Total Consideration to the Zhixing Ex-Shareholders pursuant to the Reward
Mechanism.
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Although the consideration for the Buy-Backs set out in the Supplemental
Deed is nil, the consideration for the Buy-Backs shall be the 40% of the Total
Consideration which shall be not more than RMB832,000,000, and not less
than RMB800,000,000, if the New Performance Targets as defined for each
of the New Performance Undertaking Years are met. The Company is of the
view that Reward Mechanism and the Buy-Backs are justifiable based on the
followings:

M

since the New Performance Targets are 30% higher which are more
difficult to achieve than the Old Performance Targets and the Zhixing
Ex-Shareholders are at the risk of losing all Buy-Backs Shares without
any shares in the Purchaser nor cash being given in return if the
New Performance Targets are all the same as the amounts originally
undertaken under the Sale and Purchase Agreement, the Group believes
that it is necessary to provide advantages (including the distribution
of the Cash Consideration of RMB274,560,000 in accordance with
the terms of the Third Supplemental Partnership Agreement) to the
Zhixing Ex-Shareholders to attract them to agree to participate in the
Transactions;

if the Zhixing Ex-Shareholders are not willing to participate in the
Transactions, the Group would not be able to close the deal with the
Purchaser as the direct participation of key management of Beijing
Zhixing Ruijing is a key request of the Purchaser;

avoid the duplication of (i) releasing of the HC Consideration Shares
to the Zhixing Ex-Shareholders pursuant to the Sale and Purchase
Agreement if the Old Performance Targets could be met and (ii) the
Reward Mechanism;

the Buy-Backs are part and parcel of the Disposal, which is expected to
bring a net gain in the amount of RMB 149,684,000 to the Group); and

the reasons and benefits as a result of the Disposal and the Acquisition,
in particular, allowing the parties to have opportunities in the business of
upstream and downstream B2B and commodities trading in the future
and creating a synergy effect that would be beneficial to the Group and
the Shareholders as a whole.
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Meanwhile, given, (i) the Company is of the view that replacement of the
Original Mechanism with the Reward Mechanism can effectively reduce
the Group’s administrative burden and costs when compared to having the
Original Mechanism and the Reward Mechanism in operation simultaneously;
and (ii) the close relationship between the Zhixing Ex-Shareholders (being
long term business partners whom intend to act coordinately), it has not been
possible to negotiate a new arrangement that would only include the two
Zhixing Ex-Shareholders that are key management of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing
(being Mr. Liu and Ms. Wang) but exclude the two others, all four Zhixing Ex-
Shareholders are included in the Reward Mechanism despite the fact that only
Mr. Liu and Ms. Wang are key management of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing.

On 20 September 2016 (after trading hours), the Company received a written
notice from the Purchaser pursuant to which the Purchaser has decided to
terminate the transactions contemplated under the Framework Agreement
(as supplemented by the First Supplemental Agreement and the Second
Supplemental Agreement) (the “Termination”) in view of the recent change
of securities market conditions and policies of the PRC, in particular, the
uncertainty of the relevant PRC listing policies on the return of overseas
listed company to A shares and the material uncertainty on the part of the
Purchaser to proceed with the transactions contemplated thereunder.

In view of the change of regulatory policies governing the transactions
contemplated under the Framework Agreement (as supplemented) and
the uncertainty to proceed with the transactions, the Board, after careful
consideration, understands and accepts the reason of the Termination by
the Purchaser. The Termination was exercised pursuant to the terms of the
Framework Agreement (as supplemented) due to the change of regulatory
laws, regulations and policies of the PRC resulting in the impracticability to
complete the transactions contemplated thereunder. In view of the aforesaid
and taking into account the interest of the Company as a whole, the
Company agrees to the Termination. No party to the Framework Agreement (as
supplemented) will be held responsible for any breach of the agreement.

After the Termination, Beijing Zhixing Ruijing will continue to be a subsidiary
of the Company and its results will continue to be consolidated in the
accounts of the Company. Having fulfilled the original performance targets
for the first year under the Sale and Purchase Agreement, the Zhixing Ex-
Shareholders will continue to perform their undertakings in respect of the
original performance targets for the second year and the third year under the
Sale and Purchase Agreement.
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The Directors believe that the Termination will have no material adverse
impact on the existing operation, management and prospects of the Group.

Following the termination in respect of the Framework Agreement (as
supplemented by the First Supplemental Agreement and the Second
Supplemental Agreement) as announced by the Company dated 21
September 2016, on 26 September 2016, the parties below entered into
termination agreements (the “Termination Agreements”) to terminate the
Agreements respectively:

(1) Mr. Guo Jiang, Mr. Liu Xiaodong, Beijing Huicong Construction and
Xizang Ruijing entered into a termination agreement to terminate the
Equity Transfer Agreement in respect of the proposed transfer of the
entire equity interest in Beijing Zhixing Ruijing from Mr. Guo Jiang and
Mr. Liu Xiaodong to Beijing Huicong Construction and Xizang Ruijing;

(2) Orange Triangle and Beijing Zhixing Ruijing entered into a termination
agreement to terminate the Asset Transfer Agreement in respect of the
proposed transfer of, among others, certain intellectual property rights
owned by Orange Triangle from Orange Triangle to Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing;

(3) Mr. Guo Jiang, Mr. Liu Xiaodong, Orange Beijing, Beijing Zhixing Ruijing
and Orange Triangle entered into a termination agreement to terminate
the Termination Agreement in respect of the proposed termination of
the Existing Structured Contracts;

(4) Beijing Huicong Construction and the Zhixing Ex-Shareholders entered
into a termination agreement to terminate the Supplemental Partnership
Agreement (as supplemented by the Second Supplemental Partnership
Agreement and the Third Supplemental Partnership Agreement) in
respect of, among others, the proposed Reward Mechanism; and

(5)  The Company, NAVI-IT and the Zhixing Ex-Shareholders entered into a
termination agreement to formally terminate the Supplemental Deed in
respect of the proposed Buy-Backs.

Under the Termination Agreements, (i) the Agreements as set out above shall
be terminated and of no further legal effect; (ii) all the rights and obligations
of each of the parties to the respective Agreements shall be terminated and
discharged; and (iii) the parties to the respective Agreements confirmed that
there is no unperformed obligations, disagreement or dispute among the
parties thereto.
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Please also refer to the announcements of the Company dated 6 May 2016,
13 May 2016, 27 May 2016, 30 May 2016, 6 June 2016, 29 June 2016,
30 June 2016 and 29 July 2016, and 4 August 2016, 23 August 2016, 14
September 2016, 21 September 2016, 23 September 2016 and 26 September
2016 and circular of the Company dated 30 August 2016.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION IN RELATION TO
CAPITAL INCREASE AGREEMENT INVOLVING
DEEMED DISPOSAL OF EQUITY INTEREST IN
GUANGZHOU HUICONG

On 15 March 2016, Mr. Liu Jun, Mr. Song Bingchen, Mr. Han Gang and Mr.
Xu Ke (collectively, the “Subscribers”), each being a director of certain indirect
subsidiary(ies) of the Company, entered into the capital increase agreement
with Shenzhen Jing Huicong Network Technology Company Limited (&3
mREBBEEEEIER AT (“Shenzhen Jing Huicong”), Beijing Huicong
Interconnection Information Technology Company Limited (3t REZIEE B
= ERMIARR A F) (“Beijing Huicong Interconnection”) and Guangzhou
Huicong Network Technology Company Limited (& ZEMEEREAR A
7)) (“Guangzhou Huicong”), each of them being an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company), pursuant to which the parties agreed that the
registered capital of Guangzhou Huicong be increased from RMB5,000,000
to RMB8,333,333 (“Capital Increase”), comprising RMB3,333,333 to be
contributed to the increase in registered the capital of Guangzhou Huicong,
and RMB50,000,000 to be contributed to the capital reserve of Guangzhou
Huicong. The Subscribers shall make capital contribution in an aggregate
amount of RMB53,333,333 by installment. Upon completion of the Capital
Increase, Guangzhou Huicong is owned as to approximately 40.00% by the
Subscribers and approximately 60.00% by Shenzhen Jing Huicong and Beijing
Huicong Interconnection collectively.

Each of Mr. Liu Jun, Mr. Song Bingchen, Mr. Han Gang and Mr. Xu Ke is a
director of certain indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary(ies) of the Company.
In addition, Mr. Liu Jun also holds approximately 62.5% equity interest in

L RLLE=ZRIR A AR AR (Beijing Le Peng De Tai Investment Company
Limited*), which in turn holds 40% equity interest in 22 (K)%) EF5
FEFIRE AR A A (Huicong (Tianjin) E-Commerce Investment Company
Limited*), an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Each of
Mr. Liu Jun, Mr. Song Bingchen, Mr. Han Gang and Mr. Xu Ke is therefore a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

*  for identification purpose

HC International, Inc
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Purpose of the transaction

The Company expects that the Capital Increase will align the interests of
the Subscribers (being the current senior management team of the Group’s
household electrical appliances business) and the Group, as well as better
integrate the Group’s resources and enhance synergies, so as to collectively
achieve better development goals. The proceeds of the Capital Increase will
be used for general working capital purpose of Guangzhou Huicong.

The Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors) consider
that the Capital Increase, albeit not in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Company, the terms of the Capital Increase Agreement are
fair and reasonable and on normal commercial terms and are in the interests
of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

No Director has any material interest in the Capital Increase Agreement or the
transactions contemplated thereunder or is required to abstain from voting on
the resolutions of the Board approving the Capital Increase Agreement and
the transactions contemplated thereunder.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 15 March 2016 for
more details.

DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION IN RELATION TO
ACQUISITION OF SHARES OF DIGITAL CHINA
HOLDINGS LIMITED

On 5 July 2016, Hong Kong Huicong International Group Limited (a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) (“Hong Kong Huicong”) entered into an
agreement for sale and purchase of shares with Sparkling Investment (BVI)
Limited to acquire 9,400,000 shares of Digital China Holdings Limited (“Digital
China") (a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), and a substantial shareholder of the
Company), representing approximately 0.80% of the issued shares of Digital
China, at a purchase price of HK$56,400,000.

The said acquisition constituted a discloseable transaction of the Company.
The said transaction has been completed. Further details are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 5 July 2016.
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DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION IN RELATION TO
CORNERSTONE INVESTMENT IN SMART-CORE
HOLDINGS LIMITED

On 23 September 2016, Hong Kong Huicong entered into a cornerstone
investment agreement with Smart-Core Holdings Limited (“Smart-Core
Holdings”), DBS Asia Capital Limited and Haitong International Securities
Company Limited (collectively “the Joint Global Coordinators), pursuant to
which Hong Kong Huicong has agreed to subscribe for shares of Smart-
Core Holdings up to an aggregate value of US$4,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$31,000,000). On 7 October 2016, Hong Kong Huicong was
allocated 16,938,000 shares of Smart-Core Holdings for a total consideration
of HK$30,996,540.

The said cornerstone investment agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder constitutes a discloseable transaction of the
Company.

For further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
26 September 2016.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
During the year ended 31 December 2016, 15,352,000 shares of the
Company were issued upon the exercise of share options under the share
option scheme of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, convertible bonds with principle
amount equivalent to HK$380,000,000 have been converted into 95,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company at the conversion price of HK$4 per share.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, 12,290,000 shares of the
Company were repurchased pursuant to the general mandate to repurchase
shares and 5,990,000 shares had been cancelled.

The total number of issued shares of the Company was 1,004,308,103 as at
31 December 2016 (2015: 899,946,103).

For details of shares repurchased during the financial year ended 31 December
2016 but cancelled on 17 February 2017, please refer to the section headed
“SUBSEQUENT EVENTS” below.
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STAFF AND REMUNERATION

The success of the Group depends on the skills, motivation and commitment
of its staff. As at 31 December 2016, the total number of Group’s employees
was 2,964, among which 1,673 were employed in the Sales and Marketing
Division, 325 were employed in the Editorial Division, 612 were employed
in the Information Technology Division and the remaining were employed in
other divisions of the Group.

Remuneration of employees is generally in line with the market trend and
commensurate with the salary level in the industry, with share options
granted to employees based on individual performance. Other benefits to the
Group’s employees include medical insurance, retirement schemes, training
programmes and educational subsidies.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, part of the bank borrowings, amounting to
RMB 160,000,000 are secured by certain properties and land use right.

EXCHANGE RISK

As the Group's operations are principally in the PRC and majority assets and
liabilities of the Group are denominated in RMB, the Directors believe that the
Group is not subject to significant exchange risk.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no contingent liability (2015: Nil).
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

(a)

(b)

(0

HC International, Inc

Discloseable Transaction in relation to the acquisition
of the entire issued share capital of Huijia Yuantian
Limited involving issue of convertible bonds

On 13 January 2017, the Group entered into a share purchase
agreement with Mu Hao Holdings Limited, Hong Rui Technology
Holdings Limited, Chance Technology Co. Ltd and Vanguard Technology
Holdings Limited (together the “Vendors”) and Mr. Zou Kai (£
gl), Mr. Hong Chaoran (##848), Ms. Wang Fei (E£3E) and Mr. Sun
Yi (f£%%) (together the “Vendor Guarantors”) to acquire the entire
equity interest of Huijia Yuantian Limited at a total consideration
amounted HK$409,090,909 (equivalent to RMB360,000,000). Part of
the consideration in the amount of HK$184,090,909 (equivalent to
RMB162,000,000) was settled by cash, while the remaining portion was
settled by issuance and allotment of convertible bonds in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$225,000,000 (equivalent to R\MB198,000,000)
(subject to adjustments).

The transaction had been completed on 3 February 2017 in accordance
with the terms of the sale and purchase agreement. Please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 13 January 2017 and 3 February
2017 for further details.

Cancellation of shares repurchased

A total of 6,300,000 shares repurchased on 15 November 2016, 16
November 2016, 28 November 2016, 29 November 2016, 30 November
2016, 1 December 2016, 2 December 2016, 5 December 2016, 9
December 2016, 12 December 2016, 16 December 2016, 22 December
2016 and 23 December 2016 were cancelled on 17 February 2017.

Termination of the Subscription Agreement by the
Company and Mr. Liu Xiaodong

The Company has terminated the Subscription Agreement with Mr. Liu
Xiaodong only on 20 January 2017. Please refer to the section headed
“connected transaction in relation to subscription of zero coupon
convertible bonds under specific mandate” above for further details.
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities for the financial year ended 31 December 2016.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the financial year by business
segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the financial year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 124.

The Board recommended the payment of final dividend of HK$0.05 per share
for the year ended 31 December 2016.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in retained earnings of the Group during the
financial year are set out on page 128.

Details of the movements in other reserves of the Group are set out in note
23 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in share capital and share options of the Company
are set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2016, calculated
under the Companies Law of Cayman Islands, amounted to approximately
RMB1,740,015,000 (2015: RMB1,529,760,000).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 5 of this report.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this report

were:
Mr. Guo Fansheng (Chairman)
Mr. Guo Jiang

(Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Lee Wee Ong
(Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Liu Jun

Mr. Li Jianguang Nete !

Mr. Guo Wej Note 1

Mr. Zhang Ke Nete2

Dr. Xiang Bing Nete2

Mr. Zhang Tim Tianwei Note2

(appointed on 21 March 2000)

(appointed on 1 August 2006)

(appointed on 9 September 2011 as an
independent non-executive Director and
re-designated as an executive Director
on 1 July 2012)

(appointed on 12 September 2016)

(appointed on 1 August 2006)

(appointed on 8 March 2002 as an
independent non-executive Director
and re-designated as a non-Director
on 10 June 2011 and resigned on 12
September 2016)

(appointed on 28 March 2003)

(appointed on 8 March 2002 and resigned
on 12 September 2016)

(appointed on 1 November 2011)

Mr. Tang Jie (appointed on 12 September 2016)
Notes:

1 non-executive Directors

2 independent non-executive Directors

HC International, Inc
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In accordance with Article 86 of the Company’s articles of association (“Articles
of Association”), Mr. Liu Jun, Mr. Wong Chi Keung and Mr. Tang Jie, will be
subject to, and eligible offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s articles of association, Mr.
Zhang Tim Tianwei will retire and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ PROFILE

The Directors’ profile is set out on pages 20 to 24.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. GuoFansheng, Mr. Guo Jiang, Mr. Lee Wee Ong and Mr. Liu Jun
has entered into a director’s service contract with the Company, whereby
each of them has accepted the appointment as an executive Director of the
Company for a term of three years from 30 November 2015, 1 August 2015,
1 July 2015 and 12 September 2016 respectively, which may terminated
by either party giving three months’ prior written notice or otherwise in
accordance with the terms of their respective service contracts.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Zhang Ke, Mr. Zhang
Tim Tianwei and Mr. Tang Jie has entered into a director’s service contract
with the Company, whereby each of Mr. Zhang Ke, Mr. Zhang Tim Tianwei
and Mr. Tang Jie has accepted the appointment for a term of one year,
and the service contracts shall be renewed automatically at the end of
the term. Either party may terminate the service contract at any time by
giving one month’s prior written notice or in accordance with the terms
of their respective service contracts. There is no service contract, which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation), in respect of any director
proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed above and in note 36 and note 46 to the consolidated
financial statements, no Director was materially interested, whether directly
or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group to
which the Company, its holding company, or any of its fellow subsidiaries and
subsidiaries was a party subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR STAFF EMOLUMENTS

Details of Directors and senior staff emoluments for the year are set out in
note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

The emoluments of the Directors and the senior staff are determined based on
the operating results of the Group, individual performance and/or prevailing
market conditions. The Company has also adopted the Share Option Scheme
and the Share Award Scheme as an incentive to Directors and senior staff.

REAXTDEABERAA([EHEEIZAA])F86
o BIFEEE TEREERSEEEBANARA
EEBAEFAS LERTABEREREFE -

REBARFEBERARNESTE - RAEXEHR
ARFEERRBERAE LRE  HERAERLMEE
HEREE -

EEEN

BN HEMNE20E245 -

EERBESN

SERLAES A -« ZT A © Lee Wee OngZE K 2IE 5k
EESERARBVESREEL - Bt - BES
BERBEZTALARRNITES D=2 —A
F+—A=tH - ZZ—FHFENA—AB  —_ZT—FHF
tA-ARZE-—R"FNATZARHAH=F ' R
A KA B — 3 = E A B A EmBAMKRE
BES B IRBE LR T AL ©

BIFRITERRRAL  RRBREENSERLED
FHEARFRRIEERBEL Bt B#ERBED
BEXARRET RE—F MZERBEEONERHR
BEBES - REEHOTHEN—STEH—EASL
EEBAFIREEE R B REELERTIALL - #1
BENANFEREBRAFAGEEEEZERIL
AR BARER —FRBASNEECEERERIN)
MLz lRIGEH

EENENzER

B SR A GBS R R M SE36 B I 46 B &
SN RERSRFRIEMEE - SR BN A REE
BREBEA - AAQF - KERADRLIAAR
HBATRHBAR AT ZETH—7 BANRERZ
AW E SRR B AR -

EERSHES 2
AFEEEBELRRLES 2 FMFBINEHFITERE
Bi7E36 °

EFNSREBZHMIREAREZEEEE - @
ARBE/ LERTNETE © AR B IR EERT
B ERFEERES RS RER ZEH -

SHREFRAA

20164 F 3}




88

M
>

Report of the Directors
EFEHE

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES,UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")) which were notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO) or required to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transaction by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:

(a) Directors’ Long Positions in the Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company

VY
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(a) EBRAQTARGREBRG ZHAE

Total  Percentage of
Class of Personal Family ~ Corporate Interestin Other  numberof  shareholding
Name of Director Shares Capacity interests interests interests trust interests Shares  (approximate)
RERDL
j £4:8 R &t AR Rk DAER Rt Afts R E (#4)
Guo Jiang Ordinary Beneficial owners/ 183,925,146 10,784,625 - - - 194,709,771 19.39%
family interest (note 1) (note 1) (note 1)
(fitzE1) (FirzE1) GiEa))
HI EBR BREEA/
iR
Guo Fansheng Ordinary Beneficial owners 35,000,000 - - 22,749,015 - 57,749,015 5.75%
(note 2) (note 2) (note 2)
(M2) (Wiz2) (M3£2)
BNE LR EREAA
Li Jianguang Ordinary Interest of controlled - - 32,000,384 - - 32,000,384 3.19%
corporation (note 3) (note 3)
(Firz83) (M323)
£ EER SRRV T
Lee Wee Ong Ordinary Beneficial owners 19,850,672 - - - - 19,850,672 1.98%
(note 4) (note 4)
(Fsta) (Hrita)
Lee Wee Ong Lk EnEEA
Liu Jun Ordinary Beneficial owners 40,000,000 - - - - 40,000,000 3.98%
2z ERER EREAAN
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(b) Directors’ Short Positions

(b) EEZHXA

Total  Percentage of
Class of Personal Family  Corporate Other numberof  shareholding
Name of Director Shares Capacity interests IEEN IEEN interests Shares  (approximate)
RERALL
EEpns R R 54 BARR RikER AFER Hitigs REEE (#%)
Guo Jiang Ordinary Beneficial owners 66,000,000 - - - 66,000,000 6.57%
Eipan TiEk EaEBA
Notes: &t -
1. Such interest in the Company comprises: 1. ZRERQFERBRE
(@) 125,358,771 Shares of which 114,574,146 Shares are held by Mr. (@) 125,358,771 8% & {n + E A 114,574,146
Guo and 10,784,625 Shares are held by Ms. Geng Yi, who is Mr. & B 17 B 2B 55 A5 B 10,784,625 B %
GuO's spouse; MR EEZEBIE R TI5E
(b) 8,351,000 underlying Shares derived from the awarded shares b)) BE-ZFZ——F+—-—A+tARNZE
granted to Mr. Guo under the employees’ share award scheme 8 IR 17 B2 mhET & 1R 20 5t A R 2 SREN AR
adopted on 17 November 2011; and BFT$ K2 8,351,0000% 48R + &
() 61,000,000 Shares which were borrowed by Mr. Guo Jiang from (0 ARESHIALE  Ba T RIBAELE
Ms. Geng Yi and Mr. Guo Fansheng pursuant to a stock borrowing FEIVAR-_T—X"FAANBZ
agreement dated 9 May 2016 entered into between Mr. Guo Jiang, BB BEEBRBEXTIRIA
Ms. Geng Yi and Mr. Guo Fansheng, of which 35,000,000 Shares A 55 4 {8 A 61,000,000 AR & 5+ E
were subsequently pledged to an independent third party. 35,000,000 8% i 17 B& & 1R T — 2B L
E=F -
Mr. Guo is deemed, or taken to have, interested in the shares and RIBFEHRHAEGKD - BITEEHEE
underlying shares held by Ms. Geng Yi pursuant to the SFO. RIRER B L LTS B 2 RD AR
BRI HEE R o
2. Such interest in the Company comprises: 2. ARRZZEERBIE:
(@) 35,000,000 Shares (long position) held by Mr. Guo Fansheng; and (@) PR A % A AT 35,000,000 A% A% 1 (4F
2 R
(b) 22,749,015 Shares (long position) held by a trustee of a trust of (b) MUEBLELERZHAZERZZFTEA
which Mr. Guo Fansheng is a beneficiary. Fi#%22,749,015 8% (5 (45 &) °
3. The references to 32,000,384 shares of the Company relate to the same 3. %% 32,000,384 % A~ A & Bk 15 T B Callister
block of shares of the Company held by Callister Trading Limited, the entire Trading Limited T AR BIE — 4R AR - ™
share capital of which is owned by Mr. Li Jianguang. Accordingly, Mr. Li ZATZ B ERABFEN AR - At -
Jianguang is deemed, or taken to have, interested in the said 32,000,384 RIRFEH R AE RN - @ e A E R
shares of the Company pursuant to the SFO. YER _Eit32,000,384M8 A A R D B S
4. Such interests in the Company comprise: (i) 18,350,672 Shares and (ii) 4. ZERQEEZEIEG 18,350,672 M K&
1,500,000 underlying Shares derived from the Share Options held by Mr. (i) Lee Wee Ongt £ B2 BEREM S R Z
Lee Wee Ong. 1,500,000/ HEEA 5 °
Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive of & EXHEEI  BMEEENARFTHRERE LA
the Company has any interest or short position in the shares, underlying A &) sk T ARHE A E (F 35 R ES R EIEHI XV

shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which

they

are taken or deemed to have under such provision of the SFO)

or required to be entered in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or which were notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

#R) z Bty - BRI RIEHT - BHREES R
B EPIEXVEDET R E8D A ME AN 7 BB A2 PR
Z B m SRR (BIERIEE 7 NS 06 B &
XREWE SRR 2 BaTOAR)  RALA
RRABIREEZ R BIRDIEI2GMEEERLM 2
ERmsURE - SRBEESTRIBMG AN A R K
R Z AR AR ESOAR
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES HEARAEST B

Pursuant to written resolutions of the shareholders of the Company dated 30  REAATABA-_TT=4+—A=+tHZRFEE
November 2003, among others, a share option scheme (the “Share Option  EURFZEZFR(EFABIE) @ N ARIRMN—ERERETE
Scheme”) was adopted by the Company. The principal terms of the Share  ([BEPRHEEtE ) - BARIEE 212 T EERCHARAT
Option Scheme were summarised in the paragraph headed “Share options” HHIA-—ZZ=fF+=-FN\BZBREREWERDE
under the section headed “Statutory and General Information” in Appendix V. &R —#R&# | —&0[ B | — it

of the prospectus of the Company dated 8 December 2003.

OUTSTANDING SHARE OPTIONS el AR AT 15 2 B AR A
Share Option Scheme BRAETE

As at 31 December 2016, options to subscribe for an aggregate of R-ZT—XFE+-A=+—8  BIEERETLET
14,964,000 Shares granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme were  AJ:RBEA 114,964,000 8% 1D 2 BERRHE 5 R 178 - B
outstanding. Details of which were as follows: BARFIBIT

Number of share options

BIRERE

Exercise As at Granted Exercised Lapsed As at
price 1 January during during during 31 December
Name of grantee Date of grant per share 2016 the period the period the period 2016

i
“E-—RE —E
RBRAKE R BH BRTEE —A-H RAARE  AERTE  RERAX +=A

Directors
EE
Guo Jiang 23 June 2006 1.49 1,000,000 (1,000,000) -
Lipa ZEEREARAZT=H
11 July 2007 1.24 2,200,000 (2,200,000) -
“ELHELAT—H
29 September 2008 0.604 1,500,000 (1,500,000) -
“EL\FERAZTAA
7 April 2010 0.82 4,800,000 (4,800,000) -
“E-TEMALH
Lee Wee Ong 3 April 2013 4.402 1,500,000 1,500,000
Lee Wee Ong —Z-=4WA=H
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Number of share options
BREHE
Exercise As at Granted Exercised Lapsed As at
price 1 January during during during 31 December
Name of grantee Date of grant per share 2016 the period the period the period 2016

i i

—E-5F ZE-RE

BRRARE RLBEH BRITEE =JH=Ig] RER R RERATT RERA¥ +=A=t+—H
HK$ (Note 1)

BT (Fi=E1)

Senior management

EREEAE
Geng Yi 23 June 2006 1.49 434,000 (434,000) -
i ZELRFARAZT=R
29 September 2008 0.604 1,000,000 (1,000,000) -
—EZ\ENAZTARA
7 April 2010 0.82 4,200,000 (4,200,000) -
Z2-ZTFNALH
Li Tao 11 July 2007 1.24 220,000 220,000
FH “ZRHELAT—H
29 September 2008 0.604 400,000 400,000
“ZEN\ENAZTNR
7 April 2010 0.82 800,000 800,000
“Z-THMWA+A
Other employees
HitES
In aggregate 23 June 2006 1.49 24,000 (24,000) -
4t “FEEAATHER
In aggregate (Note 2) 11 July 2007 1.24 1,278,000 (44,000) 1,234,000
At (f7E2) “EEHELAT—H
In aggregate (Note 3) 7 April 2010 0.82 788,000 (150,000) 638,000
B3t (H3) ~F-FEMALA
In aggregate (Note 4) 28 March 2011 1.108 200,000 200,000
A5t (i) ZT—F=fA=T/NA
In aggregate (Note 5) 18 November 2013 9.84 9,972,000 9,972,000
&5t (FEs5) “E-Z5+-ATNR
Total 32,871,000 (15,352,000) 14,964,000
@t
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HC International, Inc

Each option has a 10-year exercise period, which may be exercised after the expiry
of twelve months from the date of the grant of options.

For the options exercisable at HK$1.49 granted on 23 June 2006, the relevant
grantees may exercise these options in a 10-year period starting from the expiry of
twelve months from the date of the grant of options.

For the options exercisable at HK$1.24 granted on 11 July 2007, the relevant
grantees may exercise options up to 50% and in full, respectively, of the shares
of the Company comprised in his or her option (less any number of shares of
the Company in respect of which the option has been previously exercised),
commencing from the first and second anniversaries of the date of the grant of
options.

For the options exercisable at HK$0.604 granted on 29 September 2008, the
relevant grantees may exercise these options in a 10-year period starting from the
expiry of twelve months from the date of the grant of options. For the options
exercisable at HK$0.82 granted on 7 April 2010, the relevant grantees may
exercise options up to 50% and 100%, respectively, of the shares of the Company
comprised in his or her option (less any number of shares of the Company in
respect of which the option has been previously exercised), commencing from the
first and second anniversaries of the date of the grant of options.

For the options exercisable at HK$1.108 granted on 28 March 2011, the relevant
grantees may exercise options up to 50% and 100%, respectively, of the shares
of the Company comprised in his or her option (less any number of shares of
the Company in respect of which the option has been previously exercised),
commencing from the first and second anniversaries of the date of the grant of
options.

For the options exercisable at HK$4.402 granted on 3 April 2013, the relevant
grantee may exercise options up to 20%, 40%, 60%, 80% and 100%, of the
shares of the Company comprised in his option (less any number of shares of
the Company in respect of which the option has been previously exercised),
commencing from the first, second, third, fourth and fifth anniversaries of the
date of the grant of options respectively.

For the options exercisable at HK$9.84 granted on 18 November 2013, the
relevant grantees may exercise options up to 10%, 20%, 40%, 70% and 100%,
respectively, of the shares of the Company comprised in his or her option (less
any number of shares of the Company in respect of which the option has been
previously exercised), commencing from the first, second, third, fourth and fifth
anniversaries of the date of the grant of options.

2 employees have been granted options under the Share Option Scheme to
acquire an aggregate of 1,234,000 shares of the Company at HK$1.24 per share.

Annual Report 2016
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2 employees have been granted options under the Share Option Scheme to
acquire an aggregate of 638,000 shares of the Company at HK$0.82 per share.

2 employees have been granted options under the Share Option Scheme to
acquire an aggregate of 200,000 shares of the Company at HK$1.108 per share.

56 employees have been granted options under the Share Option Scheme to
acquire an aggregate of 9,972,000 shares of the Company at HK$9.84per share.

The fair value of options granted under the Share Option Scheme on 18 February
2004, determined using the Binomial Model value model, was approximately
RMB20,193,000. The significant inputs into the model were the exercise price of
HK$2.4, standard deviation of expected share price returns of 32%, expected life
of options ranging from 5.4 to 6.6 years, expected dividend paid out rate of 0%
and annual risk-free interest rate ranging from 1.34% to 4.43%. The volatility
measured at the standard deviation of expected share price returns is based
on statistical analysis of historical price movement of the Company and other
comparable companies with similar business nature.

The fair value of options granted under the Share Option Scheme on 23 June
2006, determined using the Binomial Model valuation model, was approximately
RMB3,919,000. The significant inputs into the model were exercise price of
HK$1.49, standard deviation of expected share price returns of 34.8%, expected
life of options ranging from 3.2 to 5.5 years expected dividend paid out rate of
0% and annual risk free interest rate of 4.911%. The volatility measured at the
standard deviation of expected share price returns is based on statistical analysis of
historical price movement of the Company and other comparable companies with
similar business nature.

The fair value of options granted under the Share Option Scheme on 11thJuly
2007, determined using the Binomial Model valuation model, was approximately
RMB9,390,000. The significant inputs into the model were exercise price of
HK$1.24 standard deviation of expected share price returns of 49.0%, expected
life of options ranging from 2.4 to 6.2 years expected dividend paid out rate of
0% and annual risk-free interest rate of 4.757%.The volatility measured at the
standard deviation of expected share price returns is based on statistical analysis of
historical price movement of the Company and other comparable companies with
similar business nature.

The fair value of options granted under the Share Option Scheme on
29thSeptember 2008, determined using the Binomial Model valuation model, was
approximately RMB2,756,000. The significant inputs into the model were exercise
price of HK$0.604 standard deviation of expected share price returns of 72.2%,
expected life of options ranging from 3.8 to 4.8 years expected dividend paid out
rate of 0% and annual risk-free interest rate 0f3.133%. The volatility measured
at the standard deviation of expected share price returns is based on statistical
analysis of historical price movement of the Company and other comparable
companies with similar business nature.

IRIBRERIERT BT (24 B B R M AR & 0.82/8
TLREES $£638,000 AN R 2 BERRHE -

RIBEREEEmM2EEE R ATEER1.108
BTG $£200,0000 A A IR 2 BERRHE -

RIBFEL T EEMS6RE BRI A REM9.84
BT A $£9,972,0008 A& 1A Al iR 7 2 B AR A o

EA-BEAGMEEXFER-_ZTONF_A+N
BRBEES B R LR AT EORA
[R#20,193,0007T - HAZEX 2 T E2HBTT
EE2.48T - BRIRERREZRERE32%
I A TN ToAFE6.667%F ALK
BE0% MFEERBRIENT1.34%E443% T
% o WRIRFTIRERRR 2 RERFEMFE R
& DIRBEARBREBUEEEUZ KM AL
BARZBEERKB R EFIMETE -

FABEAREEAFER-_ZZTF~A
ZH=ARBERETSREEREZ ATE
4/ AR#3,919,0007T  MAZERZ TEL2H
BITEEE1.49770 » TERTIRE R R 2 124 (R =
34.8% -« BARE 2B FEN FI32FE5.5FT
L FBRIREER0% RFEEERFEL911% -
RRIERERRR ZIZRBEMTE KR
TREARNB REBHEENUZ M ELLER
Rl BABEREESZ Gt B FENIETE -

FEH-_EAGEERFER S F A +—
HAREERETEIFT R BREZAFENAA
R#9,390,0007T - MAZER 2 EELHAITHE
f81.247%57T ~ TERHREBRIRE 22 F%49.0% -
BEARIE Y TEEME AN T2 AFE6.267% « TEEHR
BER0% RFEERRKRFIERALTST% - ZRBIEFIR
BRFE ZIZRFEMTEZEE - DIREEAR
RAIREBHEEEUZHMAELR AR ZBEE
EREZ FABTEAIETH

FAZEAHEERFER=2ZZN\NFNA
ZHhBRIEERETEREEREZ AFE
# B ANERHE2,756,0007T © HAZRN 2 EBLH
BITE(E0.60457T « TBAHIRE R RE 2 ISERE
72.2% - BIREZ AR F AN T3.8FE4.8F T
£ FERTREERO% RFEERBRFIE3.133% -
RRIEFRERRE IEEJEMTE KR -
TIRBEARR REBHGEUZ HMAlEHEA
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The fair value of options granted under the Share Option Scheme on 7 April
2010, determined using the Binomial Model valuation model, was approximately
RMB12,527,000. The significant inputs into the model were exercise price of
HK$0.82 standard deviation of expected share price returns of 79.8%, expected
life of options ranging from 3.4 to 5.9 years expected dividend paid out rate of
0% and annual risk-free interest rate of 2.865%. The volatility measured at the
standard deviation of expected share price returns is based on statistical analysis of
historical price movement of the Company and other comparable companies with
similar business nature.

The fair value of options granted under the Share Option Scheme on 28 March
2011, determined using the Binomial Model valuation model, was approximately
RMB1,377,000. The significant inputs into the model were exercise price of
HK$1.108 standard deviation of expected share price returns of 77.4%, expected
life of options ranging from 3.8 to 4.9 years expected dividend paid out rate of 0%
and annual risk-free interest rate 2.82%. The volatility measured at the standard
deviation of expected share price returns is based on statistical analysis of historical
price movement of the Company and other comparable companies with similar
business nature.

The fair value of options granted under the Share Option Scheme on 3 April
2013, determined using the Binomial Model valuation model, was approximately
RMB3,754,000. The significant inputs into the model were exercise price of
HK$4.402 standard deviation of expected share price returns of 75%, expected
life of options ranging from 9.1 to 9.6 years expected dividend paid out rate of 0%
and annual risk-free interest rate 1.111%. The volatility measured at the standard
deviation of expected share price returns is based on statistical analysis of historical
price movement of the Company and other comparable companies with similar
business nature.

The fair value of options granted under the Share Option Scheme on 18 November
2013, determined using the Binomial Model valuation model, was approximately
RMB50,125,000. The significant inputs into the model were exercise price of
HK$9.84 standard deviation of expected share price returns of 71.5%, expected
life of options ranging from 4.7 to 7.9 years expected dividend paid out rate of 0%
and annual risk-free interest rate1.915%. The volatility measured at the standard
deviation of expected share price returns is based on statistical analysis of historical
price movement of the Company and other comparable companies with similar
business nature.

In the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 13 May 2011, an
ordinary resolution was passed by the shareholders of the Company to refresh the
scheme mandate limit under the Share Option Scheme. For details, please refer to
the Company’s circular and announcement dated 24 April 2011 and 13 May 2011
respectively.

In respect of employees resigned during the period whose share options have not
been vested, such share options are lapsed, and the share compensation costs
recognised previously are credited to condensed consolidated final statement of
comprehensive income.

The values of share options recognised in share-based compensation reserves
are subject to a number of assumptions and with regard to the limitation of the
valuation model.

The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on
which these options were exercised was approximately HK$4.81 per share.
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EMPLOYEES' SHARE AWARD SCHEME 12 8 IR 17 SR Bt 2

On 17 November 2011, the Board adopted an employees’ share award R-T——F+—A++H  EESHEMNES RN
scheme pursuant to which existing shares of the Company will be acquired — EpEtEl - it - FFEABEHISEAKRATRBERSD
by the trustee from the market at the cost of the Company and be held in (BB AAQAEE) LA EEFRAKETEER
trust for the selected employees until such shares are vested with the relevant &+ EEZSRG BIFIESRD EREIE BB T
selected employees in accordance with the provision of the share award HHERKETERE AL - AHRERERNEFHAZI 2T E
scheme. For principal terms of the employees’ share award scheme, please 153 ' FRMAATARA-T——F+—A++H
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 17 November 2011. /N il

G

3

Since the adoption date, a total of 46, 881,000 shares has been granted upto  ERMBHEZARE B - K H A $£46,881,000
the date of this report, representing approximately 4.67% of the issued share  BX %D - HE R AIRE B ARG B BITRALY
capital of the Company as at the date of this report. The awarded shares  4.67% c R-ZE— X F+_-_A=1+—0 HABEBEZ
remain outstanding as at 31 December 2016 are set out below: EEBROEHINNAT

Number of As at As at
awarded 1January Granted during  Vested during 31 December
Name of Grantee  Date of grant shares the period the period

ARAKR =i A ERBRHAHE B HAEE
Director
Bz
Guo lJiang 20 August 2012 16,700,000 8,351,000 8,351,000
E —T-—FNA=+H
Senior management
BREBEAR
Guo Gang 23 November 2011 300,000 15,000 (15,000) -
Efi] —Z-——f+-A=+Z=H
Li Tao 23 November 2011 300,000 15,000 (15,000) -
2 —T——F+-A-+28
Other employees
Hitifg g
In aggregate (Note 1) 23 November 2011 23,581,000 12,811,375 (1,427,250) 11,384,125
A&t (1) —F——f+—A=+=H
17 January 2014 3,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000
—T-ME-A++H
Total 46,881,000 23,192,375 (1,457,250) 21,735,125
15t
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER TERFERHEMATREATRG R
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN #HERMAOZEZRAXAR

THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE

COMPANY

As at 31 December 2016, the interest of persons (not being a Director or RZ-ZT—XRF+=-A=+—H  BAR AKX IERD
chief executive of the Company) in the shares and underlying shares of the RN EBRIEE S RPBEGEMEXVIE2REID
Company which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange  #BEMEARN TR FT - RBLANRD TIRIEES
pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or required to be entered ~ REIE §HIE336M5MIFEE M2 ERH 2 AL (3
in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the FFEFESHARFTHREH)WT :

SFO were as follows:

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

as at
31 December
Name of Shareholder Class of Shares Long position short position  Capacity 2016
RZB—XRE
+=A=t+-8
ZRABEL
BRREE £ % Bt
Talent Gain Developments Limited ~ Ordinary 166,029,107 Beneficial Owner and 16.53%
TmAL (Note 1) Interest in controlled
(FEE1) corporation
BERBEAR
RN AR
Digital China Holdings Limited Ordinary 166,029,107 Interest in controlled 16.53%
TN BB R B R A A TRk (Note 1) corporation
(PzE1) XA R
Geng Yi Ordinary 194,709,771 66,000,000  Beneficial Owner and 19.39%
Bkia AT (Note 2) Family Interest (long position)
(P&E2) BB AR EiEs (#7%8)
6.57%
(short position)
(%#&)
Liu Xiaodong Ordinary 92,273,794 Beneficial Owner and 9.19%
2IE BT (Note 3) Interest in controlled
(PfH3E3) corporation
ERBAAR
R AT R
Wisdom Limited Ordinary 62,273,794 Beneficial Owner 6.20%
Lk (Note 4) EREEA
(Pri5E4)
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Notes:

Save
been
other

The references to 166,029,107 Shares comprise 142,621,107 Shares and
23,408,000 Shares held by Talent Gain Developments Limited and Unique Golden
Limited, respectively. Unique Golden Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by
Talent Gain Developments Limited, which in turn is wholly and beneficially owned
by Digital China (BVI) Limited and indirectly wholly and beneficially owned by
Digital China Holdings Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 861). Therefore, Talent Gain Developments Limited, is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Unique Golden Limited, and each
of Digital China (BVI) Limited and Digital China Holdings Limited is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Talent Gain Developments Limited and Unique
Golden Limited.

Ms. Geng Yi is the spouse of Mr. Guo Jiang. Such interest in the Company
comprises: (a) 125,358,771 Shares (long position) and 66,000,000 (short position)
of which 114,574,146 Shares (long position) and 66,000,000 (short position)
are held by Mr. Guo Jiang and 10,784,625 Shares are held by Ms. Geng Vi; (b)
8,351,000 underlying Shares derived from the awarded shares granted to Mr.
Guo Jiang under the employees’ share award scheme adopted on 17 November
2011; and (c) 61,000,000 Shares which were borrowed by Mr. Guo Jiang from
Ms. Geng Yi and Mr. Guo Fansheng pursuant to a stock borrowing agreement
dated 9 May 2016 entered into between Mr. Guo Jiang, Ms. Geng Yi and Mr.
Guo Fansheng, of which 35,000,000 Shares were subsequently pledged to an
independent third party.

Ms. Geng is deemed, or taken to have, interested in the shares and underlying
shares held by Mr. Guo Jiang pursuant to the SFO.

Such interests in the Company comprise: (i) 30,000,000 underlying Shares
derived from the proposed subscription of 30,000,000 convertible bonds of the
Company by Mr. Liu Xiaodong pursuant to the CB Subscription Agreement; and
(i) 62,273,794 Shares held by Wisdom Limited (a company wholly and beneficially
owned by Mr. Liu Xiaodong). Mr. Liu Xiaodong is deemed, or taken to have,
interested in all the Shares held by Wisdom Limited pursuant to the SFO.

Wisdom Limited is a company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Liu Xiaodong.

as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, the Company had not
notified of any interests or short positions of substantial shareholders or
persons in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which are

required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A summary of the related party transaction entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2016 is contained in Note 46 to the
consolidated accounts.

The following transactions between certain connected persons (as defined
in the Listing Rules) and the Group have been entered into and/or ongoing
during the year ended 31 December 2016 for which relevant disclosure (if
necessary) had been made by the Company in accordance with Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

i. Connected Transactions Conducted during the year
ended 31 December 2016

1.

HC International, Inc

Connected Transaction in relation to Subscription of Zero Coupon
Convertible Bonds under Specific Mandate

(For details of this transaction, please refer to the section headed
“Connected Transaction in relation to Subscription of Zero Coupon
Convertible Bonds under Specific Mandate” in this report)

Termination of Framework Agreement for the Disposal of a
Subsidiary — Beijing Zhixing Ruijing

(For details of this transaction, please refer to the section headed
“Termination of Framework Agreement for the Disposal of a
Subsidiary — Beijing Zhixing Ruijing” in this report)

Connected Transaction in relation to Capital Increase Agreement
Involving Deemed Disposal of Equity Interest in Guangzhou
Huicong

(For details of this transaction, please refer to the section headed
“Connected Transaction in relation to Capital Increase Agreement
Involving Deemed Disposal of Equity Interest in Guangzhou
Huicong” in this report)
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ii. Continued Connected Transactions Conducted during

the year ended 31 December 2016

1. Share Transaction in relation to the acquisition of the entire issued
share capital of Zhongfu Holdings Limited involving issuance of
convertible bonds and continuing connected transaction in relation
to the structured contracts
(For details and annual review by independent non-executive
Directors and the Company’s auditors of this transaction, please
refer to the section headed “Share Transaction in relation to the
Acquisition of the Entire Issued Share Capital of Zhongfu Holdings
Limited Involving Issue of Convertible Bonds and Continuing
Connected Transaction in relation to the Structured Contracts” in
this report).

Save as disclosed above, all the related party transaction, as disclosed in Note
46 to the consolidated financial statement, did not constitute connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Main Board Listing Rules which are required to comply
with any of the reporting, announcement or independent shareholders’
approval requirements under the Main Board Listing Rules.

The transaction in Note 46 were provided under the service contracts of
relevant management and thus were all fully exempted pursuant to Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Also, as the loan granted by the Group to Hui De Holding Co., Ltd., an associate
of the Group was conducted on normal commercial terms, such financial
assistance was fully exempted pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The company’s auditor was engaged to report on the group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the group on page 69 of the Annual Report in accordance with
paragraph 14A. 56 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the company to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group’s customers are a vast amount of small and medium sized
enterprises in the PRC. Most of the Group’s revenue is derived from online
products and since the relevant price of each online products is not significant
and the online products are sold to the large number of customers, each
customer’s contribution towards the Company’s revenue is relatively small.
Therefore, the Company’s reliance on any individual customer is low. In
respect of Mai-Mai-Tong, Biao-Wang products and services, sales agreements
are entered into between the Group and its customers. The term of the sale
agreements are divided into one-year, and/or two-year in accordance with
different products. Upon the expiry of the sales agreements, customers has an
option to renew the sales agreements.

The Company’s major suppliers are as follows: (i) the verification supplier
provides verification services for Mai-Mai-Tong members. Our verification
supplier is independent third company with the relevant verification
qualifications, and is paid on a monthly basis according to the number of
verifications carried out in that particular month. We have cooperated with
this verification supplier for several years and our supply contract with this
verification supplier is renewed yearly; (ii) the search product suppliers provide
search engine and promotion services for Biao-Wang products, allowing our
paid members to have a higher exposure of their products by getting more
search engine hits and promoting their products and achieving transactions.
We currently have 6 search product suppliers which are leading search engine
providers like Baidu and 360 Search and the respectively service contracts with
them are renewed on a yearly basis.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the Directors, their associates
or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had an interest in the major
suppliers or customers noted above.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee on 24 July 2003 with written
terms of reference based on the guidelines set out in “A Guide for Effective
Audit Committees” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review and supervise the
financial reporting process, risk management and internal control procedures
of the Group. The audit committee comprises two independent non-executive
Directors, Mr. Zhang Ke and Mr. Tang Jie and a non-executive Director, Mr. Li
Jianguang. Mr. Zhang Ke is the chairman of the audit committee.

The audit committee has reviewed with management of the Company the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, the internal
control procedures, the annual results of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2016 and has met with external auditors and discussed the
financial matters of the Group that arose during the course of audit for the
year ended 31 December 2016. The audit committee held two meetings
during the year.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Directors consider that the Company had complied with the code
provisions of the Code on Governance contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”).

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company's total issued share
capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Each of the Directors and their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) has confirmed that none of them had any business or interest in any
company that materially competes or may compete with the business of the
Group or any other conflict of interests with the interests of the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2016.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors a written confirmation or an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company
considers the independent non-executive Directors are or have been remained
independent.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association
of the Company, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on pro-rata basis to existing shareholders of the
Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Pursuant to the employees’ share award scheme adopted on November 2011,
trustee purchased an aggregate of 1,315,000 shares of the Company as
awarded shares during the year ended 31 December 2016.

To enhance the net asset value and/or earnings per share of the Company,
12,290,000 shares of the Company were repurchased and 5,990,000 shares
had been cancelled during the year ended 31 December 2016 pursuant to
an unconditional mandate to repurchase Shares of up to 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company granted to the Directors.

The monthly breakdown for the relevant repurchases is as follows:

No. of shares

Month/2016 repurchased
B/ =F—5 IBE A EE
September 1,490,000
A

October 1,500,000
+A

November 5,700,000
+—A

December 3,600,000
+=A

share price

V

BB E

ARA R 2 M AR MR P B B A DI S
2 - B A A R Bl AR AR AR
BEFRD -

BE  HESEBRERES
HE-ZT—A"F+-_A=+—HLFE ITARE
RZT——F+— RN B B 52EhET &4 b
BANAF]1,315,0000 I 0 1E A EEBIAR D ©

BENAARZBEFER/ZERBHEF  H#E
—E-RNFTAZ+ALLEFE BEERIEHE
Bz EEEEREGEY  SZAUEERARRBEEITR
AR10% 2 B 5 ) BRI AN A 7]12,290,000 A% A7 & 75 88
5,990,000% %15 °

BREBLEEZEARMANT

Lowest Highest
share price

RERE

Consideration

RIERE RE

HK$5.64 HK$5.91 HK$8,641,920
5.64% 7T 59187 8,641,920 7T
HK$5.70 HK$5.90 HK$8,675,100
5.70% 7T 5.90/ 7T 8,675,100/ 7T
HK$5.55 HK$5.74  HK$32,159,120
5.55% 7T 5.74%7C 32,159,120 7T
HK$5.16 HK$5.61  HK$19,318,200
5.16/8 7T 56187 19,318,200/ 7T

Save as disclosed in this report, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the shares of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2016.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

By Order of the Board
HC International, Inc.
Guo Jiang
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Beijing, PRC, 28 March 2017
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INTRODUCTION

Maintaining high standards of business ethics and corporate governance
practices has always been one of the Company’s goals. This corporate
governance report describes its corporate governance practices, explains the
applications of the principles of the Code on Corporate Governance contained
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules (the “Code”) and deviations, if any.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied no more or less with the provisions of the
Code. The Company believes that by achieving high standard of corporate
governance, the corporate value and accountability of the Company can
be enhanced and the shareholders’ interests can be maximised. The Board
has continued to monitor and review the Company’s progress in respect of
corporate governance practices to ensure compliance. Meetings were held
throughout the year and where appropriate, circulars and other guidance
notes were issued to the Directors and senior management of the Company
to ensure awareness to issues regarding corporate governance practices.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions
set out in code provision D3.1 of the Code. As at the date of this report, the
Board has reviewed and monitored: (a) the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, (b) training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management, (c) the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, (d) the Company’s
code of conduct and (e) the Company’s compliance with the Code disclosures
requirements.

DIRECTORS" AND EMPLOYEES" SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted written guidelines regarding Directors’ securities
transactions on terms not less than the required standard of dealings as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, the Directors have complied with such code of conduct and the
required standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors throughout the year ended 31 December 2016.

On 20 March 2006, the Board also adopted written guidelines on terms not
less than the required standard of dealings for relevant employees in respect
of their dealings in the securities of the Company. Prior to the adoption
of such an internal code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
employees, relevant employees who had in their possession of price-sensitive
information were formally briefed on the dealing restrictions in relation to
the securities of the Company at management meetings during the reporting
period.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises nine (9) Directors, of whom
four are executive Directors, two are non-executive Directors and three are
independent non-executive Directors. The participation of non-executive
Directors in the Board provides the Company with a wide range of expertise
and experience, and plays an important role in the work of the Board and
brings independent judgement on issues relating to the Company’s strategy,
performance, conflicts of interest and management process to ensure that
the interests of all shareholders of the Company have been duly considered.
All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Company. Each executive Director has sufficient experience to hold the
position so as to carry out his/her duties effectively and efficiently.

In full compliance with Rule 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules, the Company
has appointed three independent non-executive Directors, at least one
of whom has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise. The Company has received from
each independent non-executive Director an annual confirmation of his
independence, and the Company considers such Directors to be independent
in accordance with each and every guideline set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

Pursuant to the Code, the Board adopted a board diversity policy. The
Company recognise the benefits of diversity of Board members, and will
ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experiences and diversity of
prospect appropriate to the Company’s business need prospectus.

The Board as at 31 December 2016 comprised:
Executive Directors
Guo Fansheng (Chairman), Guo Jiang (Chief Executive Officer), Lee Wee Ong

(Chief Financial Officer), Liu Jun

Non-executive Directors
Li Jianguang, Wong Chi Keung

Independent non-executive Directors
Zhang Ke, Zhang Tim Tianwei, Tang Jie

Except that Mr. Guo Fansheng (Chairman) is the uncle of Mr. Guo Jiang
(Chief Executive Officer), there are no financial, business, family or other

relationships among the members of the Board.

All independent non-executive Directors are identified as such in all corporate
communications containing the names of the Directors.
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Board meetings and general meetings

The Board meets in person or through other electronic means of
communication at least four times every year. At least 14 days’ notice of
all board meetings were given to all Directors (unless waived in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company), who were all given an
opportunity to include matters in the agenda for discussion. The Board
secretary of the Company (the “Board Secretary”) assists the Chairman in
preparing the agenda for the meeting, and ensures that all applicable rules
and regulations regarding the meetings are observed. The meeting agenda
and accompanying board papers are sent to all Directors prior to meetings.
During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, 10 Board meetings and 4
general meetings were held and the following is an attendance record of the
meetings by each Director:

Attendance

Board General
Meetings Meetings

Executive Directors

Guo Fansheng 8/8 4/4
Guo Jiang 8/8 4/4
Lee Wee Ong 10/10 4/4
Liu Jun N/A 11

Non-executive Directors

Li Jianguang 9/10 1/4
Guo Wei 9/10 0/4
Wong Chi Keung N/A 11

Independent non-executive Directors

Zhang Ke 10/10 2/4

Xiang Bing 9/10 0/4

Zhang Tim Tianwei 9/10 0/4

Tang Jie N/A 0/1
Notes:

(1) Four general meeting of the Company was held during the financial year ended
31 December 2016.

(2)  Non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) have
been invited by the Company but some of them were unable to attend the
general meeting held during the year due to other engagements. The non-
executive Directors actively participates in the Board and will attend the general
meetings of the Company if possible.

(3)  Excluding Board meeting at which relevant Director is required to abstain pursuant
to Main Board Listing Rules and/or the Articles of Association of the Company.
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During regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discuss and formulate the
overall strategies of the Company, monitor financial performances and discuss
the annual and interim results, set annual budgets, as well as discuss and
decide on other significant matters.

The Board Secretary records the proceedings of each Board meeting in detail
by keeping detailed minutes, including all decisions made by the Board
together with concerns raised and dissenting views expressed (if any). Drafts
of board minutes are circulated to all Directors for comments and approval
as soon as practicable after the meeting. All minutes are open for inspection
at any reasonable time on request by any Director. All Directors have access
to relevant and timely information at all times as the Chairman ensures that
management will supply the Board and its committees with all relevant
information in a timely manner. The Directors acknowledge their responsibility
for preparing the accounts and statement.

Delegation by the Board

The Company has set out the respective functions and responsibilities reserved
to the Board and those delegated to management. The Board delegates day
to day operations of the Group to executive Directors and senior management
while reserving certain key matters for its approval. The Board is responsible
for the approval and monitoring of the Company’s overall strategies and
policies; approval of business plans; evaluating the performance of the
Company and oversight of management. It is also responsible for promoting
the success of the Company and its businesses by directing and supervising
the Company's affairs.

Decisions of the Board are communicated to the management through
executive Directors who have attended at board meetings.

INDUCTION AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Newly appointed Directors will receive guideline and reference materials to
enable them to familiarise with the Group’s business operations and the
Board'’s polices.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuing professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company
has circulated to Directors training materials relevant to the directors duties
and responsibilities and prepared a training record and the Directors have
reviewed the training materials.
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During the reporting period, all Directors have participated in continuous
professional development by attending training course or reading relevant
materials on the topics related to corporate governance and regulations, and
the individual training record is summaries below:

REEHRE  2REECEBHERIRERMET
éﬁﬁ%%‘/u NOER AR AR M2 B EE R %

- TERIENEEER T -

Attending seminar(s)/ HEEE
relevant materials 1EER AR

Executive Directors

Guo Fansheng YES
Guo Jiang YES
Lee Wee Ong YES
Liu Jun YES

Non-executive Directors

Li Jianguang YES
Guo Wei YES
Wong Chi Keung YES

Independent non-executive Directors

Zhang Ke YES
Xiang Bing YES
Zhang Tim Tianwei YES
Tang Jie YES

Term of Appointment and Re-election

Under the provision A.4.1, non-executive Directors should be appointed for
a specific term, subject to re-election. Each of the existing non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Li Jianguang, Mr. Wong Chi Keung, Mr. Zhang Ke, Mr.
Zhang Tim Tianwei and Mr. Tang Jie was appointed for a fixed term of one
year, subject to rotation and/or re-election at the annual general meeting of
the Company, as specified by the Articles of Association of the Company.
Under the provision A.4.2, all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy
should be subject to election by shareholders at the first general meeting after
their appointment and every director, including those appointed for a specific
term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years.

On 10 November 2006, a special resolution was passed by the shareholders
of the Company to approve the amendments to the Company’s Articles of
Association to ensure compliance with the Code. Pursuant to the amended
provisions of the Articles of Associations of the Company, any Director
appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a casual vacancy) or until
the next following annual general meeting of the Company (in the case of
an addition to the Board), and shall then be eligible for re-election at that
meeting. At each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation,
provided that every Director (including those appointed for a specific
term)shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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CHAIRMAN AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

To improve transparency and independency, the roles of the Chairman
and the chief executive officer of the Company are segregated and are not
exercised by the same individual.

The Chairman is responsible for ensuring that the Board functions effectively
and smoothly. In doing so, the Chairman ensures that good corporate
governance practices and procedures are established and followed, and that
all Directors are properly briefed and received all relevant information prior to
each meeting.

Mr. Guo Fansheng, who assumes the role of the Chairman, is responsible
for overseeing the implementation of corporate strategies of the Company.
Mr. Guo Jiang, who assumes the role of the chief executive officer of the
Company, is responsible for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the
Company.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 20 March 2006. As at 31
December 2016, the chairman of the committee is Mr. Zhang Ke (independent
non-executive Director) and other members include Mr. Guo Jiang (executive
Director), Mr. Wong Chi Keung (non-executive Director), Mr. Zhang Tim
Tianwei (independent non-executive Director) and Mr. Tang Jie (independent
non-executive Director).

During the year, the Remuneration Committee was responsible for
formulating and recommending the Board in relation to the remuneration
policy, determining the remunerations of executive Directors and members
of the senior management of the Company, and reviewing and making
recommendations on the Company’s share option scheme and share award
scheme, bonus structure, provident fund and other compensation-related
issues. The Remuneration Committee consults with the Chairman and/or the
chief executive officer of the Company on its proposals and recommendations.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with other resources enabling it
to discharge its duties such as the access to professional advice if and when
necessary. For the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the Remuneration
Committee held 2 meetings. The individual attendance record of each
member is as follows:

Members Attendance

Zhang Ke 2/2
Xiang Bing 1/2
Zhang Tim Tianwei 2/2
Guo Wei 172
Guo Jiang 2/2
Wong Chi Keung N/A
Tang Jie N/A
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Full minutes of the Remuneration Committee’s meetings are properly
kept by the Company. In line with practices consistent with meetings
of the Board and other committee meetings, draft and final versions of
Remuneration Committee meeting minutes are circulated to all members of
the Remuneration Committee for comments, approval and record as soon as
practicable after each meeting.

At the meetings of the Remuneration Committee held in the period under
review, the members of the Remuneration Committee have reviewed the
Group's remuneration policy and discussed the remuneration packages of
Directors and senior management for the forthcoming financial year.

The emoluments of the Directors and the management are determined
based on the operating results of the Company, individual performance and/
or prevailing market conditions. The Company has also adopted the Share
Option Scheme and Share Award Scheme as an incentive to Directors and
senior management.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

With effect from 20 March 2012, the Company established the Nomination
Committee and written terms of reference of the nomination committee have
been adopted. As at the date of this report, the chairman of the Nomination
Committee is Mr. Guo Fansheng (executive Director) and other members
include Mr. Zhang Ke (independent non-executive Director) and Mr. Zhang
Tim Tianwei (independent non-executive Director). The Nomination Committee
is responsible for reviewing the structure, size, diversity and composition of
the Board, identifying individual suitably qualified to become Board members,
selecting or making recommendation to the Board on selection of individuals
nominated for directorship, assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Director and making recommendation to the Board on the
appointment or reappointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors. During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Nomination
Committee also reviewed the structure and composition of the Board.

New Directors are selected on the basis of their qualifications, skills and
experience which the Nomination Committee considers will make a positive
contribution to the performance of the Board.

In August 2013, amendments to the written terms of reference of the
nomination committee have been adopted. In deciding the composition
of the Board, the Company will consider the Board diversity from various
perspectives, including but not limited to sex, age, cultural and academic
background, race, professional experience, skills, knowledge and terms of
services.
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the Nomination Committee
held 2 meetings. The Individual attendance record of each members is as
follows:

Members Attendance

Guo Fansheng 2
Zhang Ke 2
Zhang Tim Tianwei 2

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Management of the Company provides all relevant information and records
to the Board enabling the Board to make assessment and to prepare the
financial statements and other financial disclosures. In full compliance with
Rules 3.21 and 3.23 of the Listing Rules, the audit committee of the Company
("Audit Committee”) was established in July 2003 and is currently chaired by
Mr. Zhang Ke, (independent non-executive Director). Other members of the
Audit Committee include Mr. Li Jianguag (non-executive Director) and Mr.
Tang Jie (independent non-executive Director).

During the year, the Audit Committee’s primary duties include ensuring the
Company'’s financial statements, annual and interim reports, and the auditor’s
report present a true and balanced assessment of the Company’s financial
position; reviewing the Company’s financial control, internal control and risk
management systems; and reviewing the Company'’s financial and accounting
policies and practices.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to
discharge its duties. For the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the
Audit Committee held 2 meetings. The individual attendance record of each
member is as follows:

Members Attendance

Zhang Ke 2/2
Xiang Bing 2/2
Li Jianguang 2/2
Tang Jie N/A
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The Audit Committee has reviewed with management of the Company
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, the internal
control procedures, the financial results of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2016 and met with external auditors and discussed the financial
matters of the Group that arose during the course of audit during the year
ended 31 December 2016. In the opinion of the Audit Committee, there
are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cost
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. There is
no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee regarding the
selection, appointment, resignation or discussion of the external auditors.

Full minutes of all Audit Committee meetings are properly kept by the
Company. In line with practices consistent with meetings of the Board and
other committee meetings, draft and final versions of Audit Committee
meeting minutes are circulated to all members of the Audit Committee for
comments, approval and record as soon as practicable after each meeting.

The Directors’ responsibilities for the financial statements and the
responsibilities of the external auditors to the shareholders are set out on
pages 121 to 123 of this report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment of
the external auditors and reviewing any non-audit function performed by
external auditors, including whether such non-audit functions could lead to
any potential material adverse effect on the Company. The Group's external
auditor is PricewaterhouseCoopers. The remuneration paid or payable to the
external auditor of the Group during the Reporting Period comprised fees for
audit services of HKD3,950,000 (2015: HKD3,100,000) and HKD2,450,000
(2015: HKD800,000) for non-audit related services, included providing
professional services on interim review, merger and acquisition.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engages an external service provider to provide company
secretarial services and Ms. Kwong Yin Ping Yvonne is appointed as the
Company Secretary. The primary contact person in the Company for Ms.
Kwong in relation to corporate secretarial matters is Mr. Lu Qingguo, the
Board Secretary and the General Counsel of the Company.

Ms. Kwong Yin Ping Yvonne has complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules
in relation to the professional training requirements during the year ended 31
December 2016.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION

Senior management remuneration by band
The emoluments fell within the following bands:

AN

SREEA B

rARB S BREEAEHE
HegEmT

Number of individuals

N -

2016
—E—XF

Nil to HKD 1,000,000
Z£%1,000,000% 7T

HKD 1,000,000 to HKD2,000,000
1,000,000/ 7T 22,000,000 7T
HKD2,000,000 to HKD3,000,000
2,000,000/ 7T % 3,000,000/ 7T

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective risk management
and internal control systems for the Group to safeguard the Company’s
assets and shareholders’ interests, as well as for reviewing such systems’
effectiveness. The Board conducts review of the Company’s internal
control systems periodically, covering financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions. In such review, the Board has
considered factors such as changes since the last review; scope and quality of
management’s monitoring of risks; incidence of significant control failings and
weaknesses identified; and effectiveness relating to financial reporting and
compliance with the Listing Rules.

On 28 December 2015, the Company adopted the new terms of reference of
the Audit Committee in accordance with the amendments to the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report made by the Stock
Exchange, which is applicable to the accounting period beginning from 1
January 2016. In addition, the Company set up a Group Audit Department in
order to enhance the internal control and risk management of the Company.

Each year, external auditors will also report on issues in the Group’s internal
control and accounting procedure which have come to their attention during
the course of their audit, if any.

The Audit Committee periodically considers the risk management and internal
control issues raised by the Company’s management, if any. The Audit
Committee will then review the remedial plans proposed by the management
in addressing the issues and will then be submitted to the Board for
consideration.

For the year of 2016, no critical internal control issues have been identified.

Annual Report 2016

[ B B HE e BB EE 4

EEGREHFAEERR AR BBER RN
EEHIE  UWREARRAREERBER MR - ARR
AREHEZRY - EEEE R ARF ZNELES

BHE - BRME - EBF ARERKAREED
B - i EEEREEIFZAR - gEAL

—RgEEzEE  BREEFRRER TIFRELE
B BABRERRRNEREAERBSE R
RARMEHRE RET ETRAZRERTEL -

RZB—RF+ZAZ+TN\R  AREREEZ P
Rl EERTRIRMEE AME 2 BRI N RRER
ZEgzHIRERE ZRELSEEANRE-Z
—AE-A—-BER 2GR o 1IN - ARBK
SERBEEAZEPT - WMARA AT NEREE R ERE
I o

BE - SMNERBMITHIERRENEZBET AER
AEENE R EERIZZ B (NEA) -

EREEGEHERARREREMRL M AR ER
RAmEERE(INE) - BREZEeERESRNE
EERAREEREM LB BT e HEER
BEEgEE -

RZT—RF > WERIREMERNREIEREE -



Corporate Governance Report
R

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company discloses all necessary information to the shareholders
incompliance with the Listing Rules. The Directors host the annual general
meeting each year to meet the shareholders of the Company and answer
their enquiries (if any). The Directors make efforts to attend annual general
meetings so that they may answer any question raised by the shareholders of
the Company.

There is no significant change in the memorandum of association and articles
of association of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2016.

The proceedings of the annual general meetings are reviewed from time
to time to ensure the Company conforms to the best practices regarding
corporate governance.

The Company also communicates with its shareholders through its annual,
interim and quarterly reports. The directors, company secretary or other
appropriate members of senior management also respond to inquiries from
shareholders and investors promptly.

A Shareholders communication policy was reviewed and updated on 20
March 2012 to comply with code provision E.1.4 of the Code.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Board
in writing through the Investor Relations Department of the Company whose
contact details are as follows:

Tower B, Jingyi Technical Building
No.9 Dazhongsi East Road
Haidian District

Beijing 100098

The People’s Republic of China
Email: ir@hcgroup.com

Tel No: (8610) 6229 8811

Fax No: (8610) 6229 8877

Investor Relations Department of the Company handles both telephone and
written enquiries from Shareholders from time to time.

Shareholders’ enquiries and concerns will be forwarded to the Board and/or
relevant Board Committees of the Company, where appropriate, to answer
the Shareholders’ questions.
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Shareholders’ right to convene an extraordinary general
meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, the Board may whenever
it thinks fit call extraordinary general meetings. Any one or more Shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty
one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by
the Company.

Procedures for putting Forward Proposals at General
Meetings by Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 88 of the Articles of Association, no person other than a
Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by the Directors
for election, be eligible for election as a Director at any general meeting
unless a Notice signed by a Member (other than the person to be proposed)
duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given
of his intention to propose such person for election and also a Notice signed
by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have been
lodged at the head office or at the Registration Office provided that the
minimum length of the period, during which such Notice(s) are given, shall be
at least seven (7) days and that the period for lodgement of such Notice(s)shall
commence no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and end no later than seven (7)
days prior to the date of such general meeting.

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director
is posted on the Company’s website at http://www.hcgroup.com.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HC INTERNATIONAL, INC.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of HC International, Inc. (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 124 to 264,
which comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2016;

e the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“"HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

§

v

BYRBEARE
BRERMAERAARR
(RESBBEMA A BERAR])
=

KMCETHAR

BRMEEROAATHEBEERR]) REWMEB QA
(AT #E EEE DN E 1242264 A0 & G
Bk - B

e RIE-—RETZA=+—BHNAHIEBRR

St

o HEZBLEFEMNAHKER

o BEZRLFENAHHRANRER

o BEZRILFENAUEREHE

LEENEHRSRER &

o AGMBmENTE  BREIZEBREME -

EFNER

BMRA  ZEAHYBHRRCRETEEHIAE
BRECEBMBREENEEMTEHRRT &
EER-_Z—RET-A=+—HNAHHBRR K
HEZZALFRENGAVBRALAHESRE -
WEBREB(ARRIDO R EREZ SEME -

SHREFRAA

20165% 115



1 1 6 HC International, Inc

Independent Auditor’s Report
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

o Impairment assessments of goodwill

. Non-listed available-for-sale financial assets, valued using market
information and significant unobservable input

o Business combination — contingent considerations

Annual Report 2016
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

HRREITER

ARETEE®

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BB NAEEREENSZE

Impairment assessments of goodwill

EmE R ET

Refer to Note 4 and Note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements

FLHE IR R iFA R 11

As at 31 December 2016, the goodwill of the Group amounted
to RMB1,068,987,000 which were arisen from business
acquisitions in previous and current years.
RZT—RF+-A=+—H8 ' E5EZEZEAARY
1,068,987,0007t * ELBBEFERANFEEBHE -

The Group’s goodwill were allocated to three cash-generating-
units (“CGUs"), namely (i) anti-counterfeiting products and
services; (ii) online services — B2B2C business and (iii) online
services — garment industry.

EEE BRI RE=ARSEEBM([ReELEBM]) - B
(B R AR TS ¢ () BBt A8 AR 7% — B2B2 C 2745 K (iii) B Bk 481 AR
- K% -

As described in the Accounting Polices in Note 2(k) to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group is required to, at
least annually, test goodwill for impairment. In carrying out the
goodwill impairment assessments, management engaged an
external valuer to support the determination of the recoverable
amount of each CGU by using value in use calculation (“VIU").
These assessments involved significant management judgments
and estimates in the determination of valuation model and the
application of assumptions in the model, including forecast
revenue growth rate, gross profit margin, customer attrition
rate, terminal growth rate, and volatility and cost of equity
for discount rate used in the projection period. Based on the
management’s assessment, there is no impairment required for
goodwill.

e P REM 20 BEE Mt - EXEEASRSE
FREZREETAR - RETEHERENER - EREEAR
HNEEMEERD - FERFNAEREEFERDETE RS EEBA
Z W EI SR - ZEES L ERERETE MERE RN ZIE
Ak fE A R (B FE TR BRI P A 2 TERISH I A R 3 -
EFE  BRPRAE - RIEEREUNBEIRIR R 2R R
BXAN) 2 ERHER R b5t - IRIBEIRE 251 - BASEER
D

In the evaluation of management’s impairment assessments
over the goodwill balance, we have performed the following
procedures:

WEEEEREBHEEERRENEE - A2 ETATE
F :

- Assessed the competency, capability and objectivity of the

external valuer by considering its qualifications, relevant
experience and relationship with the Group.
ERIMNEMGERM ERFE - HEALRRE
& UEHEEEE - gt I REHIE -

EREZH

—  Evaluated the composition of the Group’s future cash

flow forecasts in developing the VIU calculations of all
the CGUs, and the process by which they were drawn
up, including testing the underlying calculations and
comparing the forecasts to the latest budgets approved
by the board of directors.

Ml BREENMERSEABUCGERABEAERA
BEI 2 AR (BEAGERG E RRESe At E 2 T8
HEREALB) c ARBRETRAES -

—  Challenged the key assumptions including the revenue

growth rate, gross profit margin and customer attrition
rate in the forecasts, by making reference to the historical
performance and future business plans of the CGUs and
by benchmarking those assumptions to our independent
market analysis.

ERIZ2REK  BEBIHEEKAZERE  EFELE
PREAE  EPE2ERSEFBU  BERBRRAR
EEFH AR AR LTS DO MERZERR IR

SHREFRAA
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

FARETSER

HARETEE®

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EM 2B NAEEREENSZE

We focused on this area due to the size of goodwill balance.
Furthermore, the management’s goodwill impairment
assessments involved significant judgements and estimates.
HREEESR AR BASEPREESE - I BREZH
BORER RS R E AR R T

—  Utilised our internal valuation specialists to assist us

in critically assessing the model used in the valuation
and the appropriateness of the key parameters (e.qg.
terminal growth rate and volatility and cost of equity for
discount rate) by referencing to relevant research studies
and market practices on various parameters commonly
considered in valuations.
HP 2 ABEEER2 RGBS A R E PR
AR FESH(PINFRLIEREULRERR R 2 RBE
REAR) 2 @R - 8h82EZ L RNEEME R TR
BB AES L THER -

—  Challenged management’s sensitivity calculations over
all the CGUs. We determined that the calculations were
most sensitive to the assumptions for revenue growth
rates and discount rates. We calculated the degree to
which these assumptions would need to change before
an impairment conclusion was triggered.
EREEEHMBRSELBUCGBEAE - RMR
R RENERHEHBERARRERMREMEEREK
B BFVAEZ SRR AL REERITTEZS)
2R .

We found management’s judgements and estimates applied
on the impairment assessments in respect of the goodwill were
supported by available evidence.

BMERELENEEREARET G HE KA EEES

% o
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

HAREITER

ARETEE®

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMfz B NAEERREENSZE

Non-listed available-for-sale financial assets, valued using
market information and significant unobservable input
FLITAMHESHEE LT EENREATAREYES
Afh{E

Refer to Note 4 and Note 16 to the consolidated financial
Statements

FRHE I BRI Z4R AT 16

The Group held certain non-listed shares of Inner Mongolia
Hohhot Jingu Rural Commercial Bank Limited Company which
were classified as available-for-sale financial assets (“AFS”) and
were measured at fair value.
EEERFEANFHTERS RN ERTRNDERATZ
ATIHELEMRD  ZEROIBATHLESRMEERIEAT
BatE o

Management engaged an external valuer to support the
determination of the year-end fair value of the non-listed
AFS based on market approach. The valuation of this AFS
required the use of market information (net assets value and
price to book ratio of comparable companies in the industry)
and significant unobservable input (discount for lack of
marketability).

EREC RTINS HEN - UBHEFHE LTAIREESRE
BERTISEAEZFRATE - ZAHEE SR EELERIZ
REATSERN ERNTELRAREEFERTEREX)REX
TRTERR B A BIE (R Z IS5 md IR TR ) -

We focused on this area due to the carrying amount of this
AFS is significant to the consolidated financial statements
(RMB422,000,000 as at 31 December 2016) and significant
management’s judgements were involved in the choice of
comparable companies and the determination of discount for
lack of marketability in the fair value measurement of the AFS.
HRZAHLEeRMEERREHSHUBERERAER(R
TE-RFTZA=+—HARAR®422,000,0007T) A K&
EREERAARSAIEEECREEQATEFEBETRE ™
HREMRIR S RERNERE I - MEMEPRULEE -

In assessing management’s valuation of the AFS, we have
performed the following procedures:

R EEBH A HEESREE AR - WIPETUTRE
% :

—  Assessed the competency, capability and objectivity
of the independent external valuer by considering its
qualifications, relevant experience and relationship with
the Group.

E B IMELER 2 B - HREARER R
B URHMEEEE - s REEIE

EEEZ

—  Assessed the appropriateness of the selection of
comparable companies by reference to their business
nature and size of market capitalisation available in public
market.
2EAELRAAEBME RN RRTIS 2 TER
& UEHE ERE LR ARz & @MY -

—  Tested the accuracy of the net assets value and price to
book ratio of the comparable companies by checking to
their audited financial statements available publicly.
RERE LR AR P AFRER KEZMBRE - AR
BEEEFERTRE 7 LRt -

—  Utilised our internal valuation specialists to assist us in
critically assessing the determination of discount for lack
of marketability by reference to market practice and
research.
BMzRBHEER2EBFGHBE MRS EEERZT
HnBtRER - BRE2EMSB AR -

We found the judgements made by the management in
relation to the valuation of the AFS were supported by available
evidence.

BFMEREEERIHEESREEME AR ERES

#

SHREFRAA
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

FARETSER

HARETEE®

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EM 2B NAEEREENSZE

Business combination — contingent considerations
EBEH-BAKE

Refer to Note 4, Note 15 and Note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements

EREE I EREN T4 - B 15R0E17

The Group recognised financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FATPL"”) in relation to the contingent
consideration arrangement of acquiring Orange Triangle Inc.
in year 2015 and financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss (“FLTPL") in relation to the contingent consideration
arrangement of acquiring Zhongfu Holdings Limited in year
2016.

ERBEEREHER T —RFUFEOrange Triangle Inc.Z kA
REZHRRATEF ARGz eMEE([RAFEFAR
mZEMEE]) MEBR T —RFUHEZhongfu Holdings
Limited 2 kAR BL B RIZAFEFABR s 2RAE(IR
NHEFARRZeREE]D -

Management engaged an external valuer to support the
determination of fair values of FATPL and FLTPL as at 31
December 2016.

EREEZRBINEMEERR  AGDEER_Z—R"FT_A
=T —HABRATEFAEGEZeREERERATFESABRZ
ERBEIATE-

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amounts of FATPL and
FLTPL amounted to RMB4,600,000 and RMB41,500,000,
respectively.

RZZE—ARF+_A=+—08  BAFEFABZZERE
ERBEATEFABRZERABCREESIAARE
4,600,0007T K AR #41,500,0007T ©

We focused on this area due to significant management
judgements and assumptions involved in the determination of
fair values of these financial instruments, which included the
determination of valuation methodology, estimation of the
respective probability of investee’s achievement of the profit
guarantee, risk-free rate and discount rate.
HREEZEFeMIAZ ATESRERNERREHE M REE
BIEMETECEE  WIREEESCRFMREFHE - MER
MERAFEREZ B Z AT LG - EFIEPRLEHE -

In the evaluation of valuation of the financial instruments, we
have performed the following procedures:

Rt R T AMER - BIBETATIER

- Assessed the competency, capability and objectivity
of the independent external valuer by considering its
qualifications, relevant experience and relationship with
the Group.

ERBINEMGEM ERE - HESR &R
BR - DARHEHEE - e REEIM -

BEEEZ

—  Utilised our internal valuation specialists to assist us in
critically assessing the model used in the valuation by
referencing to market practices.

Bz ABEEER2 R B PIBR TR ET AR
B Bhg2EmSIED -

—  Challenged management’s assumption of the probability
of fulfilling the remaining profit guarantee by the
investees with reference to market research on the
industry performance and forecast, historical performance
of the investees and business plan of the Company in
relation to the development of the investees.
BEREEBEHEREEENHR T G AREME 2 MRE
ERES2ETERBRBA TSHE  WREE 2B
FERAR BRTAMEIREEMEE EHAE -

—  Tested the integrity of the valuation calculations by
checking the formula applied in the calculations and
comparing the underlying inputs such as risk—free rate
and discount rate with market data.

BEBERA 2 A AR 7 8 A\ B (08 = b R %
ARIR R ) TS SRR E - DRI EEE 2 RE I -

We found the judgements and assumptions made by the
management in relation to the valuation of the financial
instruments were supported by available evidence.

BMBEREEER SR TAMBEHE RBRRIIBEER S -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the management’s
statement, report of the directors and corporate governance report (but does
not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon), which are expected to be made available to us after the date of this
auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information
and we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the management’s statement, report of the directors
and corporate governance report, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to the
Audit Committee and take appropriate action considering our legal rights and
obligations.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Annual Report 2016
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Wong Ka Keung, Johnny.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
AR e

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EHZE-T—RF+_A=+—HIFE

2016 2015
— —F-RF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AEBTTT

Revenue SHEUA 5 1,958,283 916,138
Cost of revenue SHE AR 34 (706,264) (95,513)
Gross profit EF 1,252,019 820,625
Other income HAUA 32 19,590 4,374
Other gains/(losses), net Hibukzs(E18) 358 33 127,017 (1,500)
Selling and marketing expenses HERTISHEESRA 34 (698,524) (598,874)
Administrative expenses THRER 34 (270,733) (196,726)
Operating profit 4R T 429,369 27,899
Finance income BATEUA 37 47,375 43,376
Finance cost IR IDN 37 (97,373) (47,802)
Share of post-tax losses of associates DMREE N BB TR EE 14 (13,502) (2,102)
Share of post-tax profits of joint ventures DEEEREIRTE R 14 27,633 11,955
Profit before income tax B PT1S iR A 393,502 33,326
Income tax expense FriSEif sz 38 (92,826) (10,268)
Profit for the year REEEA 300,676 23,058
Other comprehensive income: Hi2EUA :
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss — AJE# P IEE 872 EH
Fair value gain on available-for-sale AHHESREE

financial assets NS ELE 23 62,400 158,283
Fair value release on disposal of HETHEESREE

available-for-sale financial assets e {Cld/NS =) 23 (95,755) -
Currency translation differences EEEN =R 23 13,876 (17,808)
Total comprehensive income for the year, REEZEMALRE

net of tax MR 281,197 163,533
Profit attributable to: TAATFEM &R
Equity holders of the Company KAGIEREFAA 181,784 52,552
Non-controlling interests FEFERR RS 118,892 (29,494)

300,676 23,058
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
A B A Yl >t

= 2Ny =] T
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BZE_Z—AR"FT_A=1T—HILFE

Total comprehensive income attributable to: ~ TFI| A+ (G 2 EURALEEE

Note
btat

2016
—B-AE

RMB’000
ARBT R

2015
—T—hHF
RMB’000
AREFT

Equity holders of the Company RAGIEREAA 162,305 193,027
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR RS 118,892 (29,494)
281,197 163,533
Earnings per share attributable to the equity RABIEREAE AERER
holders of the Company (expressed in EF(LAEBRAREIIE)
RMB per share)
Basic earnings per share FIEAREF 39 0.1882 0.0696
Diluted earnings per share ISR 39 0.1852 0.0679

The notes on pages 131 to 264 are an integral part of these consolidated — $131E2648 2 Ml I ARNA ISRz 2 BEHH -

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

S HEIFAIRR

As at 31 December 2016 R=ZZE—A~F+=ZA=+—H

2016 AN ES)
—E—E —T—RF

RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET ARBET T

Assets EE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Land use rights T AR 6 171,408 176,145
Investment properties wEME 7 660,345 510,551
Property, plant and equipment WME - BE NERE 10 309,516 291,073
Intangible assets mARE 11 1,521,619 1,461,722
Long term deposits, prepayments and other REES  BNRER
receivables HAb e GRIA 12 32,011 74,989
Non-current portion of finance BERERIRIE Y
leases receivables IERBE D 19 - 24,000
Deferred income tax assets RIEFETEE 30 11,386 17,271
Investments accounted for using equity method £¢R#ERSESIBR 2 18°& 14 579,023 518,716
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESEE 16 484,071 421,690
Financial assets at fair value through profit AT EFABRZ
or loss SREE 17 4,600 5,100
3,773,979 3,501,257
Current assets REEE
Properties under development BRPYE 8 - 670,683
Completed properties held for sale HEHER T 9 364,617 -
Direct selling costs BEHEERA 18 81,351 105,316
Current portion of finance leases receivables R E T E W ERIE 2 R E Ry 9 352,327 68,846
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables %4 « B FIE K
H fth fE M IR 12 172,711 435,372
Trade receivables FEBETR 12 154,989 111,794
Inventories FE 20 3,590 3,073
Available-for-sale financial assets AL ESREE 16 212,646 -
Financial assets at fair value through A EFAEBGEZ
profit or loss SREE 17 172,686 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRSEEY 21 963,523 790,701
2,478,440 2,185,785
Total assets HWEE 6,252,419 5,687,042
Equity fEm
Equity attributable to the Company’s RATEZRFEA
equity holders bR
Share capital A& Zx 22 93,885 85,090
Other reserves EMEE 23 2,307,761 1,976,484
Retained earnings Epealgas 587,143 405,359
2,988,789 2,466,933
Non-controlling interests FERER 279,354 132,013
Total equity R 3,268,143 2,598,946
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

SFTIAIONR

As at 31 December 2016 R=ZE—A~F+=-A=+—H

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities

&8\
FRBEE

2016
S

RMB’'000
ARET

2015
—E—RE
RMB’000
ARETIT

Non-current portion of finance lease obligations Et & E B &2 IERENHD - 249
Non-current portion of bank borrowings SRITEEZIEREI D 28 127,376 20,000
Non-current portion of other borrowings HEEE 2 IEREE S 28 22,206 26,597
Deferred government grants IR 7 B 26 185,508 195,048
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFETAE 30 144,654 148,131
Receipt in advance TEUERIR 25 40,282 53,237
Issued convertible bonds — liabilities portion DT BRRES —BESS 29 - 600,225

Financial liabilities at fair value through BATERFABEZ
profit or loss ERAE 15 27,123 -
547,149 1,043,487

Current liabilities mEAE

Current portion of finance lease obligations MEHREEBZRDED 158 734
Trade payables FERTBRER 27 7,916 3,618
Accrued expenses and other payables FE=T & R B FE( T 27 216,882 148,935
Deferred revenue EAEA 27 244,367 267,154
Current portion of bank borrowings RITEEZREH D 28 724,528 479,760
Current portion of other borrowings HEEEZRENE D 28 9,372 952
Deferred government grants R B 6 B 26 14,500 7,898
Receipt in advance TEWRIE 25 453,540 1,088,866
Issued convertible bonds — liabilities portion EEITAMRES - 8RS 29 654,743 -

Financial liabilities at fair value through BN ERABREZ
profit or loss SHBE 15 14,377 -
Other taxes payables Hth fE L TE 31 36,898 23,271
Income tax payables JERFTSHL 31 59,846 23,421
2,437,127 2,044,609
Total liabilities wasE 2,984,276 3,088,096
Total equity and liabilities HEZNEE 6,252,419 5,687,042

The consolidated financial statements on pages 124 to 264 were approved by
the Board of Directors on 28 March 2017 and were signed on its behalf.

GUO Jiang
Director
T
FE

The notes on pages 131 to 264 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Zo

LEE Wee Ong
Director
LEE Wee Ong
EF

FINE2648 Z M RAEHI B IEKR 2 BREA D -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

N

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EHZE-T—RF+_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to the Company's

equity holders
KARERE AR
Non-
Share Other  Retained controlling
capital reserves  Earnings  Sub-total  interests Total
ke HthiEE @Rk Mt FERES st
(Note 23)
)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTT AREBTR ARt ARET:R
Balance at 1 January 2015 RZE-HF-F—HES 66,465 741,008 352,807 1,160,280 154,887 1,315,167
Comprehensive income 2EKA
Profit for the year TEEGF - - 52,552 52,552 (29,494) 23,058
Other comprehensive income Htr2ERA
Fair value gain on available-for-sale ARHESREEY
financial assets, net of deferred tax ATENE - MREEH 23 - 158,283 - 158283 - 158,283
Currency translation differences EHEHEZR 23 - (17,808) - (17,808) - (17,808)
Total comprehensive income FEMNEE - 140,475 52,552 193,027 (29,494) 163,533
Transactions with owners HRERRAARTZRE
Issuance of new shares Bt 18417 1,063,819 - 1,082,236 - 1,082,236
Share based compensation - value of employee AR %142
services BE-EERHEE 23 - 29,231 - 29,231 - 29,231
Exercise of share options IFRRE 2 23 208 1,951 - 2,159 - 2,159
Contribution from non-controlling interests SFERER 2 TE - - - - 6,620 6,620
Total transactions with owners BESRAARTIRFLE 18,625 1,095,001 - 1,113,626 6,620 1,120,246
Balance at 31 December 2015 NZZ-1%
+-A=+—-B&H% 85,090 1,976,484 405,359 2,466,933 132,013 2,598,946

The notes on pages 131 to 264 are an integral part of these

financial statements.

consolidated
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

AR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BZE_Z—AR"FT_A=1T—HILFE

Attributable to the Company's

equity holders
KARERE AR
Non-
Share Other  Retained controlling
capital reserves  Earnings  Sub-total  interests Total
ke HthEE  @RkE Mt EERER by
(Note 23)
nIZ.?,‘]
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETE ARBTT ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARET:R
Balance at 1 January 2016 RZE—E-A—-REH 85,090 1,976,484 405,359 2,466,933 132,013 2,598,946
Comprehensive income 2EKRA
Profit for the year AEEER - - 181784 181,784 118892 300676
Other comprehensive income/(loss) A2 EEA/ (B8R
Fair value gain on available-for-sale HEESBEEY
financial assets, net of deferred tax DB - HREER 23 - 62,400 - 62,400 - 62,400
Fair value release on disposal of HETHTESREE
available-for-sale financial assets, net BR 7 ATE
of deferred tax MBEEHR Vi] - (95,755) - (95,755) - (95,755)
Currency translation differences REERZR 23 - 13,876 - 13,876 - 13,876
Total comprehensive (oss)/income 2A(EB)/hALE - (19.479) 181,784 162,305 118,892 281,197
Transactions with owners HERRAARTZRS
Issuance of shares upon conversion of convertible A& A& B¢
bonds FRh 22 8,045 326,506 - 334,551 - 334,551
Buy-hack of shares BERR 2 (529) (60,410) - (60,939) - (60,939)
Exercise of share options iEERE 2,23 1,279 10,429 - 11,708 - 11,708
Share based compensation - value of employee  BAR{A {42
services BE-EERHEE 23 - 29,566 - 29,566 - 29,566
Share purchase for Share Award Scheme AR R BB R - (6,386) - (6,386) - (6,386)
Non-controlling interests arising on business ERAMELY
combination R - - - - 14,085 14,085
Contribution from non-controlling interests JEERES 2 TR - - - - 11,112 11,112
Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries  NEHHE 42 HEAR
without change of control EREEGRED 24 - 51,051 - 51,051 3,52 54,303
Total transactions with owners BEGRBNETIRHEE 8,795 350,756 - 359,551 28,449 388,000
Balance at 31 December 2016 RZE—RE
+-A=t-R&H 93,885 2,307,761 587,143 2,988,789 279,354 3,268,143

The notes on pages 131 to 264 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
SRS RER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EHZE-T—RF+_A=+—HIFE

2016 2015
—T-1f
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT
Cash flows from operating activities BEEEIRERE
Cash (used in)/generated from operations BE(R)/EEZRE 41(3) (177,511) 235,607
Interest received RGN 45,899 43,515
Interest paid BfFIE (59,386) (34,064)
The People’s Republic of China ("PRC") income tax paid ~ BfHREARKFE([HE |)FEH (20,890) (35.928)
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities WeEW (A / EEC RS RE (211,888) 209,130
Cash flows from investing activities REFHRERE
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired YeGRRT R AR (R AMRS) 15(b) (49,029) (439,752)
Additions of property, plant and equipment NEVE  BERRE (32,981) (25,172)
Additions of intangible assets NERVAE (1,765) (1)
Additions of investment properties REREME (119,311) (311,268)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HENE  BEX
plant and equipment REFTEHA 41(b) 1,406 2,195
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale financial assets  HE&ERftHHES R EEMG A 247,704 -
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HERATEFABEZ
at fair value through profit or loss SREEMEHAE 864 -
Dividend received [RECE) 1,037 -
Loans to an associate -Gl A=WNG] (5,940) (20,800)
Loans to a joint venture BEXF-—MAEAR (45,000) (200,000)
Loan repayment received from a joint venture Bl—HASCEBERN 245,000 -
Loans to third parties ERTYE=R (612,355) (105,000
Loan repayment received from third parties and employees 2UWE=FREEEEER 717,530 21,187
Investment in available-for-sale financial assets RAEHESRHEERE 16 (407,935) (57,900)
Investment in financial assets at fair value through RRATEFABREZ
profit or loss SREEZRE 17 (178,160) -
Investment in associates REENA] 2 EE 14 (54,550) (62,500)
Investment in a joint venture R—HREREIZIRE 14 - (130,000)
Net cash used in investing activities REAZBMACHSFR (293,485) (1,329,011)
Cash flows from financing activities REEHRERE
Proceeds from issuance of new shares BATHIR D S 5008 = 222,434
Buy-back of shares BERY (60,939) -
Prepayment for buy-back of shares O R B8 (13,688) -
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITIEEMEHRE 910,376 501,235
Proceeds from other borrowings HibfaBmE30E 2,376 9,120
Proceeds from issuance of convertible bonds BITAARESFTETE 312,254 -
Purchase of shares under share award scheme R BBt B B A 2 B D (6,386) -
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE (559,000) (125,000)
Repayment of other borrowings BEEMEE = (40,000)
Capital contribution from non-controlling interests RS IE 63,415 6,620
Exercise of share options TR E 11,708 2,159
Repayments for finance lease obligations BEMATHEERE (825) (1,171)
Net cash generated from financing activities BEERBELE/RLTR 659,291 575,397
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents B4 RBSZEYZELM/ (HD) 153,918 (544,484)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year RENZ B LEESEY 790,701 1,321,989
Exchange gain on cash and cash equivalents RekReFEN EL NS 18,904 13,196
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year RERZBERESEEY 21 963,523 790,701

The notes on pages 131 to 264 are an integral part of these consolidated — $131E264H8 » ffsT AR A G EHRE 2 BB -
financial statements.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands. The address of its registered office is 4 Floor, One Capital Place,
P.O. Box 847, George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands, British
West Indies. The Company has its primary listing on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The core business of the Group is to organise a business-to-business
(“B2B") community across People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") by
providing business information through both online and offline channels.

The Group is principally engaged in the following activities in the PRC:

—  Providing industrial search result prioritising services through its
B2B website “hc360.com” and offering comprehensive IT-related
product information by “zol.com.cn”; and providing trading and
agency services through its B2B trade platform “ibuychem.com”;

—  Publishing its own trade catalogues and yellow page directories;
—  Hosting exhibitions and seminars;

- Providing anti-counterfeiting products and services to enterprises;
—  Providing lease financing services;

- Engaging in micro-credit internet financing business through its
joint venture;

—  Sale of properties and provision of property rental and
management services via its 020 business exhibition centre.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group completed
the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of ZhongFu Holdings
Limited, which in turn holds 80.38% equity interest of Zhejiang ZhongFu
Internet Technology Company Limited ("3 LA IREAEEIBR A R]").
Zhejiang ZhongFu Internet Technology Company Limited is principally
engaged in the provision of vertical websites in the garment industry in
the PRC.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

GENERAL INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group also completed the construction of the 020 business
exhibition centre and obtained the final acceptance certificate from
local authorities and started to recognise the revenue from sale of the
properties of 020 business exhibition centre.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of
units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-
sale financial assets, and financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR NTE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEZ:BEHEE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued) (a) mHPEE)
New and amended standards have been issued and effective REB-—AF-F—HERZHEFEE
for the financial year beginning 1 January 2016 PRI B R Z FET RASIEETER
HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts BAVBRELER  RERLERRE
SE145%
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for acquisitions of BAVBREER WEEEEY
interests in joint operations E1155 (85T EmOgshE
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure initiative ARG LR HERE
F15 (B8R
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of acceptable EFGFT LR wEREEL
and 38 methods of depreciation and 165 2 F385% AR AN
amortisation (1&31) BE
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: bearer plants BEAG AR BE EREN
and 41 165 R FEA15R =7
(f&3T)
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity method in separate BB SR VAR R e
financial statements FE275 (185]) ERERE
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment entities: applying the BAVEREELR  REEE: EAR
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 consolidation exception F10%% - BEMY  HKEAERD
AR 1255 BIFME R
REEGGHER
285K
Annual improvements projects Annual improvement 2012-2014 FEHCEER FRENGE—
ZE—ZF
BT —UF
ELG
There are no HKFRSs or HK(IFRIC) interpretations that are effective RZZE—RF—A— B8R ZHBEREA
for the first time for the financial period beginning on 1 January BIRERZ BBV RS ERISES(E
2016 that would have a material impact on the Group. B BHREREZES)RERTEHA

SEEKRERTE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEZ:BEHBE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued) (a) wWEEEE)
New and amended standards have been issued but are not WEIBFTERAR =B —NE—F— AR
effective for the financial year beginning 1 January 2016 and BB FERE BB R E L2 AT R
have not been early adopted ABIEZTERY

Effective for
accounting period

beginning
on or after
R 5B HABRKR
ZENETTHREN
Amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of cash flows 1 January 2017
HEGHERIE7IR(ERT) BEmER —E—+F—A—H
Amendments to HKAS 12 Income taxes 1 January 2017
HEGHERIE 129 (18R] FriEHt —E—+F—-H—H
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and measurement of share-based payment 1 January 2018
transaction
BB G ERERIZE25% (1B3]) ARG RERN TR S 2 HERAIE —ZE-N\F—-A—H
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018
BB IMELERIEIR SRTA —E-NF—A—H
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
BBV SRS E 1558 BEaRBA —E-N\F—H—H
Amendments to HKFRS 15 Classification to HKFRS 15 1 January 2018
BT EERIE 155 (BA]) BAVBRELRE 1R S - N\F—HA—H
HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
EEITEIREERIE 165 itk =1 —E-NF—-H—H
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or contribution if assets between and investor and To be determined
HKAS 28 its associate and joint venture
BV BEREEE105E & KREEFHHEBEHAEPERANEENERTE {57 I E

BB GRTERIE285E (125])
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR NTE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEZ:BEHEE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

(a) WHEE )

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

New and amended standards have been issued but are not
effective for the financial year beginning 1 January 2016 and
have not been early adopted (Continued)

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the impact of
these new HKFRSs and set out below are those that are expected
to have impact on the Group’s accounting policies:

HKFRS 9 “Financial instrument” addresses the classification,
measurement and recognition of financial assets and liabilities.
The complete version of HKFRS 9 was issued in July 2014. It
replaces the guidance in HKAS 39 that relates to the classification
and measurement of financial instruments. HKFRS 9 retains but
simplifies the mixed measurement model and establishes three
primary measurement categories for financial assets: amortised
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income and fair
value through profit or loss. The basis of classification depends
on the entity’s business model and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset. Investments in equity
instruments are required to be measured at fair value with the
irrevocable option at inception to present changes in fair value
in other comprehensive income not recycling, provided the
instrument is not held for trading. If the equity instrument is held
for trading, changes in fair value are presented in profit or loss. For
financial liabilities there are two classification categories: amortised
cost and fair value through profit or loss. Where non-derivative
financial liabilities are designated at fair value through profit or
loss, the changes in the fair value due to changes in the liability’s
own credit risk are recognised in other comprehensive income,
unless such changes in fair value would create an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss, in which case, all fair value movements
are recognised in profit or loss. There is now a new expected credit
losses model that replaces the incurred loss impairment model used
in HKAS 39. Contemporaneous documentation is still required but
is different to that currently prepared under HKAS 39. The Group
considers that there will be no material adverse change in the
credit risks in respect of the Group’s future financial assets and the
adoption of the new expected credit losses model under HKFRS 9
will not have significant impact on its financial performance and
position. The standard is effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018. Early adoption is permitted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEZ:BEHBE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

(a) WBEEE)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

1 36 HC International, Inc

New and amended standards have been issued but are not
effective for the financial year beginning 1 January 2016 and
have not been early adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers” replaces
the previous revenue standards HKAS 18 “Revenue” and HKAS
11 “Construction Contracts” and the related interpretations
on revenue recognition. HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive
framework for determining when to recognise revenue and how
much revenue to recognise through a 5-step approach: (i) identity
the contract(s) with customer; (ii) identify separate performance
obligations in a contract; (iii) determine the transaction price;
(iv) allocate transaction price to performance obligations; and
(v) recognise revenue when performance obligation is satisfied.
The core principal is that a company should recognise revenue to
depict the transfer of promised goods or services to the customer
in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the company
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
[t moves away from a revenue recognition model based on an
"earnings processes” to an "asset-liability” approach based
on transfer of control. HKFRS 15 provides specific guidance on
capitalisation of contract cost and license arrangements. It also
includes a cohesive set of disclosure requirements about the
nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows
arising from the entity’s contracts with customers. Under HKFRS
15, an entity normally recognises revenue when a performance
obligation is satisfied. Impact on the revenue recognition may
arise when multiple performance obligation are identified. The
adoption of HKFRS 15 will have an impact on the Group's revenue
recognition of construction contracts and the Group expects that
it may have impact on the amounts and disclosures made in the
Group's financial statements and is not yet in a position to provide
quantified information. The new standard is not expected to apply
until the financial year of 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR NTE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEZ:BEHEE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

(a) WHEE )

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

New and amended standards have been issued but are not
effective for the financial year beginning 1 January 2016 and
have not been early adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” addresses the definition of a lease, recognition
and measurement of leases and establishes principles for reporting
useful information to users of financial statements about the
leasing activities of both lessees and lessors. A key change arising
from HKFRS 16 is that most operating leases will be accounted
for on balance sheet for lessees. The Group is a lessee of various
properties which are currently classified as operating leases. The
Group’s current accounting policy for such leases is set out in
note 2(ab) with the Group’s future operating lease commitments,
which are not reflected in the consolidated statement of financial
position, set out in note 42. HKFRS 16 provides a new provisions
for the accounting treatment of leases and will in the future no
longer allow lessees to recognise certain leases outside of the
consolidated statement of financial position. Instead, when the
Group is the lessee, almost all leases must be recognised in the
form of an asset (for the right of use) and a financial liability (for
the payment obligation). Thus each lease will be mapped in the
Group’s combined statement of financial position. Short-term
leases of less than twelve months and leases of low-value assets
are exempt from the reporting obligation. The new standard will
therefore result in an increase in assets and financial liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position. As for the
financial performance impact in the statement of comprehensive
income, straight-line depreciation expense on the right-of-use
asset and the interest expenses on the lease liability are recognised
and no rental expenses will be recognised. The combination of a
straight-line depreciation of the right-of-use asset and the effective
interest rate method applied to the lease liability will result in a
higher total charge to profit or loss in the initial years of the lease,
and decreasing expenses during the latter part of the lease term.
The new standard is not expected to apply until the financial year
of 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEZ:BEHBE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Consolidation (b) #ZE
The consolidated financial statements include the financial AU BHRERPBEAARREMBHEL
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries made up to REET-A=+t—HIE2HBE®RE -

31 December.

(i)  Subsidiaries (i) HERA
Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) BB N B AN B B S L A A
over which the Group has control. The Group has control ZFEER(PREERER) - EX
over entities when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, EEMERS TR E AR
variable returns from its involvement with the entities and has NEEZFAIEBIWMRARE BB
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the HERERARIMTZEZEOR
entity. W AIAREE TS EE -
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which is MEBARREGIEEREAEE Y
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the HiB &0 o B EhliER I 2 B
date that control ceases. Jl=xia
Business combinations EBEVf
The Group applies the acquisition method to account for AEBERAWEBEREBE A
business combinations. The consideration transferred for B - WENMB AR 2HREREALX
the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets SEMEELE  BWKE T A
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of BAFEEBERAETREZA
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group. FE - BEAREREXIARELH
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any FEERNEESBEZIATE-
asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration RETEE OTRFFTUCE 2 AT B E
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and RigEs AERIABE 915
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are RENKEBHB ATEFE -

measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the AN ER IR 35 TE UK R EE R R MR
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non- B 2 ISR - BRI
controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ARSI T EES ARER
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a R PI G B 885 B B 2 NI
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of B 2 IR - TR ATE
liquidation are measured at either fair value or the present 3 DAIR S B R R L 0 o 1 M
ownership interest's proportionate share in the recognised FA BRI FEE zEEREREIER
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other £ RIFBBIMBIREERRER
components of non-controlling interests are measured at FREME S % - THIFEEHIER
their acquisition date fair value, unless another measurement 2 —HIEME B HNKEER A
basis is required by HKFRSs. FEFTE ©

1 38 HC International, Inc Annual Report 2016




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR NTE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Consolidation (Continued)

(i)

Subsidiaries (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair
value at the acquisition date, any gains or losses arising from
such re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration
that is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as
a change to other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured,
and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in
the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measures is less than the fair value
of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a
bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been
adjusted to conform with the Group’s accounting policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEZ:BEHBE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Consolidation (Continued) (b) #HE@®)
(i) Subsidiaries (Continued) (i) HKERE(E)

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change TEHAEIEFNEZ B L AT
of control BEREE)

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result TEHUR ARG 2 I HER 2
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions HARINERRZR H—BIAEER
— that is, as transactions with the owners of the subsidiary in BEAZEDHEBEBANETRS ©
their capacity as owners. The difference between fair value ARENREA T EEAKEER
of any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of BEMBAREEFEREECE
the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded HERER - MIFEHEREE 2
in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling BIETYIVERER -

interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries HEHTE 2 A]

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest REBMAEEZGIERS  RERBZE
in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date MREEREAERHIREAZR
when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount FEENE BEREEZHR
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying BaER - AR ARIIERER
amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the Al ARSI EREEIREE
retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial mmE @ ERTERYVIBREE -
asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other BEAN - SE AR B fth 2 T UG A AR B
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted ZERAE S FERBIOARE
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related ERERHEAHAEENBE LA
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously HARR o WATREBIRERTR At 2
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to HWAER SHEHMHEEER ©

profit or loss.

(ii) Separate financial statements (i) BUEB#HE
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less R BB A B2 B TH AR AR (B
impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of ZTERER c RABEREZEE
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for EIEER - MEBARZEEREW
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and REWARSET AREZERA °
receivable.
Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is EWIRWBARIZEEZRE
required upon receiving dividends from these investments B - AR SRR E A R R T IR
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of BHEz2EBALRE  HREL
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the MR mKRZIRAFAEBRBRIRE
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial FREE(RIERER) NG N BR
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated FR2REER - A ERIRES
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including TTRERIE
goodwill.
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SRR NTE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEZ:BEHEE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Consolidation (Continued) (b) #HE@)
(iii) Associates (iii) BERA

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally accompanying
a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting
rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying
amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of
acquisition. The Group's investment in associates includes
goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the
ownership interest in an associate, any difference between
the cost of the associate and the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of
the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, and its share of post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive
income with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group's share of losses
in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount
of impairment as the difference between the recoverable
amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises
the amount adjacent to ‘share of profit of investments
accounted for using equity method’ in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEZ:BEHBE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Consolidation (Continued) (b) #HE@®)
(iii) Associates (Continued) (i) BERF(E)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream REEREBEARMZ EHRT
transactions between the Group and its associate are HRGMEELEZBERAERB G
recognised in the Group's consolidated financial statements DR R N HER - (R ATEREE
only to the extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the REERBERARZER AR - B
associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the FEARSGRECHREELTR
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset BEz@EE SAREHEEBETUY
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been HeoBERA LR BEDRLE
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the REE - UBREEAREEMERA
policies adopted by the Group. ZBUE o

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are PSRRI RA R ERE T
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. REMERRARER

(iv) Joint arrangements (iv) BEZH

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements. AEECRMEMETHERASE
Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint arrangement are WIS MEERIFE 15 - BRIBFEEH
classified as either joint operations or joint ventures BEEENTR - REEaTHZ
depending on the contractual rights and obligations each KRERFEREEZEVENRE
investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint Mo EREEEBAEERE -
arrangements and determined them to be joint ventures. AEECEEBE T2 ME -
Joint ventures are accounting for using the equity method. WHHEBERHEREREE QT -

BERAIEBEANRE

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint BEERE @2 RERYF A
ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted RATER - HEEARABRAE
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post- 5 FE A5 B 18 i A ST R LA R H
acquisition profits or losses and movements in other b2 ERAZ T 2 D - REER
comprehensive income. The Group’s investments in joint EENE A BEREERER
venture include goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon ZEE PSS ARIEA R
the acquisition of the ownership interest in a joint venture, wHF - AE QRN AEAREE RN
any difference between the cost of the joint venture and AENAAHIEEREBEATE
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the joint venture’s FEZEMEFENEEBAR - B
identifiable assets and liabilities is accounting for as goodwill. SEEERE—aE QR ZEEES
When the Group’s share of losses in a joint venture equals RBEERZEERR 2 ER (8
or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures (which includes FBEMEE FHERAEERZEE
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the REFREZ REPRER) - AIAKE
Group's net investment in the joint ventures), the Group does THERE—TEHE  BRIFELAEED
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations EEEBHAERELRFNK -

or made payments on behalf of the joint ventures.
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SRR NTE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEZ:BEHEE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Consolidation (Continued) (b) #HE@)
(iv) Joint arrangements (Continued) (iv) BELH(E)
Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its AEBEEEALENFRMRH 2 KRE
joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's RUERAEERZESERFZ
interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also R T LASEE - REREBIBINTIA
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an i BRIER S REBIRFERAME
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of REEHBRE - A& AR 25
the joint ventures have been changed when necessary to BURERTE Z1EH B AR AR
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group. SEERRN 2R -
(c) Segment reporting () 7EWSE
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the LESE 2 EF AR H T F BLER
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. REZNEREMERARETA— - £
The chief operating decision-maker, who review the Group internal B LR E R AR B AP E LA
report in order to assess performance and allocate resources, has RERDBEEIR - W2 HE BIEH BT
been identified as the executive directors who make strategic RIEZMITE SIS -
decisions.
(d) Foreign currency translation (d) sheBE
(i)  Functional and presentation currency (i) DEERZHEH
Items included in the financial statements of each of the AEERERZMBHREMBIER
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the B DIRZERKEMEE2LH
primary economic environment in which the entity operates RRECEB(NEEEDE - &
("the functional currency”). The consolidated financial HIHBBEAARE(TAREDZ
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”). Hong Kong B o BIERARNRR 2 IS -

Dollars is regarded as the Company’s functional currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances (i) XZREE
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the INEZ SRR 5 A BMERSIER
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at B EHERRCERRE AT
the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re- BEEW  AREXRIBERIEFHE
measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from HrEERBELINEA B2 EEE
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation EREEMmEEZIINEE R B
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities HREHERRER -

denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains or losses that related to borrowings FHREERReRRSFEY 2
and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the HEfE RSN A ER R U5
consolidated statement of profit or loss within finance WA SRR I o ELfh 2 PSS TE 5,
income or costs. All other foreign exchange gains or losses BRITREHHERE °

are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEZ:BEHBE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation (Continued) (d) IME&BRE @)
(i) Transactions and balances (Continued) (i) XBRAEH(E)

Change in the fair value of debt securities denominated in LN ERE SRR HEENE

foreign currency classified as available for sale is analysed BREFOHNTEEZY  ZBEEN

between translation differences resulting from the changes BHENAEBARZELFETED
in the amortised cost of the security and other changes in Hib B EFTELEMEN Z58ETH
the carrying amount of the security. Translation differences Mo EESH A S B B E L =
related to changes in amortised cost are recognised in EREHERERER  MEEESN

consolidated statement of profit or loss, and other changes Hh#EN A 2 EBAANTER o

in carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive

income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and FEEEeMEELRBREGIINER

liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit FEFABEAER ) MR E EHE

or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair BES AT ERESEERBET

value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary TR o FEWMSREE (HID R

financial assets, such as equities classified as available for sale, ArHEENER) HREEETA

are included in other comprehensive income. Efh2mEEA -
(iii) Group companies (i) EEARF

The results and financial positions of all the group entities that BN EEESFEE T —IN

have a functional currency different from the presentation SEERBXERVBEMHRGEAT

currency are translated into the presentation currency as FEMEREWMET

follows:

() assets and liabilities for each statement of financial () BYBEKARREVNNZEENE
position presented are translated at the closing rate at EHEBZMBRAREER
the date of that statement of financial position; ZWTERRE

(i) income and expenses for each statement of profit or iy SHEERZBARAZIZRF
loss are translated at average exchange rates (unless HEERE (BRIFTFHEXRL
this average is not a reasonable approximation of R G HMBRITER R HE
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the ZEBHE  FEURERT -
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses THEBER S HBNERKR
are translated at the dates of the transactions); and H) Rk

(i all resulting exchange differences are recognised in (i) FTAEEZELZBEHTREAM
other comprehensive income. 2EARER

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition W BN EBREEZHERAT

of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the BERBEIERZBIINERBIZEER

foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. Currency BERE  WRKMEXKE - &

translation differences arising are recognised in other A2 BB R A M A A A B

comprehensive income. B
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SRR NTE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

()

(9)

Land use rights

Land use rights are recorded at cost less subsequent accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Land use
rights are amortised using the straight-line method over their lease
terms from 40 to 50 years.

Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group. It also
includes properties that are being constructed or developed for
future use as investment properties. Investment property is initially
measured at cost, including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. After initial recognition, investment
properties are carried at carrying values, representing cost less
depreciation and impairment provision. Depreciation is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives of 40 years.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied or commences
to be further developed for sale, it is reclassified as property,
plant and equipment and land use right or properties under
development, and its fair value at the date of change in use
becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Net realisable value takes into account the
price ultimately expected to be realised, less applicable variable
selling expenses and anticipated cost to completion.

Development cost of property comprises construction costs, cost
of land use rights, borrowing costs, and professional fees incurred
during the development period. On completion, the properties are
transferred to completed properties held for sale. Properties under
development are classified as current assets unless those will not
be realised in one normal operating cycle.
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B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Completed properties held for sale

0

146 HC International, Inc

Completed properties remaining unsold at the end of reporting
period are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
comprises development costs attributable to the unsold properties.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to the sale proceeds
of properties sold in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses, or by management estimates based on
prevailing marketing conditions.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, comprising buildings, computer
and telecommunications equipment, fixtures, fittings and office
equipment, leasehold improvements and motor vehicles, are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Motor vehicles classified as finance lease commences depreciation
from the time when the assets become available for its intended
use. Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight line method to allocate their cost to their residual
values over its estimated useful lives, at the following rates per
annum:

Leasehold improvements

HEMEEE

Buildings

B

Computer and telecommunications equipment
TR BN

Fixtures, fittings and office equipment

FE EBRRAERE

Motor vehicles

e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR NTE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

0

1)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each statement of financial position
date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment
under construction or pending installation and is stated at cost less
impairment losses, if any. No provision for depreciation is made
on assets under construction in progress until such time as the
relevant assets are completed and available for their intended use.
On completion, the relevant assets are transferred to property,
plant and equipment at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets

(i) Goodwill
Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents
the excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in
the acquiree over the fair value of the identified net assets
acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the cash-
generating-units (“CGUs"), or groups of CGUs, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represented the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill is monitored ar the operating segment level.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

() Intangible assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

148 HC International, Inc

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of the
CGU containing the goodwill is compared to the recoverable
amount, which is the higher of value in use and the fair
value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Contractual customer, distributor relationship and non-
compete agreement

Contractual customer, distributor relationships and non-
compete agreement acquired in a business combination
are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. The
contractual customer/distributor relations have a finite useful
life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method
from eight to seventeen years over the expected life of
the customer, distributor relationship and non-compete
agreement.

Patents

Separately acquired patents are shown at historical cost.
Patents acquired in a business combination are recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date. The patents have a
finite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method of eight years over the expected life of the patents.

Trade name and domain name

Trade name, domain name acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Trade name, domain name have a finite useful life
and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method of
ten to fifteen years over the expected life of the trade name,
domain name.

Software licences and order back log
Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to their
intended use. Order backlog are recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. These costs are amortised over their
estimated useful lives of one to five years.

Annual Report 2016

2 TESHBEBEw

() BEEE®

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

BE(E)
BERERFETIRY  REAE
B S B B BUR AT BB B

B EHEERRN - B2RE
ZHREEABMZREET R
EeE(AEREERLTERLE
BN 2 B ) YRR o AEAADREED
FHER RN - BERTE8M -

BHEF » DHEHERFEF G
&

REBAHBRBZANERS -2
SR AR IR T SR AR B R
ZATERER - &aNEP /DB
BRERARAERFHRIZRAR
R EHEIIAR - B ABERER
BEF - DHEABRMERFHEL
EEHFHO B RN\ ETCFRE -

=5

BB 2 EMRE L RKAET
R o A GHRTIIS Z BRI Y
AR AFERR - SHNAEFRA
ERFEH - WA R 5 HET
IR o B AE AR EN 2 ERHE
RERDBANFIHE -

BHEAE
SR GRS 2 PSR R R
W E AT ERR - BRREE
BERAEAEE L EAAE
SHETINE - MU ERREEY
RE% 2 ERERFESBATE
Fit o

B F O R BT

P W 8 28 B B0 11 R T AR R BB AR
R A ERE B S ELE Y
BRABTEAR - BT ERKER
HIR N HERER - 2 ERAREM
SHERFH—ERFAT AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR NTE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

Intangible assets (Continued)

(vi) Data library
Costs incurred on acquiring the data library are recognised
as an intangible asset where the technical feasibility has been
demonstrated, and there is an ability to sell or to use the
assets that will generate probable future economic benefits.
Such acquisition cost is recognised as an asset and amortised
on a straight-line basis over a period of three years to reflect
the pattern in which the related economic benefits are
recognised.

(k) Impairment of non-financial assets

M

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that
are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the assets carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating-
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.

Financial assets and liabilities

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets and liabilities as at fair value
through profit or loss; loans and receivables and available-for-
sales financial assets. The Group'’s financial liabilities are classified
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or financial
liabilities at amortised cost. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified
in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the short term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading
unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to be settled within 12
months; otherwise, they are classified as non-current.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

0}

1 50 HC International, Inc

Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Classification (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater
than 12 months after the end of the reporting period. These are
classified as non-current assets. The Group’s loan and receivables
comprise “trade and other receivables”, “amount due from related
company” and “cash and cash equivalents” in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated in this category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current assets unless the
investment matures or management intends to dispose of it within
12 months of the end of the reporting period.

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets and liabilities
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets
not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial
assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss’ category
are presented in the statement of profit or loss within ‘Other
gains/(losses), net’ in the period in which they arise. Dividend
income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in the income statement as part of other income when
the group'’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary

securities classified as available for sale are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR NTE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

M

Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Recognition and measurement (Continued)

When securities classified as available for sale are sold or impaired,
the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as “gains
and losses from available for sale assets”.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income as part of other income. Dividends on available-for-sale
equity instruments are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss as part of other income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

(m) Offsetting financial instruments

(n)

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforce right must
not be contingent on future event and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

Impairment of financial assets

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there
is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors
or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEZ:BEHBE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) ERMEERME )

(n) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

1 52 HC International, Inc

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract.
As a practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment on
the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market
price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a Group of
financial assets is impaired. For debt securities, the Group uses the
criteria referred to assets carried at amortised cost.

For debt securities, if any such evidence exists the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

For equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of the security below its cost is also evidence that the
assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity
and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on equity
instruments are not reversed through the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR NTE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

(r)

(s)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw
materials and other direct costs. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.

Direct selling costs

Direct selling costs, which principally are comprised of sales
commissions and agency fees paid in respect of subscription
revenue received in advance, are deferred and are charged ratably
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income over
the term of the respective service contracts when the services are
rendered.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

(®

(u)

1 54 HC International, Inc

Share capital (Continued)

Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity
share capital (treasury shares), the consideration paid, including
any directly attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes)
is deducted from equity attributable to the Company’s equity
holders until the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such
shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration received, net
of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the
related income tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the
Company’s equity holders.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has

an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR NTE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEZ:BEHEE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

(v) FBEERA

(v) Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that
asset, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which they
are incurred.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

(w) Compound financial instruments

Compound financial instruments issued by the Group comprises
convertible notes that can be converted to share capital at the
option of the holder, and the number of shares to be issued does
not vary with changes in their fair value.

The liability component of a compound financial instrument is
recognised initially at the fair value of a similar liability that does
not have an equity conversion option. The equity component is
recognised initially at the difference between the fair value of the
compound financial instrument as a whole and the fair value of
the liability component, which is included in shareholders’ equity
in other reserves. Any directly attributable transaction costs are
allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to
their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a
compound financial instrument is measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The equity component of a
compound financial instrument is not re-measured subsequent to
initial recognition except on conversion or expiry.

The liability component of a convertible instrument is classified
as current unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of
the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEZ:BEHBE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

(x) Current and deferred income tax (x) EHRIELEMBHR
The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. FEMRBESY HBEEH RIELEFIE - $i18
Tax is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive RAHFRAERER - EENEMEE
income, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in WASREEEEER B EHER
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the SN e FEULERT - RIATR D RIRE M 2 H
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or equity WA Sk 2 B TERR ©

directly, respectively.

(i) Current income tax (i) EHFEH

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis EHMMEH X HRIEARRE) 2 S
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the ASINE SWNCIE A Y e )
statement of financial position date in the countries where WA Z BRI SRR AR R
the company’s subsidiaries and associates operate and BIARY BB BETE - BE
generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates B ERBREROIZEMRR 215
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in JUE BRI R 2 AROR - WA
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. FRER TR ETE AR/ M B A5 1 B =2
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of -2 FURRER TE A o

amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(ii) Deferred income tax (i) EEFTEH
Inside basis differences HEEELA
Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, BEMEHABEEREERAR
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases ZRMERAEREEES 2 GRE
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the B EAMMIEHRRER - A
consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax WELHIEAERE B VT H®
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial R BN TRER - mELEFTEH
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is not REVFHR-BERRXSHIEZE
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset I RERTIBR 2 X5 (EKE 0
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination BNz BEREE - ARTEPTSH
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting BT AR o IBEFTFTAB B
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined KB BB AR BB B E
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or (RBUR)ETE  BitBREEEL
substantively enacted by the statement of financial position IR EEZRSURLEMEH AR
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred TEERFER -
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability
is settled.
Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent RIEFBHEERERTREEREK
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available JERTUR N B 3 2 By 2R IE
against which the temporary differences can be utilised. SHZ BT HER
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SRR NTE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(x) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint arrangements, except for deferred
income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Generally the Group is unable to control
the reversal of the temporary difference for associates. Only
where there is an agreement in place that gives the Group
the ability to control the reversal of the temporary difference
not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint arrangements only to the extent that it is
probable the temporary difference will reverse in the future
and there is sufficient taxable profit available against which
the temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

2 TESHBEEBEw)

(x) BEERIELEMBHRE)

(i) EEFTEH(E)
ZEEZ L)

BEFREHREEDRRKBEAR
BERNRRARRHEZREELEZ
R G2 RMAHREE - EX
SEA R EREZBEERE - )
NEREZRTEIGEAARARRK
BEZIRIEFF SR A MRS - K
SE-REXREGBEAREREE
RZEO - REEIBEBESTAE
B b ERERZED B

AN T HERR -

BEFREHREERNMBRR - B
ERAIRARTHZREEELEZT]
HRERZRER - HEALREZHE
BRIREAARREED - B R HER
B A A 8 R E R 2 BN

R -

(i) #E#

BEHEERENTENABERHAE
EREHTAAERE - MEER
BREENBERR -G HE L
—EARTRERREEBEOME
AR MAREREABRFEE

EEE R
BEEAERNE -

SHREFRAA

BI AT IR FE PR T3

201665% 1§57




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEZ:BEHBE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

(y) Employee benefits (y) EEER
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not RBEZBRBIRERZENNRERRHRTT
recognised until the time of leave. e
(i) Retirement benefit costs (i) BUKEFIELZE
The full-time employees of the Group are covered by various AEEXBEEARBNRIZE
government-sponsored pension plans under which the RS ERE - B - BEE=E
employees are entitled to a monthly pension based on certain BERBEANGFEZBARKSE -
formulas.
The relevant government agencies are responsible for the BRAINEEREEMZERINE
pension liabilities to these retired employees. The Group BXfTRARE - XEBIKAMZSE
contributes on a monthly basis to these pension plans. Under RNSEHEIHR - BIBEZFHE
these plans, the Group has no obligation for post-retirement 2R B BR st 4 R OMBE B L fh R K
benefits beyond the contributions made. BIEMEE -
Contributions to these plans are expensed as incurred. M2 E T EE L 2 SRR & AR5
1F&EMA
(i) Bonus entitlements (i) H#E2EF
The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a EREEREESBRM 2 RIEGHEE
liability when the Group has a present legal or constructive BERBEEIHETEL - MAERE
obligation as a result of services rendered by employees and a AISE(EEE - Al 8RS 2 FBETAK AR
reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. wRAREE-
Liabilities for bonus are expected to be settled within 12 HevBBEEHAT1I2EANE
months and are measured at the amounts expected to be - WIREENRER N2 %
paid when they are settled. Ec
(iii) Share-based compensation (i) KRBT 2 wE
The Group operates equity settled, share-based compensation AEERBUEREN  URHX
plans. The proceeds received net of any directly attributable NREEZE - ERREETR
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) B - BYERPTERIE NR B
and share premium when the options are exercised. JEIE R SR )T AR A (EE)

B fE -

Under the Share Award Scheme, the directors and certain BEMR G, ZEETE - NEEEFER
employees of the Group are entitled to receive shares in ETREEBERBISARGIRG © IR
the Company. The shares held under trust by a financial MR —FHEREE(ZEADNRE
institution (“Trustee”) for the benefit of the director and EREERZHANGBIEIAF
employees, would be paid and the paid up consideration B WEHMNRERK - BB ZRE
would be capitalised in the Company’s reserves. The Trustee BRARRBIHERERE - FFEA
has been instructed to buy shares from the market using the EEETAIAZFEAMFEZEZR
funds held by the Trustee to grant shares to the director and MHOERD - UMESRESR
employees. TR -
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SRR NTE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(y) Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Share-based compensation (Continued)

The Company has also adopted the Share Option Scheme
under which options may be granted to subscribe for the
Company’s shares.

The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the share options and shares awarded is
recognised as an expense.

The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period
is determined by reference to the fair value of the share
options and shares granted, excluding the impact of any
non-market vesting conditions (for example, profitability and
sales growth targets). Non-market vesting conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of shares or share
options that are expected to vest. The total amount expensed
is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period
over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be
satisfied. At each statement of financial position date, the
Group revises its estimates of the number of shares or share
options that are expected to vest based on the non-marketing
vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision of
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, and a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date,
or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to
either: terminating the employment of current employees
according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of
withdrawal; or providing termination benefits as a result of
an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after statement of financial
position date are discounted to present value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEZ:BEHBE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

(z) Provisions (z) &5

1 60 HC International, Inc

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

(aa) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for the sale of goods and services stated net of value
added taxes, in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities as described below.
The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the
specifics of each arrangement.

Adbvertising income from internet portals, trade catalogues, yellow
page directories and printed periodicals is recognised on the date
of publication.

Subscription fee income from on-line services is recognised over the
period of contracts entered with the customers. The unrecognised
portions of contract sum are recognised as deferred revenue.

Revenue from the hosting of trade exhibitions and business

seminars is recognised upon conclusion of the exhibitions or
seminars.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR NTE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEZ:BEHEE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

(aa) Revenue recognition (Continued) (aa) SHEWAER (&)
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis, using the BN R P B ) 3R H B i Lt ) L
effective interest method. e

Revenue from anti-counterfeiting products are recognised when a
group entity has delivered products to the customer; the customer
has accepted the products and collectability of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.

Revenue from anti-counterfeiting services is recognised in the
accounting period in which the services are rendered, by reference
to stage of completion of the specific transaction and assessed on
the basis of actual services provided as a proportion of the total
service to be provided.

Finance lease income attributable to finance leases is recognised
over the lease term on a systematic and rational basis so as to
produce a constant rate of return on the net investment in the
finance lease.

Revenue from sale of properties is recognised when the risk
and rewards of the properties are transferred to the purchasers,
which occurs when legally binding unconditional sales contracts
were entered, the construction of the relevant properties has
been completed, the properties have been delivered to the
purchasers pursuant to the sale contracts and collectability of
related receivables is reasonably assured. Deposits and installments
received on properties sold prior to the date of revenue recognition
are included in the consolidated balance sheet as advance proceeds
received from customers under current liabilities.

Rental income from investment property is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(ab) Leases

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

1 62 HC International, Inc

Operating lease - as a lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Operating lease — as a lessor

When assets are leased out under an operating lease, the asset
is included in the statement of financial position based on
the nature of the assets. Lease income on operating lease is
recognised over term of the lease on a straight-line basis.

Finance lease - as a lessee

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment, where the Group
has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership, are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at
the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value of
the leased property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges. The corresponding rental obligations, net
of finance charges, are included in other long-term payables.
The interest element of the finance cost is charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income over the
lease period so as to produce a constant and equipment
acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the shorter
of the useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Finance lease - as a lessor

When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present
value of the lease payments is recognised as a receivable. The
difference between the gross receivable and the present value
of the receivable is recognised as unearned finance income.

The method for allocating gross earnings to accounting
periods is referred to as the ‘actuarial method’. The actuarial
method allocates rentals between finance income and
repayment of capital in each accounting period in such a way
that finance income will emerge as a constant rate of return
on the lessor’s net investment in the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR NTE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEZ:BEHEE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

(ac) BUS#BD

(ac) Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair values
when there is a reasonable assurance that the grants will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognized
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised
within “other income” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the period necessary to match them
with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

(ad) Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s and Company's financial statements in
the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders.

(ae) Financial guarantee liabilities

Financial guarantee liabilities are recognised in respect of the
financial guarantee provided by the Group to the banks for
property purchasers.

Financial guarantee liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of
the financial guarantee liabilities. After initial recognition, such
liabilities are measured at the higher of the present value of the
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation and the amount initially recognised less cumulative
amortisation of fees recognised.

Financial guarantee liabilities are derecognised from the balance
sheet when, and only when, the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged or cancelled or expired.
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B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FES:BEHE
POLICIES (Continued)

(af) HEREEAX S

(af) Sale and leaseback transaction

1 64 HC International, Inc

A sale and leaseback transaction involves the sale of an asset and
the leasing back of the same asset. The lease payment and the
sale price are usually interdependent because they are negotiated
as a package. The accounting treatment of a sale and leaseback
transaction depends upon the type of lease involved. If a sale and
leaseback transaction results in a finance lease, any excess of sales
proceeds over the carrying amount is deferred and amortised over
the lease term. If a sale and leaseback transaction results in an
operating lease, and it is clear that the transaction is established
at fair value, any profit or loss is recognised immediately. If the
sale price is below fair value, any profit or loss is recognised
immediately except that, if the loss is compensated for by future
lease payments at below market price, it is deferred and amortised
in proportion to the lease payments over the period for which the
asset is expected to be used. If the sale price is above fair value, the
excess over fair value is deferred and amortised over the period for
which the asset is expected to be used.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk and fair value interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central finance department
(the “Finance Department”) headed by the Chief Financial Officer
of the Group. The Finance Department identifies and evaluates
financial risks in close co-operation with the Group’s operating
units to cope with overall risk management as well as specific areas
such as market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk
The Group operates in Hong Kong and the PRC and
majority of its transactions are denominated in the
functional currencies of the respective entities. The
Group has no material foreign currency denominated
assets and liabilities and does not have material
exposure on foreign exchange risk.
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SRR NTE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 UBEBREER@

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 KEBEZE®)
(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) HHEE(E)

(i) Fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent from changes in market
interest rates and the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets except for fixed deposit categorised
in “cash and cash equivalents”, loan to third parties,
an associate, an joint venture and the employees
categorised in “other receivables”, details of which have
been disclosed in Notes 12 and 21.

The Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates is
also attributable to its borrowings, details of which have
been disclosed in Note 28. Borrowings carry at fixed
rates expose the Group to low fair value interest-rate
risk.

The Group regularly monitors its interest rate risk to
ensure there are no undue exposures to significant
interest rate movements and regular reporting is
provided to the management for the Group’s debt and
interest rates exposure.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. The Group’s credit
risk mainly arises from cash and cash equivalents, as well as
credit exposures to trade and other receivables. The finance
department has policies in place to monitor the exposures to
these credit risks on an on-going basis.

The Group has put in place policies to ensure that provision
of services is made to customers with an appropriate credit
history and the Group performs periodic credit evaluations of
its customers.

For balance with a related company and loan to a third party
and the employees, management assesses the recoverability
of the balances taking into account the history of default
of these companies and the employees, and their financial
performance.
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B

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
The table below shows the cash and cash equivalents held by
different type of financial institutions at statement of financial
position date.

Cash at banks and bank deposits

3 BIRRMEE®

3.1 BKEBEERE®

(b) EEmEE)
TRHF T E S RS B Bk
REBHFEHS KRS SEY -

2016
—E—XF

2015
—E—RE
RMB’000
NG

RMB’000
ARBT R

RITRERIRITHER

Listed financial institutions e RbigiE 655,570 697,073
Unlisted financial institutions JE TS phikrE 307,803 93,527
Cash on hand BFES 150 101
Total 4REt 963,523 790,701

(c) Liquidity risk
Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses,
the Group maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining
sufficient cash from operating activities.

As at 31 December 2016, the cash and cash equivalents

of the Group approximated RMB963,523,000 (2015:
RMB790,701,000).
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMKEREKREE®
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MEREBEE@)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) () FEBELEEE)
Specifically, for convertible bonds which contain a repayment BEgEms  IeEnEERER
on redemption options which can be exercised at the R AR ES - REFBEAAR
bondholder’s sole discretion to redeem all or some only of BITFEBEEERE UK —+
the convertible bonds on 27 November 2017 at their principal F+—A -+t RREARGEER
amount together with interest accrued but unpaid to such BEEZB MR E A EEE
date. 2 EBE AL D AR S ©

Between Between
Less than 1and 2 2and 5 Over 5
1 year years years years Total

1£R 1825 2E5F 5EME st
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETTE ARETT ARETT ARETT AREBTT

At 31 December 2016 RZB-—R"E+=A

=+—H
Trade payables JERTBRRR 7,916 - - - 7,916
Accrued expenses and [t B R K&
other payables HAbfE I8 216,882 - - - 216,882
Finance lease obligations MEHEAE 158 - = = 158
Borrowings BE 775,930 150,750 2,804 - 929,484
Convertible bonds PR (E 75 34,886 34,886 575,617 - 645389
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE-H&E+=A
=t—H
Trade payables EFTBRSR 3,618 - - - 3,618
Accrued expenses and JEETER &
other payables H i FER IR 148,935 - - - 148,935
Finance lease obligations MEHEARE 833 263 - - 1,096
Borrowings BE 501,503 29,676 18,639 - 549,818
Convertible bonds AR ES 32,673 32,673 571,785 - 637,131
The table above summarises the maturity analysis shows the FREGRBEDNT - ZON TIRE
cash outflow based on the earliest date in which the Group ANEEBES N EFEBH(EIYES
can be required to pay, that is if the lenders were to invoke NIE S| B SRR DA BN B Y B &
their unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate REREERLY - ZE2BEER
effect. The amounts include interest payments computed AT ERHE N BB

using contractual rates.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 H¥ERMREEw
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BIKEBEZE®)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) () WEELEE(E)

The table above excludes the amount of guarantees given to
banks for mortgage facilities granted to certain purchasers of
the Group's properties as the directors consider the likelihood
of default in payments by the purchasers is minimal. As at
31 December 2016, the amount of outstanding guarantees
for mortgages were approximately RMB357,430,000 (2015:
RMB356,074,000).

Such guarantees terminate upon the earlier of (i) issuance
of the real estate ownership certificate which will generally
be available within an average period of one to two years
upon the completion of guarantee registration; or (ii) the
full repayment of mortgaged loan by the purchasers of
properties.

Management monitors the Group’s liquidity through cash
flow projections covering a period of twelve months on a
rolling basis. Based on the cash flow projection, taking into
account the reasonably possible changes in the operational
performance and the continuous availability of banking
facilities, management considers that there will be sufficient
financial resources in the coming twelve months to meet its
financial obligations as and when they fall due.

ERTEELATRITERTAER
MEZETER ZIZBRE 2R
&8 DEREFRAERBRN
HZATREMRIE - RZT—RF
+ZA=1+—8 " RBZKREEE
RE&EL A AR 357,430,000
—ZT—h%F : AR¥356,074,000
TT) e

BARFRRTIAHREERIL
)VET—RAIRTRERE LK T
—EMFHMEZFHEEDRE
CHINVMEERTBREERBE

o

o5

EREABRET —EARELR
EREBANRS T AERAKE
ZnBEE - RERSREER
KREREBEBRERFEIR 2R
MECZAEAREY FEER
B RARE+ZEABEREHE
B LR AR EERIMRETT -

3.2 EXERER

3.2 Capital risk management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders REIR - R A E ) 25 B R & A5 5k R
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of @ WHEFHREERERBAREEARK
capital. PN

REEERE S 2 BOYREAEEIZR
BICEEEBEEE 2T - RBIRT

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

RERRFHEENGRE - AEEAEEH
BRVBRRZBREEE  MPREREER
R~ BT RN EEEAREET -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 UBEBREER@

3.2 EXEREE®)

3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings (including issued convertible bonds)
and finance lease obligations less cash and cash equivalents.
Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position plus net debt. Accordingly, the
gearing ratios at 31 December 2016 and 2015 were as follows:

AEBRBEABBL RERHEEN
ZLRTVRFEEBRABERTE - F
BB ZAE R EARRER(BIEDET
AMEEF) RBEHERENRES R
RESEY - BERZFTEFERBI#E
&= (RE SRR RS R) INFER ©
Bt - RZZE—A"EFR-_FT—RHF+_-A

=t —RZEXREBBELERET

2016 2015
—T-RF

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BT R AEBTTT

Bank borrowings (Note 28) RI7ME & (fFE28) 851,904 499,760
Other borrowings (Note 28) HiEE (fizE28) 31,578 27,549
Finance lease obligation mMEHEARB 158 983

Convertible bonds - liabilities portion (Note 29) & 377 a[# i &E5 —

& && 9 (FF7E29) 654,743 600,225
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 21) W EERRS

Z/EY(fEE21) (963,523) (790,701)

Net debt FHETS 574,860 337,816

Total equity R 3,268,143 2,598,946

Total capital AR 3,843,003 2,936,762

Gearing ratio BARAGLEE 15% 12%
Surplus cash held by the operating entities over and above KEBERPBAECREBRALEELASERE
balance required for working capital management are transferred IR BreREB 2 SEHE

EBTH LK AAEZFHE RS
BABN - R-F-AFT A=+
B AEEERRSRRSSENOAR

to interest bearing current accounts and time deposits, with
appropriate maturities to manage its overall liquidity position. As at
31 December 2016, the Group maintains cash and cash equivalents
of approximately RMB963,523,000 (2015: RMB790,701,000), that #963,523,000L( —E—HF : AR
are expected to be readily available to meet the cash outflows of 790,701,0007T) - TAEARAME BB E
its financial liabilities. 2B -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMKEERREE®
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AV EME
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and liabilities rEFzMEERAERERS KBRS
including cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, SEY - BREREEMEYKIE  BE
finance lease receivable, trade payables, accruals and other TEEEWFIE - ERERR - BT ERRE
payables, borrowings and finance lease obligation and amount due MERFIE - BERMETHE 8 BIANE
from a related company, approximate their fair values due to their W ARIFIE - BRZEERMEERE
short maturities. EERENEE - dEREAERE QN TER
=,
The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments carried TRIZEARGE AT EZMER AR
at fair value as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 by level of inputs AR 2B DR _E—RER-T
to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs are —AF+ZA=+—BAEEEAFET
categorised into three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows: FeemIA - FRABARBLISBERR

FEREAZ T =ERAR :

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical HRZEXBEEERMIS 2 HRE

assets or liabilities (level 1). (REEFHEE)(E—4) -

e Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that o HAENBEPIEEBMIMER)
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, FEE BB ERSIH)BRZEA
as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2). HiE TEEE-RACBREEC

) °

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on o HEMSBEPIUFKBEAIBETS

observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3). M A (BNEBRRBA)(E=R) -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
The following table presents the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities that are at fair value at 31 December 2016 and 2015.

BEREREE )

3.3 AV EMEF @)
T2 AEER -_T—AER-FE—F
F+-P=+—BRATEIEZOBE

EREE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
- E F=& wmE
RMB$’'000 RMB$'000 RMB$'000 RMB$’'000
AREBTTT ARETT ARETT ARETET
At 31 December 2015 R-ZB—-HF+=A
=+-—H
Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial A ESREE
assets 329,137 - 92,553 421,690
Financial assets at fair value ~ IZAFEEAEBZE Y
through profit or loss SREE - - 5,100 5,100
329,137 - 97,653 426,790
At 31 December 2016 R-E—RF+=A
=t+-n
Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial AHEETREE
assets 212,646 - 484,071 696,717
Financial assets at fair value ~ IRAF(EEAEBZE Y
through profit or loss SREE 172,686 - 4,600 177,286
385,332 - 488,671 874,003
Liabilities aE
Financial liabilities at fair value AT EEAEBZ Y
through profit or loss THEE - - 41,500 41,500
- - 41,500 41,500

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 3 and no other
changes in valuation techniques during the year.

FR - E-REE=HEWRER - (4
BEIEEEME -

SHREFRAA

20168%% 171




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMKEERREE®
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AR EME @)
(a) Financial instruments in level 1 (a) EF—RZELMTA
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets EERMSEECeMIAZ AT
is based on quote market prices at the statement of financial BERBEMBMRRKBR TS RE
position date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices FTE - ZRAIRREHRELSRZS
are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, BT~ 4C8HRE - 458 ERAL W
broker, industry group, price services or regulatory agency, ERBHELEBEREREGRE - M
and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring ERREBRRIEATRHELERTT
market transactions on an arm’s length basis. ZEBEREEHTISZ SN - Zmi5
WAR RIS  ©
(b) Financial instruments in level 3 (b)) FE=HKzL@MTA
The following table represents the changes in level 3 THRENBE_Z-—RF+H
instruments for the year ended 31 December 2016. =+ BLFEE=HRTEZEH-

Financial Financial

Available- assets at liabilities at
for-sale fair value fair value
financial through profit  through profit
assets or loss or loss
(Note i) (Note ii) (Note iii)

BROVE BAYE

AHHE BPN =4 sPAREZ
THMEE THMEE ETHMEE
(B &) (Bt &) (Bt eEiii)
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT R ARBT T

As at 1 January 2016 WoZ—XxF—A—H 92,553 5,100 -
Additions A= 377,435 - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries IREE—RIM B AR - - (36,800)
Disposals HeE (32,553) - -
Fair value changes charged to W& g4 lizs &
consolidated statement of Nk 2 A EEE)
comprehensive income - (500) (4,700)
Fair value changes credited to R E 2 EUW AT A
other comprehensive income 7 A AE# &) 46,636 - -
As at 31 December 2016 R-Z—XF+-A
=+—H 484,071 4,600 (41,500)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
(b) Financial instruments in level 3 (Continued)
The following table represents the changes in level 3
instruments for the year ended 31 December 2015.

BEREREE )

3.3 AFEMF @)
(b)) F=HKZLBITA(E)
TREWNHZ=_ZE—HF+=A
=+ RAULFEFE=ATAEZES-

Financial

Available- assets at

for-sale fair value

Financial through

Assets profit or loss

(Note i) (Note ii)

At & BAFETA

THEE BRZIREE

(P &i) ( B =ii)

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AR®T

As at 1 January 2015 R-ZE—HF—HA—H 43,855 -

Additions NE 57,900 5,100
Fair value changes charged to REMEER AR 2

other comprehensive income NEEEE (9,202) -

As at 31 December 2015 R-ZE—FFE+-_A=+—H 92,553 5,100

The Group’s finance department includes a team that
performs the valuation of financial asset required for financial
reporting purposes, including Level 3 fair values. This team
report directly to the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and the
Audit Committee (AC). Discussion of valuation processes and
results are held between the CFO, AC and the valuation team
at least once before the reporting date of every quarter, in
line with the Group’s quarterly reporting dates.

(i)

The fair value of the Inner Mongolia Hohhot Jingu
Rural Commercial Bank Limited Company (“Jingu”),
which classified as available-for-sale financial assets was
estimated by market comparison approach, required the
use of market information (the comparable companies
in the industry) and significant unobservable input (the
lack of marketability discount).Significant management’s
judgement was involved in the choice of comparable
companies and the determination of discount rate.

For the remaining available-for-sale financial assets,
the Group in estimating the fair value based on the
latest unit selling price of the financial assets on an
arm’s length basis and the market data of comparable
companies.

AEEFBHRE—EE - B8R
WM BWMEETIREZEREE
(BREE=Hz2NFE)HE - %@
GEZEAERENBERERZES
B - ATAARBZFERES
2 HEMBE BREESRM
BEEB=LEFEREAARMGE
TEFF RAERETTRIR ©

() DERIHBESREEZA
SEFMER A RNEER
TROERABR(TEARDZR
FEATISLEOEGE  Zit
BOERERAMSEM (175
AAE LB AR REATA
BERBEEA(RZMERB
TEHTaE) - BT ELRAR
REEHREET SR ENERE
HEr -

B TFAGEESBRAEN
E AN YRS WA R
AFAREAY BB H
K& R A R 2 BB
AT -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMKEERREE®
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AFEMETE
(b) Financial instruments in level 3 (Continued) (b) F=HRKZzLHBIAE)

(i) The fair value of the financial assets through profit iy FFABZZemEEZATE
or loss, which represent contingent consideration 5 B2 85 Orange Triangle Inc.
arrangement related to the acquisition of Orange (TOTH Bz ARELHE
Triangle Inc. ("OT") (refer to Note 17), was estimated (FRME7) A FENK
by applying income approach which considers the NEME - EEFEOTE H &
probability that OT Seller Guarantors could achieve RAEKBLHBZRZ AT R
the performance target and the market prices of the REBOHPVEERRHZTHE -
consideration share at the valuation date. The key STEZSAREZEEZTAEH
unobservable assumptions in calculating this contingent RS

consideration are:

31 December 31 December

Risk-free rate R B = 0.91%-1.11% 0.37%-0.73%
Probability to achieve the ERBHEEZ
performance target = 90% 90%
(iii)  The fair value of the financial liabilities through profit (i) FFAEBZZeMEBEZAF
or loss, which represent contingent consideration B 45 B U B Zhongfu Holdings
arrangement related to the acquisition of Zhongfu Limited ([ ZF 1) B B8 2 A RK(E
Holdings Limited ("ZF") (refer to Note 15), was estimated ZH(FRMFE15) - ZAF
by applying income approach which considered the BRRNEGE - HERZFE
probability that ZF Seller Guarantors could achieve FHERANEKBELB 28
the performance target and the market prices of the MEREBRHAMGERRZT
consideration share at the valuation date. 8o
The key unobservable assumptions in the calculation AHZIAREBZ EENAEH
are: BBRRA -
31 December 8 January
2016 2016
—E—XEF T—NF
+=A=+—H —ANR
Risk-free rate N 2R 2 1.11%-1.35% 0.66%
Probability to achieve the ERENEREZ
performance target = 80% 80%
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SRR NTE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition seldom
equal to the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are discussed below.

(a) Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite useful life have suffered any impairment,
in accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note 2()).
The recoverable amounts of cash generating units have been
determined based on the higher of value-in-use calculations
or fair value less costs of disposal. These calculations
require the use of judgements and estimates. Management
judgement is required in the area of asset impairment
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred
that may indicate that the related asset values may not be
recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, being the higher of
fair value less costs of disposal and net present value of future
cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued
use of the asset in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow projections
including whether these cash flow projections are discounted
using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management in assessing impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash
flow projections, could materially affect the net present value
used in the impairment test and as a result affect the Group’s
financial condition and results of operations.

4 EESTHATI RHER

HHRBRIDERBELB L EMEZMES
EITRME - ERERERERmY B REHED
BEBEEZTEAl -

41 EEGTHHTRER
ALK IS ET RBE - FrEEs
T E S BERERERER - T
X ST IFIE B AR A B T EB B
ErEERBEREEEREAFNEZE
SRR -

(a) BEpiE
REEGFRIBMEE20) P2 &5
BEREHEREERERFHE
REEETRENR - REELE
fiz 2 AT Y Ol & 58 Ty AR AR i R B E AT
B AFEREERANERSEE
E o ZEFEEARRERAHE R
5t - REERE @ FRl=ZFEIA
THERBEZEEEHE )BT
BAERERNEHEEBERKE
EREZ FE () -HEEEZRE

EAATHAKEESEBIATE
B A R AR BN ISR R RS
REEMFZARBSREREF
B RS ERE) R - R
ARRRESRERAIZEREE
BR BEZSReRERIRE
RBALLEATE - WWEER BN
ERERMEE . BR(BERDR
SR 2 BRI R R R AT AL
HRERFAMAZREFREKE
AFE  BEMPERNEE BB
UM EEAE -
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)
(b) Useful lives of intangible assets

(c)

1 76 HC International, Inc

Significant judgement is exercised in the assessment of the
useful lives of the intangible assets. In making its judgement,
management considers a wide range of factors such as the
attrition rates and obsolescence rates.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews internal and
external sources of information to identify indications that the
interests in associates and joint venture which are significant
to the Group may be impaired or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased.
If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income whenever
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount.

The sources utilised to identify indications of impairment are
often subjective in nature and the Group is required to use
judgement in applying such information to its business. The
Group's interpretation of this information has a direct impact
on whether an impairment assessment is performed as at
any given reporting date. If an indication of impairment is
identified, such information is further subject to an exercise
that requires the Group to estimate the recoverable amount,
representing the greater of the asset’s fair value less cost to
sell or its value in use. Depending on the Group'’s assessment
of the overall materiality of the asset under review and
complexity of deriving reasonable estimates of the recoverable
amount, the Group may perform such assessment utilising
internal resources or the Group may engage external advisors
to counsel the Group in making this assessment. Regardless
of the resources utilised, the Group is required to make many
assumptions to make this assessment, including the utilisation
of such asset, the cash flows to be generated, appropriate
market discount rates and the projected market and
regulatory conditions. Changes in any of these assumptions
could result in a material change to future estimates of the
recoverable amount of any asset.

Annual Report 2016
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)
(d) Share-based payment

(e)

)]

Significant judgement is exercised in the assessment of
the fair value of the share-based payments. In making its
judgement, management considers a wide range of factors
such as the share price of the Group and the expected vesting
number of share options.

Taxes

The Group is subject to taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for various kinds of taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income in the period in which such
determination is made.

Fair value of non-listed available-for-sale financial
assets

The Group has a significant amount of investments that are
not classified as Level 1 investments under HKFRS 13: Fair
Value Measurement. The valuations have been determined
based on quotes from alternative pricing sources supported
by observable inputs, latest transactions prices or by using
valuation technique.

In particular, the fair value of the Inner Mongolia Hohhot
Jingu Rural Commercial Bank Limited Company (“Jingu”),
which classified as available-for-sale financial assets were
estimated by market comparison approach, required the use
of market information (net assets value and price to book
ratio of comparable companies in the industry) and significant
unobservable input (the lack of marketability discount).
Significant management'’s judgement was involved in the
choice of comparable companies and the determination of
the lack of marketability discount rate.

4 EESTHEFTRHAE e

4.1 EESTHAFTRER®)

(d)

(e)

(f)
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4 EESTHEFTRHAE @

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 4.1 BEEETHEFREBR @
(Continued)

(g) Fair value of contingent consideration (9) BAREBEZLFE

The fair value of fair assets/(liabilities) through profit or
loss, were determined by using valuation techniques. The
Group in the determination of fair values of these financial
instruments, which included the determination of valuation
methodology, estimation of the respective probability of
investee's achievement of the profit guarantee, risk-free
rate and discount rate. Changes in assumption used could
materially affect the fair value of these balances and as a
result affect the Group’s financial condition and results of
operation.

FABRZERMEE (BB ZA
FERERGERNETE - AEE
RETZESMIAZ ATER
EEREEMGEDE  ArRERE
ERBERGNIRE 2R - &
BB M & R R o MARAZE
REEMES  RGHZFEHRZ
RFEREATE  TERMZER
SEZMBERR RS EEE -

4.2 Critical judgement in applying the Company’s 4.2 ERAQRTETBRZEEZHE
accounting policies

(a) Fair value of sale and lease back properties (a) WHERHEEYEZLFE

1 78 HC International, Inc

The Group had started the pre-sale of the 020 business
exhibition centre in the PRC to third parties through its
indirectly owned subsidiary, ERZRRERIEEBR A A
("ERZBREH"), since 2014.

Some of the properties sale transactions were subject to sale
and lease back arrangement, in which the properties buyers
entered into sale contracts with ERZIEAXKEH and non-
cancellable lease back agreements with #hILUTTEHES T
AR A A], another indirectly owned subsidiary of the
Group. Pursuant to the lease back agreement, the buyers
would lease back the units purchased to the Group on a 20
years lease term. At consolidation level, the above contracts
involved the sale and lease back of same assets form a sale
and finance lease back transaction.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, revenue under
the sale and lease back transaction of approximately
RMB502,225,000 was recognised. The fair value of the
properties at the date of disposal amounted to approximately
RMB482,000,000. The excess amount between the
contracted selling price and the fair value has been deferred
in accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note 2 (af).
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SRR NTE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4 EESTHEFTRHAE e

4.2 Critical judgement in applying the Company’s 42 ERAERATGTTBRZEEZHE
accounting policies (Continued) (#&)

(a) Fair value of sale and lease back properties (Continued) (a) HERHEEIYHEZL-FEE)

The Group assesses the fair value of these properties based
on valuations prepared by independent and professional
qualified valuer. The fair value is determined by reference to
current prices in an active market for properties of different
nature, condition or location (or subject to different lease or
other contracts) with adjustments to reflect any changes in
market and economic conditions; and discounted cash flow
projections based on reliable estimates of future cash flows
of current market rents for similar properties in the same
location and condition, and using discount rates that reflect
current market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount
and timing of the cash flows.

AEERBBIEES ERMHERD
BEZGHEFEZENEZRY
B> XFEDESZETREE R
REIE (FIRTRBLOHEME
)42 2 A BT 5 & (B (R
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L RREAENZ B A5G
ZHBEMEL ZTERERETR
AREE -

SHREFRAA

201655% 179



1 80 HC International, Inc

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM") has been identified as
the Executive Directors. The Executive Directors review the Group’s
internal report in order to assess performance and allocate resources.
Management has determined the operating segments based on these
reports.

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of profit/(loss) before income tax. This
measurement basis excludes the effect of finance income and cost, other
income, share of profit/(loss) from associates and joint ventures.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group is organised into the following
business segments:

(i)  Online services — provision of a reliable platform to customers to do
business and meet business partners online.

(i)  Trade catalogues and yellow page directories — provision of trade
information through trade catalogues and yellow page directories
operated/published by the Group.

(iiiy  Seminars and other services — services for hosting of seminars.

(iv) 020 business exhibition centre — sales of properties and provision
of property rental and management services.

(v)  Anti-counterfeiting products and services — provision of products
meticulous digital identity management services, consumer goods

tracing and anti-counterfeiting services to enterprises.

(iv)  Financing services — engaged in micro-credit internet financing
business and lease financing services in the PRC.

There were no sales or other transactions between the business
segments for the year ended 31 December 2016.
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SRR NTE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (cContinued) 5

ok

FER @)

&P

Year ended 31 December 2016
BE-R-AEtZA=t-RLEE
Trade Anti-
catalogues 020 counterfeiting
and yellow Seminars business products

Online page  andother exhibition and  Financing
Services  directories services centre services services Total
TH%E& 8ER  001¥ BRER
EHERE RERES EL PR RERL R SRR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTR ARMTR ARET:R ARETR  AR®TR ARETR

Revenue HERA 949,303 11,268 81,911 842,081 66,137 7,583 1,958,283
Segment results NEEE 64,930 1,126 3383 226,294 (17,542) 4,571 282,762
Other income 1) UN 19,590
Other gains/(losses), net i/ (BB FE 127,017
Share of post-tax (losses)/ B ENRRA

profit of associates (B8)/ &7 (19,355) - - 5,855 ()] - (13,502)
Share of post-tax profits of joint  FE{5A &R RIK & HF

ventures - - - - - 27,633 27,633
Finance income E=LN 47,375
Finance cost BEMA (97,373)
Profit before income tax BTSRRI 393,502
Other information: Hi &R -
Depreciation and amortisation 472 [ 3 69,247 41 1,980 4,252 6,310 - 82,030
Share based compensation AR BER 2

expense HERZ 22,906 328 2,240 3,678 414 - 29,566
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B

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 2EER @

Year ended 31 December 2015
BE-F-TSHoAST-ALER

Trade Anti-
catalogues 020 counterfeiting
and yellow Seminars business products
Online page and other exhibition and Financing
Services directories Services centre Services Services
DBE  IEEER EEIN
k% REEAH H s iy SRR
RMB'00 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR
Revenue BHERA 733,309 18,251 109,364 - 55,168 46 916,138
Segment results NEEE 87,722 (8,784) 4,666 (49,974) (8,651) 46 25,025
Other income HiplA 4,374
Other losses EtEE (1,500)
Share of post-tax losses of AMEBERAREER
associates (684) - - (1,389) (29) - (2,102)
Share of post-tax profits of joint ~ {EAL AR &R
ventures - - - - - 11,955 11,955
Finance income N 43,376
Finance cost BB (47,802)
Profit before income tax BRATEHALER] 33,326
Other information: EtEH -
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 41,007 694 5,800 407 6,324 - 54,232
Share based compensation ARG AR Z
expense BERT 23,002 774 4,639 284 492 - 29.231

The Group is domiciled in the PRC. All the revenue were generated from
external customers in the PRC for the year ended 31 December 2016

(2015: same).

As at 31 December 2016, the total non-current assets other than
long term deposits, prepayments and other receivables, finance leases
receivables, investments accounted for using equity method, available-
for-sale financial assets, financial assets at fair value through profit
or losses and deferred tax assets located in the PRC is approximately
RMB2,662,888,000 (2015: RMB2,463,491,000), and the total of these
non-current assets located in other countries is Nil (2015: Nil).

1 82 HC International, Inc

Annual Report 2016

AEEFHNTE BE_FT—XR"F+_H
=+—HLEFE  MAEHEEASRAEPEI
REF(ZZ—0F - #HR) -

R-Z—A"E+-A=+—8 uURFBEz
REATFR - TER R R H A FEUGRTE - FEIR
MERE FREZEIERZEE - ATHE
ESMEE  BRAFEFABEZZERMEE
RELEHIBEEEIIERBDEELBENAA
R¥2,662,888,000/(ZT—HF : AR
2,463,491,0007T) * ZEM N EMBIR 2 IR
HEERERS(ZE—HF T)-




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR NTE

6 LAND USE RIGHTS 6 TibfFE AR
The Group’s interests in land use rights in the PRC represent prepaid AEBERAE T A i A40E
operating lease payments with a lease period of 40 to 50 years and their S50 2 L ERS - HERmFES TN
net book value is analysed as follows: T

2016 2015
—B-AE i

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT

At 1 January w—A—H 176,145 180,882
Amortisation b 5c! (4,737) (4,737)
At 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—8” 171,408 176,145
Cost AN 193,665 193,665
Accumulated amortisation Sty (6,459) (5,312)
Accumulated amortisation charge capitalised in ~ RIREMEE R (L2
investment properties EE: Sk (15,798) (12,208)
Closing net book amount FRERMFE 171,408 176,145
Amortisation of the Group'’s land use rights is included in administrative REE AR B ASHIBERRZIT
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. HERANR -

2016 2015
—E—XE —T—AEF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R AEBTT

Outside Hong Kong, held on: REBIAINSE
Leases of between 40 to 50 years THEAN T40E=504F 171,408 176,145
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7
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

7 BREYFE

2016 2015

—EB—RE “E—FEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T T ARBFIT

At 1 January n—A—H 510,551 194,974

Additions NE 161,263 304,675

Interest capitalised BERERE 4,837 6,593
Amortisation charge capitalised in investment REEMEER 2

properties B 3,590 4,309
Transfer to property, plant and equipment BEEBEEYE - BER

(Note 10) 4 (Ff5E10) (16,853) -

Amortisation 57! (3,043) -

At 31 December W+—-—A=+—8H 660,345 510,551

The investment properties are carried at cost. The Group has completed
the construction of the investment properties during the year ended 31
December 2016.

An independent valuation of the Group’s investment properties was
performed by the valuer, Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited,
to determine the fair value of the investment properties which
amounted to RMB1,192,000,000 as at 31 December 2016 (2015:
RMB1,025,000,000). Fair value of the investment properties is derived
using the market comparison approach. This valuation method is
essentially a means of valuing the completed properties by assuming
sale of each of these properties in its existing state with the benefit of
vacant possession. By making reference to sales transactions as available
in the relevant market, comparable properties in close proximity have
been selected and with adjustments to valuer’s interpretation on the
difference in factors such as location and property size.

The fair value is valued by independent professionally qualified valuer
who holds a recognised relevant professional qualification and has
recent experience in the location of the investment property valued.

The Group’s finance department includes a team that review the
valuation performed by the independent valuer for financial reporting
purpose. This team reports directly to the chief financial officer (CFO)
and the audit committee (AC).
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SRR NTE

7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 7 REWME#®
At each financial year end, finance department REVHREER - HTEE
e Verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation report; o  REBUMMEREAMEEZH AU
e Assess property valuations movements when compared to the prior o MAMELEERTFHERE

year valuation report;

e Holds discussion with the independent valuer. o HUBIAAEREMR o
8 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 8 REPYE

2015
—T-RF

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BT R AEBTTT

At 1 January »w—H—H 670,683 359,415
Additions NE 161,263 304,675
Interest capitalised BAREF B 4,837 6,593
Transferred to completed properties held for BERSEERE
sale (Note 9) BRI (FI7E9) (836,783) -
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H - 670,683
Properties under development comprise: BERPYESE
Construction cost and other capitalised R AR K
expenditures Hi BN 643,906 482,643
Interest capitalised BT B 20,536 15,699
Land use rights + 3 {F FA A 172,341 172,341
Transferred to completed properties held for BESIRERE
sale (Note 9) BRI (FI7E9) (836,783) -
Closing net book amount FIRERENFE = 670,683
The properties under development include cost of acquiring rights to use EREPYEDEWES TURPEARLMN
certain lands, which are located in the People’s Republic of China (“the ([HRE ) b2 (B AR - DAREE BARETTY
PRC"), for property development over a fixed period. Land use rights are FER 2K o T fE RREIRA0FHAIRS -

held on leases of 40 years.
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B

9 COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 9 FHEHERIYHE

2016 2015
—E—REF —T—hHF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R AEBTT

At 1 January m—H—8 - -
Transferred from properties under development 5 %%E Fh ) s 825 (F17E8)

(Note 8) 836,783 -
Properties sold (Note 34) BEME(ME34) (472,166) -
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 364,617 -

All completed properties held for sale are located in the PRC. The cost of A ELER TYEHNNEE - DEyE
properties sold recognised as expense and included in “cost of revenue” TRAERAHY  WEFATWARA] - ©%8
amounted to approximately RMB472,166,000 (2015: Nil). 2 AANREA72,166,000T( ZF—FF « &) -
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SRR NTE

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

10 % - BERRE

included in selling and marketing expenses; and RMB22,792,000 (2015:
RMB23,324,000) in administrative expenses in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

Computer Fixtures,
and telecom- fittings
Construction munications and office Leasehold Motor
in progress Buildings  equipment  equipment improvements vehicles Total
ERR #B #HR HENE
ERIE BF Rt BARE &8 RE @5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR ARETRZ ARMTR AR%TR  ARETR  ARETx
Year ended 31 December 2015 BZ—ZE-HE+-f8
Zt-HLFE
Opening net hook amount EREE - 238,004 26,584 7,988 235 23,241 296,052
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 15(a)) YeEHIB A Al(FzE15() - - 2,657 107 2,434 - 5,198
Additions hE 11,328 - 10,056 1,040 19 2,729 25172
Disposals fe - - (55) (258) (13) (2,054) (2,380)
Transfers &z (11,328) 11,328 - - - - -
Depreciation (3) &) - (12,418) (6,341) (3,176) (635) (7,045) (29615)
Government grant received ERBITEE - - (3,354) - - - (3,354)
Closing net book amount ERERHE - 236914 29,547 5,701 2,040 16,871 291,073
At 31 December 2015 R-Z2-EF+=A
=t-H
Cost KA - 300,853 87,275 23534 8328 32,986 452,976
Accumulated depreciation 2itiE - (63939) (57,728) (17,833) (6,288) (16,115) (161,903)
Net book amount FEFE - 236914 29,547 5701 2,040 16,871 291,073
Year ended 31 December 2016 HZ_Z-<E+ZH
=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount FEARE - 236,914 29,547 5,701 2,040 16,871 291,073
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 15(b) Ye8&H1 &2 7 (15 15(0)) - - 1,250 - - 31 1,281
Additions AE 1,094 18,038 11,878 1,702 9 260 32,981
Disposals il - - 8 - - (972) (980)
Depreciation (3) EE{0) - (13,341) (4,957) (2,590) (766) (5992) (27,646)
Transfer from investment properties 1% BYEERE (H57)

(Note 7) - 16,853 - - - - 16,853
Government grant received ERBITEE - - (4,046) - - - (4,046)
Closing net book amount FREARE 1,094 258,464 33,664 4,813 1,283 10,198 309,516
At 31 December 2016 R=Z-AETZR

=t-H
Cost R 1,094 335,744 90,309 25,224 8,337 28,376 489,084
Accumulated depreciation 2iHrE - (77,280) (56,645) (20,411) (7,054) (18,178) (179,568)
Net book amount BEFE 1,094 258,464 33,664 4813 1,283 10,198 309,516
(a) Depreciation of approximately RMB4,854,000 (2015: RMB6,291,000) is (a) WEHARKAS54000T(ZZ—HEF : AR

#6,291,00070 ) & AR #22,792,0000 (==
—RF : ARB23,324,00070) 7 Blst A A R
AWERZIHERTISHESBURITEER

A o
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B

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 10 ¥ - BERFE@)

The motor vehicles include the following amounts where the Group is a ARG ARMEREE TN AEEBABAZ T
lessee under a finance lease. BFE

2016 2015
—E—REF —ZT—HF

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BT R ARBTT

Cost AR 2,924 2,924
Accumulated depreciation e (1,261) (933)
Net book amount BREFE 1,663 1,991
11 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 11 BREEE
Customer
relationship Customer Non- Trade
(Directsale ~ relationship compete name and Software
Goodwill (Distribution) Patent  agreement  domainname  development  Data library
ZF
BE  (EEZP) | iR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
S ARETT T T ARETr ARETR ARETR  ARETR
At 1 January 2015 R-Z-1%-A-8
Cost B 50314 24,300 20,600 11,100 210 - 26,798 - 133382
Accumulated amortisation ZiBERE
and impairment - (759) (303) (347) (22) - (26,264) - (27,695)
Net book amount BEFE 50314 23541 20297 10,753 28 - 534 - 105,687
Year ended 31 December BE-E-1512R
2015 Zt-ALEE
Opening net book amount ENEEFE 50314 23541 20297 10,753 28 - 534 - 105,687
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERBAR
(Note 15(a) (F£15(a)) 980,247 299,000 - - - 91958 1418 7600 1,380,223
Additions RE - - - - - - 1 - 1
Amortisation () B - (16,629 (1.212) (1.387) (90) (3,083) (521) (1.267) (24,189)
(Closing net book amount EREETE 1,030,561 305912 19,085 9,366 158 88,875 1432 6,333 1461,722
At 31 December 2015 R-E-1%+ZH
=t-A
Cost K 1,030,561 323300 20,600 11,100 210 92,000 28219 7,600 1,513,650
Accumulated amortisationand ~ 2stEHRFE
impairment - (17,388) (1,515) (1,734) (112) (3,125) (26,78) (1,267) (51,928)
Net book value BEHE 1,030,561 305912 19,085 9,366 158 88,875 1432 6,333 1461,722
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11 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 1 BEEE@

Customer
relationship ~ Customer Non- Trade
(Direct sale ~ relationship compete  nameand  Software Order Data
Goodwill  customer)  (Distributor) Patent  agreement domainname  development backlog library Total

RFBE  EFEK ¥
BE  (EHEF) (24) L] B ERREZ  BERR ARHAE fiE it
RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBIO0O
ARBTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARBTR

At 1 January 2016 H=B-7F
-B-A
Cost AR 1,030,561 323,300 20,600 11,100 270 92,000 28219 - 7600 1,513,650
Acumulated amortisationand ~ BstEARELE
impaiment - (17,388) (1,515) (1,734) (112) (3,125) (26,787) - (1,267) (51,928)
Net hook amount EAFE 1,030,561 305,912 19,085 9,366 158 88,875 1432 - 6,333 1461722

Year ended 31 December BE-E-IE

216 +ZB=1-A
1235
Opening net book amount ENERTE 1,030,561 305,912 19,085 9,366 158 88,875 1432 - 6333 1461722
Acquisition of subsiciares WERBAT
(Note 15(b) (FiEE15(0)) 38,426 - - - 800 68,300 - 800 - 108,326
Additions AE - - - - - - 1,765 - - 1,765
Amortisation (a) #) - (30219) (1211) (1,388) (250) (12,997) (19) (800) (2533) (50,194)
Closing net book amount ERERSE 1,068,987 215693 17,874 7978 08 144178 2401 - 3800 1,521,619
At 31 December 2016 NoB-7%
+2A=t-8
Cost i 1,068,987 323300 20,600 11,100 1,070 160,300 29,984 800 7600 1,623,741
Acumulated amortisationand ~ BstEARELE
impaiment - (47,607) (2,726 (3.122) (362) (16,122) (27,583) (800) (3800)  (102,122)
Net book value EmAE 1,068,987 275,693 17,814 1918 708 144,178 2001 - 3800 1521619
(@)  Amortisation of intangible assets is included in administrative expenses in (@) EFEEZBETAGHRERRRZITHE
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. AR e
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11 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Impairment test for goodwill

Management reviews the business performance based on type of
business. Goodwill are allocated to three of the Group’s cash-generating
units (“CGUs") identified which is the business of providing anti-
counterfeiting products and services to enterprise; and online services
— B2B2C business and online services — garment industry in the PRC.
Goodwill is monitored by the management at the operating segment

11 BEFEEE®

R AR
ERFEREBRUERMEBRRR - BEOK
FAEE=EC Az REELEM([REE
B ZREELBEMANTRMEER
B ERERT - AR B MRBB2B2CE
BREMAERY —hERXE -HEREEE
REEENEEREITESR -

level.
2016 2015
—E—RF —ET—hHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARBFT
Anti-counterfeiting products and services [ 4 2 S M AR 7 50,314 50,314
Online services — B2B2C business B H8AR T —B2B2C 7% 980,247 980,247
Online services — garment industry B B8 AR TS — B 38,426 -
1,068,987 1,030,561

The recoverable amount of the CGUs are determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-
year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using the estimated growth rates stated below. Management estimates
the pre-tax discount rate that reflects market assessment of the time
value of money and specific risk relating to the industry.
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11 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 11 BREEE®
Key assumptions of the financial budgets covering the five-year period MERFHREZVRBEIERELEMAR
and other key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are as AEFEREEZEERENT ¢
follows:
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2016
REB—XREF
+=A=+—H
Anti-counterfeiting products and service B R f R AR A%
Average growth rate (note a) TR R(MEa) 10.6% 16%
Discount rate (note b) BRIR & (MY7EDb) 13.2% 13%
Terminal growth rate RIRIERR 3% 3%
Online services — B2B2C business BB RR 3 — B2B2CER
Average growth rate (note a) FHEE R R (H5Ea) 10% 16%
Discount rate (note b) ALIRZE (MI7Eb) 19% 19%
Terminal growth rate BEIERE 3% 3%
Online services — garment industry B - SR
Average growth rate (note a) Figig R E(Mista) 14% Not applicable
TEA
Discount rate (note b) BEIR X (FizEb) 16% Not applicable
TiERA
Terminal growth rate REIER K 3% Not applicable
TiEA
(@)  Average revenue growth rate used in the budget for the five-year period (@) FHEAAZFHRAERERRBZ T —
ending 31 December 2021. FHZA=+—HILAFHRBMEL -
(b)  The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the (b) FTAZERRXABREIA - WREARBEEETE
relevant business. B
() Assuming the revenue decreases by 5% and the discount rate increases by (0 BERHEEWATUS%MAEE EFA1% » R
1%, there is still no impairment charge for the goodwill as at 31 December E-RFTZA=+—HZEBNEREER -
2016.
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12 TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS 12 FEWERXN ~ &2 » AARKERH
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES it FE L =R 3R

2016 2015
—E—REF —E—RE

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBTT

Trade receivables (Note a) FEUAR R (P 5Ea) 162,632 121,165
Less: provision for impairment of trade receivables & : FEUBR FOR(E B (7,643) (9,371)
Trade receivables — net FEURBR SR — FE 154,989 111,794
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables &e -~ BRRIEREAAM
(Note b) FEM IR (FfaEb) 175,898 481,366
Loans to employees (Note b (ii) B#TEES (MisEb (i) 28,824 28,995
359,711 622,155
Less: Non-current deposit, prepayments and other & : 3ERENIRS « TARZRIER
receivables Hh FEURRIE (32,011) (74,989)
Current portion mENE D 327,700 547,166
(a) Trade receivables (a) FEUERRR
The Group generally grants a credit period ranging from 90 days to REB-REKBEBI>BLETEFPNT
180 days to customers depending on business segment. The aging 90FE 180K ZZE B o EMBR AT IR
analysis of the gross trade receivables based on invoice date is as SHEZERESTAT :
follows:

2016 2015
—E—REF —T—hHF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT

Current to 90 days BIEAZ= 90K 98,603 92,106
91 to 180 days 91E180K 37,608 14,733
181 to 365 days 181E365K 20,183 9,911
Over 1 year ik —F 6,238 4,415

162,632 121,165
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SRR NTE

12 TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS 12 FEUWERE - 124 - ERZERHE
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) b FE U FRIE (1)

(a) FEWRRFR (40

(a) Trade receivables (Continued)

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their fair
values.

Balances are denominated in RMB and there is no concentration
of credit risk with respect to trade receivables as the Group has a
large number of customers nationally dispersed.

The Group has recognised a loss of approximately RMB878,000 for
the impairment of its trade receivables during the year ended 31
December 2016 (2015: RMB8,212,000).

As at 31 December 2016, trade receivables of approximately
RMB7,643,000 (2015: RMB9,371,000) were impaired and have
been provided for. The individually impaired receivables mainly
represent sales made to customers which have remained long
overdue.

As at 31 December 2016, trade receivables of approximately
RMB21,552,000 (2015: RMB19,688,000) were past due but not
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers for
whom there is no recent history of default. The aging analysis of
these trade receivables is as follows:

FEWBR TR 2 BRI B B H X EARE -

EHRAARKESHE AR AEERZEP
DEUAPBIE - AN ERE 2 YRR
sEEhEERR -

BE_T—XRE+-_A=+—HILEE
AEBEEBREEKREZREBEOA
R¥878000 L (ZZ—AHF : AR
8,212,0007T) °

R-Z—XE+-A=+—8  BUIER
PAREET 643,0000(ZF—HF : AR
#£9,371,0007T) B R EIL1EREAE © BB
EREYGRIE X BIRMEFIHE <A S H
REFFHIE -

R-T—XNE+-A=+—8  BUEX
#ANERH¥E21,552,0000L(ZE—FF : A
R ®19,688,0007T) A BB KRB E © %
ERFAZEZBIRPAR - HEI W
IR - REEIRR Z BRie D AT I
=

2016 2015
—B-AEF i

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR¥T ARETTT

91 to 180 days 91£180K 2,773 14,733
181 to 365 days 181E365K 18,378 4,955
Over 1 year HBiE—F 401 _

21,552 19,688
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B

12 TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS 12 FEWERXN ~ &2 » AARKERH

AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) ft UK IR ()

(a) Trade receivables (Continued) (a) EUWERF ()
Movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables are ERERR 2 HEREESHIT
as follows:

2016 2015
—g-X&  -2-TF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT

At 1 January n—HA—H 9,371 4,224
Impairment of receivables U IERE 878 8,212
Write off for impaired receivables JE L TR TR (B 8 (2,606) (3,065)
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 7,643 9,371
The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have BRI EREBGRIBRE M 2L KR EET A
been included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive BUHREWERA o 5T ARBBR 2 IE—
income. Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally M TE B A UL B BRSO NR B BRI o
written off when there is no expectation of recovering additional
cash.
The other classes within trade and other receivables do not include U BRFR % LA e W R TE 2 ELAh A Bl A
a provision for impairment of other receivables. EAIEE A I 2 RERE -
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the RRERBzEaEERR R EXFAHEE
fair values of trade receivables disclosed above. The Group did not FEURBR TR 2 N B o ANEENEEE E
hold any collateral as security. AR ERELR o
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SRR NTE

12 TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS 12 FEWER » &€ » AARERHE

AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) it WK IR ()
(b) Deposits, prepayments and other receivables (b) & - EAFERHEMERIE

2016 2015
—E-REF —T—hHF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARBET T

Non-current portion: JEMBNEL S -
— Deposits —i&e 2,589 4,406
- Loans to employees (Note (ii)) —ERTFEES (M) - 26,241
— Loans to an associate (Note (iii) —ERFTEBERAR
(BR=EGin) 29,422 44,342
32,011 74,989
Current portion: ENED S -
— Deposits —&® 23,617 17,322
— Prepayments — TR R 62,867 19,050
— Prepayments for tax (Note (i) — B R IE (P EEG)) 33,513 89,129
— Loans to employees (Note (ii)) — BB (KEE) 28,824 2,754
— Loans to an associate (Note (iii) —ERT MBS QT
(B =EGii)) 23,890 -
— Amount due from a former associate — FEU — RIS & A R FOE = 559
- Loans to a joint venture (Note (v)) —BERTF—HEEERNT
(M) - 201,427
— Loans to third parties (Note (vi)) — BT E =7 (M) - 105,131
172,711 435,372
204,722 510,361
The fair values are as follows: BEANFENAT :
Deposits e 26,206 21,728
Prepayments TERTFRIR 96,380 108,179
Other receivables H A pE Uk R IE 82,136 380,454
204,722 510,361
Denominated in: LATRONEHEHE -
HK dollars BT 17,590 2,754
Renminbi AR 187,132 506,677
US dollars ETT - 930
204,722 510,361
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12 TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (cContinued)

(b) Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
(Continued)

Note (i):

Note (ii):

Note (iii):

1 96 HC International,

The balance at 31 December 2016 represents RMB33,513,000
(2015: RMB89,129,000) prepayment of tax associated with the
presale of properties in 020 business exhibition centre. The
construction was completed in October 2016 when revenue from
sale of properties was commenced.

The balance includes loans totaling of RMB26,244,000 (2015:
RMB26,241,000) granted to several management members of
Beijing Panpass Information Technology Co., Ltd (“Panpass”), a
subsidiary acquired by the Group on 8 October 2014, for their
sole purpose of purchase of shares of Panpass at market price and
the shares purchased are pledged to secure the loans. The loans
will mature on 28 September 2017, and are interest bearing at a
rate of 5% per annum. These management members hold 20%
issued share capital of Panpass after the acquisition of Panpass by
the Group on 8 October 2014.

The balance represents loan of RMB2,580,000 (2015:
RMB2,754,000) granted in connection with the Employee Share
Scheme. On 21 December 2012, the Group granted loans to
several employees of the Group for the sole purpose of purchase
of shares of the Group at market price. Maturity date of the loans
have been extended from 21 December 2016 to 21 December
2017. The loans are denominated in HK dollars and interest
bearing at a rate of 5% per annum.

This balance represents loan and interest receivable from Z1&}%
e EBR /AR (“Hui De”), an associate of the Group, amounting
to RMB53,312,000 (2015: RMB44,342,000). The Group granted
loans amounting to RMB20,800,000 and RMB19,200,000 on 14
December 2014 and 4 March 2015 respectively. The loans will
mature on 21 November 2017 and 4 March 2018 respectively,
and are interest bearing at a rate of 7% per annum.

On 22 October 2015, the Group granted an addition loan
amounting to RMB1,600,000 to Hui De. The loan will mature
on 21 October 2018, and is interest bearing at a rate of 7% per
annum.

On 26 September 2016, the Group granted another loan
amounting to RMB5,940,000 to Hui De. The amounts will mature
on 25 September 2019, and is interest bearing at a rate of 6% per
annum.

Inc Annual Report 2016

12 EWARRR

CBE - AARERR

b FE YL FRE (1)

(b) &S~

(#8)
FYEEG) -

A G -

B 5 i) <

BENRERHMERRE

R-ZE—RE+-B=+—HB2&H
& A ARK33,513,000L (=%
—RF : AR¥89,129,0007T) & &
OO0 ¥R BEF LY ETBE 2 BN
B BAIRER S —AE+ A%
T - WA EEYEZ YA -

EMEIEERE L ARK26,244,000
T(ZZ—RF : ARM26,241,000
TT) ' B AEEMZ AL RkE
= BRITRM AR AR ([IKE D (A%
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SRR NTE

12 TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b) Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
(Continued)

Note (iv):

Note (v):

Note (vi):

As at 31 December 2015, amount represented receivable balances
for provision of data library services from the former associate, 4t
REHKERMISEMNZARGR AR, which was disposed of in
2011.

As at 31 December 2015, amount represented loan and
interest receivable from EESMNHIFER/NEERBR AT,
a joint venture of the Group, amounting to RMB201,427,000.
The amounts had been fully repaid during the year ended 31
December 2016.

As at 31 December 2015, amount included entrusted loans
advanced to two third parties and interest receivable amounting
RMB70,087,000 and RMB35,044,000 respectively through a
financial institution in the PRC, as lending agent. The amounts
had been fully repaid during the year ended 31 December 2016.

13 SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2016:

I Hong Kong Huicong International Group
Limited ("HKHC")
FREREREEERAR

Place of

Principal

activities and
place of operation
TEXBR
Tghs

incorporation and
kind of legal entity
EMAIBER
EERRERR

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability company

EERIHS  ARATF

Investment holding in
Hong Kong

([&#ZR))

I HC Group (Hong Kong) Limited

BRA(ER)BRAF

Hong Kong, liability
company

& BRAT

Investment holding in
Hong Kong

12 BEWERF e  ANFERAE
b PE W R I ()

(b) & - ANREREMEKRRE
(&)
fiEG) R -B-AFt-A=+—8 %&
T LR G SRR AR RS 2 R A )
AR A RIE REE RBRTIHES
HHERAF(ER-F——EHE)
ZRERBIH -

MW : RZFE—RFT_A=1+—H &%=
BEERASESGE AR EESMNEE
BERNEERERARZERRF
BEAR®201,427,0007T © Z&BEHER
HE-_Z-R"E+-_A=+—HL*#E
[ERBEN -

Mizy) R=T—hF+=-A=+—8 " %
EREAR - HPES RS (EAE
FRIB)ANFREE = H 2 RTER
Ko e U 7 B A R #70,087,0007T &2 A
R#35,044,0007T - ZEEEREE
- RNFEF A+ HUIEFER
HEL -

13 MEAF
UTER-_ZE—RF+_A=+—"HFEHE

NAEZIEE
Proportion
of ordinary
shares held
by non-
Particulars of registered Effective controlling
share capital interest held interests (%)
FrsEx FERER
BRMBRAFE B FRLERLA
21,000,000 ordinary 100% -
shares of US$0.01 each
21,000,008
BREEOIETZLER
500,000 ordinary 100% -
shares of HK$1 each
500,0008%
BREGBIAT SRR

SHREFRAA
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13 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2016:

(Continued)

Orange Triangle Inc.

Orange Triangle (HK) Limited

¢ ZhongFu Holdings Limited

4 Saidan HK Limited

HRERERERERAT

IS BEBERRMARAR

IREABRERERLR

Annual R

1 98 HC International, Inc

Place of
incorporation and
kind of legal entity
EMEIBER
HEERER

State of Delaware, USA

8 EuRM

Hong Kong, liability
company

&8 BRAT

British Virgin Islands, limited
liability company

EREIES  ARAT

Hong Kong, liability
company

&% BRAT

The PRC, limited liability
company

TR ARAT

The PRC, limited liability
company

el BRAT
The PRC, limited liability

company

TR BRAF

eport 2016

Principal

activities and
place of operation
TEXBR
-3t

Investment holding in
the State of Delaware
RARR—EARM

Investment holding
in Hong Kong
REABR-FE

Investment holding in BV

RAEK-RERLES

Investment holding in
Hong Kong
REBR-BE

Provision of business
information in the PRC

RHEXER-F

Provision of business
information in the PRC

REAREN -8

Provision of business
information in the PRC

RHEXEN-+E

13 MEBAT ()
AFAR-BE—A<E+-—A=+—BXEWE

REIZEE (B

Proportion

of ordinary
shares held

by non-
controlling
interests (%)
FERER
FrisEBRLAl

Effective
interest held
BN
i

Particulars of registered
share capital

BEMRAHR

200 shares of US$0.01 100% -

2008 BHREE.01FT LKA
10,000 ordinary 100% -
shares of HK$1 each
10,000/
FREBIAT EER
50,000 ordinary 100% -
shares of US§1 each
50,000/
FHREEIET LR
10,000 ordinary 100% -
shares of HK$1 each
10,000f%
BREBIET EER

RMB110,000,000 100% -

AEH110,000,0007T
RMB900,000,000 100% -
AR 5900,000,0007T
RMB10,000,000 100% -

AKH10,000,0007C
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13 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

13 MBAR @)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2016:

NTRRZBE—RFTZA=ZT—BEENE

(Continued) RAEIZEE : (58)
Proportion
of ordinary
shares held
Place of Principal by non-
incorporation and activities and Particulars of registered Effective controlling
kind of legal entity place of operation share capital interestheld interests (%)
EMEIBER TERBR FrsEH kERER
HEERER BEmE BRMBRAFE Bt FELERLA
ERERBANEERAR The PRC, limited liability ~ Provision of business RMB250,000,000 100% -
company information in the PRC
e BRAR REHFEA - AR 250,000,000
IRRERE The PRC, limited liability ~ Advertising in the PRC RMBS500,000 100% -
company
TE - BRAR BE-HE ARH500,0007
ZlEERS (LR ERAA The PRC, limited liability ~ Advertising in the PRC RMB2,000,000 100% -
company
ME - BRAE BE-HE ARH2,000,0007T
G RERRREANEAERAA The PRC, limited liability ~ Provision of business RMB36,000,000 100% -
company information in the PRC
e BRAR REHFEA - AR 36,000,007
BMNZRBENEERAR The PRC, limited liability ~ Advertising in the PRC RMB8,333,333 60% 40%
company
TE - BRAR BE-HE AR8,3333337

ER(RRETAREXRARRAR

The PRC, limited liability
company
HE - ERAT

Investment holding in the PRC

RARR-E

RMB91,750,000 60% 40%

AEH91,750,0007

: EREEXR The PRC, limited liability ~ Construction and sale of RMB166,670,000 37.49% 62.51%
company properties in the PRC
e BRAR BRREENE-H AR%166,670,0007
: BUTEREETEBERAR The PRC, limited liability ~ Provision of properties RMB555,500 37.49% 62.51%
company management services
in the PRC
el BRAF RUNFERRY - ARH555,5007

BHEERAA

20165 F
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13 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2016:

13 MEBAT ()
AFAR-BE—A<E+-—A=+—BXEWE

(Continued) RAEIZEE - (5&)
Proportion
of ordinary
shares held
Place of Principal by non-
incorporation and activities and Particulars of registered Effective controlling
kind of legal entity place of operation share capital interest held interests (%)
RaAE:E TEERR FiRER  FERER
HERRER Ry BREMBAFE B FRTERLA
B EARMERAT The PRC, limited liabiity ~ Provision of business RMB35,000,000 100% -
company information in the PRC
TR ARAT REBFAA - ARH35,000,0007
AUERETEBARAF The PRC, limited liability ~ Provision of business RMB1,000,000 100% -
company information in the PRC
PE - ARAT REEXER-TE AR1,000,0007T
FRKEESRMRAERAT The PRC, limited liability ~ Anti-counterfeiting RMB54,464,000 56% 44%
company Technology Development
in the PRC
TE - BRAR FEm AR —H ARH54,464,0007C
TEREASRMERAA The PRC, limited liability ~ Investment holding in the PRC ~ RMB45,000,000 100% -
company
PR ARAT RAR -+ AR 45,000,007
EREREREARAR The PRC, limited liability ~ Finance leasing services in the  US$30,000,000 100% -
company PRC
e BRAH RERERB - 30,000,000%7
RE=AREERAT The PRC, limited liability ~ Provision of business US$150,000 100% -
company information in the PRC
wE - BRAF REHFAR - 150,000%7
PR TR HER A The PRC, limited liability ~ Provision of business RMB10,000,000 100% -
company information in the PRC
PR ARAT REFFAA - ARE10,000,0007C
ENEEEFEBERAT The PRC, limited liability ~ Provision of trading and RMB20,000,000 60% 40%
company agency services in the PRC
e BRAH REEFERABRE-TE  AKH20,0000007T

Annual Report 2016
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13 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2016:
(Continued)

13 MBAR @)
UTAR-E—A<E+-A=+—BXEWS
ARZEE : ()

Proportion
of ordinary
shares held
Place of Principal by non-
activities and Particulars of registered Effective controlling
place of operation EICYE e interest held interests (%)
IEXBER BN FERER
BEMBRAFE B FRLERLA

incorporation and
kind of legal entity
EMELBER
EEERER BEws

FREREEAHEMEERAR The PRC, limited liability  Provision of business RMB1,000,000 60% 40%

company

TR ARAT

information in the PRC

RHEEXER-F

AKH1,000,0007

3 OEREEMEREEERAT The PRC, limited liability ~ Provision of trading and RMB10,000,000 60% 40%

company agency services in the PRC

PE - ARAT

REEERRERB-FE  ARE10,000,0007

EMEREFHBERLT The PRC, limited liability ~ Provision of business RMB1,500,000 60% 40%
company information in the PRC
TE - BRAR RHAREN -1 ARH1,500,0007
TEERRRMBARLT The PRC, limited liability ~ Provision of business RMB3,000,000 60% 40%
company information in the PRC
ME - BRAFE REHFAA - ARH3,000,0007
EAEEFEBERAA The PRC, limited liability ~ Provision of business RMB1,500,000 60% 40%
company information in the PRC
e BRAH REHFEA P AR1,500,0007T
ZE The PRC, limited liability ~ Provision of business RMB3,000,000 51% 49%
company information in the PRC
TE - BRAR REBHREA - AR3,000,0007
TRESEFHHARLA The PRC, limited liability ~ Provision of business RMB1,500,000 60% 40%
company information in the PRC
ME - BRAFE REBEAR —E ARH1,500,0007
BAERRBRAR The PRC, limited liability ~ Provision of business RMB3,000,000 60% 40%
company information in the PRC
e BRAH REHFEA - AR3,000,0007T

BHEERAA
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13 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2016:

(Continued)

P LEBRBRAANBARAT

3 RERRRETEBARLA

3 ENEEERERYEERAT

3 EREZETEBERAR

D RIBESER R ERAT

3 LEEESTEBERAR

P EREBSRAARAT

¢ NERERMRERAR

Annual R

202 HC International, Inc

Place of

incorporation and
kind of legal entity
EMA IR
EERRER

The PRC, limited liability
company

PR BRAF

The PRC, limited liability
company

TR ARAT

The PRC, limited liability
company

PR ARAT

The PRC, limited liability
company

PR BRAF

The PRC, limited liability
company

TR ARAT

The PRC, limited liability
company

PE - ARAT

The PRC, limited liability
company

PR BRAF

Hong Kong, limited liability

company

&E ARAA

eport 2016

Principal

activities and
place of operation
FTEXBR
gk

Provision of business
information in the PRC

REBXER-TE

Provision of business
information in the PRC

RHEXER-+E

Provision of business
information in the PRC

REAREN -8

Provision of business
information in the PRC

REHEER - PE

Provision of business
information in the PRC

RHEXER-+E

Provision of trading and

agency senvices in the PRC

RUEEERRERE-TE

Provision of business
information in the PRC

REBXEA-TE

Investment holding
in the PRC
REAR-TE

13 MEBAT ()
AFAR-BE—A<E+-—A=+—BXEWE
ARZEE : ()

Proportion
of ordinary
shares held
by non-
Particulars of registered Effective controlling
share capital interest held  interests (%)
FsEd  FERER
B R A E B FAREERLA
RMB1,500,000 60% 40%
AR1,500,0007C
RMB1,500,000 80% 20%
ARE1,500,0007T
RMB1,000,000 60% 40%
AE%1,000,0007
RMB5,000,000 60% 40%
AR5,000,0007
RMB5,000,000 60% 40%
AR5,000,0007T
RMB50,000,000 100% -
AE50,000,00070
RMB220,000,000 100% -
AR220,000,0007T
US$1,000,000 100% -

1,000,000 7T
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13 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2016:
(Continued)

13 MBAR @)
UTAR-E—A<E+-A=+—BXEWS
ARZEE : ()

RNEHNRARLA

IR REEMEERAR

DE N R NG

AR RS SRR AR AR

Place of

incorporation and
kind of legal entity
KR
EERRER

The PRC, limited liability
company

TR BRAF

The PRC, limited liability
company

TR ARAT

The PRC, limited liability
company

PE - ARAT

The PRC, limited liability
company

TR BRAF

Principal

activities and
place of operation
TEXBR

Investment holding
in the PRC
RABR-H

Provision of business
information in the PRC

RHEXER-F

Provision of business
information in the PRC

REAREN -8

Provision of business
information in the PRC

REFEZAR -+

Shares held directly by the Company.

2 EBEREEREHMIREER AR and FILTHTEREET FEBFEAERAQF are
indirectly held through the Company’s 60% owned subsidiary, ZH2(X2)
EFEBAERAR. BEIR(XRZE)EFEB AR AR directly holds 53.1%
equity interest in these two companies and indirectly holds 9.39% (2015:
6.41%) of equity interest in these two companies through its 20% held
associate, Z1&1F %A R A 7). Hence, the Group effectively hold 37.49%
(2015: 35.71%) of ERZRKEWIREBR AT and FILTEZHEE 7

BHERATE.

3 These companies are newly incorporated during the year ended 31
December 2016.

4 These companies are newly acquired during the year ended 31 December
2016.

Proportion

of ordinary

shares held

by non-

Particulars of registered Effective controlling

share capital interest held  interests (%)

FeER  FERER

B RAFE B FRLERLA

RMB5,250,000 100% -
AR5,250,0007

RMB10,000,000 80.38% 19.62%
AK10,000,0007

RMBS5,000,000 80.38% 19.62%
AE5,000,0007

RMB1,000,000 80.38% 19.62%
AR1,000,0007

! RN AR A EERE

2 ERERREHICEER AR RELTERE
BETRABERAREAARRAEAEC0%ERZ
MBARZRE(XE)ETRHERANMER
Ao BR(RR)ETHAKERAREEFEZ
MR A AI53.1%RANERS I iE B EHIEH20%4E
wZHERRZEERARA D HEREEZM
RKAF9.39% (=T —F4E : 6.41%) 1R ©
b AEEERSEERSRREMICEEAR
NERFELUTENEEFEEERATI37.49%
(ZZT—FF : 35.71%)#Ex -

: ZERFNBE_F-A"FtZA=1T—HL
FEAEMAL -

¢ FZERARRBE-_Z—R"F+ZA=+—H
IEFEAKEERT] -

SHREFRAA
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13 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 13 MEA R @)

(a) EAXRFERER

(a) Material non-controlling interests

204 HC International, Inc

Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with
material non-controlling interests

Set out below are the summarised financial information for &
REBREBWREFR LA ("ERZEKEH") that has non-
controlling interests that are material to the Group.

Summarised statement of financial position

BREAHIER BB L A 2 BERH
E3
TXHINERBREXEMLEFRAF
((ERBRREM D UBERRE - &
BEEHAEEIN E B EA L IR

MEMRRRBE

2016 2015
=B—REF —T-RE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARETTT
Current D

Assets BiE 616,935 858,690
Liabilities affE (750,535) (1,191,795)
Net current liabilities mENBEFEE (133,600) (333,105)

Non-current FERED
Assets BE 835,588 795,320
Liabilities afE (353,166) (312,075)
Net non-current assets JEMBEEFE 482,422 483,245
Net assets BEFE 348,822 150,140

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s 20% held
associate, ZEEAL AR A A], had further acquired the equity
shares in ERZIAKEH. Hence, the Group effectively equity
holdings in EHRZJRREH had increased from 35.71% to
37.49%.

As at 31 December 2016, the non-controlling interests balances of
E R ZFA5 E 3 amounted approximately RMB170,205,000 (2015:
RMB46,568,000).

Annual Report 2016

RBE-_T—AF+_-_A=+—ALHF
¥ AAREEFE20%EEZHE AR
SEEBRARARE—HRERREER
Bz EmRD - At - AEBRERE
BREH 2 BRFEREHS.71%IEME
37.49% o

d e X

RZEBE—RE+_A=+—H8 EERE
BREPZIFERESEHROBARE
170,205,000 L (ZZF—RHF : AR
46,568,0007T) °
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SRR NTE

13 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 13 MEAR
(a) Material non-controlling interests (Continued) (a) EARFERER )
Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with BEEAHZR BRI L a2 BHERRE
material non-controlling interests (Continued) E(#E)
Summarised statement of comprehensive income FEBRREE

ERZKEH
2016 2015

—E—RE —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT

Revenue HERA 859,441 -
Profit/(loss) before income tax BAETSE AR F] (EE) 287,089 (51,045)
Income tax (expense)/credit Fiefi(Fx) R (88,407) 10,886
Profit/(loss) after tax BB R (E51E) 198,682 (40,159)
Other comprehensive income HEip 2w A = -
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2ERA(F58) 8 198,682 (40,159)

Total comprehensive income/(loss) allocated 3B 2= JEFEfE#EZ= 2
to non-controlling interests 2HEWA(F5R) 858 123,637 (26,619)

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests £ 15 JE3% AR HE 25 A% 2. = -

ERESRAT 20164 F R 205




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

13 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 13 BT
(a) Material non-controlling interests (Continued) (a) BEARFEZERER®
Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with HEAHZREIE L a2 BEEREE
material non-controlling interests (Continued) E2(#E)
Summarised cash flow statement REeRERYE

ERZRREH
2016 2015

—E—RE —E—AF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARKETT

Cash flows from operating activities REXBRERE

Cash generated from/(used in) operations  &&ES (FrA)RE 342,387 204,641
Income tax paid EASFTER - -
Net cash generated from/(used in) CHEREE /(TR R& 58

operating activities 342,387 204,641
Net cash used in investing activities K& ESFTAE SR (324,383) (410,266)
Net cash generated from financing activities Fi& EEIAELIR S FEE 107,096 17,307
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRAELZEEY

cash equivalents REEM,GRD) 125,100 (188,318)
Cash and cash equivalents at FV B RREEEY

beginning of year 90,244 278,562
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRZBESRRSEEY 215,344 90,244

14 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 14 #ZERZEIIRZIKRE
EQUITY METHOD
The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial TXHINEHMERARE R 225
position are as follows:

2016 2015
—T—hHF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT

Associates i Al/NG]| 138,595 105,921
Joint ventures SN 440,428 412,795
At 31 December Rt+-A=+—8H 579,023 518,716

206 HC International, Inc Annual Report 2016
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SRR NTE

14 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 14 #ZERZEVRZKRE
EQUITY METHOD
The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive TXERIINEHRE NamREERZ 25
income are as follows:

2016 2015
—B-AE i

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT

Associates /NG| (13,502) (2,102)

Joint ventures AE RN 27,633 11,955

For the year ended 31 December BEt+-A=+—HILFE 14,131 9,853
(a) Investment in associates () REEENTZRE

2016 2015
—E—RE —T—hHF

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BT R ARBTT

At 1 January m—H—H 105,921 45,523

Addition NE 54,550 62,500
Share of post-tax losses DMEBRTIEEE (13,502) (2,102)

Impairment (Note) AE (P aE) (8.374) -

At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 138,595 105,921
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group made an Wi R E—ZT—E+-_A=+—BHI4%F
aggregate impairment provision of approximately RMB8,374,000 EAEBSERETHA AT ZIEE
(2015: Nil) against the carrying amounts of its investments in certain AU E LB E T RES G
associates based on the results of impairment assessment performed B B HEEEEL BEREA RS

on the carrying amounts of these investments with reference to their AR#8,374,0000(ZZF—HEF : ) -

recoverable amounts.

ERESRAT 20164 F R 207
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14 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(a) Investment in associates (Continued)
Set out below are associates which, in opinion of director, are
material to the Group as at 31 December 2016. The associates as
listed below have share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares,
which are held directly by the Group; the country of establishment
or registration is also their principal place of business.

14 BREREIRZEBE @)

(a) REEDT 2RE ()

NTHINEERAR -_ZE—RF+=A
=t BYEREEBEAZEERA - T
FIEFE N A 2 RAFR A REEmA - AA
EEEERFE - M SEMERNAE
TEEEME -

Place of business/ % of
country of effective Nature of the Measurement
Name of entity establishment interest relationship method
BN BRER
ERsE BYBER BO BEMNE TEAR
2016 2015
ZERE
SREERERAR PRC 12.0 120 Note' Equity
(Hui De Holding Co., Ltd.*) i Bz s
IZRREBR AT PRC 29.6 296  Note?2 Equity
(Zhejiang Huicong Investment Co., Ltd*) fEl BizE2 T
RE(ER)EEmEERERAR PRC 19.4 200 Note3 Equity
(China Formwork (Beijing) International Brand BizE3 #EH
Management Limited*)
AZRRHETFEBERRE PRC 30.0 300  Note4 Equity
(Xian Pipiyi E-commerce Limited*) s R =3y
TRREARRRERAR PRC 36.4 - Note5 Equity
(Beijing Rongshang Tonglian H PitEs fEan

Technology Co., Ltd*)

* English names are translated for identification purpose only

Annual Report 2016
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SRR NTE

14 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (cContinued)

(a) Investment in associates (Continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

Hui De Holding Co., Ltd* ("Z£f54ZM%") provides investment
management and project investments in the PRC. The Group
holds 60% interests of its subsidiary, Z2J8 (X3%) B FEKERE LD

7], which in turn holds 20% of interests in Z{&=2%.

Zhejiang Huicong Investment Co., Limited* (“3#7)T 2¥2") engages
in investment in real estate construction and management. The
Group directly holds 20% equity shares of J#T;T 24 and indirectly
holds 9.6% equity interests through Z1&42f%. Hence, the Group
effectively holds 29.6% equity interest in ¥;T ZH2.

The Group directly holds 19.4% of interests in China Formwork
(Beijing) International Brand Management Limited* ("4t s
). db 1 engages in e-commerce business for the building
equipment leasing industry in the PRC.

The Group directly holds 30% of interests in Xian Pipiyi
e-commerce Limited* ("7 5 ") at a total consideration of
RMB10,000,000 in cash. f7F7 5 engages in e-commerce business
for labor protection appliance in the PRC.

In January 2016, the Group entered into an agreement to
subscribe 36.4% of the total issued share capital of Beijing
Rongshang Tonglian Technology Co., Ltd* (“@hps@Est"),
through its wholly owned subsidiary, at a total consideration
of RMB12,750,000 in cash. g7 :@H# engages in e-commerce
business for computer, communication and consumer electronics
in the PRC.

14 BREZEIRZEBE @)

(a) REEERTRZIRE M)

BHEET -

BiEE2 -

BGES -

BisEa -

BIEES -

SEERERA R (SRR )RR
N EREREERRIBEREE
% AEEBAEMBARER(R
E)VETREBEARATC0%ES -
BR(RB)ETEBERARRBAR
IR 20% % o

ANIZRIEERR AR (ITIZR )
REFMEREREREEES - K
SEEEFBENTIZB20%MAE
B BEERREEEEH.6%MK
7 - Bt - AEERBEENIER
29.6% %4 °

AEEEEFAPROER)BEE R
EEARAR([HERFE])19.4%1H
o bR APIER P EEEEMAEE
WEETRHEES -

TEBZEBRBEREARE
10,000,000 T HEHERE S ETH
BERAR([EES])30% 1 -
KR SHFEASRERIREREEE
ﬁ%o

RZT—XNFE—A  KEBTLH
#UEBEZENEBARREILR
i EE R AR AR ([ B @ )
B BITA36.4% @ HRSNKE
B ARM12,750,0007T © B E @B
FEUTEAHEEN  BAREEET
EmZETREES -

SHREFRAA
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B

14 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 14 #ZBEZRZEVIRZIRE @)
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(a) Investment in associates (Continued) (a) REEEQRRZRE@®
Summarised consolidated financial information for associates BERAZHEEHNBENEE
Set out below are the summarised consolidated financial TXHINEERAHAREBEBEK BIRE
information for the associates which, in the opinion of director, wESIIR 2 B E A RARE IS AR E -
are material to the Group and are accounted for using the equity
method.

SRER MISH HE(ER) EZRKS HEEs
2016 2015 2016 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

SR C3-TF CE-AE S®-RE ZT-IF S9-AF “F-IF C$-ME CF-14

RMB'O00  RVB000  RMB'000  RMBOOD  RMB000  RMBOO0  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARMFR ARETT ARMTR ARETT ARMTR ARETI ARBTR ARETI ARBTR ARETR

Current i)
Cash and cash equivalents BERBRLEEY 52,449 57352 51,588 55,109 677 1,567 87 12,343 1493 -
Other current asset EreaE

(excluding cash) (BB 582,574 393444 567,566 367,606 36,593 31,535 6,676 19 1,698 -
Total current assets aREiE 635023 450796 619154 422,735 37,210 33,102 6,763 12,535 3,191 -
Financial liabilities B aE(ER

(excluding trade payables)  EENESH) (100,000) - (100,000) - - - - - - -
Other current liabiliies EtiBaE

(including trade payables) ~ (BEEMER)  (17,794)  (33184)  (146392) (32995  (23638)  (19948) (131) (34) (5462) -
Total current liabilities Zrgak (317,794)  (33,184)  (46392) (32995  (23638)  (19.948) (131) (34) (5462) -
Non-current Fhd
Assets EE 288759 188,603 5,082 6,327 10,892 10,730 532 511 382 -
Financialliablities BaE (485,370) - - - - - - - - -
Other liabilties EfafE - (4640000 (150,000  (150,000) - - - - - -
Total non-current (liabilties)  3E7B(&fE)/

assets EEER (196,611)  (275397)  (144518)  (143673) 10,892 10,730 532 511 382 -
Net assets/iabilities) BE/(BE)HE 120618 142215 228244 246067 24,524 23,884 7,164 13,012 (1,889) -
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SRR NTE

14 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE

EQUITY METHOD (cContinued)

(a) Investment in associates (Continued)

14

BRREREIRZKRE @)

(a) REEERTRZIRE M)

Summarised consolidated statement of comprehensive B E N R E
income
SE2R WIS HE(LR) BERRS REEY
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2016 2015 2016 2015
Z2-xF -T-1F CE-xE T-1F ZE-RF “E-RF 21 B ZB-If
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARRFR ARRTR ARRFR ARRFE ARBTR
Revenue HENA 212 - - - 13141 10,407 1,349 40 12,119 -
Profit/{oss) after tax BHR&ER/
(B8 80,032 (391  (17,83) (3.276) 639 1183 (5,849) (1988) (33919 -
Other comprehensive income  Efr2EMA = - = - = - = - = -
Total comprehensive 2ERA/ (BB
income/(loss) et 75124 (22,391) (17,823) (3,276) 639 1183 (5,849) (1,988) (33919 -
Profit attributable to ERHEAEEG
the equity owner fl 78,736 (21,268) (17,823) (3,276) 639 1,183 (5,849) (1,988) (33,919 -
Direct equity interest BRBERR
held 12% 12% 20% 20% 19.4% 20% 30% 30% 36.43% -
Share of profiti{oss) ERERET/
for the year (B8) 9,448 (2,552) (3,565) (655) 124 237 (1,755) (596) (12,357) -

The information above reflects the amounts presented in the

consolidated financial statements of the associates (and not HC
International Inc.’s share of those amounts) adjusted for differences
in accounting policies between the Group and the associates.

(b) Investment in joint ventures

PIER R BRI R R A GRS IRR AT
2z WA FERRBER DA MEZ
S8 AAKEERE AR ZEFIER
KERMELAE -

(b) REELQRAZRE

2016 2015

—B-AE —ThF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBTT

At 1 January n—A—H 412,795 270,840
Addition NE - 130,000
Share of post-tax profits DEERT A 27,633 11,955
At 31 December R+-ZA=+—H 440,428 412,795

SHREFRAA
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14 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

14 BREREIRZEBE @)

(b) REELQTZRE MW

(b) Investment in joint ventures (Continued)

21 2 HC International, Inc

Set out below is the joint venture company which, in the opinion of
the directors, are material to the Group. The joint venture company
as listed below has share capital consisting solely of ordinary
shares, which are held directly by the Group; the country of
incorporation or registration is also its principal place of business.

Nature of investment in joint venture as at 31 December 2016:

UTHIEEZRREAEEBEAZAZ
DA - TXPGERRZRAR R B
MAKBERSA 2 BB - faEiei
VBRI SEEEE R o

RIZZB—RFTZA=+T—H RELERQ
AZERAMNE

Place of business/ % of
country of effective Nature of Measurement
Name of entity incorporation interest the relationship method
ES BRER
BREEE BRI B R BOL BELEE
BERMNBBEI ) EERERDA PRC 40 Note 1 Equity
(Chongging Digital China Huicong e B s
Micro-Credit Co., Ltd*.)
Note 1: Chongging Digital China Huicong Micro-Credit Co., Ltd.* provides MEE1 . BEEMMNEESRRNEERERAF]

development and operation of the micro-credit internet financing

RPBERERHEFRRLE EEE

business in the PRC. BRI -
* English name is translated for identification purpose only.
Summarised financial information for joint ventures BETLREZHBERE

Set out below are the summarised financial information for the
joint venture company which, in the opinion of director, are
material to the Group and are accounted for using the equity
method.

Annual Report 2016
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SRR NTE

14 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE

EQUITY METHOD (cContinued)

(b) Investment in joint ventures (Continued)
Summarised of statement of financial position

14

BRREREIRZKRE @)

(b) REEQTAZERE®E)

BHBRREGE

Chonggqing Digital China
Huicong Micro-Credit

ERFHMNEBEER/EER
2016 2015
—B-AF —ThF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ET T ARETTT
Current B
Cash and cash equivalents Re MREEED 6,629 33,290
Other current assets (excluding cash) HimahEE (RERIN) 1,221,545 1,332,281
Total current assets BWRBEE 1,228,174 1,365,570
Financial labilities WiEaE (343,819) (391,250)
Liabilities a8 (343,819) (391,250)
Non-current B
Assets BE 400,475 57,477
Financial labilities MisaE (184,000) -
Total non-current assets FRBEERAE 216,475 57,477
Net assets BEEFE 1,100,830 1,031,797

SHREFRAA
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14 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 14 #ZBEZRZEVIRZIRE @)

EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(b) REELQTZRE MW
HEREEGE

(b) Investment in joint ventures (Continued)
Summarised statement of comprehensive income

Chonggqing Digital China
Huicong Micro-Credit
EEMNBBER N RER

2016 2015
ZB—KREF —E—hF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥TRT ARETIT
Interest income FBUA 200,345 118,797
Interest expenses FERXE (42,577) (7,335)
Commission expenses Mex = (6,000)
Net interest income FIBWAFE 157,768 105,462
Other income, net EAUA - FE 1,708 3,847
Depreciation e (25) (26)
Other general and administrative expenses  E{th—f& & 1T X
(exclude depreciation) (I ERRIN) (67,314) (69,560)
Profit before taxation RRBE A2 F 92,137 39,723
Income tax expense FriSHif sz (23,104) (10,005)
Profit for the year REERF 69,033 29,718
Other comprehensive income Efbira A = -
Total comprehensive income REFEZE WAL
for the year, net of tax HERTE 69,033 29,718
Percentage held BEEOL 40% 40%
Share of profits FEAE R 7 27,613 11,887

BREHRRREZ2CEMBREM2IN S
BOLGEZRWERAFAMEZEELR)  BA
SEEASPEZSHBRERMIELFE

The information above reflects the amounts presented in the
financial statements of the joint venture company (and not HC
International Inc.’s share of those amounts) adjusted for differences
in accounting policies between the Group and the joint venture
Company.
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SRR NTE

15 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 15 ¥Ea06t

(a) Orange Triangle Inc. (a) Orange Triangle Inc.

On 3 July 2015, the Group completed the acquisition of 100%
of equity interests of Orange Triangle Inc. (“Orange Triangle”)
which was satisfied by a total consideration of approximately
RMB1,307,000,000. The consideration was settled as to 30%
of approximately RMB446,795,000 in cash and as to 70% by
allotment of 155,684,485 contingent shares at HK$7 each
(“Contingent Share”) subject to adjustment mechanism stipulated
in the sale and purchase agreement. Please refer to Note 17(i) for
the detail of contingent shares.

On 3 July 2015, dt == AR AR AR (“Orange Beijing”), a
wholly owned subsidiary of Orange Triangle, entered into a series
of structured contracts, including exclusive technical services
agreement, exclusive licensing agreement on intellectual property;
exclusive right to purchase agreement; voting rights proxy
agreement and pledge agreement with the shareholders of 1t 5
HMITH = RHRBER AT (“Beijing Zhixing Ruijing Technology Co.,
Ltd"”). The shareholders of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing unconditionally
and irrevocably authorise any individual designated by the Group
to represent them in exercising all their rights as shareholders of
Beijing Zhixing Ruijing including without limitation, to transfer
all their equity interests, to determine the consideration for such
transfer, to complete all relevant procedures regarding such
transfer, to attend general meetings and exercise voting rights, to
execute all such relevant documents, agreements and resolutions.
In addition, if Beijing Zhixing Ruijing declares any dividend, bonus
or adopts any proposal for distribution of profits, such dividends,
bonus or economic benefits of all such proposal for distribution
shall be delivered to the Group.

In accordance with the agreements, the Group has acquired the
control over Beijing Zhixing Ruijing as the Group has existing rights
that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e.
the activities that significantly affect the Beijing Zhixing Ruijing’s
variable returns. The Group is also entitled to substantially all of
the operating profits and residual interest generated by Beijing
Zhixing Ruijing. Consequently, Beijing Zhixing Ruijing has become
a subsidiary of the Group with effect from 3 July 2015. The results
and financial position of Orange Triangle and Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing have been included in the consolidated financial statements
of the Group from 3 July 2015.

N_E—RFELA=B A£ECE
f% Y8 8 Orange Triangle Inc. ( [ Orange
Triangle |) 2 28 MHE - PIITAAREBROA
R #1,307,000,0007C ° 30% K {ENRE
#) N R ¥ 446,795,000 7T X 1+ - 70%
3% 48 it 3 155,684,485 &I 778 T 2 8k
AR ([HARD ) (REERHRIEEZ
SREEMSIPTIR ) 2T - BRAKARND 2 7F
& HLHME76) -

RZZT—AFEH=H ' Orange Triangle
ZE2EMBATIERE=ARER AR
(ME=ADEIRMITHREH AR AR
(TERATHBRFRBR DR 2 RERET
V—EBEBEESY  BEERMRSE
ek - BRABEETA R - BRER
W - R RS MR E R -
IERAITIR R 2 R B B P HE
BEAEEEEZAMATRETEESR
ERAITHER R ZFERET - BIEET
RNEEE AR AR BT AREE
ZRAE - TARE B FTE R FE
HRERRARE RITRIRERE - B AAMHE
B~ B BORGEER o AN - fRiIERAN
TIREEIREMRE « FEAKFH D IREF
RANEAEE - BIBRARE - EASATE
BHEDIREZRZEBENRARZN TALE
.

RiFW = - AR A EEREEE T AR
FEBBEB (BRI RMTHE
RO E55) c AR MAREE
EERGEALR AT R 2 5 I - AR 7]
MERZEILRATHR 2 BARILHLE
A LA TR o Hig - JERATTHR B
TR AZAEKAREEZHE
‘A@] ° Orange Triangle b RANTTHLSE 2
FERMBRABHAREEE T —H
FEA=ZBARZEMVBRE -
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15 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 15 B &6t
(a) Orange Triangle Inc. (Continued) (a) Orange Triangle Inc.(#)
The goodwill of RMB980,247,000 arising from the acquisition is U B 7 A B A R #5980,247,0007T 5 57
attributable the synergies and technical talent and economies of BRI 19 B 3 2 e BT A A A B & D AN R
scale expected from combining the operations of the Group and #10range Triangle Inc. 2% TBERE £ 1812
Orange Triangle Inc. None of the goodwill recognised is expected N o TREIE B R BA TS
to be deductible for income tax purpose. AR ©
The following table summarises the consideration paid for Orange MR B AU B BigkOrange Trianglesz
Triangle, the fair value of assets acquired, liabilities assumed at the NZRIE - BB EEZ AFE - PR
acquisition date. ZafE -
RMB’'000
ARBFT
Consideration: RE:
At 3 July 2015 R-—B—HEFtA=A
Cash Be 446,795
Contingent shares e 859,802
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BAVEFABR CBEE (6,600)
Total consideration REHZE 1,299,997
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets BB EEER FIRIEEE
acquired and liabilities assumed PAREEr
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBLEED 7,043
Property, plant and equipment (Note 10) M - BB RERAE (FiTEE10) 5,198
Intangible assets — customer relationships (Note 11) EREE-BFPBFEME) 299,000
Intangible assets — trade name and domain name BEEE-mREER
(Note 11) A (1) 91,958
Intangible assets — database (Note 11) A E — EURE (1) 7,600
Intangible assets — others (Note 11) EREE - Ha(BHaE11) 1,418
Trade and other receivables JFEE M52 B 20 e B At W TR 87,903
Trade and other payables JRE AT R R N L A FE A< SR IE (40,620)
Borrowings BE (40,000)
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 30) RERIA S E(FEE30) (99,750)
Total identifiable net assets A EE R EARE 319,750
Goodwill (Note 11) B EIA 980,247

1,299,997
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SRR NTE

15 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Orange Triangle Inc. (Continued)

Acquisition-related costs of RMB3,890,000 have been charged to
administrative expenses in the consolidated income statement for
the year ended 31 December 2015.

The fair value of the 155,684,485 ordinary shares issued as
part of the consideration paid for the vendor (approximately
RMB12,283,000) was based on the market price of the Company
on 3 July 2015.

Zhongfu Holdings Limited

On 18 December 2015, Daxiong Holdings Limited, Hanson He
Holdings Limited, Richard Chen Holdings Limited, Grand Novel
Developments Limited and Mr Moustache Holdings Limited
(collectively, the “ZhongFu Sellers”), the Company, and Mr.
Cao Guoxiong (EEgE), Mr. He Shunsheng (fa]JlE4), Mr. Chen
Xuejun (FREE), Mr. Guan Jianzhong (B H), and Mr. Liao Bin
(B23) (collectively, the “ZhongFu Seller Guarantors”) entered
into the sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which the
Sellers has conditionally agreed to sell, and the Company has
conditionally agreed to acquire the entire issued share capital
of ZhongFu Holdings Limited, for an aggregate consideration of
HK$170,807,500 (equivalent to approximately RMB144,573,000).
Part of the consideration amounting to HK$70,095,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB59,329,000) in cash and the remaining
portion was settled by issuance and allotment of convertible bonds
which are subject to downward adjustments stipulated in the sale
and purchase agreement.

On 5 January 2016, MNEAREMEHEBR A A (“Hangzhou
Saidian Information”), a wholly owned subsidiary of ZhongFu
Holdings Limited, entered into a series of structured contracts,
including exclusive technical services agreement, exclusive licensing
agreement on intellectual property; exclusive right to purchase
agreement; voting rights proxy agreement and pledge agreement
with the shareholders of fZE2RIFBR A7) (“Hangzhou
Saidian Technology”), Mr. Guo Jiang (£5;T), Mr. Chen Xuejun (B
2%)

15 E£XE6tw

(a)

(b)

Orange Triangle Inc.(%)
BE-E-RE+-_A=+—BILFE -
U BB ABRE A AR AR 63,890,000 LE X &
PSRRI ATRER -

155,684,485 B T E @R 2 A FAE
ERN_T—AF+tA=ZBARAZM
BEASNTEINE—HD(HWARE
12,283,0007T) ©

Zhongfu Holdings Limited
RZZE—RAF+=H+/\H ' Daxiong
Holdings Limited - Hanson He Holdings
Limited ~ Richard Chen Holdings Limited *
& B R’ B R A 7 & Mr Moustache
Holdings Limited(#t#&[ ZhongFus 77 | ) B2
RARREBARLE - WIEELE - BR
BELLY ERBEERBEREE (5B
[ZhongFuBE HHEMRA DI L E & -
Bt - EHEARGERBHEMARFE
A 1§ R B Uk ZhongFu Holdings Limited
2EPE BT - 421X({8 & 170,807,500
BT (BE R A AR 144,573,0007T) ©
#088570,095,0008 T (FEE R AR
59,329,0007C) Z B A REHUNREE
£ M TRERGEAETTRECHE AR
BEH 2 HAEN - WRRESHEMIH
ZEEFUATH -

WNZZT—XF—HHAH - ZhongFu
Holdings Limited,z &= & I /&@ A &) fu i 2 i
BB AR AR (TN ERER ) B
MNEERHER AR ([MNERRE D 2
AREREDIT e MR BB S AT — R4
BIEEK - BEBREMRSHE - BR
FRERERT A s BREBREGE - %
L= MRS RS -

SHREFRAA

2016558 Q117
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15 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 15 EHE6w

(b) Zhongfu Holdings Limited (Continued) (b) Zhongfu Holdings Limited (%)

21 8 HC International, Inc

The shareholders of Hangzhou Saidian Technology unconditionally
and irrevocably authorise any individual designated by the Group
to represent them in exercising all their rights as shareholders of
Hangzhou Saidian Technology including without limitation, to
transfer all their equity interests, to determine the consideration for
such transfer, to complete all relevant procedures regarding such
transfer, to attend general meetings and exercise voting rights, to
execute all such relevant documents, agreements and resolutions.
In addition, if Hangzhou Saidian Technology declares any dividend,
bonus or adopts any proposal for distribution of profits, such
dividends, bonus or economic benefits of all such proposal for
distribution shall be delivered to the Group.

In accordance with the agreements, the Group has acquired the
control over Hangzhou Saidian Technology as the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. the activities that significantly affect the Hangzhou
Saidian Technology’s variable returns. The Group is also entitled
to substantially all of the operating profits and residual interest
generated by Hangzhou Saidian Technology.

Hangzhou Saidian Technology in turn hold 80.38% of the equity
interest of Zhejiang Zhongfu ("1 IR IRBAERHFAR A F]").
Consequently, Zhejiang Zhongfu has become a subsidiary of the
Group with effect from 8 January 2016.

The results and financial position of ZhongFu Holdings Limited,
Hnagzhou Saidian Information, Hangzhou Saidian Technology and
Zhejiang Zhongfu have been included in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group from 8 January 2016.

The goodwill of RMB38,426,000 arising from the acquisition is
attributable the synergies and technical talent and economies of
scale expected from combining the operations of the Group and
Zhongfu Holdings Limited. None of the goodwill recognised is
expected to be deductible for income tax purpose.
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SRR NTE

15 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 15 ¥B&0tw
(b) Zhongfu Holdings Limited (Continued) (b) Zhongfu Holdings Limited (&)
The following table summarises the consideration paid for Zhongfu TR A U B BBt Zhongfu Holdings
Holdings Limited, the fair value of assets acquired, liabilities Limited 2 2 (K18 » PIIEEE 2 A F
assumed and the non-controlling interest at the acquisition date. B~ PR BENRIFERER ©
RMB’000
AREETTT
Consideration: R :
At 8 January 2016 R-ZB—XRE—ANH
Cash e 59,329
Financial liabilities at fair value through BEATERABEZ
profit or loss SRAE 36,800
Total consideration REERE 96,129

Recognised amounts of identifiable assets AU s ATk B & & & Fr&dE

acquired and liabilities assumed EECEIALHE
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRSEEY 10,300
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ZAF AT ABH T S REE
(Note 17(ii)) (P &E17Gi) 704
Property, plant and equipment (Note 10) Y% - B R (MEE10) 1,281
Trade and other receivables R UK BR 3 R EL At R A R TR 6,137
Intangible assets — trade name and domain EREE-BmBEL
name (Note 11) =54 (FsE11) 68,300
Intangible assets — non-compete agreement B EE - IFFFinE
(Note 11) (PTEE11) 800
Intangible assets — order backlog (Note 11) mivEE-—TEF=E (1) 800
Deferred revenue BRI A (5,394)
Trade and other payables FERTRRR I H Ath FE T 5/ IE (457)
Deferred tax asset (Note 30) ERER B A B (M 5E30) 12
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 30) R A A E(HFE30) (10,525)
Other tax liabilities EMIEa R (170)
Total identifiable net assets AR EEFEEARE 71,788
Non-controlling interests EEalivg 2 (14,085)
Goodwill (Note 11) (1) 38,426
96,129
Acquisition-related costs of RMB778,000 have been charged to HE-_ZT—R"FE+-A=1+—HILFEZ
administrative expenses in the consolidated income statement for U BB FERAAK AN AR #5778,000C B A & BF
the year ended 31 December 2016. WEsRAPETAITHER °
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15 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 15 EHE6w

(b) Zhongfu Holdings Limited (Continued) (b) Zhongfu Holdings Limited (%)

220 HC International, Inc

Zhongfu Performance Targets and adjustment mechanism
HK$100,712,500 (equivalent to approximately RMB85,244,000) of
the consideration is subject to downward adjustments on the basis
of the Zhongfu Performance Targets to each of the Sellers.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement, the Zhongfu
Seller Guarantors jointly, severally and irrevocably covenant
and undertake to the Company that the audited consolidated
distributable profit (after-tax) of Zhejiang Zhongfu shall achieve
the Zhongfu Performance Targets for the relevant Zhongfu
Performance Undertaking Years:

Zhongfu Performance Year

ZhongfuB X & &

Year ending 31 December 2016 (“First Zhongfu Performance Undertaking Year”)
HE_ZT—RE+T_A=1T—HLFE( HEZhongfulBXIEFEFE |)

Year ending 31 December 2017 (“Second Zhongfu Performance Undertaking Year"”)
HE-Z—+F+ - H=1+—HILFE(E _{EzhongfuLIFGEFE )

Year ending 31 December 2018 (“Third Zhongfu Performance Undertaking Year")
HE-Z-N\F+-HA=1—HIFE(E={EzhongfuBLIFHEFE ])

If the Zhongfu Performance Target cannot be achieved for a
Zhongfu Performance Undertaking Year, (i) each of the Sellers
must convert all or part(s) of the principal amount of its convertible
bonds that will expire in the next financial year (the “Expiring
CB") into conversion shares in accordance with the performance
adjustment mechanism; and (i) the Company shall have the right
to redeem from each of the Zhongfu Sellers the remaining principal
amounts of the Expiring CB at HK$1 plus any Expiring CB that
has not been converted by the Sellers and cancel the same within
30 Business Days after the publication of the relevant Audited
Financial Statement.
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Audited profit
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AT AR AR
BB Em A

RMB10,000,000
AR#10,000,0007T
RMB13,000,000
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RMB16,900,000
AR #16,900,0007C
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SRR NTE

15 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 15 B &6t@

(b) Zhongfu Holdings Limited (Continued) (b) Zhongfu Holdings Limited (&)
Zhongfu Performance Targets and adjustment mechanism Zhongfu/B#) B R 72 ##| (&)
(Continued)

As at 8 January 2016, financial liabilities at fair value through RZZE—RF—ANR - BBALRTHR
profit or loss of approximately RMB36,800,000 in relation to ATEFAAEGZ2HBBEOARE
this arrangement was recognised in the consolidated statement 36,800,0007T B AR HE B 4 FHEE M HI 70 & 6F
of financial position based on the performance adjustment BESIRR R IR

mechanism.

As at 31 December 2016, the fair value of the financial RZZE—R"EF+=—A=+—H " ' E2FE
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss was approximately FFABRZERMAECATEARAR
RMB41,500,000, the change in the fair value amounting to #41,500,0007T * MAFEEBH AR
RMB4,700,000 was charged to “other gains/(losses)”, net” in the 4,700,0007cE R AFHER R H ket
consolidated statement of profit or loss. (B8R FFE I8 -

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss BRATFESFABRZZ2RAE

2016 2015
—E-XRF —T—hF

RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBETT

Current mE 14,377 -

Non-current ERH 27,123 -

Total Bt 41,500 -
For the fair value estimation of the contingent shares, please refer BASARD 2 AT EME 2 FIER2H
to Note 3.3 for details. Fi3E3.3 ©
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16 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 16 AIMftHETHMERE

Listed Unlisted
securities securities
(Note i) (Note ii) Total

LHES FLmES
(BtaEi) (Bff&Eii) #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBT R ARBT R

As at 1 January 2015 RZZE—hF—H—H 130,412 43,855 174,267
Additions NE - 57,900 57,900
Fair value gain recognised in REMEEPAERZ
other comprehensive income NEEWE 198,725 (9,202) 189,523
As at 31 December 2015 RZZE—ARF
+—BA=+—H 329,137 92,553 421,690
Less: non-current portion o BT ENEL Y (329,137) (92,553) (421,690)
Current portion BN - - -
As at 1 January 2016 R-ZT—XRF—A—H 329,137 92,553 421,690
Additions INE - 407,935 407,935
Disposals e (181,340) (32,553) (213,893)
Fair value gains recognised in other ~ RAEM 2 EWAER 2
comprehensive income N AR 27,257 46,636 73,893
Currency translation differences EHEN =R 7,092 - 7,092
As at 31 December 2016 MZZ—RF
+=-—A=+—H 182,146 514,571 696,717
Less: non-current portion B IEmENER - (484,071) (484,071)
Current portion IERBNE D 182,146 30,500 212,646
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16 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 16 At EEmEE»)

(Continued)
Set out below are securities which, in opinion of director, is material to TREIIN-ZZBE-—RET_A=T—HEER
the Group as at 31 December 2016. REAEEBERZES

Name of the security Nature of the security Total amount % of equity interest
"HEEH BHEME BEH REB DL
2016 2015 2016 2015

—¥-AF -T-0F —¥-AF -T AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARMTE

AF OGS SENESE  Unlisted ordinary shares 422,000 60,000 9.72% 2.49%
RITIRIDBR AT FEETE AR

("Inner Mongolia Hohhot
Jingu Rural Commercial Bank
Company Limited”*)

Notei:  The balance mainly represents the fair value of the ordinary shares of Mizti: ZRBEFEZENEBHARIMAERARE
companies listed in Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong RETATZ ERBRAFE -
Limited.

Note ii:  The balance represents the fair value of the ordinary shares of unlisted izt 0 ZZEREEfEdE EM AR BRZ ATFE -
companies.
For the fair value estimation of available-for-sale financial assets, please FHAHEESREERARTEZFE
refer to Note 3.3 for details. F2MMEE3.3.

There were no impairment provisions on available-for-sale financial assets HE-T—R"FT-A=1T—HILFE  #fE

made during the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil). SRR E e REERERH(ZT—RF

) .
* English name is translated for identification purpose only.
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17 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

Contingent shares in relation to acquisition of

17 BAFEFABRCERMEE

2016
S

2015
—E—RE
RMB’000
ARETIT

RMB’000
ARBT R

B #UkEEOrange Triangle Inc.Z

Orange Triangle Inc. (Note (i) s AR (B5EG)) 4,600 5,100
Trading securities — listed securities (Note (ii)) R EH— FhEE (M) 172,686 -
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1R AV EE ABH Y S RIEE 177,286 5,100

Note (i): Contingent consideration in relation to acquisition of
Orange Triangle Inc.

As detailed in Note 15, the Group completed the acquisition of the
entire equity interest of Orange Triangle Inc. on 3 July 2015. Part of
the consideration was settled by allotment of 155,684,485 contingent
shares at HK$7 each (“Contingent Share”).

The Contingent Shares are to be released to the Mr.Liu Xiaodong,
Mr.Shi Shilin, Ms. Wang Qian and Ms. Yang Ye (together, the “OT
Seller Guarantors”) or repurchased by the Company subjected to the
performance as set out in the adjustment mechanism stipulated in the
sale and purchase agreement.

OT Performance Undertaking Year

OTEHAZEE

For the period from 1 July 2015 to 30 June 2016
("First OT Performance Undertaking Year")

(“Second OT Performance Undertaking Year”)

For the period from 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018
(“Third OT Performance Undertaking Year")
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—E-RFtA—BEZZT—R"FRA
=T BEHME( EEOTRAAEFE D)
For the period from 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2017 —E-RFtA—HBEZZFT—tF<A
=T HHA(EEOTEAAFFZ])
R EFLA-RE-ZT-\FRA
=+ HER( S —EOTRAFEEFE )

FfEE(i) - % B3 Wk 88 Orange Triangle Inc. Z 5
ARE

BN ISFTER L - AEER =T —AF LA
= H 5k Uk Orange Triangle Inc. 2 2 ZRAKHE ©
F A RIBLAER78 T AL % 155,684,485 A8 5 /A
B&An (SRR D) &1 ©

EEE MR EABEGMEBENRRT =X
R TEMT R NREL  EEAREE -
FELXERGELT(BHEOTE T ERA DK
mARFEE -

Audited profit
after tax of
Orange Triangle
REZ
ZBRBLE T

RMB 100,000,000
AR #5100,000,0007C
RMB 130,000,000
AE#130,000,0007C
RMB 170,000,000
AE#170,000,0007T
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SRR NTE

17 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 17 ZA¥EF AEBER 2 EE

PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Note (i): Contingent consideration in relation to acquisition of
Orange Triangle Inc. (Continued)

If the after tax profit as set out in the audited results for the OT
Performance Undertaking Year do not meet the OT Performance Targets,
the Company shall inform the OT Seller Guarantors in writing within 10
days after the dispatch of such audited results and the Company and
each OT Seller Guarantor shall jointly instruct the escrow agent, as the
case may be, to release such amount of Consideration Shares and all
dividends attached thereto to the relevant OT Seller Guarantor as set
out in the adjustment mechanism. The Company shall repurchase such
Consideration Shares at a total consideration of RMB1.00 and such
Consideration Shares shall be cancelled by the Company thereafter.

As at 3 July 2015, date of acquisition, a financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately RMB6,600,000 in relation to this
arrangement was recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position based on the performance adjustment mechanism and it
requires remeasurement at each of the subsequent reporting date.

As at 31 December 2016, the fair value of the contingent consideration
was approximately RMB4,600,000 (2015: RMB5,100,000), the change in
the fair value amounted RMB500,000 for the year was charged to “other
gains/(losses), net” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

For the fair value estimation of the contingent consideration, please refer
to Note 3.3 for detail.

(&)
FizE(i) - %5 B8 U BB Orange Triangle Inc. 2 5%
RIE(E)

fHBLOT/E KGR FE NS E R EE B Z R
BEMAREEZDOTRO B R » ARRANTH
BREEREBRIORANAEBMNGOTE T
RA - MARBROTE FERARLRIERE
ERE(RIBERME) - AR S FAERAR
HOTE T IR AR A BRERD S FEREMN
WZERE - ARBABEZERERD
REGHA/ARE1.00T - MEZERERHE
REZRBARAIEH -

RUEBERSM—_ZT-RFLA=H EERZX
BZBATEFANEZEZEREENARE
6,600,0007C B AR IR & 4038 ZE B 10 & BRI TSR
MRMER - WEARERERRS AHENE -

MR-ZB—XE+-A=+—0 AR E2
NFEH B ANREA600,0007T( —F—F4E :
AR#5,100,00070) * AFEZEHARE
500,000t & HriEm R 2 [ e/ (&18)
SFEE R o
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17

18
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Note (ii): Trading securities - listed securities

17 BAFETFT A AERZERMEE
()
MizE(Gi) - RBEFH - LTES

2016

—E-XRE

RMB’000

AR¥T T

At 1 January R—A—H =
Acquisition of subsidiaries W g B A ) 704
Additions NE 178,160
Disposal HeE (864)
Change in fair value recognised in profit or loss RIEERERZ A EEF) (7,897)
Currency translation differences BBELER 2,583
At 31 December ®wt+—-—A=+—8H 172,686

The balance represents the listed securities held for trading by the Group.
All of the trading securities are listed in the active market including
Hong Kong Stock Exchange; Shenzhen Stock Exchange; Shanghai Stock
Exchange and National Equities Exchange and Quotations and their fair
value were based on their current bid prices in active market at the date
of statement of financial position, which are within level 1 of the fair
value hierarchy (Note 3.3)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are presented within
“operating activities” as part of changes in working capital in the
statement of cash flows.

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are recorded in “other gains/(losses) — net” in the statement of
profit or loss.

DIRECT SELLING COSTS

Upon the receipt of subscription revenue from third party customers,
the Group is obliged to pay sales commissions and agency fees to the
salespersons and agents. The subscription revenue are initially deferred
and recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
in the period during which the services are rendered. Accordingly, the
commissions and agency fees, which are directly attributable to earning
from such subscription revenue during the service period, are deferred
and recognised, in agency cost, employees benefit expense, sales
commission and direct expenses of online services, respectively, of the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income throughout the same
period.
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SRR NTE

19 FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 19 EREEHEERE
Certain equipment have been leased out through finance leases entered ETRECDRBAREET I MEEER
into by the Group. These leases have remaining terms within one year. e ZEHE2HTHBRA—FAN - MEHEE
Finance lease receivables comprised the following: FEUGRIB B FEA T

2016 2015
—E—REF —T—hF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT

Non-current receivables Ik B HA PE W R 1B
Finance leases — gross receivables mEHE — U FIEARE - 26,880
Unearned finance income RERELZ g E R - (2,880)
- 24,000
Current receivables B B B U FR IR
Finance leases — gross receivables BETHE — UGBS 371,800 73,478
Unearned finance income RERELZ B E U A (19,473) (4,632)
352,327 68,846
Total finance leases receivables BMEHERWFIERE 352,327 92,846
Gross receivables from finance leases: REBAME Z FEWGRIERE
— No later than 1 year —NER—F 371,800 73,478
— Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years —EBER—FEIERRE = 26,880
371,800 100,358
Unearned future finance income on EEMAERERILZ
finance leases F G ON (19,473) (7,512)
Net investment in finance leases RREREZRERE 352,327 92,846
The net investment in finance leases may be RERE 8B FETIRIA
analysed as follows: TEHDHT
— No later than 1 year — BN —F 352,327 68,846
— Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years —ER—FETENRASF - 24,000
Total #Et 352,327 92,846
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20 INVENTORIES 20 #&

2016 2015
ZE-XRF —T—hF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R AEBTT

Raw materials A 3,590 3,073
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in “cost of RRRAZWEATHERR | 2 FERA ST
revenue” amounted to approximately RMB34,017,000 (31 December HHEAR®E34,017,0000(ZFE—HF+ A
2015: RMB25,104,000). =+—H : AR¥25,104,0007T) °
21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21 RERBEEEY

2016 2015
—B-AF —ThHF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT

Cash at bank and on hand RITAEeRFHERE 931,523 690,051
Fixed deposits TE BATF R 32,000 100,650
963,523 790,701
Denominated in: ARSI S #EETHE
Hong Kong Dollars BT 172,127 28,273
Renminbi AR 755,020 757,366
US Dollars E 36,376 5,062
963,523 790,701
The fixed deposits were highly liquid with original maturities of three FHFEZASREM - BEREA A=E AN
months or less. As at 31 December 2016, cash and cash equivalents T RZE—RF+_A=+—H xEEHZ
of approximately RMB754,809,000 (2015: RMB748,754,000) of the B MIREEBEMHARET54,809,0007T (=
Group were denominated in Renminbi and deposited with banks in the T—FH4F : ARMETA8,754,0007T) LAA REEET
PRC. The conversion of the Renminbi denominated balance into foreign B WETEARBEZIRIT - EUAARENEZ
currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange e 4 T 35 40 oA KK B 57 oh 5] T T 9B M 2 INEE
control promulgated by the PRC government. |48 BI| K 480 BT AR PR, o
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22 SHARE CAPITAL 22 AR

Number of
ordinary shares Par value
ZERHE H{E
RMB’000
ARBTFT
At 1 January 2015 R-Z—H&E—A—H 667,166,618 66,465
Issuance of new shares BATHR D 74,540,000 6,134
Issuance of shares for acquisition BRI TR 155,684,485 12,283
Exercise of share options T AR 2,555,000 208
At 31 December 2015 R_E—RF+-_A=+—H 899,946,103 85,090

Issuance of shares upon conversion of RIAR R E AR EITRG

convertible bonds 95,000,000 8,045
Buy-back shares EEAEE) (5,990,000) (529)
Exercise of share options 1T BE R A 15,352,000 1,279
At 31 December 2016 W-B—RE+-A=+—H 1,004,308,103 93,885

The total authorised number of ordinary shares is 2,000,000,000 shares
(2015: 2,000,000,000 shares) with a par value of HK$0.1 per share
(2015: HK$0.1 per share). All issued shares are fully paid.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, convertible bonds with
principle amount of HKD380,000,000 (equivalent to RMB312,606,000)
have been issued and converted into 95,000,000 ordinary shares of
the Company at the conversion price of HK$4 per share and resulted in
approximately RMB8,045,000 increase in share capital.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, 15,352,000 shares of the
Company were issued upon the exercise of share options under the
share option scheme of the Company at exercise price of HK$1.49,
HK$1.24, HK$0.604 and HK$0.82 and resulted in approximately
RMB1,279,000 increase in share capital and RMB10,429,000 increase in
share premium.

The total number of issued shares of the Company was 1,004,308,103 as
at 31 December 2016 (2015: 899,946,103).

TERETRBASREEIBT(ZE—1
F : F%0.1787T) 22,000,000,000 8% 515 ( =
T — R4 : 2,000,000,000/% 8% 1%) - FrED %
TRHHEBHE -

RNEBE-_E—RNE+_A=1+—BILEE"
7K % %8 380,000,000 7 ;L (HHE RN AR
312,606,0007T) 2 AI R EHE F 31T » Wi
H (B 5k 475 8% 595,000,000 A A A
TR - BUFERRANIE N4 A R H8,045,0007T ©

REE-T—RFEF+-_A=+—BIEFE
AR BB IE B IR 85 BIIRTTE(E1.49
HIT ~ 1.248 7T ~ 0.6048 7T 2.0.82i8 TTITIE
BEARAET - 15,352,000 8 AN A BIRE 19 © F 3
17 WBERARRDEED BIE IO ARE
1,279,000t 2 A R #10,429,0007T °

RoT—RET-A=+—R ARAEH

FTRR7 42805 1,004,308, 103 A (T —F
4 1 899,946, 1038XBLD ) °

SHREFRAA
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22 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(a)

(b)

230 HC International, Inc

Buy-back of shares

The Company acquired 12,290,000 of its own shares through
purchases on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange during year ended
31 December 2016. The total amount paid to acquire the shares
was RMB60,939,000. Part of the Share (5,990,000 shares)
repurchased had been cancelled in the Stock Exchanges as at 31
December 2016, hence the related amount RMB529,000 and
RMB29,861,000 has been deducted from share capital and share
premium respectively. The remaining 6,300,000 shares repurchase
but not yet cancelled, which amounting to RMB30,549,000 was
credited to share redemption reserves.

Share options

On 3 April 2013, a total of 1,500,000 share options were granted
to an employee pursuant to the share option scheme. The grantee
can exercise these options at an exercise price of HK$4.402 per
share in ten years period starting from the expiry of twelve months
from the date of the granting of options, being 3 April 2013.
Commencing from the first anniversaries of the date of grant, the
relevant grantees may exercise options up to 10% and gradually
up to 100% at the fifth anniversary of the date of grant. During
the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2016, no share options
were exercised.

On 18 November 2013, a total of 10,000,000 share options were
granted to certain employees pursuant to the share option scheme.
During the year ended 31 December 2015, 28,000 share options
were exercised. No share option was exercised during the year
ended 31 December 2016. The grantee can exercise these options
at an exercise price of HK$9.84 per share in ten years period
starting from the expiry of twelve months from the date of the
granting of options, being 18 November 2013. Commencing from
the first anniversaries of the date of grant, the relevant grantees
may exercise options up to 10% and gradually up to 100% at the
fifth anniversary of the date of grant.

Annual Report 2016

22 BRA ()

(a)

(b)

R EEE
REBE-Z—A"F+-A=+—AHItF
B ARBBBEBEBH R ATEITERE I
U B8 B B A1) 212,290,000 8% (7 - Ui
Batn 2 B 4858 B AR #60,939,0007T ©
= ’\Eﬁ%@ﬁ%}(s 990,000/% f% 15 ) B HA
- RNF+ A=t BEBHER
- BERERIE A REE529,000T R AR
#29,861,00070E, 7 BIHE IE AN K B A3 (B
ARk © 816,300,000 815 2 T EE D
MERARFESE - BIEE R AR®30,549,000

TLE T AR BRI G -

B

R-ZZE—Z=ZFNA=ZH  RIEHERET
2] - A #£1,500,000 0 EREDE T — 2

BT - AEAR RERERLBEI(BN =
T-=FHNA=8)RB Tt _EARERA
B2 TER - RITEEERS402ETT
FZEERE - gaRLB—EFR B
AR AATERZ10%BRE WA
BATEERLABRRARAFZH%100%
B - MEE T AFR T —RF
TZA=+—HILEFE - BEERERET
fiE o

—ZF+—A+N\A8 - RIEERE
=+&) - 4 3£10,000,00017 B A% #E B 3% T 56
DBT -MNEBE-ZT—AF+-A=+—
HIEFE 28,0001 AL HE B HETT(E ©
HE-Z—R"FTA=+—HLFE "
AR R AR T T o IR A AT PR REARAE IR
HRBPEN = —=F+—A+//\B)#est
TERERARZ TEAN  RITEES
(29.84 TITIE R S HARE - B A
—EFR BRARARITERZ10%
FERRAE - WAlEKHI TR ERH A RESF
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SRR NTE

22 SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 22 BRA ()
(b) Share options (Continued) (b) MBERAE(®)
The assumptions for valuation of fair value of share options are as FHEEARE N T EMA 2 BRERET
follows:

11 July 29 September 7April 28 March 3 April 18 November
2007 2008 2010 2011 2013 2013

SRty CPR\F P-¥F ¥-F ¥-If Cg-C
tA-8 ABZTHE  MALE ZASHAR  MAZA +-AtA

Exercise price (in HK dollar) TECET) 149 124 0.604 0.82 1.108 4402 9.84
Fair value of the options (in RMB)  EEIREATE(AKS) 3919000 9390000 2,756,000 12527,000 1,377,000 3754000 50,125,000
Risk free interest rate (in %) EEBRTIE(%) 4911 4.757 3133 2.865 2820 1m 1915
Expected lfe (in years) EHEE(F) 3255 2462 3848 3459 3849 9.1-96 4779
Volatilty (in %) RE(%) 348 49 7. 798 774 75 715

Expected dividend per share (cents)  FEHERAEE (D) - - - - - _ _

At the working date before options were granted, 22 June 2006, REREEREI2IER(ZEZFE A
10 July 2007, 26 September 2008, 6 April 2010, 25 March 2011, —+-H ZZEZtFELA+TH ZZETNF
2 April 2013 and 15 November 2013, the market value per share AAZ+XB  —ZE—FTFWPAXAE ==
was HK$1.45, HK$1.24, HK$0.55, HK$0.82, HK$1.1, HK$4.3 and ——F=AZ+hHB - ZE—=FWAZBR
HK$9.23 respectively. ZT—=F+—A+HA)  BRTEIAE

1.45% 78 ~ 1.24% 7T ~ 0.55/8 7T ~ 0.82/8 7T »
1.7 ~ 4387 K%9.23%8 7T ©
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22 SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 22 BRA ()
(b) Share options (Continued) (b) BRE®
Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their RITEBERAERE MTHEEZ2ESHNT -

exercise prices are as follows:

(i) Share Option Scheme (i) MBREFSZS
2016 2015
ZB-KRF —E-hF
Exercise Exercise
price in HK$ Share price in HK$ Share
Expiry date per share options per share Options
BRAET BB
Ep)E TEE HaRE 17EfE g
At 1 January 1.49 1,458,000 1.49 1,528,000
m—HA—H 1.24 3,698,000 1.24 4,375,000
0.604 2,900,000 0.604 3,000,000
0.82 10,588,000 0.82 12,218,000
1.108 200,000 1.108 250,000
4.402 1,500,000 4.402 1,500,000
9.84 9,972,000 9.84 10,000,000
Granted 1.49 - 1.49 -
[=Esdi 1.24 - 1.24 -
0.604 - 0.604 -
0.82 - 0.82 -
1.108 - 1.108 -
4.402 - 4.402 -
9.84 - 9.84 -
Lapsed and exercised 149  (1,458,000) 1.49 (70,000)
BRMMITIE 1.24 (2,244,000) 1.24 (677,000)
0.604  (2,500,000) 0.604 (100,000)
0.82  (9,150,000) 0.82 (1,630,000)
1.108 - 1.108 (50,000)
4.402 - 4.402 -
9.84 - 9.84 (28,000)
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SRR NTE

22 SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 22 BRA ()
(b) Share options (Continued) (b) EERRAE ()
(i) Share Option Scheme (Continued) (i) BREE(E)
2016 2015
—B-RE —ET-hEF
Exercise Exercise
price in HK$ Share price in HK$ Share
Expiry date per share options per share Options
BRET BRAT
- TEE FE IR 17128 e
At 31 December 23 June 2016 1.49 - 1.49 1,458,000
W+ZA=+—H ZE-RFRAZT=H
11 July 2017 1.24 1,454,000 1.24 3,698,000
—T—+tF+tA+—H
29 September 2018 0.604 400,000 0.604 2,900,000
“Z-\FAA-TNAE
7 April 2020 0.82 1,438,000 0.82 10,588,000
—Z_TFMALHE
27 March 2021 1.108 200,000 1.108 200,000
—E-F=RZ++H
3 April 2023 4.402 1,500,000 4.402 1,500,000
—E-=FMA=H
18 November 2023 9.84 9,972,000 9.84 9,972,000
—E_=F+—H+/\H
(c) Share Award Scheme (o) BiEmstal
On 23 November 2011 and pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, RZZE—F+—F=+=8 " RERX®H
the Board resolved to grant an aggregate of 24,181,000 shares BENETE EEQARABR2MLTERE
to 72 selected employees (including an executive director of the B(BRAQNA—BRTESR)RTAH
Company). 24,181,000/%8% 15 ©
On 14 June 2012, the Board resolved to grant Lee Wee Ong, an RZE—ZFXA+THB  EFER
executive director of the Company, 3,000,000 shares, subjected to 7 [ KA B 1T E = Lee Wee Ongi® F
a vesting period of 36 months. 3,000,000/ /%17 - ERE B A361E A -
On 20 August 2012, the shareholders resolved to grant Guo R-ZT——FEN\A=+A  BREREAK
Jiang, an executive director of the Company, 16,700,000 shares, NAEMITEE TR T 16,700,000 §% f%
subjected to a vesting period of 72 months. 7 SEBEAT2MEA -
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22 SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 22 BRA ()
(c) Share Award Scheme (Continued) () BRp#EEEI®)
The awarded shares are subject to vesting periods from 6 months ZERBBN 2 FEPR6MEAE721(E
to 72 months. Ae
The following table represents the movements for number of TRINTREE =T —R"F+_A=1+—
shares under the Share Award Scheme for the year ended 31 HIEFERG e8I TRHEE 2 &
December 2016. B o
Number of
BT (]
thousand unit)
REEE (FR)
At 1 January 2015 R-ZE—RF—A—H 31,435
Shares vested during the year rEEEREBRG (9,558)
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 RZE—RF+-_A=1+—HEK
—ET-RF—-HF—H 21,877
Shares vested during the year KEECHBRN (1,457)
Shares purchased from the market Rmi5EEERD 1,315
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—RE+ZA=+—H 21,735
The following is a summary of the shares granted, vested and VAT B B ) SREDAT BIBGLEAFEE R
lapsed during the year since the set up of the Share Award - BB REABZBROME
Scheme:

Number of shares
(in thousand unit)

RHOEE (FR)

2016 2015

—EB-RE —T—hHF

At 1 January »w—H—H 23,192 32,750
Shares vested HERGL (1,457) (9,558)

Allocated but not vested EOEEREE 21,735 23,192
The Group has adopted the requirements under HKFRS 2 to REEERNBBMBHRELNE29E 2
account for the equity compensation expenses of the shares BIE - R B ERATERERERS

granted at the date of grant at fair value. ZIERFEERNE -
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23 OTHER RESERVES 23 HitifRfE
Available-

Share-based forsale ~ Shares held

Convertible compensa- Share financial ~ for share

Share hond Other Merger tion redemption  Exchange assets reward
premium reserve reserve reserve  reserves reserve reserve reserve scheme Total

TERES HRHAER f AftLE RARBHE
RiaE i HMBE  SHEE CRERR ; Eifif SREERE  FERG A
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

A\RETT T AREfR ARETR  ARETR T ARE T T ;

At 1 January 2015 RZE-RE-A-B 64080 50,858 (17421) 109,817 81,801 4% (10478) 16,067 (130952) 741,008
lssuance of new shares THRi 1063819 - - - - - - - - 1063819
Bercseof shareoptions {7 BB AR 1,951 - - - - - - - - 1951

Share based compensation -~ MR 2B

valve of employee senices ~ ~EERBEE - - - - 29,31 - - - - 29,31
Vesting of awarded shares ~ BEZERH 2780 - - - (17.124) - - - 14,304 -
Fair value gain on avallblefor- - A HESBEEAT

sdlefinandal ascets,netof ~ {Eles - HIBERE

deferred tax WE - - - - - - - 158,283 - 158,283
Currency translation diference  E%ERZE - - - - - - (17,808) - - (17,808)
At 31 December 2015 R-E-hE+-A

=t+-H 1,709,370 50,858 (17.021) 109,817 93,908 4% (28,286) 174,350 (116,608) 1,976,484
At 1 January 2016 RZE-R"E-A-B 1709370 50,858 (17.421) 109,817 93,908 4% (28.286) 174,350 (116,608) 1,976,484
Issuance of shares upon RETERERE

conversion of convertible ¥kt

bonds 326,506 - - - - - - - - 326,506
Buy-back of shares EERR (29861) - - - - 30549 - - - (60410)
Evercise of share options friEEhE 10,429 - - - - - - - - 10429
Share hased compensation- LIRS iE

value of employee senices  ~EERKEE - - - - 29,566 - - - - 29,566
Share purchase under Share IR EBHEEA

Award Scheme R - - - - - - - - (6,386) (6,386)
Vesting of awarded shares ~ BERER( 3,075 - - - (6,387) - - - 3312 -

Fair value gain on avallble-for- - A HESBEEAT

sale financial assefs, netof & - MBET

deferred tax il - - - - - - - 62,400 - 62400
Fairvalue release on disposal ~ HETHHESREE

of avallable-for-sale financial ~ EEEZATE A1

assets, netof deferred tax ~~ BRERAE - - - - - - - (95,755) - (95,755)
Changes in ownership interests & B35/ HE

in subsidiaries without DAl BEEER

change of control (Notes 24~ £81(H504) - - 51,051 - - - - - - 51,051
Curtency tranglaton difference  &%E 322 - - - - - - 13876 - - 13876

At 31 December 2016 RZF-NE
t-A=1-H 2,019,519 50,858 33,630 109,817 117,087 (30,053) (14.410) 140,995 (119682) 2,307,761
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236 HC International, Inc

OTHER RESERVES (Continued)

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations applicable to wholly
foreign owned enterprises, the PRC subsidiaries are required to
appropriate to reserve fund an amount of not less than 10% of the
profit after income tax, calculated based on the PRC accounting
standards. Should the accumulated total of this reserve fund reach 50%
of the registered capital of the PRC subsidiaries, the subsidiaries will not
be required to make any further appropriation. The reserve fund can
only be used, upon approval by the shareholders’ meeting or similar
authorities, to offset accumulated losses or increase capital.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, retained earnings amounted
approximately RMB23,840,000 (2015: RMB17,473,000) had been
transferred to the statutory reserve. As at 31 December 2016, retained
earnings comprise statutory reserve fund amounting to RMB87,756,000
(2015: RMB63,916,000).

TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

(a) Acquisition of additional interest in subsidiaries
On 21 July 2016, St REHEHAIRIEL AR A F], a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, has entered into a share purchase
agreement with Mr. Yu Ziguo (i>& ). Pursuant to the agreement,
Mr. Yu Ziguo agreed to transfer 24% of the issued shares of £
BEZEE FER AR (“IEEZFE") for a purchase consideration
of RMB1. The carrying amount of the non-controlling interests
in JIBfEZE held by Mr. Yu Ziguo at the date of acquisition was
approximately RMB9,000. The Group recognised a decrease in
non-controlling interests of approximately RMB9,000 and increase
in equity attributable to owners of the company of approximately
RMB9,000. After the transaction, the Group holds 84% of the

issued shares of J[B{ZZ5[&.

On 22 July 2016, St REHEBAIRIE AR A, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, has entered into a share purchase
agreement with Mr. Yu Ziguo (&J8El). Pursuant to the
agreement, Mr. Yu Ziguo agreed to transfer 40% of the issued
shares of ERIEEIRIAMEZEIRER AR ("IEEIEIR") for a
purchase consideration of RMB1. The carrying amount of the
non-controlling interests in JIEf2EZEZ held by Mr. Yu Ziguo at the
date of acquisition was approximately RMB72,000. The Group
recognised a decrease in non-controlling interests of approximately
RMB72,000 and increase in equity attributable to owners of the
company of approximately RMB72,000. After the transaction, the
Group holds 100% of the issued shares of JE{ZFAF4,
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HE-_Z-—XRE+-_A=t+—HIL=EE E=
Iz BB AREE23,840,000( =T —RF :
AR#17,473,00070) B BB EETFFE - R
T—XE+-A=+—8B BHEERIEEAT
ES AREES7,756,000L( T —HF : AR
#63,916,0007T) °

BFERER RS

(a) WBFES Bz BIMER
RZT—AR"FtAZ+—RH  FAEE2E
MEARILREIRF AR AR A R &
JRBISEERTSIBRR A o RIFHE - WA
BELRBRBERBARB I TEER
RIEEZEZEZARAR(EESEDE
BTN 2 24% © WAEI AR UE R
BRI B EMR A Z R R E
# ARH9,0007T © A5k EHERIEIE R
R ARB9,000t RAREER
ARG INAI A R #59,0007T » A
& - AEBERAIREZECETRNZ
84% °
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JRBISEART S IEAR G - IBIRHE - WA
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24 TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS (Continued)

(b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries

without change of control

() On 15 March 2016, Mr. Liu Jun (2IE), Mr. Song Bingchen
(R7KE), Mr. Han Gang (§8l) and Mr. Xu Ke (FF7])
(collectively, the “GZ Subscribers”) entered into a capital
increase agreement with JR& YT RZRELL R AR A A, 4t
REHELGEARRMAR AR and J?Jll SEPEBRHEARA
A] ("Guangzhou Huicong”), each of them being an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Pursuant to the agreement, the parties agreed to increase the
registered capital of Guangzhou Huicong from RMB5,000,000
to RMB8,333,333, comprising RMB3,333,333 to be contributed
to the increase in registered capital of Guangzhou Huicong,
and RMB50,000,000 to be contributed to the capital reserve of
Guangzhou Huicong.

As at 31 December 2016, the total capital contribution by the GZ
Subscribers amounted approximately RMB53,333,000, comprising
approximately RMB3,333,000 contributed to the increase in
registered capital of Guangzhou Huicong, and the remaining
RMB50,000,000 was contributed to the capital reserve of
Guangzhou Huicong.

After the transaction, the Group’s equity interest in Guangzhou
Huicong was diluted from 100% to 60%, while the remaining
40% equity interest was held by the GZ Subscribers.

24 BEFERERIRS

(b) TEHRBEHEZMEARHE

BRERESH

iy HZZT-—RF=A+HHE 5%
& RkEEE - BRIEERIA
4 (I GZRBA D BRI R
ERMAGHRERAR - ERBR
EMEMBRMER AR REMNZIR
WERRERAT(TEMNZR])(F
RERBZEE2EMBRAR)ETL
EE W -

BB FTNFTREEEMNZRZE
it & X @y A R # 5,000,000 L3 i = A
R#8,333,333)C - BIEBHEMNERT
it & A3g it & 2 AR ¥3,333,3337¢
EEHENZREAFELEZARE
50,000,0007C ©

B/\\_;: NET+-_A=1+—8 " GZRE
ANAHHELHAREES3,333,0000T © BF
S EMNBEFMERENEENARKE
3,333,000t * M T~ A R# 50,000,000
TEREMNERZ EAFEBLE -

RRS%  NEEREMNERZBESD
100%#E5EZE60% * Mk ~40% A% AIlH
GZRBEAFE -

RMB'000
ARBTT

P & IR s 2 R TEI(E

Carrying amount of non-controlling
interest disposed

Consideration received for the non-controlling interests ~ FtIEFEARERS PR URER 2 (1B (50,000)

Consideration paid in excess of carrying value
recognised within equity

REmAERBHEREZCHRE

(50,000)
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24 TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING 24 BEFEZERERZRXS

INTERESTS (Continued)
(b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries (b) TEBSEFIRE M B A R

without change of control (Continued) EREREEH W)

(i) On 13 December 2016, a new shareholder injected capital iy MZBE—XRFE+-A+=8 —%
amounting to RMB1,500,000 into it R ZERE L & 7 & MRREAEE IR E R Mﬁ%
BARQAF(TER%]), anon-wholly-owned controlling FAItREBRERLZEFEHEARA
subsidiary of the Group. The new shareholder subscribes (f?jﬁﬁJ)&ﬁ/\Eﬁ%LSO0,000

15% of the equity interest of ZRE % . After the transaction, TL e REREERZ 5% -
the Group’s equity interest in 2R % was diluted from 60% RR 5% AEERZRZ 2 RE
t051%. EB60%#EES1% °
The carrying amount of the non-controlling interest disposed AR EIFERERETRS ﬁﬁtﬁ
and consideration paid in excess of carrying value recognised BT RS < BRE A M R
within equity as a result of the transaction with non- ﬁﬁwtﬂj,@EEﬁZEHﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁﬂ
controlling interests were as follows: N

2016
—ZE—RF
RMB’000
ARBFIT
Carrying amount of non-controlling P FRE R oS 2 BRI (B
interests disposed 530
Consideration received from the non-controlling B I iR s IR 2 R (B
interests (1,500)
Consideration paid in excess of carrying value RiEEAERBELEREECENRE
recognised within equity (970)
25 RECEIPT IN ADVANCE 25 FABFKIR

2016 2015
—B-RF —ThHF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBTT

Non-current FERED 40,282 53,237
Current E 453,540 1,088,866
493,822 1,142,103
The amount mainly represents deposits received from the presale of hheBEFERKEEEO20EmEREFLESE
properties in the 020 business exhibition centre. MEZIES -
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SRR NTE

26 DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS

26 IEIEBUFFED

2016 PAON )
—E—RE —T—AEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTFT
Non-current FERED 185,508 195,048
Current RED 14,500 7,898
200,008 202,946
As at 31 December 2016, the deferred government grants represent RZE—ARF+ZA=+—08 ' BEBRFHY

government grants received.

The balance includes grants of approximately RMB195,358,000 (2015:
RMB197,000,000) which are to subsidise the Group to provide rental
discount to the prospective tenants of the 020 business exhibition

centre in Shunde of Guangzhou.

The conditions attached to this grant has been satisfied during the year

ended 31 December 2016.

27 TRADE PAYABLES, DEFERRED REVENUE AND
ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER PAYABLES

FECWERZ BT B

PRtz e -

=+ —AIEFREN -

AR B FE 4 AR #6195,358,0000t (- Z—Hh
F 1 AR%197,000,0007T) 2 BFEBY - FLA
ERAREEEEMNIBEO20MEREF L2

UL HBI S 2 R R B E T —RF+ A

27 BAIRA  RLEWA LR BT &
AR E AR

2016 2015

—E-REF —T—hHF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R ARBTFT

Trade payables (Note a) FERTER R (P 3Ea) 7,916 3,618
Deferred revenue RIERA 244,367 267,154
Accrued salaries and staff benefits FEEHER BN & B T8 7| 22,826 32,838
Accrued agency commissions EETRIERS 15,385 18,421
Accrued expenses fEET &R 109,647 28,070
Deposit from customers BEPFR 51,528 45,430
Other payables Eofth JE T RRIE 17,496 24,176
469,165 419,707
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27 TRADE PAYABLES, DEFERRED REVENUE AND 27 FE{JERR ~ IEEEWA UK EFTE

ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER PAYABLES AR HE At FRE )
(Continued)
(a) The aging analysis of trade payables is as follows: (a) BENERMRZERSWAOT

2016 2015
—E—E —T—RF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBTT

Current to 90 days HIEEESCIIPS 6,136 2,710
91 to 180 days 91E180K 1,163 593
181 to 365 days 181F365K 395 159
Over 1 year BB —F 222 156
7,916 3,618
i
28 BORROWINGS 28 &8

2016 2015
—B-RF —ThHF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBTT

Non-current portion: ERBE D

Bank borrowings RITEE 127,376 20,000

Other borrowings HiEE 22,206 26,597
149,582 46,597

Current portion: mEE D -

Bank borrowings RITEE 724,528 479,760

Other borrowings Hinfg g 9,372 952
733,900 480,712
883,482 527,309
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28 BORROWINGS (continued)

Movements in borrowings is analysed as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR NTE

28 %E(ﬁ

2016 2015

—NE —hF

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREETTT

At 1 January n—A—H 527,309 139,664

Additions of borrowings HrigEE 940,818 568,287
Repayments of borrowings EEEE (584,645) (180,642)

At 31 December W+—A=+—8H 883,482 527,309
Bank borrowings mature until 2018 and bear average interest rate of HITERER-_Z—\FHH  RTHFEFE

5.95% per annum (2015: 5.54% per annum), part of which amounting
to RMB 160,000,000 are secured by certain properties and land use right
with carrying value amounting to approximately RMB257,271,000 (2015:
RMB147,822,000).

Other borrowings are provided by the non-controlling shareholders
of a subsidiary of the Group for the investment in an associate. The
borrowings are unsecured, mature ranging from 2017 to 2019 and bear
average interest rate of 6.3% per annum (2015: 6.4% per annum).

The carrying amounts of borrowings approximate their fair values and
are denominated in RMB.

The table below summarises the maturity analysis of bank borrowings
based on agreed scheduled repayments set out in the loan agreements.

Bank borrowings

5957(_ —RF : FRES54FE)FE

o1& E AR 160,000,000 7T LA B EE 4
/\E?ﬁzzw 271,000t (ZZE—HF : AR
147,822,0007T ) 2 & T3 K £ Hb 5 FAREVER
jﬂEﬁ o

HintE & A E — MM E QR 2 JEERARR
SR E A RIREMEEH - ZEEREEM

TR-B—EFE_T-NFHH - BirFH
FHER6IB(ZZ—0F - FHX6AE)FE -

ZREZEEEEELQNFERE  LAARE
A

TREL R E R P I E TR RE KA A
REZIBITIEE JHHEI DT

Other borrowings

RITEE HiE &
2016 2015 2016 2015
—RNE —E—hE —RE —hF
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥TRT ARETT AR¥BTRT ARETT
Within 1 year —FR 724,528 479,760 9,372 952
Between 1 and 2 years —FEMFNRN 127,376 20,000 19,792 8,320
Between 2 and 5 years WMEERFNR - - 2,414 18,277
851,904 499,760 31,578 27,549
As at 31 December 2016, the Group has undrawn banking facilities RZB-—RE+ZA=+—8 AEEXREH

amounting to approximately RMB12,624,000 (2015: Nil)

ZIRITREEELNAARKE12,624,000L(=F
—RFE) o
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29 CONVERTIBLE BONDS 29 TRRES
The Company issued convertible bonds with a coupon rate of 5% per ARABRZTE—NF+—AZFTERAETR
annum at a total principal value of HK$780,000,000 (equivalent to & 48 %8 /780,000,000 8 7T (HE R AR
approximately RMB615,342,000) on 27 November 2014. The convertible 615,342,0007C) * ZEMEXFF5% 2 ]2
bonds will mature on 27 November 2019 at its principal amount or can REH - IRBREHFHER =T —NLF+—A
be converted into the Group's shares at the bondholder's option at rate T ERREARSBEIBNREESFAEALZ
of HK$11.63 per share or at the option of the bondholder to redeem BENER.63BIT AR AREERMHINZ
all or some only of the convertible bonds on 27 November 2017, with T+ F+—AZ Tt HEREFRBEAZER
unconditional right, at their principal amount together with interest ARG EREZZBEERENSZRETFIEL
accrued but unpaid to such date. The convertible bonds is reclassified as AR RERIIE [0 2 B0 3B 9 RT AR (B 25 - AT
current liabilities as at 31 December 2016. BEFR-_Z-—RFT_A=+—HBEHHE
RREaE -
On 26 May 2016, the Company issued another zero-coupon convertible RZZE—AR"FRAZ-Z+XHB ARQ2FEHE=
bond to three executive director of the Company, in an aggregate BEARARBTEEE TS " BEASBER
principal amount of HK$380,000,000. The convertible bonds will 380,000,000/ 7T 2 T E Al R E S o AT
mature on 25 May 2019 at its principal amount or can be converted EEBN T NFRA-+RBEREASE
into the Group's shares at the bondholder’s option at rate of HK$4 per FESRIBE RSB A EBAGRAB TR
share. On 31 May 2016, the Company received conversion notices from BRERRD R _T—R"FRA=+—0"
the bondholders. As a result of the Conversion, on 1 June 2016, the RAREBEFFEABEELRABN RN
Company allotted and issued in aggregate of 95,000,000 share (Note —ANFRA—H - ARREEIT IR A ES
22) to the bondholder. 5 AFLE K& 2174 $£95,000,0008 8% 19 (5
22) °
The convertible bonds recognised in the consolidated statement of RE TR RIER 2 PTRESF T

financial position were as follows:

2016 2015
—E—XF —ET—RF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBTT

At 1 January n—A—H 600,225 553,956
Fair value of convertible bond issued on RZE—RNFRAZ+H

26 May 2016 B2 A BRES 2 ATFE 343,017 -
Equity component & A 38 5> (157,323) -
Fair value loss recognized BRERANFEERE 22,297 -
Conversion of convertible bonds HRAMRES

— liabilities portion -BEIHS (207,991) -
Effective interest expense (Note 37) EBRF SR 2 (FFE37) 46,632 42,805
Exchange reserve E R 41,249 34,821
Interest paid BT (33,363) (31,357)
At 31 December W+—-—A=+—8H 654,743 600,225

The carrying amounts of convertible bonds - liabilities component are ARk ES - BESY 2 REBEWETAHE -

denominated in HK$.
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30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 30 EZEBH
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a EHAEM R TR RIS E RIEEER
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax EHRIAEEEY  MBEEMEHERE—/
liabilities and when the deferred income tax relates to the same tax BaERER - B REMEHEERA FK
jurisdiction. The offset amounts are as follows: o HIHS I T

2016
—E-AF

RMB’000
ARBT R

Deferred income tax assets (to be recovered after BEIEFTERIEE (ERBB+ =@

2015
—T—hF
RMB’000
AREFTT

more than 12 months) Ai%&iR[E) 11,386 17,271
Deferred income tax liabilities (to be settled after EIEFTEFH B E (BB T @
more than 12 months) B1&58) (144,654) (148,131)
(133,628) (130,860)
The net movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows: REFTISTIAR B S8 FAT ¢
2016 2015
—B-AEF —ThF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETTT
At 1 January n—A—H (130,860) (19,535)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 15) U EM B A E) (MisE15) (10,513) (99,750)
Charged to the other comprehensive income REM 2R A T 7,428 (28,065)
Credited to the consolidated statement of RNeffBEmi B (HiE38)
profit or loss (Note 38) 677 16,490
At 31 December Rt+_A=1+—H (133,268) (130,860)
As at 31 December 2016, deferred income tax liabilities of REZE—RE+-A=+—8  EERLPHKR
RMB93,879,000 (2015: RMB66,337,000) have not been recognised for B R 2 ARE L E R EN 2 EINHERIEL
the withholding tax that would be payable on the unremitted earnings FrisHi 8 B ARE93,879,000t(ZF—HEF :
of subsidiaries in the PRC. The unremitted earnings are to be used for AR#66,337,0007T) ° AKEE T & F# A ERR
reinvestment. The income tax liability is not recognised where the timing B o WY ERERRL SR EAEETES LY
of the reversal of the temporary differences is controlled by the Group BERBENERARBTISER - ISR ARE
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the BN TR -

foreseeable future.
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30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 30 EEFREH @)
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year FREERIBEERB B R RIEHEER
without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the B RNERER AT -

same taxation jurisdiction, are as follows:
Deferred tax assets BEEHEEE

Tax losses Other Total
BIEEE Hith #@st
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

—®-xF -T-1F C®-XF <-T-0F C®-~F C-T-0F
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETE  ARETR  ARETE  ARMTR  ARETRH

At 1 January ®—A—H 17,149 4,800 122 180 17,271 4,980
Acquisition of subsidiary WM B AT
(Note 15) (PiE15) 12 - - - 12

Charge/(credited) to the REGERR
consolidated statement Y8/ (8%)
of profit or loss (5,990) 12,349 93 (58) (5,897) 12,291

At 31 December W+=ZA=+—8 11,171 17,149 215 122 11,386 17,271
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30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 30 EZEFIBH )
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE

Fair value gains Deferred expenses Total
AP {ER S EERX #st
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016

“B-AF  —T-nf  Z8-XFf "T-1f CZB-AF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR  ARETT AR®Tn ARETR ARMTR ARET:

At 1 January w—A—H 133,696 11,273 14,435 13,242 148,131 24,515
Acquisition of subsidiaries  YtBE B A R (Fi3E

(Note 15) 15) 10,525 99,750 - - 10,525 99,750
Charge/(credited) to the ~ MEMEEWA

other comprehensive X4/ (8R)

income (8,553) 28,065 - - (8,553) 28,065

Charge/(credited) to the REGERER
consolidated statement X8/ (&%)

of profit or loss (11,162) (5,392) 5713 1,193 (5.449) (4,199)
At 31 December W+=ZR=+—H 124,506 133,696 20,148 14,435 144,654 148,131
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carried forwards FARAT TS 2518 A T B35 3B ok 3 JE 22 o 33 6
to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through B FRbEE A ER SRS IEE
future taxable profits is probable. The Group have no unrecognised tax 8o AEBR -—ZT—XNE+-A=+—B#E=E
losses as at 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil). FERRIBEEE(CE—RF &) o

31 INCOME TAX PAYABLE AND OTHER TAXES 31 BE&IFT/2R: % & i fE &% 18
PAYABLE

2016 2015
—E—REF —ZET—hHF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT

Income tax payable: FERFTSE -
Corporate income tax EEFTSH 59,846 23,421
Other taxes payable: H b EATHIE
Value added tax IBEF 8,965 9,351
Cultural and development tax XA R ER 4,749 5,382
Land appreciation tax + I (EF 15,788 648
Other taxes HAbAR1E 6,396 7,890

36,898 23,271
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32 OTHER INCOME 32 HAA

2016 2015
ZE-XRF —T—hF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R AEBTT

Government grants BT 48 B 18,553 4,374
Dividend income A2 A 1,037 -
19,590 4,374
Various government grants have been received from the tax authority REEDHRPEARLAME ([HE ) #EITR
for promoting electronic trading platform among the enterprise in the ¥HEFE DT EWEET G EERE 2 %18
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”). The conditions specified in the TR o FA - BUNELAE 2 e R EBE
government grant approval were fully achieved during the year. K o
33 OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), NET 33 Hfttlz /(F518) 38

2016 2015
—E—REF —ET—hF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBTT

Impairment for investment in associates REE A RIRE ZRE (8,374) -
Gains on disposal of available-for-sale financial HEATHEESHEERS
assets 148,488 -
Change in fair value on financial assets at BRAFEFABRZEREERT
fair value through profit or loss BE&E) (8,397) (1,500)
Change in fair value on financial liabilities at fair ~ RAFPEFAABEZSHEBEAF
value through profit or loss BEE (4,700) -
127,017 (1,500)
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34 EXPENSES BY NATURE 34 EMESIEZEH
2016 2015
—EB—XRE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARBTFT
Cost of properties sold EEYIE A 472,166 -
Other direct expenses of sale of properties HEMEZEMEEER 30,422 -
Direct expenses of B2B trade platform B2BEEFAzEEEHR 126,429 -
Direct expenses of trade catalogues and yellow — TREBHM=HBHY
page directories EEEA 3,735 10,785
Direct expenses of online services BERIRG c BEEER 2,801 7,220
Direct expenses of seminars and other services eahEtRErEEER 36,694 52,404
Direct expenses of anti-counterfeiting fhiBEmMIRG  EEER
products and services 34,017 25,104
Agency cost RIEEHER 97,116 106,607
Marketing and consultancy expenses TSR RERER 193,468 142,933
Network and telephone expenses Mg KB E A 19,563 18,057
Amortisation of land use rights b {55 AR AR £ 1,147 428
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 11) R R ERE ) 50,194 24,189
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment YIE - BRSO EITE
(Note 10) (Kt7E10) 27,646 29,615
Depreciation of investment properties (Note 7) AR EITE (H:E7) 3,043 -
Auditor’s remuneration ZE MBS 5,475 3,052
— Audit services — BT 3,379 2,490
— Non — audit services — BRI 2,096 562
Employee benefits expenses (Note 35) EE&FE A (MF5E35) 367,694 300,399
Staff commission ETHS 72,059 71,147
Provision for impairment and write off of trade  FEUZER 02 i {E B8 K i 35
receivables (Note 12) (FsE12) 878 8,212
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BEKEE
equipment (Note 41) (W) BB (HiEE41) (426) 185
Operating lease payments in respect of land and B+ M85 7 K& FA4
buildings 3R 34,945 29,243
Professional fee BEXEH 21,363 10,511
Travelling expenses RPN ERE 20,943 15,424
Exchange loss I 5 &5 18 20,864 10,448
Other expenses HAhE A 33,285 25,150
Total cost of revenue, selling and marketing HEKA  SHERTSHEESZR
expenses and administrative expenses A RITHE R R 1,675,521 891,113
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35 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 35 EERFBX

2016 2015
ZE-XRF —T—hF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R AEBTT

Wages and salaries TERYS 281,275 230,542
Retirement benefits costs (a) RIRIBFIRL AN (a) 56,853 40,626
Share based compensation — Share Option Scheme BARZ{D Sz~ 2 #1E — BER i 512 11,245 13,236
Share based compensation — Share Award Scheme BAR&(H Sz~ 2 #18 — B (7 22 Eh 51 £ 18,321 15,995
367,694 300,399
The employee benefits expenses amounting to RMB3,680,000 (2015: £ AEAR3680,00T(ZFT—HF : A
RMB1,766,000), RMB173,432,000 (2015: RMB114,868,000) and K #1,766,000 7T ) + A K # 173,432,000 7T
RMB190,582,000 (2015: RMB183,765,000) are recognised in cost of (ZZE—FHF + AR 114,868,0007T) & A
revenue, administrative expenses and selling and marketing expenses, R 190,582,000 (Z T —HF : AR
respectively in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. 183,765,0007T) 2 B ERAFAZ D Alst A& 0

HAREROFEERAN  TRERUREER
MISHEERR -

(a) In accordance with the PRC regulations, the Group is required to () REFERG  FAEESFAKEESRE
make annual contributions to the state retirement plans calculated REFS20% M BEKERNREHET - EE
at 20% of the basic salaries of the employees, and employees are AlZAmMZEAEELH HEARFH 8% 2 #
required to contribute 8% of their basic salaries to the plans. The oo MR EFEHRTON - NEBBARKE
Group has no obligations for further pension payments or any HAR RS RS TR IR ER] o RIK
post-retirement benefits beyond these annual contributions. The BRRZEAEEETEENRINEESX
retirement benefits are paid directly from the plan assets to the i WREHRRIKAH 2 ZEAR A IR
retired employees and are calculated by reference to their monthly HRE 2 FHEH -
basic salaries at the date of retirement and periods of service
rendered.

As at 31 December 2016, there were no forfeited contributions REZB-—RETZA=1T—080  BEEK
available to offset future retirement benefit obligations of the HRAMEAREEARE BB RIKENE
Group. T
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35 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

(b)

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include two (2015: two) directors whose
emolument is reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments paid and payable to the three (2015: three) individuals

during the year are as follows:

35 EERFABEX @)

AfuGEFAL

FR - AEBRNERFATEERSA
(ZZ2—AF - MB)EF  EF2HLE
R EXF2 2 AR R - RERER
REMNTZ=2(ZF—RF : =R)AL
ZBEmT -

2016 2015
—B—AF —ThF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT

Basic salaries, housing allowances,
share options, other allowances and

EAXFE  BERRM
R - HIRR N

benefits in kind BEHE 7,175 3,572
Retirement plan contributions RREF 2T 101 90
7.276 3,662

The emoluments for these three individuals (2015: three) fell within

the following bands:

T

Z=H(ZZE—RF: =ZB)ALzHeHEN

Number of individuals

AB

2016
i

Nil to HKD 1,000,000

HKD1,000,001 to HKD 1,500,000
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000
HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000
HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000

Z%1,000,000% 7T

1,000,001 7% 1,500,000/ 7T
1,500,001 7T.%22,000,000/# 7T
2,000,0017& 7T 22,500,000/ 7T
2,500,001 7T % 3,000,000/ 7T

(c) During the year, no emoluments have been paid by the Group (c)
to the directors or the five highest paid individuals mentioned
above as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as

compensation for loss of office (2015: Nil).

FR - AKEVEAERE DEAUES
FALNEMME - FERIMASR
ARG EE 2 B REERAEE (T -0
FomE) -

BREERAT 2016555 240




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF

THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁﬂ) BB (5
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE 622GE)REB L MRBIREE
OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF 2 EE)
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK
LISTING RULES)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments () EERTFETHRAEZHME
The remuneration of every director and chief executive for the year BE_ZT—hGFR_T—XR"F+=A
ended 31 December 2015 and 2016 is set out below: =+—BIEFE  BEERFETHRASR
ZEHMAT

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a
director, whether of the company or its subsidiary undertaking

RECARAZENBLFEERE 2 ALENRBIZHE -

250 HC International, Inc

Employer’s

Estimated contribution

money toa

value of  retirement

other benefit
Fees Salary benefit scheme Total

HiER (EEENKE
ik M AEEWE AR st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTR

2016: —E-RE:
Mr. Guo Fansheng RLELE - 600 - 76 676
Mr. Guo Jiang MWThkAE - 600 5,011 76 5,687
Mr. Lee Wee Ong Lee Wee Ong%t & - 720 438 - 1,158
Mr. Liu Jun (Note i) HES A5 - 600 - 76 676
Mr. Zhang Ke Rk 250 - - - 250
Dr. Xiang Bing (Note ii) I8 i+ (M i) 165 - = - 165
Mr. Zhang Tim Tianwei RARSLE 230 - - - 230
Mr. Tang Jie (Note iii) 8 o A (B =) 73 - - - 73
Mr. Guo Wei (Note iv) BAETEKTEV) - - - - -
Mr. Wong Chi Keung (Note v) T B84 5 4 (i v) - = = - -
Mr. Li Jianguang TENEA - - - - -
2015: “E-hF:

Mr. Guo Fansheng BRAETZE - 600 - 71 671
Mr. Guo Jiang Mk - 600 5,011 71 5,682
Mr. Lee Wee Ong Lee Wee OngZt 4 - 720 1,236 - 1,956
Mr. Zhang Ke RREE 100 - - - 100
Dr. Xiang Bing HEE+ 100 - - - 100
Mr. Zhang Tim Tianwei RAELE 100 - - - 100
Mr. Guo Wei BR7E - - - - -
Mr. Li Jiangnang FTRNEE - - - - -
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36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE
OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK
LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(a)

(a)

(b)

(0

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(Continued)
Note:

(i) Mr. Liu Jun was appointed as an executive director with effect from
12 September 2016

(i) Dr. Xiang Bing had resigned as an independent director with effect
from 12 September 2016

(i)  Mr. Tang Jie was appointed as an independent director with effect
from 12 September 2016

(iv)  Mr. Guo Wei had resigned as a non-executive director with effect
from 12 September 2016

(v)  Mr. Wong Chi Keung was appointed as a non-executive director with
effect from 12 September 2016

Directors’ retirement benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any retirement
benefits during the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any termination
benefits during the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company did
not pay consideration to any third parties for making available
directors’ services (2015: Nil).

36 EEEFANREZ(REFTBLT
%5 (56622 ) £3831% & A A
(HEBEESENZER)RH (5
622GE ) REABLTHAREME
HZBE) @)

(a) EBERFETBRAEBZME®)

iy BELELERZERWTESE B-F
—ANENAATZHRBER -

iy BEELIBHIBLEE B_F—RF
NA+ZBRRER -

(i) ZEELBRZERBILIERE BT
—ANENRATZHRBER -

(iv) SEREEBEIFRTES BT R
FNAA+=BRER -

(v IEREERZERFEWNTESE A=
TRNFART-RBEM -

(a) EZENKRER
HE-Z—RFE+-_A=+—RAILEE -
4= = B A Sk U BT AT 3R R 4
(ZZ—hF &) -

(b) EEBRIEREF
BE_F-~F+-A=t—RALEE
194 B 2 R MR T 42 L (R 1R
M(=F—HF : @) -

() REELESHRBEEAE=FRHEN
RE
BE-Z-—<E+=A=t—RALEE
AR RRESREL ERRBAE@E=S
ERRE(ZE—AF  §) -
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36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE
OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK
LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(d) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors
During the year ended 31 December 2016, there is no loans, quasi-
loans and other dealing arrangements in favour of the directors, or
controlled body corporates and connected entities of such directors
(2015: Nil).

(e) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts
No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Company’s business to which the Company was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

(f) No director received any housing allowance; emolument from
the Group as an inducement to join or leave the Group or
compensation for loss of office; emoluments paid or receivable
in respect of director’s other services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the company or its subsidiary
undertaking during the years ended 31 December 2016 (2015:
Nil).
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SRR NTE

37 FINANCE COST, NET 37 BB AERE

2016 2015
—E—REF —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBTT

Interest expense: FIEZH
— Bank borrowings —RITEE (36,088) (16,400)
— Other borrowings —HEmEE (1,655) (1,530)
— Issued convertible bonds (Note 29) — BB ES(FIFE29) (46,632) (42,805)
— Fair value loss on issuance of convertible bonds — 21T A[#AR(EH 2 A FEEE (22,297) -
— Finance lease liabilities —FEHERE (30) (253)
— Others —HAb (345) -
Finance cost B AR (107,047) (60,988)
Less: amounts capitalised on qualifying assets B EEREECANMLEEH 9,674 13,186
Total finance cost BT PR ANBER (97,373) (47,802)
Finance income B
Interest income: FLEHA
— Short-term bank deposits — R ERERITIF AR 25,240 25,748
— Loans to an associate — BT e A 3,030 2,586
- Loans to a joint venture —BRT—HEaEAA 12,593 3,880
— Others —HAth 6,512 11,162
Finance income BRUA 47,375 43,376
Finance cost, net MR A FEE (49,998) (4,426)
Finance costs of the loans used to finance the 020 business exhibition REBRNO20EXREEHR LERER 2 B
centre development projects have been capitalised in properties under BRABRFAIREALE648%(ZF—H
development and investment properties up to the completion of F:746% ) R ERPYERRENEPETE
construction, at a capitalisation rate of 6.48% during the year (2015: IR e
7.46%).
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38 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

38 FiSHiRx

2016 2015
—E—REF —T—hfF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBFIT
Current income tax expense EHMGEHRY

— Hong Kong profits tax (Note a) —BEFEH (HisTa) = -
— PRC corporate income tax (“CIT") — R EER 57,316 26,758
— PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT") — R+ 1 I (E T 36,187 -

Deferred income tax credit (Note 30) EIEFTS B o (B7E30)
— PRC corporate income tax — B ZEPTER (677) (16,490)
92,826 10,268

(b)

254 HC International, Inc

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as there is no assessable profit
arising in Hong Kong for the year (2015: Nil).

The PRC corporate income tax represents taxation charged on assessable
profits for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the cities in the PRC
in which the Group operates.

The tax rate applicable to the subsidiaries in the PRC is 25%, except for
certain subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC that were approved as High
and New Technology Enterprise, and accordingly, they were subject to a
reduced preferential CIT rate of 15% for a 3-year period from 2016 to 2019
according to the applicable CIT Law.

The PRC land appreciation tax is levied at progressive rates ranging from
30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales
of properties less deductible expenditures including land use right and all
property development expenditures.

Annual Report 2016
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38 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 38 FREFiB (e
The tax on the Group's profit before tax from continuing operations NEE GRS E RTINS 2 B8 8
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation FRAREERARMERR 2B XA EMSER
rate of the home country of the Group companies as follows: HEEERNAT

2016 2015
—B-AE i

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT

Profit before income tax Kk TSR A& 393,502 33,326
Tax calculated at 25% (2015: 25%) R25% MR H 2 Hi1A
(ZE—FF :25%) 98,376 8,332

Effect of different taxation rates in other H A3 TR T RIB R R IR

cities/under preferential tax treatment BENME B (31,575) (18,125)
Income not taxable BERTMA (24,501) -
PRC land appreciation tax deductible for BB EAETED

PRC corporate income tax proposes HURAY R B A IR E R (9,047) -
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes OCIE =1 23,386 20,061
PRC corporate income tax A S FRAS A 56,639 10,268
PRC land appreciation tax AP S I E R 36,187 -
Income tax expense FriSfifsz 92,826 10,268

39 EARNINGS PER SHARE 39 BREF

2016 2015
—E—REF —T—hHF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBTT

Profit attributable to equity holders RRA TR A AERER
of the Company 181,784 52,552
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39 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 39 BRER (»)
2016 2015
= —FIF
No. of shares No. of shares
gk E| b=
(‘000) ("000)
(F8) (Fr)
Weighted average number of shares in issue BT D 2 I 965,982 755,356
Incremental shares from assumed exercise of BRERATEE IR BB M
share options granted b1 ) 15,728 18,583
Diluted weighted average number of shares HEE R G T8 981,710 773,939
Basic earnings per share (in RMB) FIREREBF(ARE) 0.1882 0.0696
Diluted earnings per share (in RMB) FREERN(ARE) 0.1852 0.0679
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable BRERBFIZANR FHEB A SRS
to owners of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary NE TS RRINE T EETE (T RIERAF
shares in issue during the year excluding ordinary shares purchased by BE ZEmik) (fist22) -

the company (Note 22).

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted TREE RN IRF B RBEIN S BANET
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion HAHABRRAE BT E T @R EERMET
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The company has two categories E o RREEMBETRECEE L @R - Tk
of dilutive potential ordinary shares: convertible debt and share options. MR B - AT R R EERROBHR AL
The convertible debt is assumed to have been converted into ordinary AR - MmARFIAE B R A EE R S R S R
shares, and the net profit is adjusted to eliminate the interest expense SE - BLERENS - REBREEITER
less the tax effect. For the share options, the number of shares that EEEITZRODBE R ITEATERRFES
would have been issued assuming the exercise of the share options Wefetn 2 M BRETE ) BT RINER - PIfs
less the number of shares that could have been issued at fair value HROSFIEAEARERITORMEE -
(determined as the average market price per share for the year) for the HRETARTRRESSIENBREERT - )
same total proceeds is the number of shares issued for no consideration. MEESFARBEEYE BV ERESES
Since diluted earnings per share is increased when taking into account AeEEE &R -

the convertible bond, the convertible bond is anti-dilutive and is ignored
in the calculation of diluted earnings per share.

40 DIVIDENDS 40 RE
A dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2016 of HK$0.05 BEEER_TE—EF=A-T/\BEAMER
per share (2015: Nil) was proposed by the Board on 28 March 2017 and ZE-RETZ AT -HLEFERNER
to be approved by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general 0058 (= —0F : #)2KRE - WAFK
meeting. This proposed final dividend, amounting to RMB44,636,000 RAREERRBEF ARG L& o bTEEFEARER
(HK$49,900,000) has not been recognised as a liability in the financial i% B AR #44,636,0007T (49,900,000 7T ) 14
statements, but will be reflected as an appropriation of retained profits AR BRRERFAE R AHE-Z
for the year ending 31 December 2017. —tFFT A=+ —HIEFEZBTFREDIR
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41 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 4 REXBELEZRE

() REABRRELEBRELEZR
TFEYR

(a) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash
generated from operating activities

2016 2015
—B—RE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTFT
Profit before income tax Kk ET ISR A& 393,502 33,326
Adjustments for: E
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment % « E &R E 2
(Note 10) #rE (fizE10) 27,646 29,615
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 11) EREERE (1) 50,194 24,189
Provision for impairment of trade receivables FEURER 5K 2 kB
(Note 12) (HMiEE12) 878 8,212
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 34) b PR 8 (Pl EE34) 1,147 428
Amortisation of investment properties HEY R (I FE34)
(Note 34) 3,043 -
Impairment loss of investment in associate B R B A 2R (E 1B
(Note 14) (FfizE14) 8,374 -
Government grants income T8 Bh A (1,642) -
Share based compensation — value of employee AR 22 #E — (€S
services (Note 34) AR EE (F5E34) 29,566 29,231
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEWE BMEMKZEZ
plant and equipment (Note b) (Was), /BB (HiFED) (426) 185
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HERHELESMERE
financial assets (Note 33) 2 Wea (fFEE33) (148,488) -
Dividend income (Note 32) & BUA (FF5E32) (1,037) -
Finance income (Note 37) BA RS (B 5$37) (47,375) (43,376)
Finance expense (Note 37) B o (f93E37) 75,076 47,802
Share of profit from investments accounted DhiEEREANERZ
for using equity method (Note 14) KB R (HE14) (14,131) (9,853)
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair value BAEG AR
through profit or loss TRIEERN T ERIE 8,397 1,500
Fair value loss on financial liabilities at fair value 1&ZA (B ABZ
through profit or loss cHMEEATESRE 4,700 -
Fair value loss on issuance of convertible bonds 277 A[ AR &5 - A FEEB
(Note 37) (F5E37) 22,297 -
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41 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (Continued)

(a) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash
generated from operating activities (Continued)

41

REEBREF 2RE @

(a) FRBIAIENERSEEBRELECH
EFEHR®)

2016 2015
—E-AREF —ET—RHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTFT
Operating profit before working EEESEBAIZ
capital changes Fea vl 411,721 121,259
Changes in working capital: HEEEEH
Changes of properties under development and  ZEFRYENFELE
completed properties held of sales BT YEES) 352,855 (311,268)
Changes in trade receivables RN E ) (44,073) (15,016)
Changes in deposits, prepayments and e BARER
other receivables Hfh pe s & 56,251 (37,349)
Changes in finance lease receivables FEURL & T E R IBEE) (259,481) (92,846)
Changes in inventories FEE (517) (2,553)
Changes in direct selling costs EEHERAEE 23,965 8,430
Changes in trade payables FERTBR R E & 4,237 (821)
Changes in accrued expenses and FERTE R R E A ERS
other payables FIBE (26,027) 43,800
Changes in deferred government grants RAETS T4/ BY & 2,750 -
Changes in deferred revenue RIEU A B (28,181) (104,593)
Changes in receipt in advance TRl RIS (648,281) 622,571
Changes in other tax payable F A T B B (22,730) 3,993
Net cash (used in)/generated from operations (R, EEY
IS HER (177,511) 235,607
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41 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (continued) 41 REXBEEZRES @)

(b) Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and (b) HEWE  BERREZFABX
equipment 1B
In the consolidated cash flow statements, proceeds from disposal TEHEeRERA  HEYE  BEK
of property, plant and equipment comprise: B2 FTSIE RIS -

2016 2015
—g-X&  -2-TF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT

Net book amount: BREDFE
Property, plant and equipment (Note 10) Y% - B kA1) 980 2,380
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and HEDE - BEMEREZ I

equipment (Note 34) @/ (E518) (M5E34) 426 (185)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plantand — HEWE - BE R REY 15

equipment IE 1,406 2,195
42 COMMITMENTS 42 EiE
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEAAE
Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the year but not AARFERETHE REE 2 B A AN
yet incurred is as follows: U

2016 2015
—E-REF —T—hHF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R AEBTT

Property, plant and equipment ME - BE K& 1,900 1,500

Investment properties and properties under BEYERFAEPYE
development - 47,292
1,900 48,792
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42 COMMITMENTS (Continued) 42 EEm)
(b) Financial commitments (b) BAFEHIE
Financial commitments at the end of the year are analysed as RARFER A EEESFTET
follows:

2016 2015
—E—RE —T—HRF

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARETT

Acquisition of subsidiaries U g M A | - 58,711
Acquisition of available-for-sale financial assets WAt E S REE 42,000 325,985
Investment in associates KA ENT] - 15,000
42,000 399,696
(c) Commitments under operating leases (c) REFHNEIE
(i) As alessee (i) ERFEEA
At 31 December 2016, the Group had future aggregate RZZE—RFE+ZA=+—H K
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating SEBEF 2 R HARIELE
leases in respect of buildings which expire as follows: M BEEN 2 HEEENEEE
W

2016 2015
—E—RF —TRE

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT

Within one year —FRr 24,720 25,624
In the second to fifth year inclusive TERF(REER

M) 145,193 115,587

Over the fifth year AFNE 138 31,906

170,051 173,117
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42 COMMITMENTS (Continued) 42 EEm)
() Commitments under operating leases (Continued) (c) REHNEIED
(i) As a lessor (i) 1EBHBEA
At 31 December 2016, the Group had future aggregate RZZ—RF+ZA=+—H &
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable operating SEMEFZE BT IRHELE
leases in respect of buildings which expire as follows: OB RBEYK IEHERIERTE
W

2016 2015
—B—AF —ThF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT

Within one year —FR 10,007 12,810
In the second to fifth year inclusive —EhFE(BEER
) 36,091 43,257
Over the fifth year HENRE 75,246 81,562
121,344 127,629
43 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 43 HAREE
As at 31 December 2016, there were no material contingent liabilities to RZEBE—RF+ZA=+—H AEEHES
the Group (2015: Nil). AXARBE(ZZE—RF  8) -
44 FINANCIAL GUARANTEES 44 BAIEHER
The Group has arranged bank financing for certain purchasers of the AEBAREEYESN 2 ETERZHERT
Group's property units and provided guarantees to secure obligations of BE - WIREERMEAZEERENREEZ
such purchasers for repayments. Such guarantees terminate upon the EHR o ZFRRRUTREEZEERLL ()
earlier of () issuance of the real estate ownership certificate which will REMBERECREL —RIENFIME=F
generally be available within an average period of two to three years BB ZEER k()W EBEREMNRIBE
upon the completion of guarantee registration; or (ii) the satisfaction of e

mortgaged loan by the purchasers of properties.

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default in mortgage IRBERIER  MZEEREIRBER - K
payments by these purchasers, the Group is responsible to repay the SHEABRERIEBR ZEBEFRARESFE
outstanding mortgage principals together with accrued interest and MEHNBRERPITZE N - MASEARER
penalty owed by the defaulted purchasers to the banks and the Group ERBERBAYEZ EEERE - AEEZBER
is entitled to take over the legal title and possession of the related HRBEHZBERE AR - RZT—RF
properties. The Group's guarantee period starts from the dates of grant +ZA=+—H BBZ2AEEERSBOAR
of the mortgages. As at 31 December 2016, the amount of outstanding AR #357,430,000L(ZT—HF - AR
guarantees for mortgages were approximately RMB357,430,000 (2015: 356,074,0007T) °

RMB356,074,000).

The directors consider that the likelihood of default in payments by EERREFTERNRZ ATRERIE @ #URATF
purchasers is minimal and therefore the financial guarantees measured B E2MBERETERK -
at fair value is immaterial.
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45 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 45 XA TZHMBERRRR#EEEE
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

Statement of financial position of the Company RA R Z BT R
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2016 2015
—EB—RF —T—hHEF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Kt AR®T T AREETTT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets REBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHTB AR ZIE 1,367,882 1,308,553
1,367,882 1,308,553
Current assets REBEE
Loan to a subsidiary ERT—RHEAR 1,052,450 885,660
Total assets BmEE 2,420,332 2,194,213
EQUITY Ex
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital ieN 93,885 85,090
Note (a)
Other reserves H (Bi5#@) 1,950,238 1,688,035
Note (a)
Accumulated losses EiTiEs1E (Hiat(a) (279,504) (179,610)
Total equity R 1,764,619 1,593,515
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Issued convertible BETARRES
bond - liabilities component —afEEs 654,744 600,225
654,744 600,225
Current liabilities REEE
Accrued expenses and other payables e E B R E A E A 969 473
Total liabilities FER=RE 655,713 600,698
Total equity and liabilities HWERLRAE 2,420,332 2,194,213
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45 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 45 AATZHBRRAERR#HEES

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (&)
(Continued)
(a) Reserve movement of the Company (a) KRRz EED
Accumulated Other
losses reserves
2itEE Hibh ke
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARKETTT AREETTT
At 1 January 2015 R=-ZB—HF—HF—H (106,516) 639,232
Loss for the year REZEE (73,094) -
Issuance of new shares BATE R - 1,063,819
Share based compensation — value of D S5 2 H1E - B E RS
employee services BE - 29,231
Exercise of share options 1T AR - 1,951
Currency translation differences EHEREZR - (46,198)
At 31 December 2015 and R-B-—HF+ZA=+—-HEK
1 January 2016 —E2-—Xf¥—H—H (179,610) 1,688,035
Loss for the year REEEE (99,894) -
Issuance of shares upon conversion of R ESE TR
convertible bonds - 326,506
Buy-back shares EEAEE) - (60,410)
Share based compensation — value of AR S5 2 1 — R B RAS
employee services BE - 29,566
Share purchase under Share Award Scheme R 22BN a2 B AN - (6,387)
Exercise of share options 1T{ERE AL AE - 10,429
Currency translation differences BEEN =2 - (37,501)
At 31 December 2016 N-EBE—RE+=-A=+—8H (279,504) 1,950,238
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46

47

264 HC International, Inc

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Apart from the transactions already disclosed in other notes in this
financial statements, the Group has the following significant transactions
that were carried out with related parties:

Key management compensation

46 BEEALRZ

BRZEUBHRcEMMNEEREZRS
S REEERHATETZERR ST

2015

—E—RF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T AREEFIT

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits e REMSEEESEH 6,075 5,960
Share-based payments VARG (7 BT 2 3R 8,130 7.277
14,205 13,237

EVENT AFTER THE DATE OF STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

Acquisition of subsidiaries - Huijia Yuantian Limited

On 8 December 2016, the Group and the Vendors has entered into a
letter of intent to acquire the entire equity interest of K)Z2ZZ T KE
EEH AR AE] (Tianjin Huijiayuantian Advertisement Media Company
Limited*).

On 13 January 2017, the Group has entered into a share purchase
agreement with Mu Hao Holdings Limited, Hong Rui Technology
Holdings Limited, Chance Technology Co. Ltd and Vanguard Technology
Holdings Limited (together the “Vendors”) and Mr. Zou Kai (“#B3l"),
Mr. Hong Chaoran (“3#t#8#8"), Ms. Wang Fei (“F3E”) and Mr. Sun
Yi ("F&% ") (together the “Vendor Guarantors”) to acquire the entire
equity interest of Huijia Yuantian Limited, which in tum held the entire
equity interest in XKIEEZ TR B SEEAFRR A F] (Tianjin Huijiayuantian
Advertising Media Company Limited*); entire equity interest in 1t &%
EEHBRAE] (Beijing Yimao Advertising Company Limited*).

The acquiree is principally engaged in technology development,
marketing and public relations with the focus on developing digital
interactive media marketing tools mainly using the mobile terminal as
the medium, to assist the clients in setting up cross-border integrated
marketing platform based on technology-driven marketing strategy.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement, the total consideration
amounted HK$409,090,909 (equivalent to RMB360,000,000). Part
of the consideration was settled by cash amounted HK$184,090,909
(equivalent to RMB162,000,000), while the remaining portion was
settled by issuance and allotment of the convertible bonds (subject to
downward adjustments).

The transaction had been completed on 3 February 2017 in accordance
with the terms of the sale and purchase agreement.

* English name is translated for identification purpose only.
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W B8 Bt B 2 T — Huijia Yuantian
Limited
RZZE—RFTZANB > AEEEEFIIZ
BRRBEREES IRAESBEERRARZE
iz BAE o

RZZE—+tF—A+=H XEBEKERMu
Hao Holdings Limited * Hong Rui Technology
Holdings Limited * Chance Technology Co. Itd
K Vanguard Technology Holdings Limited (%78
[E7 DEGFEE  HBAKE - THFLTR
BRREEGBIERERA D ZRHEER
LA EEHuijia Yuantian Limited (AR 2E
SELRESEEER AR 2 ERE) 2 2B
BRIEREBERESARIARARZ 2ERKE o

WEBED T BRERMARE  2HRAME
3 TEUBELGAHE  BREFILED)
REEHT A DURINIRE)E SH RS - HENE
FPiTEBEREEZHTA -

BIEEE W - 8K (EA409,090,909 7% 7T
(g M AR #360,000,0007T) * o HEFE
184,090,9097% 7t (48 & # A R # 162,000,000
TOVER - MER N0 RiE B E 1T M AL s rT IRk
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